; -

 DELIVERING

~ LONGTERM
-~ GROWTH

IMAGE
MO

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB

lIllllfllflﬂl//Iﬂfllll{llﬂlllmllﬂlll!lll(lll

ooooooooooooo




$SAUISNG INQY

gaeusnoh m)

SILnGZoe Iy

IMAGE
REMOVED

01 Operating across the infrastructure lifecycle
04 Whatwe do
Aquick lock at the business, geographies and markets

06 How we have performed

08 Message from the Chairman

Success means attracting, retaining and developing the best paople IMAGE B
. . . - REMOVED —

10 Strategic review from the Chief Executive

Aclear strategy to dnve long-term growth

21 Simplifying the delivery of complex projects for our customers
Alook at some of the projects we are working on
34 Broadly-spread growth markets

Qur principal markets promise long-term growth

37 Operating review of our four linked businesses
38 Professional services

IMAGE
REMOVED

42 Construction services
— IMAGE T
48 Support serviees REMOVED |
52 Infrastructure investments
56 Making our success sustainable
62 Board of Directors IMAGE
64 Financial review REMOVED
67 Directors’ valuation of PPP concessions
70 Principal risks and risk management
74 Directors’ report
82 Remuneration report IMAGE
—— REMOVED —
91 Independent auditors’ report
92 Financial statements

160 Group five-year summary
161 Shareholder information

Front cover Baifour Beatty completed the construction of the iconic Infinity Bndge
across the rver Tees in Stockton, North-East England, in 2009




Annual report and accounts 2009 1

Operating across
the Infrastructure

LIFECYCLE

Infrastructure is a long-term busingss offering
outstanding opportunities.

We have created a high-quality business operating
throughout the infrastructure lifecycle,
with strong positions in major markets.

Our four market-leading businesses — in
Professional services, Construction services,
Support services and Infrastructure investments —
are mutually reinforcing.

And we are well diversified across markets and
geographies. This gives us the resilience and
agility to prosper throughout the economic cycle.
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Our moded Together our four businesses provide a full range of
infrastructure services Where they meet, we are at our most
competve and capable

Our business

The majonty of our work 1s for customers who are financially stable, long-term
investors in infrastructure There 1s long-term demand for infrastructure - driven
by demographic change, growing prospenty and expectations, and the need to
replace ageing assets As infrastructure assets grow in scale and complexity,
their owners want to work with more fully integrated partners who can deliver
more complete solutions

We have bullt a portfolio of high-quality, marketleading businesses operating in
Professional services, Construction services, Support services and Infrastructure
Investments Together, they are the four components of a full-service infrastructure
business they can be brought tagether in any combination to provide an integrated
capability Where all four components meet, we are at our most competitive

and capable, meeting the needs of major customers in the public, requlated and
private sectors

The acquisricn of Parsons Brinckerhoff has brought the scale and reach of our
Professional services business into proportion with the other three businesses,
and gives us the capacity to develop the Group's depth of expertise and breadth
of geographies and services across the infrastructure market.

Where we are heading
Our goal 1s to become a world-leading provider of services to mnfrastructure owners

We have first-class capabiliies and expenence in many fields, and can bring them
together to delver the largest and most complex projects

Track record and praven expertise are hard for competrtors to imitate They enable us
to attract the best people, win the most interesting and challenging projects from the
best customers, and develop the best relationships with our supply chains
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Our markets are changing

The opportunities In our markets are substantial The undertying demand, and
necessity, for social and oivil infrastructure provides us with a secure and attractive
market environment. There will continue to be excrting opportunities In many of our
markets and mewitably, there are also going to be challenges in others

The aftermath of the global financial cnisis 1s changing our world Over half our work
15 for govemments, mostly in the UK and US, and so far we have benefited from the
length of our order book and governments’ need to maintain economic stimul
However, while they recognise the need to maintain long-term investment in
infrastructure, in the short term there will be cut backs while large fiscal deficits

are pad down

Around half of the rest of our work 1s for utilmes and cther regulated businesses
These tend to Invest through the economic cycle and we expect their spending to
remain stable, with the potential for future growth

We are diversified through our market and geographic posttions, and have the nght
skills and capabilities to take advantage of the demand for infrastructure

Maintaining our growth in this new world
To realise our potential we must

— Share knowledge and integrate our capabilities even more effectively We have
made progress over the past few years, but still have some way to go and must
integrate Parsons Brinckerhoff into the process

— Ensure we are as competitive as we can be by evolving our structures and processes
to leverage our scale and maximise efficiency

— Continue to act like a leader, setting the standard in areas such as ethics, safety,
sustanability and in our relaonships with our customers, our supply chain and our
people Leaderstup 1s not only about having the biggest market share, we must behave
like an organisation of real substance and stature

To mantain growth in these market condrtions, we need to focus our strategic
development where most Investment s going to be made We cannot forecast with
certainty where this will be, but have taken positive steps to meet future trends and
expect our focus to Include growing our business in the US, expanding our capabilibes
in parbicular sectors such as water and power generation, including nuclear, and
building our pesrtion in industnal and commercial bullding markets

Importantly, we now have a platform with the capability and strength to adapt rapidly
to market conditions This flexibility 1s rtself a further competitive advantage, and will
enable us to participate In the most promising opportunities as they emerge

SSENIIST] INQ)
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What we do

We work on major infrastructure assets across their entire lifecycle:
from conception, funding, programme management and design
to construction, systems integration, operation and maintenance.

Professional Construction
Services services
IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED
We are now a major global player in professional services We provide bullding, design, construction management,

We provide programme and proect management, architectural | 'eurbishment and fit-out services

services, project design, technical services and planning to the We undertake mechanical and electrical services, cvi!
infrastructure market engineenng, ground engineening and raill engineenng services

See page 38 for more See page 42 for more

We work successfully as a group on major projects see page 21.
Individual businesses work autonomously and successfully In therr own markets see page 37.

Key geographies

Continental Europe

£6,041m £7,869m £499m

58% of 2009 revenue 28% of 2009 revenue 5% of 2009 revenue

Asia Pacific Middle East, Near East Central & South America
£597m £304m £34m

5% of 2009 revenue 3% of 2009 revenug

Revenue by destination, including jomt ventures and associates.
Only includes two months’ revenue from Parsons Bnnckerhoff
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Support

Infrastructure

We provide total facilities management and business
services outsourcing

services investments
IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED

We operate a portfolio of long-term PPP concessions in the UK,
primarily in the education, health and roads/street highting sectors

We upgrade and mantain water and power (gas and
electnoity) networks

We operate a portfolio of iong-term mulitary accommodation
PPP concessions in the US

We manage, operate and mantain highways, including
street hghting uparades, and carry out UK rail renewals

We operate an education PPP concession in Slngaﬁore_

We have interests m non-PPP assets at Blackpoo! and Exeter

See page 48 for more International Airports and Barking Power Station
See page 52 formore

Key markets
Transportation Utilities Social
31% of 2009 revenue 11% of 2009 revenue 28% of 2009 revenue
Road Power Education
13% of 2008 revenue 6% of 2009 revenue 14% of 2009 revenue
Rall Water Healthcare
16% of 2009 revenue 5% of 2009 revenue 10% of 2008 revenue
Awviation Social and military housing
2% of 2009 revenue 4% of 2009 revenue
Defence Facilities management Commercial building
5% of 2009 revenue 5% of 2009 revenue 11% of 2009 revenue

Other markets 9%

ssUIsq I
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How we have performed

The scale and scope of Balfour Beatty's operations
have been transformed in recent years.

Our revenues and order book have risen and
we have become more internationally diverse.

Financial results

Revenue including jomt verttures and associates was up 9% at
£10,339m {2008 £9,486m)or up 3% at constant currency™

This included the benefit of acquisions withoutwhich there

was an underlying decline of approxmately 4%

Prafit {rom operations’ increased by 23% to £282m (2008 £230m)or
by 14% &t constant curency™ Excluding the mpact of acquisitions
and at constant currency® profit from aperations® ncreased by 10%
Pre-tax profit’ was up 7% at £267m {2008 £249m)

Adyusted earnings per ordinary share'? were unchanged at 34 7p (2008
34 7pi, due principally to the impact of the nghts issue in Octaber 2009
Basic eamings per ardinary share were 37 4p (2008 374p}

The Board has recommended a final dvidend of 7 2p in respect of 2009,

gwang a full-year dividend® of 12 Op per share up 8% on last year
(2008 11 1p}

Cash flow performance in the year was agan strong with cash
generated from operations of £294m (2008 £297m) Thé acquidien of
Parsans Brinckerhoff (PB) was substantally funded through a ngfis
1ssue which raised anet £352m

Average net cash in the year was strong at £283m {2008 £239m)
Year-end net cash stood at £572m (2008 £440m), before taking
account of the consolidation of £248m of non-recourse net debt held
in PPP subsidianes (2008 £143m)

As described at the tme of the acquistion of PB, there will be cash
outflows in the first year due 10 8 number of factors inchuding addmonal
tax charges the umwinding of certain working capital posinons and
project settiement costs and the exceptional ransaction and
Intagration costs

The year-end order book stood at£14 1hn, anincrease of 10% an
December 2008 {£12 8bm) or up 15% at constant currency™ This
included £1 4bn from acquisttions, so the underiying increase was 3%

Outlook

Cur business has continued to perform well, and fintshed the yearwith
astrong order book

We have created a ugh-quality business operating across the
mtrastructure lifecycle, which 1s uniquely placed in major markets to
benefit from the long-iemm growth i investment ininfrastructure

The braadth of our portfolio enhanced by the acquisition of PB, means
our business 1s resthent. In spite of economic unceriainty we remain
confident about the prospects for the Group

Financial summary

2009 2008 Increase
Revenue including joint ventures and associates £10,339m £9486m +9%
Group revenue £8,954m  £826Im +8%
Profit from operations
— before exceptional tems and amortisason £282m £230m +23%
~ after excepbional tems and amortisation £297m £25im +18%
Pre-tax profit
— hefore excepiona! tems and amorusation £267m £249m +1%
— after exceptional tems and amortisation £267m £270m 1%
Eamings per share?
— atjusted 337p 347 -
—basc Nip 374p -
Dnndends per share? 120p 111p +8%
Fancing
~-net cash before PPP subsidianes [non-recourse) £572m £440m
—net bomowings of PPP subsidianies (non-recourse) £l248)m f1143m

* hefore excepriona! tems and amortsaton of mangile assets
? per share data has been restated for the bonus element of the 2009 rghts ssue.

* Mavements at consian. urmency are Jesver by restaung the 2005 figures ai the exchange rates appbed for the comparable 2009 fipwres.
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Message from the Chairman

Thanks to our
high-calibre people

“Planning and then implementing the
right strategic direction for the business
can only be successful If we attract,
retain and actively develop the best
people in our industry.”

IMAGE
REMOVED

Steve Marshall
Chairman

IMAGE
REMOVED




I am pieased to report that Balfour Beatty had another good
year n 2009

The acquisraon of Parsons Bonckerhoff {PB) realised a number
of the Group's long-term strategic objectives

PB 1s a high-quality business specalising in the programme and
project management of large, complex mirasiructure developments
Wa now have a leading presence in the professional services market,
which has been one of our key strategic goals for some time

Prafessional services plays an increasingly imporiant role a1 the outsat
of major infrastructure projects arourk the world PB strengthens our
ability o serve infrastructure markets and enhances the Groups
long-term growth potental

We have now treated an integrated portfolio of substantial businesses
operating in four related market sectors Professional services,
Construction services Support sarvices and Infrastructure mvestments
with significant capabifities in each part of the Iecydle of infrastructure
assets Increasingly mayor nfrastructure owners are looking to their
core industry parters 10 integrate these capabilites so as 1o reduce
cost and elmmate nsk

Through this combinabon of businesses and the dversity of owr
geographrc and end-user markets, we have created a model for
long-termn success, which has the balance and resilienca to countar
the economic uncertanties that reman in some of our markets and
the Group 15 well-positoned 1o take advantage of growth as noccurs

The scale and scope of Balfour Beatty's operations have been
transformed in recent years Our revenues are naw i excess of
£10bn and we operate in more than 100 countries around the world
Inbecorming a much more international business, we have reducad
our refatve expasure to UK markets which, iooking forward account
forground 54% of Group revenues And inthe US we now have

a significant presence with sales in excess of US$5bn and around

10 000 emplovees

Operationalty, we benefited in 2008 from continued expenditure in
infrastructure markets Our strong focus on effective and efficent
delivery for customers helped us to achieve a pre-tax profit of £267m
{before exceptional nems and amorusation) a 7% increase on the
previous year

Dondend
The Board 1s proposing a final dividend of 7 2p per ardinary share,
making a total dvdend of 12 Op for the year an ncrease of 8%

The Board

Gven the broadened scope of the Group 1t is imperative that we
comtnue t review the make-up of the Board Andrew McNaughton
was appomted Chuef Operating Officer and joined the Board an 1
January 2009

Graham Roberts jeinea the Board as a non-executive Director on

1 January 2009 and became chairman of the Audit Commuttee on
5March 2009 Graham 15 finance director of The British Land Company
PLC and has broughi valuable financial and commercial expenence

lain Ferguson was appointed as a non-executive Director on 1 January
2010 His extensive iIntemational aperational expenience and his
strateqc nsght, lattery in his capacity as chief executive of Tate & Lyle
PLC will make a sigruficant contribution in the coming years

In August 2008, we announced that Stephen Howard was standing
dowrn a3 a non-executrve Director from the Board | would ike to thank
Steve for fus contribution to the Company’s success over the three
years of his tenure and wish hum well
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Recognising the increased scale and scope of Balfour Beatty s
aperations In the US 1t1s intanded to seak a non-executive Director
with an apprapnate level of US operating expenence, dunng 2010

People

Of course, piannung and then implementng the nght strategic drection
for the business can only be successful if we atiract, retain and actvety
develop the best people n our industry

(Owver 50,000 peopie are now directly employed by the Group and one of
the things that really sets us apart 1s the scope of opportunities that we
can offer

Balfour Beatty 1s an excrung place to be and we are working hard 1o
hamess the energy and expertise in the Group

Providing chalienging projects to work on putting in place a sesies of
programmes to get the best out of our people and encouraging & strong
sense of Group-wade co-operation and shared values takes ome and
effort, but ulumately becomes a virtuous circle

At the recent Servor Management Conference in London 1t was
Instructve to note that over 50% of our top 250 managers had been
with the Group for more than 10 years Many athers became part of
Balfour Beatty as a result of acquisitions mada n recent years

Daong the nght thing

While we focus on drving the business forward in difficult markets,
we also nead to mainiaina clear view of our culture, our values and
the glements that make up our ficence to operate

We are making progress in many areas

Our Group-widle safety campangn, Zero Harm has had real success in
raising awareness of the standards we aspire to We have set the bar
ata very high level but conunued progress towards our goal 1s required
if we are to thrive in a global market in which sophisticated customers
now nghtly view safety as a decisve competitve differenaator

There have been other senious reputational 1ssues we have had to
contend with While the Office of Farr Trading's ndustry-wide
Investigation into tender activities in the UK construction market related
to the practices of a number of years ago, there are mportant lessons
toleam

As amarket leader not onfy do we have to take the lead n eradicating
any possibility of a repeat performance, we have ta be night at the
forefront of responsibie behawviour and processes and enlightened
stakeholder management.

We have produced & new Code of Conduct for all our employaes and
are working hard to upheld a common culture based on the shared
values of integnity tearwork, excellence and respect.

The future

Baffour Beatty has created a high-guality business operaung across
the nfrastructure Ifecycle, whuch 1s vniqueely placed s major markats
to benefit from the long-term growth in investrrent in infrastruciure

I am confident that eur busimess model and the eafibre of our people
will combine 1o delver genuine resilience not least as publicy-funded
nfrastructure mvestment newitably cormes under medium-term
pressure in some rmarkets

The trend for nfrastructure owners mereasingly 1o raly on the
capabilites of thewr trusted partners plays to our strengths

| strongly befieve we have the capability te become a global leader
n nfrastructure services

553uIsng InQ)




10 Annual report and acoounts 2009

Strategic review from the Chief Executive

Realising our

POTENTIAL

Our goal is to become a world-leading
provider of services to infrastructure owners.

Around half our revenue now comes fror_n
outside the UK, and we are well diversified
across geographies and market sectors.

We have four strong and mutually-reinforcing
businesses. Each is a match for any
competitor in its field. Together they can
offer infrastructure owners a uniquely
Integrated service.

The question now is: how do we grow this

model to achieve our strategic goal? IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

lan Tyler
Chief Executive
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A clear strategy to drive long-term growth

ssalIsna Ing

Balfour Beatty has maintained revenue and profit
growth throughout the financial crisis. We have
demonstrated our resilience and can face the future
with even greater capability, a strong balance sheet
based on robust cash generation, and excellent
long-term prospects. But the post-recession world will
be a tough one. To succeed in it, we will have to:

1. Grow our four businesses individually ;12
2. Capitalise on our unique integrated capability 13

3. Share knowledge and integrate our
capabilities even better .

4. Leverage our scale and maximise efficiency y1s
5. Show leadership in our values and behaviour i

6. Focus our strategic development where the
money is going to be spent »i7

In 2009, we took important steps forward in all these
areas. In particular, we transformed our capabilities
in professional services (p18), redefined our business
in four new segments {p19) and reinforced our shared
cufture and values (p20).
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Strategic review from the Chief Executive

1. Grow our four businesses individually

In uncertain times, diversity 1s a strength In Professional services, we are one of the world's
leading companies In Construction services, we have a market-leading business in the UK,
a substantial business in the US and strong posrtions in Hong Kong and the Middle East,

In addrtion to our intemnational rail business In Support services, we have leading positions
In the utilmes, faciies management, hughways management and rall renewal markets

In Infrastructure investments, we are the leader in UK PPP and 1ts equivalent, P3, in the

United States

IMAGE
REMOVED

Why is this important?

To address such a broad range of markets effectvely, we have grouped
our operating companies into four business segments with growth
strategies tallored to thewr speciic markets

What are we doing?

Protessional services We are integraung Parsons Brinckerhoff (PB)
o the Batfour Beatty Group and brnging our existing professianal
services capabiles under the overalt management of PB We will
focus on expanding our actvities in the UK and US, and the other
intemational markets where PB has an establishad presence

Construction services We work for cusiomers whowant the highest
levels of quality, safety and technical expertise, which gives us a
parteular edge n competing for high-profile or innovaive projects.

We are amning in particular for high-value road, rail, educaton and
power oppostunities and strengthening our pOSILoN in the aviation,
PPP and US Government markets

Supportservices We work in partnershipwith customers to dewise
nnovative solutions that will expand the scope of contracts and
enhance contract renewal prospects In particular we are targeting the
growing demand for mare complex, muft-service contracts — especially
those inchding totat faciities management and business services
owtsourcing, where our experience and resources grves us advantage

IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

A completa range of support senaces
are provided for Royal Mail inctuding
specialist project management, prnong
manufacturing and instaliation and
maimenance of fire and secunty systems

Infrastructure investments In the UK whera we are a leader in PFP,
We are pursuing epportunities that take advantage of our capabriities
across the Group applying our financing skils and strang balance
shest 1o competitive advantage In the US we aim io ieverage our
expenence inmiitary housing the most developed PPP market, to
securs opportundies 1 social nfrastructure We also continue 1o

seek mvestment opportuniies where we can improve asset quality

m markets we understand well

What's next?
In the year ahead we aim to

Complete the ntegraton of PB and capitalise on 11s strong
market posibons

Focus construction services on growing sectors in the
infrastruciure market

Broaden the range of seniices provided n support services and pursue
growth opportunimies in the outsourcing market

Pursue investment opportunities m LK and US PPP extending our
provan expertse Into new sectors




On the £6 2bn MZ5 contract we have integrated our
financing, constructon and lang-term operations and
mantenance capablities. See page 26 for mare detalls
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Estimated value by sector
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The PB acquisinon means we have four strong market-leading businesses

IMAGE
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IMAGE
REMOVED

2. Capitalise on our unique integrated capability

We are differentiated by the breadth of our capability Around one-third of our business by value
IS In construction the rest spans a range of related actvities from finance to long-term facilities
management Together, our four businesses form a unique full-service infrastructure business
which we are marketing and managing in an increasingly integrated way

Why is this important?

Incraasingly, infrastructure owners want to work with a trusted
partner and reduce the number of suppliers they have to manage

in order to reduce both nsk and cost. Qur proven ability to mtegrate
professional and support services engineenng, construction and
nvestment skils 15 generating a range of large-scale opportunties
it1s parbeularty relevant and attractive to the more sophistcated
infrastructure owners with the largest, most complex and highest
value projects Our track record and expertise n this market are hard
for compentors to match, they help us 10 attract the best people the
best customers and the best relanonships through the supply chain

What are we doing?

The acqustuon of P8 was & major step n achieving an miegrated
businass madel, as the diagram {ahove nghtf shows, ¢ means we
have four strang, market-leading businesses across the range of
nfrastructure-related services

This enables us to increase our focus on seeking out and wanning
projects that are particularty large cornplex or novel, where we can
daploy a range of capatuites We do not expect to nvolve all four
businesses on every project, but we believe there will be increasing
apportunities to defiver ntegrated solutions where two or more
businesses intersect

Our ability 10 defver truly integrated solubons depends on having a
cammon cufture values and knowledge shanng across the organisation

We have made progress but are not there yet: this 15 a top stratege
prearity for us

What's next?

Inthe year ahead weaimto

Seek more opportunities for debvening ntegrated solutions

Continue developing a common culture and values across
all businesses

SIS InQ)
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Balfour Baatty now empioys over 50,000
people in over 100 countres The growth
of the Group in recent years has been
dramatic As the scate and scope of our
operanons noreasas, we need to get
better at knowledge sharing to meet our
customers requremants

IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
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3. Share knowledge and integrate
our capabilities even better

If collaboration 1s our future, we need to be world-class in sharing
knowledge and integrating capabilities across the Group

We have been nsing to that challenge over the past few years,
but our continued expansion means that the work must go

on continuously

Why is this important?

Owver the past 10 years we have grown rapidly in generally favourable
condiuons We have reached a sze where we have o be more unified
In the way we work not only because our customers want us 1o defver
mare ntegrated services but also because this s the key to working
more effisently in the market conditions we now face

What are we doing?

individual businesses will remain accountable for thew own financial
performance, but we are intraducing new processes and ways of
thinking, to ensure that they also share meanmngiut accountablity
for the performance of the organisation as & whole

We are stepping-up contact between operating companies,
transfermng knowledge people and capabilites and building
networks so that expenence transfers across the organisation:

We are also pulling together specialists from different businesses
toform sector-focused teams such as Balfour Beatty Education.

Aswe braak down traxional sdos, we are leaming to become a “phug and
play” organisanon that can put together elernents from different parts

of the Group to build bxd and prosect teams combming relevent sector
knowledge iocal nsiat and tachnical expertise

Greater collaboration between operaing companies s also the key to
more efficiency — see opposite page ~ through smarter procurement
and shanng of services

What's next?

Inthe year ahead we ammto

Contiriue enhancing knowledge sharing and personnel exchange
across all businesses

Use more advanced intemal {T solutions
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4. Leverage our scale and

maximise efficiency

Given economic conditions, the mantra of every infrastructure owner,
whether government, regulated business or pnvate sector, Is going to be
“more for less” Pricing will be even more competitive Productivity and
efficiency will be the key 1ssues In these condiions We must compete
as effectively as possible by leveraging the scale of the business

IMAGE
REMOVED

The integrated team at Heathrow's Terminal 2
development 1s drawn from six operating
companies providing BAA with full Group
capability and experience, ncluding
procurement opportunities from Gammon

IMAGE
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Why is this important?

Organisations that can deliver the lowest cost of ownershup to their
infrastructure customers will be the winners Cost-efficiency will

be a key element of that and we need our supply chain to keep costs

down while dalivering consistantly high-quality service, safely and
on schedule

What are we doing?

Aswell as tactica! action 1o reduce costs we are considenng strategic
prograrmes 1o ntreduce smarter back-office processes and see
where we can patentially share servces But the biggest and most
guickly addressable benefits will come from amare strategic

appraach 1 procurement.

We now have huge scale that we donot yet fully leverage Qur structure
to date has gven indnadual operating companies responsibility for therr
own procurement and the diversity of processes has made st difficult

@ analyse our overall spending We know we have too many suppliers and
that tpo few have relatonshmps with more than one operating comgrany

St we have bequn standardising the terms on which we deal with our
supplycham We are bnnging operating companies together ta share
best practce and consoidate suppliers to estabiish fewer, stronger
relationships The aim 15 to reduce total costs through a strategic
sustainable supply management cuiture in which we iInvolve our
suppty chain in & process of continuous improvernent. The potental
rewards are substantial and will help margin perfarmance

What's next?

In the year ahead we aim to

Analyse spending In key areas

Introduce consistent purchasing processes across the Group

Consobdate suppliers

Look for opportundies to share SErvices across Dperating companies

SSEUIST] INQ
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Strategic review from the Chief Executive

5. Show leadership in our values and behaviour

To be the leading provider of Infrastructure services, we will need to act lie a leader — setting
the industry standard for ethics, safety, sustainabiiity, and in relationships with custorners,
the supply chain and our people Leadership 1s not just about having the briggest market share
Infrastructure ts about long-term nvestment and we need to demonstrate that we have a

long-term perspective

Having a common set of values that
represents the Group offers clear
business benefits and will support
the challenges of future growth

IMAGE
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Why is this important?

In our business, success s built up over decades —but can be undone
very quickly by nappropriate business behaviour As our business
becomes larger mare diverse and ever more complex we need to
renforce a clear culture and values that enable everyone to manage
complexity and make decisions that consistently protect both.our
finances and our reputation. Knowing what we all stand for wall sustain
us through the challenges of future growth as we enter new market
sectors and integrate further companies 1t wall alse help customers o
see that the Ballour Beatty brand delivers consistent behaviour when
we huild teams from different parts of the Group

Atatime of nsing global concern over corruption, we also recognise
that companies which are seen tohave the fughest ethical standzrds
have 2 ciear competitrve advantage

What are we doing?

W are working to ensure that all parts of the organisation recognise
and uphald a common culturs based on shared values Following
extensive consultabion with customers suppliers jomnt venture parners
and employees and bullding on existing best practice within the Group
we identified these values as crucial

Integnity enables customers 1o choose us because they trust us

Teamwork enables us to work effectively with our supply chain
and respond with agility to customers needs

Excellence ts the most effective way 1o differentiate ourselves
from compettors

Respect ensures that our colleagues, our stakeholders and
the workd feel we treat them fairly

What's next?

In the year ahead we aim to
Conanually educate indnaduals and businesses joinung the organisation
Prowde a long-term programime of support and guidance

Distribute and communicate our new Code of Conduct to everyone m
the Group to ensure we challenge ourselves and one anothes 1o bnng
our values to ife

Recognise our responsiilities, as a market-leading business,
towards communities and the envisonment, and miake progress on
our ambitigus 1argets
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Balfour Beatty 1s currenthy working

atthe Sellafield nuclear reprocessing
faciity and recently completed work
atWhitelee, Europe’s largest onshare
wind fam

6. Focus our strategic development where
the money is going to be spent

The pattemn of opportunity for us 1s changing Over half our work 1s for governments around
the world and while they all recognise that cutting infrastructure Investment will harm future
productrvity, most may have little choice once current economic stimulus programmes have
played out. But if government spending 1s scaled back, particularly in the UK, the breadth and
diversity of our businesses gives us ample opportunity to replace it with work elsewhere

Why is this important?

QOur strategy will shways focus on infrastructure Bt there are many
nfrastructure markets all over the wordd. H investment is falling n
some of our markets, we need 10 be focusing on those where more
Mmangy s gomg to be spent.

in the long term, dermand for more and better nfrastructure wilt
continue 10 grow worldwide In mature economees s will be drven by
the continuing need 1o drve productvity Oid infrastructure — ke power
transmission in the US and power generation in the UK — needs 1o

be renewed before 1t constrains development of the wider economy

In emerging econamies, nfrastructure is a key dnver to economic
growth as well as an important 10al n managing demographic change

in both emerging and mature economies the drive for sustanabiiity
will mean more nvestment n infrastructure not less

What are we doing?

We are confident that there wll be ample investment that we can tid
for But i tmes of economic uncertainty, we cannot be entrsly sure
where itwall anse Our prionties for the years ahead are isted below,
but we must be ready to adapt quackly to market conditions

What's next?

in the years shead we aimto

Continue o develop our US business

Leverage our presence in new markets, pariculary Australia Asa
the Middie East and South Afnca

Develop our capabiimes i utility markets such as water and power,
ncluding nuclear, where investment 1s iikely to be increased

Take advantage of expectad recovery n indusinat and commercial
building markets,
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Strategic review from the Chief Executive

Parsons Brinckerhoff gives us real weight
In professional services and an enhanced

presence in the US

Scope and scale PB 1s ong of the world's leading professional services firms, with some
12,500 employees 1n a network of over 100 offices Its services span the entire project Iifecycle
from management consultancy and planning to design and engineering, programme, project
and construction management services, and operational, maintenance and support services
once construction 1s complete It has managed some of the world's largest and most complex

infrastructure projects

in Octaber 2009 we acquired Parsons Brinckerhoff (PB) for US$626m

Qur ability to address the needs of key infrastructure customers
worldwide has been enhanced, espacially in hght of the trend for
major infrastructure owners to seek an integrated approach from
therr partners and suppliers

A leader in its field

PR 15 one of the world's leading professional services firms Over 125
years it has become a giobal market ieader in transportation, pamarily
nthe US UK, Australia, Asia the Middle East and South Africa

[t1s mvoived in some of the world's largest and most important
infrastructure projects In Roadls and Brdges maganne's 2009 Go-To
Lest survay US Government officials ranked +t top for roads and
fighways, bndges arrports and mass transit. It is rated fourth in
global transpartation by Engineenng News Recerdand fourth among
glabal power consuttants by New Cnal Enginger

What does it bring us?

The fitwnth our capabilres :s excellent. Many of our key customers are
lncking for suppliers who can get involved earlier n the project ifecycle
ntegrated services can take pressure off their own engneenng and
procurement organisatiens cut the nsks of supply cham confitcts and
avoid the nefficiencies of managing too many supplier interfaces

PB will alse enhance our ability to respond to evolving procurement
methods such as design and buld allances and PPP concessions

Now well established in the UK, these are increasingly prevalentin
ather countries, with local adaptations We expect them to grow rapidly
n the US, where the role of the professional senvices prowides 1s crbcal
10 key customer relationships In the imemational PPP market, few
companees canmatch the combmaton of our mvestment experase,
professional sarvices skills and downstream delvery capabiliies

We have srengthened our posmon in the global nfrastruciure

market, partcularly n transportation and power Thesz ars important
segments, as the infrastructure market 1s driven Inmature economies
by the need to replace ageing infrastrugture and also by sustainabiity
1ssues particularty n renewable energy and rail networks

Enhancing access to key markets

in the UK PB gives us scale in professional services helping us to
attract the bnghtest and best people to wark on the most exciung
projects FB has one of the UK s leading power services businesses
and substantially enhances our position in both generation and .
transmissian an increasingly critical 1ssue for the UK

The acquisinon marks a further siep change i the scale and depth

of our US capabilities paruculary inemil infrastructure We have
made considerable progress in socal Infrasgucture through earfier
acquisiions of Batfour Beatty Construction and Balfour Beatty
Communities and we are strong in education, health defence mistary
housing and prisons We want to achueve the same pestion in cvl
infrastructure where professional services provides a key channal to
merkats such &s roads ral aviabon ports power and energy —and we
can benefit from combining our international ral experttse, parscularty
in electrficason with PB s strength n the US transportation market.
Our professional services axpertise shoulc 2lso introduce us tonew
opportunities for gur nfrastructure investments business

Eisewhere, PB helps us to diversiy our customer base In Australia

we benefit from Its strong presence in transpertation power water
and building P8 has a substanual network of offices across Asia

and the Middle East prowding the benefit of local relstionshps

and broadenung the Group’s capabilites in both social and civi
nfrastraciure This complements the Group s strong downsteam
posrtions m Hong Kong, Singapore and the Middle East through

joiri ventura companies PB also gives us access to key emerging
markets such as India, South Korea, Thailand and South Afrca

where the professional sennces market provides an ideal

routs nto important future growth opportunites

“Balfour Beatty and Parsons
Brinckerhoff share a commitment
to professionalism, integnty and
technical excellence.”

George Prersan, Chief Executive Officer,
Parsons Brinckerhoff
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PB1s prowiding a range of services for each of the four
mapor ransit projects mn New York Crty that will make
getung around the ity {aster and easier than ever
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Our new reporting
structure reflects
the way we think
about our business.
We have four
business segments

We now have four market leading businesses and a presence across
the entir Iifecycte of major nfrastructure assets W are reporting

the Graup s business in four segments that correspond to the principal
components of that lifecycle and refiiect the way we think about and
manage the Group Professional services Construction services,
Support services and Infrastructure Investments

We are burlding a common framewaork of cutture, values and processes
50 that our busmesses can work together even more efficiently o
provide integrated salutions for customers and deliver our vision of
bullding world-tlass teams

Professional services

We are ore of the world's major companies in professional services
for mfrastructure

We believe being able to offer professional services as part of a
comprehensive service 10 customers will continue to improve our
COMPEttVE posItion

The cultural fitwath our existing professional services businesses

15 excellent and the process of Integration 15 going well

Construction services

We are differentiated by the breadth and depth of cur expertise,
together with kocal knowledge of the markets in which we operate
ang our close relatonships with supply chains

We are established as aleader in the delivery of UK ovil and social
infrastructure in recent years we have substantially enhanced our
regional coverage in the UK through agunsions

Intamnationally, we have substantially develeped the scate and
capabifity of our LIS business through a senes of acquisitions since
2007 Over tme we amtohave a US business of smlar scale
and depth to our UK business In the attractive growth markets of
South-East Asia and, in the longer tarm, in the Middle £astwe
have a presance through stategic afiiances with local parmers —
& 50% interest in Gammon Hong Kong's leading engmeerning and
construcion group and 49% interests in Dutco Balfour Beatty and
BK Gulf both i the UAE

SSRUISNG Q)
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Support services

Qur Support services business provides angoing operanon and
mantenance of assets after they have been constructed iogether
wath business services outsourcing 1t comprises our Ltilimes facilities
management, rail ranewals and highways management acaties

This 15 a iong-term husiness, where conracts range from five to
30years, and 1s a significant potental area of growth for us The key to
suceess 15 the quality of customer refationships and the ability to orowide
continuous improvernert; for customers to buld parnerships that
broaden the scope of coniracts and extend them through renewals

Infrastructure investments

QOur investments business s a ieader i PPF markets with
31 concessions in the UK, 18 n the US and one in Singapare

We see major growth opportunities in the US We are a leader in
the military housing market, one of the mast developed PPP markais
inthe US sofar, and are well posioned to undertake pevattsation
projects in other sectors

Qur strategy ncludes appliying the skills we have acqured inthe UK
and US PPP markets 1o the wider non-PPP market, particularly where
there are attractve opporiunsties to take management control and
improve asset quality We are a direct investor n infrastructure assets,
including a 25 5% stake in the combined cyele Barking Power Station in
London a85% share of Blackpoo! International Arrport and 60% of
Exgter lntemational Airpart.

Our Code of Conduct reinforces our
values sets out the behawiour we expect
from empioyees and explains how 10
consider What s the nght thing to do?

A common culture
unites our businesses
and our strategy

Shared cutture and values

The commen thread running through most aspects of our strategy s
the need for shared cuttwe and values Ths impacts partcularly on
our abifity to Integrate capabiities for customers, to share knowledge
and capabilities to leverage our scale and maximise efficiencies and
1o show leadership w our values and behaviour

Our ability to operate n & joined-up way that s consistent across the
organisauon matters parcularly for major cusiomers who work with
us on a mutbpherty of contracts and projects and ts essential if we are
to deliver the benedits implicit in a long-term partnership refationship

In summary

We have created a unique capabifity to delver across the
infrastructure Ifecycle

We have four streng, market-leading businesses which are mutually
reiniorcing and we are dwversified through our market and geographic
positions, which give us real resiience and provides access to more
opportunites

| am very confidant that we have the nght skills and capabiliies to take
advantage of the necessary demand for nfrastructure

lan Tyler
Chief Executive




Annwal report and acoounts 2009 21

Case studies

Simplifying the

DELIVERY

of complex projects
for our customers

Together, our four businesses enable us to work
throughout the lifecycle of Infrastructure assets
—from raising and structuring funding, through
programme management and design to
construction, systems integration and lifetime
operation and maintenance.

This matters to infrastructure owners who
want to cut sk and cost by working with fewer,
better integrated suppliers. By bringing together
two or more businesses we can simplify

the delivery of large and complex projects —

as many of the following case studies show...

SSAUISTY N
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Professional Construction Suppart
services services SEMVICES

Infrastructure
Investments

Blackfriars Station The Thameslink line runs nght through London from
Bedford to Bnghton Linking two airports, two major London rail termini and
nine London Underground stations, it's one of the UK's busiest rail routes
So busy that 50% of regular users say they sometimes can't board trains
because of overcrowding We'e helping to keep them on track

Changing

TRAINS

The solution to overcrowding on Thamesiink rains 1s simple
run more frequent, longer rains What's not so simple 1s
accommodating those trains Station platforms must be
lengthened, bottlenecks must be cieared

One of the waorst battienacks is the 1886 Blackfriars raiway brdge
and its outdated station To bring them into the 215t cenury we are
widening and strengthening the badge and buiiding & new staton
across w, for Network Rail, with reafigned tracks and new covered
platforms spanning the River Thames A new southemn concourse wall
gve passengers aceess from the south of the nver for the first tme
It s a trcky job made inickeer by the need to keep the statonopen
wiruglly throughout the programme ta murmese disruption for
passengers We have done much of the work at rightt and over
weekends and holrdays, while causing as Irtde disturbance to
neighbours as possible {over Chnstinas 2009, the office stayed
open 24/7 to respond 10 nesghbours’ cancems and receved not
one compiant)

“It's like changing the engines onan
aircraft mid-flight! You'd rather not
do 1t that way, but you've got to keep
the passengers moving.”

Chrig Evans, Progect Director, Balfour Beatty Left

“We completed the Chnstmas bndge
shde on exactly the date we had
planned a year earlier Thattells
you how confident we are that
we will finish the job on schedule.”

Peter Pannell Construction Managear
{North Station) Batfour Beatty Right

The schedule 15 tight. We started in September 2008 and finish by
2012 s0 the new trains can be renning in bme for the Olympres Withat
least 200 engineers In the project office and up ta 500 workers on-site,
ithelps that we can bring together the key resources from within the
organisation— from specialists in piling and bridgework to word-class
rall experts

Thus follows the success of our £115m progect o build the new
underground northem trcket hall at King s Cross St Pancras London
Mayor Bors Johnson described our work there as “the standard by
which all new station developments should be judged ™
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Spanning the river Blackiniars will
be London’s only cross-mver station

A vital link...

Thameshnk s a 50-station route
through London from Bedford in the
north to Brighton in the south ltalso
hinks the intemational airports at
Gatwick and Liton

With passenger access from both sides
of the Thames 1ts widened platiorms

will rest on the existing bndge supparts
and will also uthse piers from an adjacent

disused bridge
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.through
central
London

In London, Thameshnk connects
the St Pancras International,

and London Bridge rad termum
The upgrade programme will
aliow 12-car trams, adding 10,000
extra seats m peak penods
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On the south side of the nver
were creating anentirely new station
entrance and exit—- serving Londons
South Bank arts complexand an
expandng area of offices and studios.
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On the north side of the river we are giving
the station a purpose-designed entrance building
10 IMPIoOve P2SSenger acCess
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Spot-on slide Over Chnstmas 2009
we replaced an ofd bndge sectonwith
a new concrete and steel bndge butt
on-site (na metcuiously planned
149-haur operation We siid the
600-tonne span 21 metres into place
over more than saven hours The timing
was crncal 1f we d missed that window
there would have been no opportunity
1o try again untl Easter 2010 or the
following Chrstmas

Avoiding congestion
To keep lomy traffic oft Londons

crowded roads the steshwork
1s being delvered by barge

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Tamar Complex, Hong Kong The development project will bnng together
the legislative and executive arms of Hong Kong's Government on a single
site We won the contract with an “open door” design that symbolises
openness, emphasises sustainability and creates an excrting new public

apen space for a crowded wsland

Opening

Ramwater recycling for imgation of open space

DOORS ~

Desigming a seat of government s a very special responsibifity
The butdding will be iconic, becoming a visual symbol of the
Governmentitseff Ourwinming design for Hong Kong's

new government complex rose to that challenge with

glegant smpheity— creating an ‘open door’ to Hong Kong

on a landmark waterfront site next to Victoria Harbour

The Z7-storey Central Government Compiex Office Block with two
wings form the doorway, designed to symbolise the Government's
openness and transparency, flanked by the smaller 11-storey Legislatve
Council Complex and the four-storey Central Govermment Complex
lerwer block.
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Hong Kong s leading building firm Gammon Construction - 50% owned
by Balfour Beatty - 15 undertaking the £320m project in jont venture
with Hip Hing Construction We won the contract for our abifity to
provide world-class design and construction as an integraied package,
and for the bugh standards of sustainability, safety and sensimty to
local needs that we embodied in our approach

Constuction will ke 39 months, for completion i 201, and st the
height of buslding work some 3 000 people will be employad on-site

Natural hight funnel

“The Tamar development project will be
an iconic place to mark Gammon's leading
position and Balfour Beatty's involvement
in the Hong Kong construction mdustry.”
Edward Yeung, Project Director, Gammion Construcuon Left

“This projectis a fantastic platform to
advance sustainable construction.
There are many environmental aspects to
the prograrmme, from waste management,
partnering with the university on
bio-remedsation to materials sourcing.”

Shirlee Aigre Group Sustamabuity and CSR Manager
Gammon Construction Right




Green door The new complex will be one of the
Hong Kong Govermmient s greenest offices Some of
the key enviraenental features are indicated below

Breathmg arr into the city

The “open door™ shape 1§ not just
symbakic 1t provides a wide breezeway
that maxmises ar flow and suniight
penetration o a busy area of the city,
so that air quakty will benefit from
breezes blowng across Central Distnct
from the harbour area

Scenic door The deskgn carefully controls the bulding
hulk and height to avard ntruding st vews of the city's

rmountain backdrop from the harbour and of the harbour

fromthe Victona Peak,

IMAGE
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Safer door To build the towers we are using

an nnovative self-ciimbing external scaffolding
system that reduces the use of wower cranes
and prowides a safer working platform compared
with conventional scaffoiding

Solarwater heating and solar
electnerty panels

Double-layer

ventilated facades

Water features mprove
microchmate

Green spaces improve
microchimate

A park for the people Half the site s dedicated 1o
public open space The landscaped “green carpet”
runnung through the sde will maximise sublic access

to the waterfront and will Include trees water basins,

a sculpture garden and an amphitheatre

ssauISNG g
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M25 it's the world's longest city bypass and one of the busiest roads in Britain,
keeping congestion out of the nation's capital Pummelled by over 200,000
vehicles a day, It's increasingly overloaded and needs constant maintenance
Keeping 1t fit for purpose has involved not just highways engineering but some

sophisticated financial Investment.

Viobilising

CAPITAL

Funding major infrastructure programmes s a challenge for
governments when public spending needs to be constrained
Partnership with the private sector offers a practical solution,
mobilising large amounts of capital without ncreasing pubhe
sector borrowing

As a leading member of the Connect Plus consortium we've seta new
benchmark for pubfic-private partnership PPPhwith our £6 2bn contract
t0 upcrade the M25 and maintain and operate it for 30 years

The contract cavers the 188km of the M25 and substantial stretches of
the motorways that cross it — some 440km i tatal Connect Plus 1s
widening 67km of the M25 to four lanes each side, and refurbishing the
two 1 Tkm tunnels on the Al(M) at Hatfield 1n time for the London 2012
Otympic Games Further upgrades are likely to follow In the meantime,
we have begun a mauntenance and operation contract running to 2033
which extands from coflecting tolls on the Dartford Crassing and cleaning
drains 1o renewng carmiagaways and replacing bridge beanngs

IMAGE
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Our integrated capabiity enabled us to be the prme mover Inmaking
all this possible Wa had the caprial to irvest £80m n creatng Connect
Plus and taking a 40% stake We developed the unique and complex
PP? model for the contract —which bengfits both taxpayers and our
sharehaiders by shanng nsk and cast savings And we convinced

16 commercial banks, plus the European [nvestment Bank, o prowide
funding in 2003 s uncertan markets

We are 50/50 partners with Skanska an the design and construction
work and 52 5% partners with Atkins and Egis on the operation and
maintenance contract. Qur proven experienca with these partners —
and the Highways Agency — comvincad the Government to agree
this uiquely long-term commigment, which will help keep the
capital moving

“Balfour Beatty has staked £80m on this contract,
which we see as a model for enabling govemments
to address public financing needs and sustain
economic growth.”

Tim Jones Chef Executve Connect Plus Left

“Iworked for Balfour Beatty on the eriginal read in the
1970s and 80s and the widening programme in the 90s.
Until now, the Highways Agency has never had a
maintenance contract longer than five years — but it
seems only right that we should take care of this road

for the next 30.”
Mick McCarry, Construction Director, Skanska Balfour Beatty Joint Venture Right
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South Mimms Control Centre Our man control
cenitre for the operahon and Mantenance cOMTact Is at
South Mimms where we beganwork on the very first
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sechon of the M25 back n 1973, and our back-up facility
15 at Dartford.

@ Hatfield Tunnel We are refurbishing the 11km

twin-bore Hatfield Tunne! located between
Juncnons 3 and 4 of the ANM}— upgrading s
mechanical and electngal systems and mstaling
new MONang equipment.

Road widemng With Skanska we are
widening two secbans of the M25 from three
lanes to four in each direcoon. the 41km

section between the M40 and the AliM} and IMAGE
the 26km stratch from the M11 inthe A13 REMOVED
Watch your speed Akey part of the

widenmg work i managing traffic flows to

minimise disrupbon while ensuring safety

for road users and our workers
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REMOVED

Pooling resources Rather than feeding surface
water Into exisung dranage systems, we arg building
balanaing ponds that make good natural habitats

Commutment to sustanabilrty s 2 key aspect of the
contract. We have already imported 400,000 tonnes of
recycled matenal including glasscrete, in which crushed
olass substitutes for sand And we are reusing over 87%
of the waste matenals produced on site—for example

Road worker safety We have alrsady
completed over 2 5m hours of road

IMAGE
IMAGE REMOVED
REMOVED
Helping 200,000
vehicles a day
around the
UK's capital
IMAGE
REMOVED

Dartford-Thurrock River Crossing

At Dartford our responsibiibes inchade

mantainng the bridge and tunnels and
collecting tolls from more than 150 000
vehicles each day

by shamng and landscaping excavated matanal to make
rios2 barrers {and natural hatxtats} alongside the read
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New Energy Alliance We form partnerships and alliances because we
want to ook beyond traditional chent/contractor relationshups Isn't it better
to form single teams working towards shared objectives? This approach
has worked so well with National Gnd in the UK that we have now taken
it to the US — at National Gnd's request.

Sharing

POWER

We're greatbelievers inalliancing Inour expenence, working  National Gnd now serves 3 4m customers in the northeastem US

as one team - shanng both the nsks and the rewards for achieving  where thas a US$1 7bn programme ta renew power Iines and
efficiencies - keeps everyone focused on geting the jobdone  substations dating back to the 19205 Last year we et up New Engrgy
rather than quibbling over the fine printin their contracts Allianoe (NEA), one of two exsemal partnerstups which bid successfully
in the UX we've established several succassful aliances with Nationa] 10 work on this programime undss & wader alliance framework for

Gnd One 1§ renewing the gas mains network i Greater Manchester shanng best practice NEA 15 a join venture with MJ Electne, one of

over exghtyears another s camying out some £500m of work to the largest US contractors in this field what we bring to the relationship
upgrade and develop the electncaty transmission network in the 15 our design and project management expertise —and our expenence
eastem half of England of allianaing which 1s just beginming to gain traction n the US

W are convinced that such relationshups are the way forward Angas  NEAS success is already aitracting attenton We see itasa

Naitonal Gnd extended tts operations into North Amenca, itwas keen  SPringboard for buiiding our presence in the US, where the power
10 establish similar structures there transmission market alone offers big opportuniies In this and marwy

other fields, our proven expertise in alliancing will geve us a real
competitive edge over the years ahead

“Alliancing is creating global opportunities for
us because we're starting to demonstrate
such great results and added value from this
contractual model.”

Kewvin George, Project Director, Balfour Beatty Aght

“Historically, our work has been delivered
by short-term labour as isolated projects IMAGE
By assembling these into a much larger REMOVED
programme of work, we have achieved
continuity of employment for our people,
invested in their tratning, developed shared
values and goals and established a Zero

Harm safety culture.”
Dorotiry Changela, Transmission Lead New Energy Alliance Left




Netwaork coverage

In addrtion to the overhead fines,

the network has 90 miles of
underground cable and 524
substations Our aliance 1S

primanly responsible for the

New England netwaork and also

operates in upstate New York.

= Electncity
transmssion

system

IMAGE
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Science of afliance

We are developing & toollat of
best practee for the creation and
operation of aliances across all
sectors of our business Thiswall
give us a competitive advantage
with customers who understand
the benefits of working in
collsboration and the value of
shanng nsk and reward.

Largest elechicity provider  High voltage
National Gnd has 8,600milesaf  National Gnd's transmission
overhead power knes and its facimes operate at voltages
network spans upstate New Yok ranging from 63KV to over 330kV
and Massachusetts, New
Hampshire, Rhode Island and
Vermont, makng it the region’s
largest electnerty transmission
Senvice provider
IMAGE
REMOVED
IMAGE IMAGE

REMOVED REMOVED
Shanng what we know Working on live wires
Knowledge-shanng works both Qur US partners are experts in

ways We have catenary support
systerns and techmgues for
working safely and efficently on
power Enes spanning roads and
waterways. These enabie us 1o
minimese disnuption 1o traffi
flows, and we are shanng our
experiise with MJ Hectric.

the specialist techruques that
allow work to take place on
Ive power transmussion Enes.
Thes enables construction
activibies to proceed safely
without system outages, 3
valuable option when energy
dermands requre the lnes to
be n continuous operation.
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Bringing
electricity
to 3.4m
customers
in New
England
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Victoria desalination project This century’s most precious resource could
easlly be fresh water As nver flows dwindle and water tables fall, demand
for seawater desalination 1s growing fast InVictoria, Australia, we'e

helping to create Australia’s largest — and more environmentally fnendly —

reverse-osmosis desalination plants

(QJuenching

THIRST

For most of the past 10years, Australia has been plagued by
drought So much so that securing ranfall-independent water
supphes is now seen as cructal to economc and poputation
growth By 2013 the country's five largest coastal cies will
all have desalination plants — and the biggest s currentty
being designed by Parsons Bnnckerhoff {(PB) engineers just
outside Melbourne

When complete the AUSS3 5bn plant will supply 150bn fitres of water
& year to Melboume and surraunding towns through an 84km pipeling,
meeting about a third of the orty'’s water needs Those needs are
urgent. In Septamber 2009 Melboume s water storage capacity

was barety 30% full To allow construction work to start quickly,

we have been able to moblise over 150 people to work on the designs
without delay

PB won the design contract in joint venture The skills we brought to the
partnership included expertise s tunngl, power and water engineerng
and also environmerttal engineenng Desalination projects elsewhere
have been criacised for their environmenta! impacts and owr chent, the
Victorian State Government, was determined that this plant shouid be
as green as possible

Thus nnovative praject 15 currenitly PB s largest contract in Australa

Due to siart pumping frash water by the end of 2011, it 15 already raising
our profile net ondy n Ausiralia but throughout the world s the water supply
and distributon industry expands o serve an ncreasingly thursty planet.

“This water is needed urgently, so we're
working fast to design and deliver the
whole project”

Tim Eliis, Project Director Parsons Brinckerhoff

IMAGE
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Award wmnners Parsons Brinckeshoff was named Australia’s best

large engineering consuttng firm in the 2009 BRW Chent Choice
Awards Recogrising both expertise and customer service, thase
are the only awards of thew kind based on independent research
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Seawater intake
Seawater enters thvough
ntake structures via long
nnels aroud a kalometre
from the plamt. It s drawn s0
slowdy that even small fish
can swim aganst the cusrent,
and a protectrve grille keeps
marine Ife out.

Saltwaterin
from the sea...

Seawater drawr in gently o protect
manne Ife

Fittration
Pre-treatment filiers
remove sobds such as
sand and sediment
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New coastal park. new
8k network of foot, cycle
and brclle paths Inks wath
existing tratls

.Wwith
minimal
Impacts

3

4
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Reverse osmuss Remmeralisation Storage Water outlel
Fiitered seawaiter 1s pushed Desalinated water 1s Dinnking water 15 stored for Seawater concentaie
through uitra-fine membranes  remmesahsed to meet distriouton through the returns to the ocean though
under hegh pressure Fresh Australian dnnking water Metboume and regonal diffuser structures wa long
water passes through oudehnes and state heaith water networks where it tunnels about 1 4km from the
leaving seawater Tequrements may be blendet with water plant Ocean currents ditute it
soncentrate behind fram existing cachments safely withkn secongs
.fresh water out
to Melbourne...
Dnnking water 1s distnbuted to local regions,
Melboume and the surrounding area
IMAGE
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Green roof Australia’s
largest covered in
indigenoess plants and
shrubs |t helps blend the
plant into the landscape
provides notse and heat
mnsufation and cuts
mantenance
Energy-efficient Major ecological Green power energy Reconstructed dung:
design enerpyracovery  restoration 225 usewil beoffset by 100%  system. using recycled
devices significantly hectares around the plant, DY electrcty from new spod from site
reduce power previoushy cleared for wand famms in Australia excavations INtegrates
consLMption mining and grazig, plant with the natural
restored (o create landscape and shields
wetlands, coastal and neghbars from noise
swampy woodtands and
Rélrﬂ;(\)(‘iEED new habriat for loca! fauna
IMAGE
REMOVED
IMAGE
REMOVED
IMAGE

REMOVED
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Prafessional Construction Support Infrastructure
SEPICES sennces sernces uvesunents

Building Schools for the Furture In partnership with local counciis, we are
not just building and refurbishing schools our brief Is to transform the way
education s delivered and find ways to make use of the new schools to
engage with the wider community and benefit as many people as possible

Iransforming

FDUCATION

The Government’s Bullding Schools for the Future programme  Why choose us? Certamnly nat hecause we re one of the UK s largest \

encourages councils to be visionary The two councils of school builders. “We werent looking for a bullder™ in the weords of the ‘
Blackburn with Darwen and Botton took the opportumty councils’ own project director “we were looking for a strategic parter”

with both hands They didn’tjust appoint a building and As well as planning, design and construction expertise, we have capital

refurbishment contractor They got together with Balfour o rvestn PPP progects and the faciies management capahiity to

Beatty and formed a Local Education Partnership mandated take care of them for many years And we know about Local Educatian

totransform the way education works intherr area Parmerships to lead this one we seconded a colleague from Newcastie

Under the new 10-year partnership we have a £450m contract 10 where Parsons Brinckerhoff 1s aiready involved in a simiiar partnershp

design, build or remodel and operate 27 schools We will also be
Investing up to £20m equsty to burd several new schools and operate
thern on 25-year PPP concessions

“ The councils wanted to deliver a sustainable
legacy of skills and employment, as well as
supporting business growth, and they chose
us because we responded to that chalienge.”
Mark Howden, Head of Regenerason Balfour Beatty Education Left

“ Potentially it is the start of a much wider
IMAGE relationship. Our pricrity is to deliver the
REMOVED schools and the education transformation that
the councils are seeking But the councils are
already talking to us about other opportunities

outside the education sector.”
Dave Swarbnck, Managing Director, Balfour Beatty Education Right




Using local contractors When big companies
undertake major capital programimes they often bring
inthewr existing subcontractors. Responding to the
council's challenge, we are determined to ensure that
local conractors don tmiss out on the largest inward
Investment to these areas in recent tmes. We have
promused 40% of on-snie jobs to local people in
Blackbemn from year ong, rsing to 60% by the peak of
the programme We are holding Open Days to meet
local firms and identfy apportunities for them to pitch
for wark.

Meet individual needs

Imaginative
timetabling

Stimulating lessons

A legacy of skills We am to grow 3 new generation
of skilled workers. [t's hard for subcontractors to offer
apprenticeships ther contracts may not last long
enough or they may be too small to support such abyg
commitment. So in Blackbum wath Darwen and Bohon
we will work with a not-for-profit partner wha will
employ apprentices directly, placing them wath supply
chain contractors to give them continuity and breadth
of expenence, Batfour Beatty Apprenticeshups 15 an
mnovative approach to delvenng our target of almost
26 000 apprenticeship weeks and ts attracting great
witerest from other councils

Learn

IMAGE
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Open, safe environment
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Well-schooled in education As well as the

two councits memtioned here Batfour Beatty 1s
working on BSF schemes in Knowsley, Southwark,
Isfingion, Greenwch, Hackney Hanngey Stoke
Liverpoal and Manchester We also have 10 exisung
PPP school cancessions in the UK and a new

PPP technical college about 10 open in Singapore,
We have already comrmuttad over £60m of

egquity mvestment 1o the education sector

Quiet spaces
to work

Collaborative teaching

Bright, flexible
teaching spaces

Artist’s mpression of Darwen Vale school

SSAUISNG ()
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Our markets

Broadly-spread growth

MARKETS

Our principal markets — transport, utilities and
social infrastructure — promise long-term growth,
driven by factors such as population changes,
urbanisation and the need to renew ageing
Infrastructure. Approximately three-quarters

of our business comes from regulated utilities
and governments, whose economic stimulus
programmes have effectively reduced the impact
of the financial crisis for us.

We believe the short- and long-term prospects
for our markets are good; and while there may
be some turbulent waters in between, the
diversity of our markets will help us navigate
them successfully.




What's driving infrastructure growth?
Our pincipal intemational infrastructure markets promise long-term
growth driven by a number of factors

Population growth demographic shifts and urbanisation, requining
major new mnirastructure invesoment

international trade, which depends on quality transport networks
stimulating investment in port, read rail and avation infrastiucture

Sustanabriity concemns requinng the upgrading of power and water
trestment faciities to meet more stringent air and water quality
standards, and also stmulating investment In more efficient
transporiation networks

Ageing mfrastructure needing extansive renewal and upgrading,
particularty in the developed economies m which we operate

IMAGE
REMOVED

As a lang-tarm trend, infrasiructure expenditure in our main markets
has been relatvely stable, particularly when compared to the
residential commercial and mdustrial markets As economic stmuius
programmes ntroduced as a resuli of the financial cnsis tail off over
the next few years governments will be under increasing pressure 1
reduce public spending Investment in govermment-fundad infrastructure,
such as large UX road projects, will Inevitably be reduced while public
finances recover Sowe will be iooking to other mfrastructure sectors
and territores to offset that reduction in opportunrty

Some infrastructure nvestment parbicularly large capital projects
can be daferred — but spending on power generation and transmission
and water networks will remain an urgent necessity We are
advantaged by the dversity of nfrastructure markets themselves,
which continue to provide new areas of opportunity — and by the
diversiy of our own capabilites

Procurement trends

There 15 a continuing trend foe infrastructure owners to take a more
sophistcated approach to infrastructure procurement. They look to
suppliers like Balfour Beatty to prowde & broader range of mtegrated
services 1o engage earlier in the pianaing and design process, to get
nvolved in the Iifecycle management of assets and increasingty to
helpfinance both assets and services This gives us an expanding range
of roles to pursue on any given project or programme
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Developed and emerging economies

There are significant differences between our infrastructure markets
in developed and emerging markets

Across most developed economies, much infrastruciure 1$ neanng

the end of ts service ife and must be replaced Agemg electrcrty
generation and transmission assets cannot meet requlatory standards
and have to be replaced or upgraded And, against 2 background of
climate change and nising global demand for water, there 1s a strong
mpetus to reduce leakage fram elderly netwaorks and enhanca siorage
and fiood control fagilites

Inthe UK the regulated utities mantain investment through the
economic cycle iniine with the plans agreed with their regulators at
the start of each regulatory cycle This applies to power transmission
waterand ral In the near term Government investment in areas such
asroads education and health may be squeezed by fiscal deficits

but where the pursurt of cost efficiency leads 10 more outsourcing
and PPP arrangements, this will create new apportuniies industrial
and commercial markets should recover earlier than public markets

Inthe US as inthe UK Government will need to curb spending
However there 1s a contnuing need for new infrastructure in the
sunbelt states where populaton 1s nsing — fed by migration from the
north immigration from the south and relatively begh birth rates

In the develoning worid, a key driver for infrastructure Investments
urbanisation and the consequent massive shifts n population In 1975
there were only three cities with a popttation over 10m people By 2015
the UN projects there wall be 22 and 18 of these will be m emerging
econcmies Our markets nAsia Australia and South Africa were
generally not hit as hard by the recession as the US, Europe, and the
Muddle East and are recovering faster aided by the recovery of
commodity prices

ssauisng Ing
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Markets and opportunities

Transportation

Roads

Hoad usage tends t nsewrth GDP In the near term UK investment 1s
kikely to remann flat, butwith a change in emphasis from bulding new
foads to managing the exsting network better widening roads and
managing traffic flows more effectvely — & trend that plays to our
strengths {see M25 case study on page 26} Indicators are that political
wilt in the US 15 gathenng for the passage of a magy road mfrastructure
expenditure bill




36 Annual report and accounts 2009

Our markets

IMAGE
REMOVED

Rail

inthe UK we should continue 10 benefit from the substantial
programme of infrastructure renewals and enhancements agreed
with the rall requlator

inthe US the recovery of the freight market should restore demand
for rail ivvestment and we expect the buikding and upgrading of metro
systerns it be & good medium-term market — driven bath by urban
population growth and the need to reduce road congestion In cities

The success of European high-speed rail programmes 's nspining ather
governments including the US to consider imvesung in bugh-speed finks
and electrification As.aworid leager in electrification, we are well
placed to benefit fram the growing global trend to shift peeple out

of cars and planes ontc lower-carbon electnfied rail services

Inemerging markets, urbanisation wall continue to drive demand
for more mvestment n metras and inter-city netwarks

Awviation

Aurports around the warld have been 2 major market for Batfour Beatty
fram Chep Lap Kok in Hong Kong to Termmal 5 at Heathvow The Parsons
Bnnckerhofi (PB) acquisition has further stengthened our posioon in
arports This market 1s closely linked to the economic cycle and 1
axpeciedto show some early recovery

Utilities

Power

From 2016 the UK faces a looming energy gap &5 up to a thrd of
generating capacity may be closed because 1t cannot meet EU clean
ai reguiations Over the following years a succession of nuclear plants
will reach the end of thew service Ives Bndging this gap will require
amajor building programme encompassing & mux of generation
platforms Balfour Beatty including through PE, has a substantal
position in many aspects of power generation whuich should give us
access 1o s market. The UK transmussion market also offers
considerable opportunity - drven by ageing 2ssets and also by
renewable energy sources, such as wand power often in remote
locanons which will need to be linked to centres of population

The US transmission market 1s aiso strong {see Naw Energy Alliance
case studyon page 28} Spending has doubled since 2002 and
renewables are adding to demand

Emerging markets offer major opportunsies i gengration and
transmission drven by economic growth and desnographic shifts

PB strengthens our position because of its expenence and track
record in both developed and emerging markets i Australia, Asiz
the Middle East and South Afnca fwhere PB 1s programme managing
one of the warld's largast power station projects)

Water

The UK 15 a stable markat, commtted to major renewal of ageing
infrastructure under regulated five-year plans The US has smilar
1ssues with ageing infrastructure, particularly on the East Coast
acceniuated by popuiation shifts to the sunbelt states Water assets
are largely funded by municipalioes ang actvity s likely to increase
with economes recovery when difficulties raising bond finance ease
In developing economies rapid urbanisation demands ncreasngly
complex engineenng solutons, particularly for waste water reatment
and disposal The market for desalination 55 also growing {see Viciona
desalnation project case study on page 30)

Social infrastructure

Soaal nfrasgucture mcludes educabion, heaithcare facdines and social
and miftary housing

Healthcare

Inthe UK a panod of magr hospial bukding s winding down
Pressures on public spending are likely to constrain major new
orojects — but will also encourage outsourcing creating support
service oppartunities for us

Imthe US, healthcare 1s currenitly a private sector market and will
continue to respond to demand driven by an againg population

and migrabon. Many of our ather geographic markets also affer
considerable opportunity as they develop therr healthcare provisicn
to meet the needs of fast-growing or ageng populations

Education

Inthe UK 3!l polracal parties are commitied to svestment in schools,
50 a leve] of spending should be sustained whichever party wins the
2010 elegton Qur expenance n Bullding Schools for the Futwre (BSF)
15 @ competitive advantage, as variations of such modets are lkely 1o
continte to be used in education {see Bulding Schods for the Future
case study on page 32}

In the US, both iower and hgher education should continue to be an
attractive market. Demand continues 1o be driven by population shifts
and a birthrate bulge warking through the system

Social and mifrtary housing

In the UK, social housing investment has neary doubled since 2003
Moare recently, activity has been reduced by the fall-off in prvate
sector housebullding, o which many social housing projects are linked,
butwe expect actvity to recover in the medium term as the pnvate
housing market recovers

Inthe US we expect a number of opportuniues to anse in the mifitary
housing market, in which we are a strong player, and see a continuing
flow of prospects from the military base realignment and closure
programme (BRACH We also see opportunities as the PPP model
extends to other forms of accommodation projects

Industrial and commercial

The prvate sector accounts for much of the remainder of our business,
and invotves the construcaon of oifices and oiher uddings for our
retail industnal and commercia! customers in the UK, US Asig and the
Middle East We are estabished suppliers of constructon services
and PB greatly strengthens our poston in the related prowision of
professional services This market moves with local economees and
should recover early We expect to mcrease our exposure in Bus sector
over the nexi few years tohelp offset changes in our other markets
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Our businesses
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Four linked

BUSINESSES

Our capability continues to broaden and deepen.
Each of our businesses is a major player in its field,
and in 2009 they continued to grow in their own right
as well as through collaboration with one another.

As the following individual business reviews show,
each has its own competitive strengths, broadly-
spread markets, long-term customer relationships
and strategy for continued growth. It is their
individual success that makes our integrated
offer so formidable: there are no weak links.
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Our businesses
Professional Constructron Support Infrastructure
sennces sennces SEMVIEES mvestments

Professional services

The acquisition of Parsons Brinckerhoff (PB), one of the world's leading
professional services companies, has transformed the Group's capabilities
In this segment The Integration 1s proceeding well and there are many
opportunities to bring the Group's overall capabilities together and
provide combined solutions for customers

What do we do? What's happened? What's next? How we performed
Programme and Transformational Successful Integration Revenue®
project management acquisttion of PB completed - of PB into Balfour
Architectural services in October 2009 Beatty Group 535&28”]
Project design Groupnowhasaleading  Capitalise on growing P

position n US cvil range of large-scale phiny
Technical services nfrastructure, especially  opportunities to combing £1 4bn
Planning In transportation professional services 2008 £0 460
Consuftancy Strengthens presence with downstream

In existing geographic construction capabilities

Profit**
markets and extends Leverage Heery's building £1 3m
access to new geographies  portfolio with PB's broader 2008 £14m

Good progress Integrating capabiities in the US
PB, with early successes ~ Expansion in power and

Balfour Beatty's water markets

Professional services US Federal market and IMAGE
businesses performed Australia areas of growth REMOVED
well in the year

*  Inclding £5m share of omt ventures and
assooiates (2008 frul

** Profi fromopersuons before £23m excepaonal
charges {2008 £rd) and £8m amorsaton of
niangible assets (2008 £1m)
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MCGHealth cancer centre

Heery was responsible for a unique
callzhoration writh paent-advisors as
well s adminstrators and physictans

to design a state-of-the-art facility at the
MCGHealth cancer centre in Augusta

The strategy

The acquison of Parsons Banckerhaff (PB) transformed the Group s
Professional services business and s a key step n Baliour Beatty s
strategy of becoming a global leader in nfrastructure services

The Group 1s now one of the world s leading companies in

professional senices for nfrastructure markets and has & leading

position inUS ol nfrasoucture especially in transpartation

As well as extending Balfour Baatty s global reach and ability to

access new markets through professional senaces the depth and

breadth of the Group's capabilives in existing geographi: markats
has been stengthened

PB s strang brand 15 being mantained, with Batfour Beatty s existing

Professional services businesses, Heery in the US and Balfour Beatty

Management in the UK being integrated nto P8 Heery will continue

to operate under its own brand as an affiliated company wittun PB

The strategy i Professional senaces compnses the following

key efements .

—Inthe US mcremental reinfarcament in transportation n terms of
geograplty as well as capability through selective recrutment and
mfill acquisstions, expansion in power and 1n due course, Inwater,
organically and through acquisitions: and further development in
federat markets

— in the rest of the world, gaographic expansion, parucularly
emerging rmarkets, by leveraging the Groups global credenuals in
transportation, power and the programme management of large
complex projects

—Enhancing the sirong base of technical and project managament
expernse mcompate for lamge-scale projects on a globat basis
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Inaddmon, there 15 a growarkg range of karge-seale opportunibes for
comparkes who can mtegrate professional services with downstream
defivery capahilties

The increasing scale and complexity of major nfrastrugture projects

has seen an evalution ncustomers’ procurement strategies and aneed

for interface management from lead suppliers Major procurers of
infrastructure are alsc dnven by the need to manage and control costs
and recagnise the benefits that early engagement partnership and
long-term relationsfups can bring

The marketplace

Around 56% of the Group s revenue in professional services 1s now i
the Unrted States

The US transportation markat i a key area While the re-authonsation
of the US transport bill has been defayed, there is expectedtobea
sighificant increase in long-term funding in this sector

The power market m the US, where the Group has a relatively smal
presence and the water market, where its presence 1§ currently even
smaller, have significant long-term growth potential

There are a nwmber of opportunities in the US Federal market and it s
an area which 1s being addressed through a combned Professional
senaces and Constructon services strategy

There are opportuniues to maintan and grow the Group’s Professional
services acivibes In the US bulldings market through geographuc
diversity combining Heery s capabiliies with PB’s, ieveraging Heery s
track record n design-build and focusing on Federal work particularly
inthe ustice, healthcare and aviation sectors

sSaUISNG INQ
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Our businesses — Professional services

In the UK, therz are opportuniues in the transport and power sectors in
the medium tem

Australia where PB operates in the transport, power, water,
consuttng and butding sectors, continues to be 2 strong market,
with opportunities dnven by the counttry s natwral resources base
and Govemmertt funding for infrastructure projects

The Group now has a presence in a number of countries in the Far East
with 3 range of opportunities driven by the growth in nfrasiructure

There has been a protracted downtum n Dubay, though there are future
oppartunities in power and ransportation in the Middle East.

In South Afnca there are apportunities 1o build on our work inthe
power market and {o expand the business

Financial performance

Profit from operations before exceptional tems and amortisation
reduced by £9m to £13m (2008 £14m} The result was impactad
asanbcipated Dy the seasonal nature of PB s profit profile PBs results
have been conselidaiad into the Group's resuits from 27 October 2008,
the date on which the acquisron was completed

Balfour Beatty s Profassional services businesses parformed well n the
year Inthe US Heery had another good year with revenue and profit
ncreasing (nthe UK Batfowr Beatty Management also performed well
with the King s Cross Northem Ticket Hall opening at the end of 2003
The integration of PB into the Group 1s proceeding well The first phase
was completed iy bringing Batfour Beatty s existing Professional
services capabilies under e averall management of PB and the
Group 15 now focusing on capialising on the significant apportuniiies
tointegrate professional services with the rest of 1ts businesses

As a resutt of the acqussiion of PB the order haok m Professional
services ncreased by £10bn to £1 4bn at the year-end (2008 £0 4m)

Operational performance

Parsons BninckerhoH

PB operaties through a natwork of over 100 offices and hes appraxmately
12500 employees This extensve imemauonal network provides a
local presence and local customer relationships that suppori PB's global
expertise and reputation

P8 was a private company enurely owned by its shareholder
employees Strong support for the acquisiton was obtained, with
acceptances from 99% of those eligible to vate, significantly in excess
of the requed 75%

Good progress has been maintained on a numpber of PB's major
projects including

—the US$E Bbn O'Hare Intemnationat Arport modermisation project in
Chicago where PB 1s construcbon manager

—the US$76bn Tumnel Project that wall more than deuble NJ
TRANSIT's commuter rail capacity hetween New York and New
Jersey by 2017 PB, n joint venture, 15 providing preliminary
engineering, quality assurance, tunne! engingenng, cvil/structural/
systams faciives engineening architecture project controls and
environmential services Tunne! construction began in 2009
with completion expected n 2017

— the design of the |-69 hughway project for the Indiana Depariment
of Transportaton compnsing the final desigr: for over S0 miles of
rew miersiaie ighway from Oakland City 1o Crane Indiana

— design and engineering asststance for the US$2bn Dulles Comdor
Metrorall extension, an 11 4 mile rail extension including six
new stations, n Virginia, connecang to Washington Dulles
International Airport.

— the design of the AUS$3 5bn Melboume desalination project, where
P81s the designer in joint venture (see case study on page 30}

~the East London Line project and North London Raibway upgrade,
where PB 15 the programme manager

A joint ntegration team has been formed to ensure the smooth
transition of PB into Balfour Beatty and to ensure that the Group
maximises the opportunies avallable w it in the coming months
and years

Honclula

PB 15 responsible for the planning and design of
anew, largely elevated, 20-mie transit system

in Honoluly
The Honolulu high-capacity transit corredor
IMAGE project will use ight metro rail tachnotogy in
REMOVED atomdor that wransects dense urban and
suburban neighbourhoods

PB has camed out a preliminary engineenng
and environmental study and approval to
proceed 1s antioipated in 2010

IMAGE
REMOVED
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King's Cross

Transport for London chose Balfour Beatty's
Integrated approach for the project management and
delivery of the Northern Ticket Hall a1 King's Cross
Balfour Beatty was responsible for overall programme
management, as well as prowding civil engineenng,
piing and mechanical and electrical services

IMAGE
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At the end of 2003, PB and Heery won a project to overses
reconstruction and imgrovements on the Wacker Drive Viaduct n
Chicago’s Cantral Business Distnct. The USS10m project was
awarded by the Chicago Department of Transportation {CDOT)
which 1s responsible for the maintenance: repair and rebuilding of
roads bndges and ansit line extensions in the city of Chicage

In Singapare, PB was appomtad to provide consultant services on the
Jurang hospital project m Singapare When it 1s completed in 2015
the: hosprial will be the largest hasprtal In Singapare, providing acute
inpatient and outpatient care with a capaaty of 550 beds

Early in 2010, PB was also appointed by the New Jersey Tumpike
Authonity as part of a joint venture 1o prowide construction
management senices for the imerchange 6 to 3 widening programme

inthe UK, PB was appointed to advise on the development of the majgr
£600m Gateway gas storage system,

Existing professional services busimesses in the UK/US
In the UK, Batfour Beatty continued to provide programme and project
management skills for custormers such as National Gnd Britsh Energy,
BAA, the Olympic Delivery Authonity and the Highways Agency

Work on the M25 widaning scheme, the Aquatics Centre being built
for the London 2012 Olympes and the Groups atiances with National
Gnd in the UK all made good progress

Batfour Beatty was also selected in joint venture, to suppori the
defivery of Nationa! Gnd s US electneity transression caprial
wvestment programme in New England over the next five years
{see case study on page 28)

Inthe US, Heery presades a mix of services with a sirong emphasts
on State and Federal work, especialty n the education justice and
healthcare seciors

Inthe miliiary healthcare sector, two Mutuple Award Task Order
Contract MATOC) comtracts were secured with the US A Force
during the year

The USS44m design and build contract for the complete renovation
of Langley Arr Force Base s Hosprial 1o an outpatient clinic 15 being
co-ordinated through the Fart Worth District of the US Army Corps
of Engineers

This followed an earfier MATOC contract for the complete renovation
of Patnck Awr Force Basa s 72,000 sq ft outpatient clinee

The new MCGHealth cancer centre m Augusta, Georgla for which
Heery provided design services opened during the year

Inthe justice sector Heery was appamted by the Federal Bureay

af Prsons to provide construction management for a 1 000-plus bad
facility in Yazoo City, Mississippi

The $28m expansion of the Adams County justice centre was
completed dunng the year, for which Heery provided design services
Good progress was aisc made on the $240m contract for the
management and construztion of Berhin Prison in New Hampshire

In the education sector, Heery was awardad a construction
maragement contract by Eagle Mountain-Saginaw Independent
School District for its new high school, stadhum and career technology
facility located north-west of Fort Worth Texas and continued 1ts work
onthe US$239m Durham {NC) Public Schools buiding programme

Heery alse secured a contract with the Nauonal Archives and Records
Administration (NARA} for supplemental construction management
and design-build services ai NARA facilines across the Unried States
Thus 15 the third time Heery has secured this contract

Goad progress was made on management and design services &t

Lows Armstrong New Orizans Iniemational Airport; construction
management services for a new Social Secunty Administration bulding
in Baltimore, and at the new headquarters complex for the Food and
Drug Admintstration i Siver Spring, Maryland

Owerafl, Hzery s order book 15 down year-on-year but the medium-term
outlook 15 positrve

Outiook

The acquisiuon of PB has ransformed the Group's capabilities in
professional services

PB 15 one of the world s leading professional services firms focused
on infrastructure and has atrack record of profit growth and sirong
cash generation.

The outlook for PB remains consistent with that at the tme of the
acquistuon. We anticipate that the Professional services segment
waill account for approxaimately one quarter of the Groups profit
from operations 1n 2010
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Our businesses
Prafessional Construction Support infrastucture
Senices SETVICES SEMVICES Imvestments

Construction services

There was a particularly strong performance, both in the UK and
especially n the US There were a number of good contract wins in the
UK education sector and in Hong Kong The acquisitions of RT Dooley
and SpawMaxwell boosted our US capabilities

What do we do? What's happened? What's next? How we performed
Building Strong performance in Strong pipeline of Revenue®
Construction management U buiding Bipggaggif‘ n £7’491 m
Refurbishment and frt-out Good performance in UK 2008 £7095m

buiding, particutarty in Maintaining progress P
Mechanical and education sector and delivery on major er 200
electrical services UK road schemes £82bn

Civil engineening

Ground engineenng

Rail engineering

High levels of activity
in UK roads, ncluding
M25 widening

Acquisitions of RT Dooley,
SpawMaxwell and Strata
Construction

Good year in Hong Kong

Opportunities in UK
waste, power and law
and order markets

Federal projects In the US

Potential nfill acquisinons
inthe US

with record order book Sgmulus-related

Steady performance in expenditure n US cvil

the Middle East Infrastructure

Reduced volumes in UK Opportunities to provide

and German rall markets  integrated services,
combining construction
and professional

services capabiliies

2008 £95bn

EO?m

2008 £167m

IMAGE
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* Incheding £673m share of ot verures and
associates (2008 £702mi

** Profit from operat:ons before £16m excepuonal
charges{Z008 £6m)and £20m amorisation of
ntangitie assets (2008 £15m}
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The new Bkm stretch of M74 1s making good progress
as part of a substantial infrastructure imvestment in
Scotiand s transport network. The scheme s designed
to improve journey times and reduce traffic congestion
on roads across Glasgow and South Lanarkshire The
new section of the motorway plays a key role in the
transport plan for Scotland's delvery of the
Commonwealth Games in Glasgow n 2014

The strategy

Construction 1s @ locat business and knowledge of the local supply chain
{labour and matenals) 1s crrcal

One of Balfour Beatty's man differenuators 15 the depth and breadth
of 1ts expertise gained from operatng ; the UK, manland Europe,
the US, Muddle East and Far East, combined with ts local knowledge
In each market.

Balfour Beatty works in partnership with customers who value the
hughest levels of quality, safety and technical expertise

Inthe UK the Group has added to ns presence in UK regionat
construction markets where i had previousty had kttle coverage
through a series of acquisiians

Inthe US, Balfour Beatty has expanded its presence m new geographic
markets andwill continue to pursue mfill acquisiions The business
currently operates widely across the US with significant operations in
Washington the Caralinas, Flonida, Texas and Califormia

The combination of professional services skifis and project delivery
capabilities should enahle the Group to access attracive hugh-value
complex projects

Inthe rail sector, the ntegration of PB will allow the Group to enter the
full turnkey market as 1ts capahilities now include systems miegration

inall ts markets Balfour Beatty has the track record and capability 1o
position itself for expenditure by public, reguiated and private sector
customers and the Group has taken a senes of actions to recogrise
and anticipate future ends The Group's exposure to end markets
and to different geographuas prowides a diverse busingss model in
thus segment.
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The marketplace

Inthe UK Balfour Beatty serves a range of markets While the general
alecton in 2010 creates uncertainty over future Government spending
plans, the size and quality of the order book enables the Group to
postoon itself for customers” future phonties

The educanon sector, for instance continues to offer the Group a range
of opportunites

In the US, while current operational performance 1s strong, the
economic downturn has resutted in competiive pressures and a
reduced order book. However as the market recovers Balfour Beatty
15 well-posmoned in the regional buiding markets in whuch 1 operates
The acgusieons of AT Docley and Spawhaxwell have enhanced the
services Batfour Beatty offers There are opportunities in the Federal
market and there 1§ potential for stmulus-related spend in sectors such
as highways and bridges rail water and wastewater infrastructure

in South-East Asia, Balfour Beatty has a leading market posiion and is
well-postioned to capitalse on the strong growth in infrastructure n
Hong Kong and the hugh-quality work secured recently

Market condibans are challenging n Duba but in the longer term there
15 8 demand for new infrastructure The market i Abu Dhatn remans
positve with further opportunities i (tatar and Oman

In Eurape, and in other selected intemational markets Balfour Beatty s
leading position as a fixed rail nfrastructure contractor continues to
provide & range of apportunities for the Group
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Our businesses — Construction services

Financial perfformance

Construction services had a particularty strong year with good
performances from the budding businesses, especially i the US

Profit irom operations, before exceptional tems and amortisatian,
rose by 24% to £207m (2008 £157m), o 14% at constan: currency

There was a good overall parformance 1n UK butiding in 2 difficult
market, with good contract wans in the education sector, partially offset
by a reduted volume of work in the regional building busmess

There were also strong performances in the UK magor and regionat cevit
engineerng businesses wrth good progress on & number of major road
projects including the M25 This strong performance was partially offset
by a reduction i the Group's smaller ground enginesring business

The Group’s businesses have reacted quickly to reduce costs where
volumes have reduced In addrtion, we will continue to seek broacer
pracurement and cost savings through our operating companies
working iogether more closely

Batfour Beatty Construction i the US performed strongly in 2009 and
while the busmess has been working through the order book, thera
were encouraging contract wans in Texas, Georgia and the Carolinas
at the end of the year

Perfarmance in US infrastructure was steady

There was a strang performance in Hong Kong with a numbes of
contract wins resuftng in Gammon's order book increasing 10%
year-on-year The acquismion of PB gves us further exposure to Asia,
aswell as Australia

inthe Middle East, performance was steady The market for new
construction work in Dubas remans difficult, whie payments for
completed bulding work remain siow The Group continued to win
‘burlding services work elsewhere across the region

The rail businesses, which operate in the UK continenital Eurape

and other selected ntemational markets, were affected by reduced
volumas in the UK and Germany at the beginning of the year Aftera
siow start, the order baok pasiuion in Germany and Sweden smproved
bythe end of 2009

The order book in Construction services reduced by 14% to £8 2n
during the penod an 8% reduction at constant currency

Operational performance

UK building

Completad projects in the year ncluded wark on the Knowsley Buiiding
Schools for the Future (BSF) scheme n Merseysidz and & new diagnostc
and treatment centre tn Pontefract, as part of the Pinderfields and
Pontefract Hosprtals PPP

in the commercial sector work was completad on developments in
Tudor Street and Gresse Street n London While the commercial sector
15 currently very quiet, there are some first sgns of recovery and there
will be opportunities for the Group when this market picks upagam
Good progress was made on the Eastern Campus Development
Programme at Heathrow Asrport for BAA and on the major £550m
haspital scheme in Biringham

in Scotiand, good progress was made on the Royal Museum mn
Edinburgh, the Ravenscraig regional sports facility and on the Victona
Hospital n Fife which s due to be completed n 201

Earty n 2010, Network Rail selected Ralfour Beatty to undertake major
improvement work at Edinburgh’s Waverley Station The £50m contract
will be completed in 2013

New contract wins were paricularty strong n the education sector

in 2009

Awards inciuded the £77m conitract to build new student accommodation
at the Unnversity of Exeter and the appaintment as a design and build
partner for Stoke-on-Trent City Council's £250m BSF programme
Batfour Beatty s the construction partner in a number of BSF schemes
inHackney Haringay and Greznwich with a total value of over £220m
and 15 framewaork contractor prowiding construction services to both

the £180m scheme for Manchester City Councit and the £100m scheme
inLverpoal

As part of the Nauonal Acadermes Framework Balfour Beatty was
appointed by Lingolnshire County Council for three design and buid
contracts totalling £57m This followed rts appontment as preferred
bidder for the £120m West Sussex National Academies Framework
and contract awards on academies in Sunderland, Southwark and
Darimgton

Earlyn 2010 financial close was achieved an the £450m Blackburn
with Darwen and Bolton Councils BSF programme The project involves
the delivery of a major caprial investment programme over a number of
phases {see case study on page 32)

Budding for more BSF schemes and Nanonal Academues Frameworks
will continue in 2010

Trent River Bndge

The Trant River Bndge replacement in Naw Bem, North
Carolina s scheduled for complenon in 2010 The work 1§
bemng undertaken m an emaronmentally-sensiuve area

IMAGE
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where two nvers meet and nvolved the demofition of a
1954 swing breige

South Lodge
At the samior Ivng care home fatility at South Lodge in

IMAGE
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the Midiands, 99 high-quality apartments and surtes are
under construction. The market for new residential
asssied fvng fachues in the UK s increasing reflecting
increased life expectancy
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Parktand Hospital

Artist's mpression af the new 1 9m sg ft Parkiand Replacement
Hasprtal for wivch Baifour Baanty won z construction senices
comtract dunng the year On completionin 2014 i will be the
largest haspital buitding n Dallas, Texas replacing the exisung
85-year-old hospral
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Volumes were down in the regional building market. in response to
these markat condrtions, there was Suceess i secuning addiional
posions on construction framewaorks including Devon County
Council s Construction Framework South West and the Ohympic
Delvery Authonty's general builder framewsrk

Thera continue o be oppertunites in the student accommodaton,
affordable housing and senior iving sectors

UK building services

Batfour Beatty Engineening Services was farmed dunng the year to
combine the skills and resources of Balfour Beatty companies already
operating in tis market {Balfour Kilpatrick and Haden Young) and to
match the needs of customers across the UK,

115 mvolved i the mterral emaronment of buddings designing,
supplying and nstaling mechanical and electrical engineanng services
Good progress was made on a sange of projects during the year
including the Agquatics Centre n London, hospital schemes at
Birmingham and Fife, educaton schemes including Southwark and
Istington, and on tha A3 Hindhead and Al(M) Hatfield tunnels

Work for Lendon Underground and EDF Energy in the power market
conunued to progress well

Successful delivery, ahead of schedule on the Whitglee wind farm
project, Europe's largest onshore wand farm in Scotland led o work
baing secured at the Arecleogh wind famn for ScotushPower
Renewzbles

Although market condrbions are challenging, Balfour Beatty s
well-posiioned as & market-leading business in this sector There are
good oppartunities in the health education power systems and power
project markets including nuclsar and ofl and gas

UK el infrastructure

There were high levels of acinity in the roads sactar

Work staried on the substantial M25 scheme in May 2009, which will
add 40 lane riles of addional capacity to the M25 (see case study on
page 26}

Good progress was aiso made on the M74 where the Interink joint
veniure 1s designing and constructing an Bkm extension to the
motorway in Glasgow on the A421 project in Bedfordshire and the
A46 Newark to Widmerpool contract.

Excellent progress was made on the A3 bottieneck alleviation scheme
at Hindhead and the Devil's Punchbowl

New wanis in the year included the design and construction of an

8 25km two-way single camageway &s part of the Carlsle Northern
Development Route PPP scheme, and an Early Contractor Involvement
{ECH) contract for the £127m Norwach Northern Distributor Road

in January 2810 further reads projects were secured on the A1l
Fveways to Thetford improvement ECI contract and the A487
Porthmadog Munffordd and Tremadog Bypess

In February 2010 Balfour Beatty was one of four defivery partners to
be appomnted to the Highways Agency’s £2bn managed motorways
framewaork contract.

The Northem Ticket Hall at King's Cross was handed over on time,
as was the extension ang upgrade of the East London Line

Further work was secured on the reconstruction of Blackinars
staton in London {see cass stuty on page 22}

Also in Landon, good progress was mads on a roads and Srdges
contract at the Olymipics site

The ragional cwvils market s holding upwell in spite of economic
conditions and good progress was matle on a range of projects
inciuding the Forth Brdge and the constuction of two new platforms
at Glasgow Central station

Volumes wera down 1 ground engineerng in Ime with the rest of the
market, with vary Iittle work in the prvate sector Foundation weork for
The Shard in Landon which will be Europe s tallest mixed-use building,
was completed during the year

Nuclear 15 an important potential market for the Group In addition

to current work at Sellafield Balfour Beatty 1s pasiioning riseff for

the new build programme in the UK which could start in 2012/13
Balfour Beatty 15 parnering with AREVA, a world leader in nuclear
power (o ensure effectve delivery of 2 fiest of futwe EPR nucieas
reactors [EPRs}

Balfour Beatty has also formed a jomt venture with VINCI Construction
10 help defwer project managament, construction and civil engineering
infrastructure for the EPR programme in the UK, both wiithin the
AREVA partnership and io bud for EPR sites for utiles adopting
alternative procurement models, nchuding EDF

Batfour Beatty will be bidding for a range of contracts as part of the
Crossrail project, the new ral route planned hrough Landon

Batfour Beattty 1s part of the Forthspan joint veniture brdding for the
Forth Replacement Crossing the UK s most significant new brdge
in 20 years

US construction

Good progress was made on current contracts Including the Walter
Reed Nauonat Military Medical Canter in Maryland and the US$253m
expansion of the Peabody Orlando hotel n Aonda In November, the
Rriz-Cariton Charlatte was completed successfully, designed to achieve
LEED Gold certification as defined by the US Green Building Counc
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Our businesses — Construction services
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Instrtute of Techmcal Education, Smgapore
The new ITE College West Campus in Smgapore
15 scheduled to be complated for the first imtake

of students n 2010

Mayor contract wans in the year mcluded the Mecidenburg County Jail
expansion praject i Charlotte North Carofina a new, 19msg ft
hospital for the Parkland Health & Hosprtal System in Dallas and the
new US$B0m Perat Museum of Nature and Science in Dallas

Work was also secured with the US Army Corps of Engineers including
pre-construttion and constucton sences for the replacement hospitat
at Fort Riley and contracts at Fort Jackson in South Carofina Fort
Benning in Georgia and Lackland Aur Ferce Base in San Antoro Texas

Additonal work ncluded the US$325m contract o lead the
design-build on the Omn: Dalfas Comvention Center Hotel 8 $60m
design-build contract for the Hays County Govemment Comnplex and
general contracting services on the almaost 1m sq ft Las Colinas
Entertanment Canter located in lnang Texas

Balfour Beatty's position in the US construction market through its
regional divisions based in Texas Fonda, North Caroling Califormia

and Washington D C, was supplemented by two acquisitions during
the year

In February 2009, RT Dooley Construction a famuly-owned construction
firm based i Charlotte North Caroling, was atquired for approumately
US$40m RT Dooley specialses i corporate headquariers, corporate
imeriors/fit-out and "mission crtical” work such as daia centres and
call centres

in November, SpawMaxwet! Company the largest intenor construction
contractor in Texas and the sixth largest general contractor m Houston,
was acquired for up to USSZ5m The acquisraon enhances Batfour
Beatty s posttion as a single source of construction capabiiities in the
Texas bulding markets and 15 in fine with the strategy of expanding in
selected geographic markets m the US

As part of the re-organisation of the Group s businesses in the US
follawang the acquisibon of PB both Charter Buiiders {based in Callas)
and Bamhart {based in San Diege} which were previously managed
by Heery, became part of Baffour Beatty's construction operations
These acquisions and addrtions to the US construction business
broaden the peographic coverage and range of services offered to
custorners The integration of these businesses 1s proceeding well
Balfour Beatty's construction aparation n the US now generates
inexcess of US$3bn of revenue, promding pre-construction

and construction management, dessgn-buskd and general

contracting services

Looking forward, market condiugns are difficult with some margin
pressure and itte pick-up in the privata sector

Prionties for the business will be continung 1 wan Federal projects,
working in eonjunction with giher Group businesses inthe US to
maximise synergies and opportunities to share knowledge mtegrating
the new capabiities mto the business and pursuing infill acquisiions
in new geographies

US mfrastructure

Balfour Beatty operates in the roads, bndges, tunnels water and
wastewater markets in the US heavy cvil engineenng market.

Good progress was made on a number of projects including the
US$146m Dorchester Tunne! praject in Boston for the Massachusetts
Water Authonty; the construction of the new Trent Rrver Bdge in
North Caroling and the US$208m Vineyard Water Treatment Plant
n Sagramento where the water treatment capacity at the plantis
bemg doubled

It August, Balfour Beatty was selected i jomnt venture, by the North
Texas Tollway Authanty to work on a major design-build road project in
the Datias-Fort Warth region The contract for phase four of the State
Highway 161 Toltway 1s expected to be around US$415m {£252m)
Overall, the cvil mfrastructure market was extremely pce-competiove
durng 2009 and the Group has taken the long-term decision not to
follow the market down in low bidding As a consequence the order
book has reduced

However there are indications that the infrastructure stimulus
programme avned at the areas mwhich Balfour Beatty operates —
hegheways and Dridge construction, water and wastewater
nifrastructure — will result in more progect opportuniaies in the near
to medium terem, vindicating the deciston not to follow the market
down duning the year

South-East Asia
Balfour Beatty operates in South-East Asia through Gammon
Construction inwhich the Group has a 50% interest.

Gamrmon 15 2 leading contracior in Hong Kong and Singapore and
operates in both the cvil engineenng and bullding markets

Goaod progress was made on the construction of the new Ceniral
Government Complex for Hong Kong — known as the Tamar
Development Project [see case siudy on page 24}

Durng the year, Gammon boosted its already strong order book with

a senes of new and high-quality nfrastructure and bulding contracts
in July, a contract in excess of HK$1 5bn (£120m} was awarded by Hysan
Development Company Limited for the redevelopment of the Hennessy
Centre m the Causeway Bay distnct of Hong Kong The 36-storey mixed
retal and office development is due for completion n 2011

The Hong Kong Government awarded Gammon a HK$3 76bn (£300m}
contract for the construction of a sewage conveyance system

the largest singte cvil engineenng contract It has ever won

New work on the Centenrual Campus contract from the Unwversity of
Hong Xong valued at HK$2bn {£150m), fofiowed n September 2009
Earty in 2010, further contracts were secured for the HKS330m (£74m)
redevelopment of the Victoria Park swirmming pool complex a

HKS1 34bn (£106m) contract to construct Kennedy Town Station

and overrun tunnels for MTR Corporation and a HK$2 4bn{£135m)
cortract for the wadening of the Tolo and Fanbing hsghways

Gammon also had a good year n Singapore, though market condibons
are expected o be shohtly more challenging loaking forward

Gamrmon anticipatas more major nfrastructura bids in Hong Kong

in 2040, paruicularly for mass transtt and highway projects

v
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Middle East

Batfour Beatty operates primarily in Duba as a building and crvil
angineenng conactor and as a mechanical and electacal engineenng
{MBE}contractor i Bubar and Abu Dhabi

The Bury Mall in Dubas the worid's biggest shopping centre opened
during the year

In Abu Dhab Balfour Beatty was responsible for intemal and extemal
mechanical and electrical services an the Yas Manna Hotel, which
consists of two towers buth over the Yas Marnna Formula One race
track. The groject was completed n November 2008 in time for the
Grand Prix Work on the Al Raha Beach hotel n Abu Dhabiis
progressing well and there was a strong order book for the M&E
business at the end of the year

Batfour Beatty has been operating in the Midd'e East for 30 years
and continues to take a prudent, long-term view of future prospects
with Qatar and Oman also offenng a potentially broader range

of apportunites

Addmonal opportunities to provide an integrated approach for
customers working ncombration with PB are being explored

Rail
Batfour Beatty 1s the world s leading mutt-disciplinary fixad rait
infrastructure contractor

It has lang-term refationshups and major current projects for Network
Aal London Underground, the Olympic Delvery Authority Deutsche
Bahn, Alptransit, RFl {Itakan State Raitway) Banverket {Swedish
State Ratway) the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authonty the Minsstry of Ranin China numerous murecipafities and
many other network owners

Inthe UK good progress was made on the £363m extension and
upgrade of the East Landon Line where Balfour Beatty Rarl 1s working
In point venture The project was successfully handed over to Transport
for London on tme m January 2010

Good progress was mage on the £60m contract on the Awdne-
Bathgarte ing, which forms part of the Edinburgh-Glasgow fink
Volumes were down in the swiiches and erassings manufacturing
husiness, tue to a significant drop n demand from Network Rall and
the business will be looking 1o export to overseas markets Signalling
Solutons the joint venture with Alsiom, performed sausiactonly
Balfour Beatty Rail and its recently-acquired rack business,
Schreck-Mieves, secured several mutt-disciphnary contracts in
Germany Balfour Beatty continued to develop its market posiion

1n Austna

Inhaly Batfour Beatty conunued its work on the major high-speed
rail ik programme to connect all the man cibes, nduding the
glectnfication of the hnk from Turin 10 Milan and Bologna to Florence
which began operatons in Decernber 2009 The business 1s
well-posiigned to win further work.

Work on the Metro "Line C” inRome one of the largest infrastructure
schemes for public transport in ftaly and the trolleybus scheme in

m December 2009
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In Scandinavia, Balfour Beatty boosted ts order book t¢ record levels
when the Swedish rai administration, Banverket, awarded it 2 £82m
raiway maintenance congact for 1,270km in the Vastra Gitaland region

in Spamn, good progress wes made on several fugh speed Tne projects
and on the Madnd-Levante ine

Balfour Beatty 15 part of the Transtec Gotthard consortium for the €1bn
rail systems installation contract for the 57km Gotthard Base Tunnelin
Swrizerland, which will be the longest ralway tunnel in the warid when
itopens for commercial services in 2017 The project continues to
progress satisfactonty with detalled design and mobilisation taking
place during the year

Balfour Beatty operations in the US rail market are focused on rail
services and construction projects Good progress was made on current
projects in Derver and Los Angetes Balfour Beatty is currently tudding
for 2 major hght rarl project in Denver and there 1s potentally a strong
ppeline of opporwnibes, as a result of stmulus expenditure and
waorking m combination with PB wiuch has partcular expernse in

this market.

inMalaysia Balfour Beatty secured 2 major contract for the rail
electnficaton and power supply systems package for the Ipoh o
Padang Besar double tracking rail extension

inChina Balfour Beatty won a £64m electnfication contract for the
Xinxiang-Heze-Ranzhou-Rizhao railway for the Ministry of Railways

of China which 1s due for completion in the summer of 2010 The jomt
venture established in China to manufacture catenary components 1
growing raprdly

In Chale & £50m contsact for two Iine extensions on the Santiago Metro
continues to make good progress 1t ts heped that work wall be secured
in Brazl in 2010

Balfour Baatty continues 1o work on smafler projects in Australia and
New Zealand

Outlook

While current economic conkiitons create uncertamty in some of our
construction services markets, the Group s broad range of customers
ang geographies provides resthence

Although we expect evil nfrastructure to strengthen, this wall be offset

by reductions inour building business. so that overall a simular overal
level of performance 1s anbcipated in 2010

A senes of actions have been taken to posrtion the business for
future opportunities

In the medium tesm, there are opportunitizs i the UK in the waste
pawer and law and order markets, as well as in rall electrification,
Looking further ahead, the nuclear new-build programme nthe

UK and an uptum in the commestial developer market poovide
further opportunies

In the US, there are opportunities 1n the Federal buiding market and
for greater stmwlus spending i US el infrastructure markets

The infrastructure market m Hong Kong 1s especially strong while

Pescara both made good progress other markets and geographues such as htalian hugh-speed rail and
power and rail n the Middle East provide opportunities for growth
Itahan Rail
In kaly, Batfour Beatty continued its work on the major
IMAGE hugh-speed rail fink prograrmme to connact all the man
REMOVED cmes including the elecinfication of the bnk from Tunnto
Mitan and Bologna to Florence which began operations
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Our businesses
Professianal Constructan Support Infrastructure
SeniIces Services SenViCces Investments

Support services

Our Support services businesses performed well. Major contract wins
with customers including Unrted Utiliies and QinetiQ contnbuted

to a strong order book. Balfour Beatty WorkPlace, our total facilities
management business, had another strong year

as part of M25 contract

and rall renewals

What do we do? What's happened? What's next? How we performed

Upgrade and maintenance  New AMPS contracts won  Successful start-up of Revenue*

of water, gas and inwater sector, neludng ~ AMP5 contracts

electncity networks £500m contract wrth £1 :443m
United Utilrbes Opportunites to win 2008 £1.546m

Total faciiies management contracts to connect ——

and business services New five-yearcontract ~ altemative energy o 0o

outsourcing with National GrnidinUS ~ sources to the electneity £45bn

Highways network to support Its electncity fransmission network 2008 £2.9bn
transmission capital

management, operation rent Closer working with PB Profit™

and maintenance INVESUMENLPIOGraMME 44 provide Integrated £

Rail renewals Strong performance intotal - solutions to customers 5 5m

- facilihes management, In power market 2008 £52m
Secunng new contracts Further growth in
a?d expandflng range outsourcing, with broader
or services 1or eXIStlng range of property—rela'[ed
Customers and business services IMAGE
Seven-year integrated for customers REMOVED
facilities management FoCUS 0N CONtNUOUS
El[:r?gt?(gt secured with improvement, efficiency
and highest levels of * pckaing £ 40m e of v nd

Long-term operatingand  quality and safety in W siratskio IS
maintenance services wen  highways management (s 2000 £l 2maorvtnat

ntangihle assets (2008 £2m)
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United Utiiies

Baliour Beatty secured a five-year contract as part of
United Unlives” AMPS long-cycle contract. The contract,
kkely 10 be worth in the region of £500m, covers caprtal
defivery for United Unilities throughout North-West
England The work iInvolves the delivery of clean watar
and waste water major projects as well as flood
alleiation schemes

IMAGE
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IMAGE
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The strategy

Support seraces work 15 camed out through long-term contracts,
typically of five to seven years duration and often longer providing
TECUSTING [EVENUE STEams

Itis charactensad by a mixture of short-term and long-term activines
and an understanding of customer needs to ensure that service
soluzons have a positive and lasting effect.

in addition to working closety with customers to help achieve therr
goals and to debver the contract successfully, there s a strang focus
oncusinmer care and busdding long-term relationshups that supports
expansion of the scope of the contract and contract renewal

Continuous improvement and Innovation 1s a key facus for management
and for customers

There is & trend towards greatar levels of outsourcing and complex,
muln-faceted contracts Balfour Beatty 1s well-posivoned to grow in
thes market s an itegrated service prowider offenng total facilines
management ncorporating business services outsourcing (BSC}
aswell as energy property management and business process
QULSOUCING Services

The regulated utliies sector n the UK offers continurty of workload
over long durations and the opportunity for increased veracal
mgration with customers Balfour Beatty's speciafist capabiles
mncluding end-to-end design to instaliation skills n elactneity
transmission, has been exported to overseas markets including

the Unied States, Austrakia and New Zealand

The marketplace

Inthe gas water and electricrty sectors there is 2 contnuing need
1 mantan and upgrade existing asses and to build new assets to
support growth in developing economies

Transmission and distnbutron network invesiment s forecast for
sigruficant growvth 1o maet energy demands and the need to replace
ageing infrastructure

In additon, these 1s a requrement to connect alernative energy
sources such as new wird farm capacity, to the elactneity transmission
network [n the water sector the new asset management plan penod
for the vtlity compares AMPS, begins in Apni 2010 and runs to 2015
The latest smestment review altows for an svestment of £22bn over
the next five years an increase of 7%

Balfour Beatty won new AMPS caprtal programime contracts, totaling
some £700m. Anumber of water franeworks are stil to be awarded
with-pthers coming to market mid AMP Additionally, many customers are
retaning an element of ther prograrmime 1o be letvia competrive iudding
in the UK gas and electnorty sectors, the Group has long-term contracts
in place with Nationa! Gnd Balfour Beatty s track record with National
Gnd in the UK was an importamt factar in wanning a contract to support
the delrvery of National Gnd s US electnorty ransmission capital
nvestment programme in New England {see case stuty on page 28}

in the faciies management market there contnues to be a shift from
simple bundled contracts {a combinabion of several single services}o
rnore complex mmtegrated contracts that embrace stratege management
of the customer s property portfoho and business services

In some cases customers may seek to mclude certan operational
aspects and the consequential partial transformation of ther business
This ts an important development in govemment markets given
ncreasing hudgetary constaints and there is an ever greater need

to deliver the same outputs for less money

In higtways managemesnt, the Highways Agency is Increasingly
dermanding that 1§ contractors are able 1 supply an integrated
construction, operating and maintenance capability In the local
authomties' roads market, the demand for the provision of intagrated
mfrastructure and operational management 1s growing and developing
inrad renewals, Network Ral and London Underground are, as
expectad, conunuing to seek greater efficiencies. In the case of
Network Rall this has resutied in reduced revenues for ris suppliers
atthe beginning of rts latest Control Penod {CP4)

SSRLISN IN()
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Our businesses — Support services

Financial performance

Profit irom aperations before exceptional tems and amortisation, ose
by 6% to £55m (2008 £52m)

Inthe vuknes markets, overall performance was as expectad Inthe
water sector, there was a fall n revenue on coniracts in the last year of
the AMP4 cycle as had been the case in previous AMP cycles New
AMP5 capital programme contracts, totalling some £700m were won
n 2009 with customers including United Utifues and Anglian Water
The contracts commence in April 2010 ana effiency levels wall
improve through the Tife of the AMPS cycie The overseas power
transrission business also produced a good performance

There was another strong vear in faciities management and business
support outsouwrcing with omganic growth and the successful expansion
of the range of services for customers This business i nvesting :na
national operations centre in 2010, which will be focused on increasing
the operational efficiencies of existing and future contracts

Thers was a good performance inbughways management, inciuding
the start of aperation and maintenance services on the M25n
September 2009, and inrail renewals

Operational performance

Water and power

United Utlhiies appointed Balfour Beatty for s AMPS infrastructure
contract, covenng caprtal delivery throughout north-west England as
part of Unrted Unfites’ AMPS long-cycle contract. The totat value of
the five-year contract 1s lkely to be worth in the region of £500m

Balfour Beatty secured a five-year extension, kikely to be worth over
£100m intotal to its existmg alliance partnershup contract with Anglian
Water The extension s part of the @one Alliance £1bn AMPS
programme and covers the wholg of Anglian Water's region in the

east of England

Work 10 support the delvery of National Gnd s electnoity transmession
caprial ivestment programme in the UK, through the Eastern alliance
and in the United States for Nationa! Grid in New Engfand through a
Joint venture with M Electne, progressed well

Work on efectnerty transmission projects in Australia and New Zealand
continued to make good progress
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in the gas sector there has peen contunued vear-on-year efficiency
improvement on the North West Gas Allianca contract inthe UK,
where Baffour Beatty 1s working in a long-termn partnership with
Nanonal Gnd on the design, menagement and construction work
required to replace Victorian metathe gas mems with modem
pipework systems

Building and outsourced services
Baffour Beatty i 2 leading total facdmies management (TR provider
with a track record in the pubiic and regulated sectors

Core service speciahisms include budding maintenance cleaning
catenng security energy management and vehicle fleet management
for customers in the public and private sectors

There were strong perfarmences on meor contracts such as the
Department for Work and Pensions and Romec the jomt venture in
which the Group has a 49% interest, which prowides faciliies
managemeni services for Royal Mail sites within the UK

At the end of 2009, a £105m contract with QinetiQ one of the world s
leading defence technology and Security orgamisations, was secured to
provide integrated facilities management services for the next seven
years The comract will prowde a range of property-related support
services to QinetrQ's portfolio of 31 sites across the UK Batfour Beatty
will work In parinership with Qineu( to transform service levels
provide operatianal efficiencies and deliver cost reduciions

Balfour Beatty expanded its relationship with the Metropolitan

Paiice Authority wanning & new £25m contract for the total facilities
management of thetr command, control and communications bulldings
and secured extensions to is work with the BBC, Royal Mailand BT
through the Monteray joint venture

Faciities managament is also an integral part of the Group s PPP offar
and financial close on Building Schoals far the Future schemes at
Southwark i 2009, and at Blackbum with Darwen and Bolton n 2010,
added 1o the partfolio of contracts in the education sector

Transport

in highways management, financial close on the design build finance
and opesate contract on the M25 motorway in May 2009 provided a
long-term workstream for the business

Balfour Beatty, as part of the Connect Plus consortium 15 provding
operating and maintenance senvices for the 30-year concession
{see case study on page 26}

Metropolitan Police

Awnde range of support services s
provided to the Metropolitan Poice
Authonty The major alements of the
contract nclude building electrical
services, building fabec maintenance,
secunty and hygiene serices

across an estaie of 400 buildings
throughout London
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UK rail renewals
Balfour Beatty is one of the UK s largest
Track renewal organssations, working on
about 76% of Network Rail s network,
predommnantly in the South-East.
IMAGE
REMOVED

Dunng the year, Balfour Beatty was also reappointed as the service
provider for the Highways Agency under the Area 4 contract in Kent
and Sussex The five-year conwact for manienance an mprovement
services 15 worth approxmately £172m to the jomt venture After the
initial five-year period, there 1s the option to extend the contract for a
further two years

There was aiso a good performance in Area 2— Somerset Avon,
Witishire Gloucestershire and Devon— for the Highways Agency
and the contract has been extended for a further year to 2012

In the local authority market, the Group s also a leakng provider of
highway maintenance and asset management. There was good
operational performance on local authonty roads in North Yorkshire,
Essex, the Narth-West of Scotland, Royal Windsor & Maidenhead
Wokingham and Westminster

Inrail renewals as expectad, there have been reduced volumes at the
outset of Network Rail s Jatest Control Peniod {CP4), whch runs from
Apnit 2003 1o March 2314, as Network Rail seeks greater efficiencies
The busiess 15 working hard to standardise its defivery of track
senewals to Network Sail in order to help meet these efficiency targets.
It1s focused on optmising the tme spent on track possessions and
has made a significant mvestment i new 1amping machwnes 1o help
achieve itsiargets Durng the year, Balfour Beatty secured an £80m
extension i a track renewal contract with Network Rail

Balfour Beatty, m alliance wrth London Underground also secured a
two-year £130m extension 1ot renewals contract dunng the year
The contract covers the SSL and BCV lines {Metropohitan, Distnct
Hammersmith & Crty Bakerloo, Central and Victoria lines)

The works nclude deep tube recandiioning, baltasted track renewals
and points and crossings

As well s meeting stringent delivery and cost targets, there is an
ngrzasing premium on continuously smproving safety and guality for
customers in this area

Outlook

Underpinned by a good forward order book, which increased by 55%
o £4 5bn dunng the year, we expect 10 achieve a similar level of
perfommance in Support services in 2010

Hawving secured a number of utlines contracts under AMPS, the focus
will be on ensuring thase contracts are efficiently mobilised

inthe UK utifity sector, there is good potential 1o export skills inte
new markets and furtherverical intagration s expected with asset
owners sesking to outsourca more of thair network maintenance and
Investment programimes

There are opportunities to caprialise on significant growth in the
afternative energy sector with the cequiremant to connect those
sources of power to the transmission network. There wall also be
greater opportunibes 10 provida a more integrated atfenng to
customers, following the acqurstiton of PB which has strong
customer relahonshns in the power market.

In facilrues management, there ts the patental for increased
outsourcing as part of the “more for less™ agenda Procurement trends,
accelerated by the econormic downtum and the sustanabdity agenda,
continue te provide stgnificant opportunities

Increasingly, total facilites management contracts cover a broader
service scope and the Group has been successful n positioning itsetf
1D secure contracts in tisarea There 1s an ncreasing trend owards
business senvces outsouring, which the Grou 1s targeaing for growth
In the highways management and rail renewals markets the focus will
be on continuous improvement and customer satisfaction 3o mantain
and, where possible, increase market share
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Our businesses
Protessional Construction Support Infrastructure
Services sennces SETVICES investments

Infrastructure Investments

There was a good performance in the UK and US Four PPP schemes
reached financial close In the UK, including the M25 DBFO, and there
was a full-year contribution from Baffour Beatty Communities

What do we do? What's happened? What's next? How we performed
Operate a portfolio of Financial close on four Significant level of bidding ~ Revenue*

long-term PPP concessions  schemes —Fife Hospital, ~ for UK schools projects £ 829m
inthe UK, prmanly nthe  Southwaerk Schools, M25  n 2010

education, health and DBFO and Carlisle Northern 2008 £553m
roads/street hghting sectars  Development Route EJ)}((DEFEI?’ new sectors for Concessions in hand’
Operate a portfolio of Appointed preferred bidder Targetremaning US UK:31 US: 18
long-term mulitary for Blackburn with Darwen miitary family housing Singapore: 1
accommodation PPP and Bolton BSF scheme | th

ONCessIons In the (reached financial close in Eggg;sr'ngggggv rln|||tary Profit™®

United States January 2010) personnel sector £42m

Operate an education PPP First full-year contnbution Apply core US PPP(P3) 2008 £3im

* of
concession, which 1sunder  from Baifour Beatty expertise INto new areas o T e s
construction in Singapore Communities ** profit fomoperauons before £1mexceptonal

15-year contractual e oy e

Have interests nnon-PPP Good undertying ATANgemeNts Come {0 an T Fekm wostslemdcrstats

assets at Blackpool and performance from existing

Exeter Intemational CONCESSIoNS ggggn?g;lg&%mr "
/F}'rpmga”d Barking New ventures formedto {504 rector
ower station focus on energy efficency  yectrment and ownership
and renewable energy In of Infrastructure assets
US and PPP opportunities ¢ ot oc otshore electncity
In Canada

transmisston
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The strategy

Inthe UK, Balfour Beatty hes a leading posiuion m the Pubiic
Private Partnership {PPP) market and will contnue to pursue bidding
opportunies which afign with the Group’s competive strangths.

Inthe US Baifour Beatty 15 the market teader in the most developed
PPP market -~ military housing — and is well-positioned to capitalise on
the Group s expertise 10 secure further privatisation projects in areas
such as energy, education and social infrastrociure {hospitals and
court houses)

During the year, a new office was opened in Toronte Canada to
evaluate the demand and opportunsties for attermnative financing and
development solutions for funding and bulding infrastructure projects
and capital improverments

The skills acqured in PPPwill also continue to be apphied to the wides,
non-PPP infrastructure market, In paricutar where there are atiractive
opportunities to take management control and 1o improve the quality
of assets in markets and sectors that are famibar to us Satfour Beatty
15 currently pursuing & number of such opportunities.

Balfour Beatty s ability to offer complete vestical integranion of s
financing, professional serices project management, construction
senaces, and facimes management/maintenance skills together
with the strength of the balance sheet and successiul track record

of delivering PP schemes, 1s a key differentiator for the Group
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Birmungham Hospital

Balfour Beatry has brought sts expertise in funcing
major infrastructure nvestments, together with its
construction Services and Support serces capabilty
together at the Birmingham New Hospiials scheme
When it 1s complete in 2012 the hospital wifl
accommedate over 1,300 beds
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The marketplace

UK

The medum-term prospects in the UK remam healthy

Insprte of the uncertamity caused by the economic outlook and the 2010
General Election, a steady flow of opportunives 1s expected to continue,
particularty i the education sector

However, whichever Governmestt 1s in power, the market for the
procurement of public services will inevitably change over ame and
altematve PPP modgls and new public procurement models will emerge
There will be opportunrties to bd a number of schools projects n the UK
1n 2010 under the Building Schools for the Future {BSF} scheme aswell
as developing future phases of schools projects where Balfour Beatty
has already achieved financial close

Batfour Beatty s working on a number of schoals schemes with local
educaton authories under the new Local Educational Partnership
{LEP) mode!, and further local authenty work 15 ikely to be delvered
using the same model

in the UK healthcare market, there has been 2 significant reduction
inthe nember of hosprtal projects coming tomarket,

In the UK highways and street Iighting sector Balfous Beatty has a
strong trackrecerd The MZ5 design burld finance and operate
contract reached financial dlose m 2009 [see case study on page 26)
Social housing prisons highways maintenance fire and rescue and
roads projects in Irefand are all potential new sectors for the Group

The Group has established a track record of adapting to new public
procurement models ang 1s confident that this success can be
replicated m the future
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US milsary housing
Balfour Beatty 1s responsibie for the development,

construction renovatian, operation and management
of military accommodation for the US Departments
of the Amiy Navy and Aur Force

us
The PPR{P3)market in the US 15 slowly evolving

In addrtion to apportuniies ansing from the Department of Defense s
raalignment and growth requirements at existing military housing
projects Balfour Beatty Communraes «s well-placed towin concessions
for more of the remaining military family housing projects, primanly with
the US Arr Force and overseas alang with the unaccompanied mibtary
personne! housing projects

Balfour Beatty is reviewing potential opportunities for new privatisation
projects in the US for student accommodation and other educationat
facimes renewable energy, and social nfrastructuse projects such as
haspitats and court houses

While financial market conditions and the lack of liquidity were
contributory factors to the lack of new F3 opportunites coming to
the market during 2608, the outook for the P3market in both miiitary
housing and in other areas remains posiive

Canada

Balfour Beatty 15 evaluating the demand in Canada for altematve
financing and development solutrons for funding and bullding
Infrastructure projects and caprtal improvements

Balfour Beatty s mitial focus in this new PPP markat for the Group wal
be on the social nfrastructure sector including heaithcare and justice

Stngapore

In Singapore financial close was reached on the first accommodation-
based PPP in the country n 2008 Construction of the Instituta of
Technical Education 15 dug to be compieted in 2010 At present, there
are few opportunibes in South-East Asia for further PPP schemes

Germany/Europe
We continue to assess the atractveness of the market in Germany
and other parts of Eurape

Non-PPP infrastructure

There are potential oppartunities for the Group t own and operate
further regional aiports, together with water assets, power networks
an offshore electnerty transmission assets combining the Group's
operational knowledge with nvestment capability to improve the
guality of assets

Financial performance

The Group's PPP cancession and non-PPP investent partfolio hes
grovwn both organically and through acquismon & become a very
significant part of the Group's businass and a major drover of
shareholder valug

Profit from operations before exceptional tems and amorisation,
wcreased by 35% to £42m {2008 £31m} or by 27% at constant
curmency

There was good undariying concession performance in the UK and
a full-year contnbution from Balfour Beatty Communities in the US
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Acquired in Apnl 2008, Balfour Beatty Communites procuces a reliable,
long-term profit and cash flow stream from a high-quality pertfolio of
PPP rmilitary housig concessions and continues to perform well

Four schemes at preferred idder status reached financial close during
2009 the £170m Fife General Hospital PPP scheme the £200m
Southwark Schoals for the Future programme, the £6 Zbn PPP project
for the design, build finance and operate (DBFO) contract for the M25
motorway, as part of the Connect Plus consortium and the £176m
Cartisle Northern Development Route PPP concession

Barking Power, which owns and operates a 1 000MW gas-fired power
station in east London performed srongly Thirty percent of Barkng
Power s electnicrty output Js soid in the open market and benefited from
favourable rates Performance in 2010 wal! be dependent both on the
market pnce for glectneity and the new contractuat arrangements that
wili replace the existing 15-vear gas and electncity contracts which
come to an end in September 2010

There was a reduction in passenger numbers at Exeter International
Auport and Blackpool international Arport, the impact of which was
fargely offsat by cost savings, an improverment in passenger vields and
iNCreases n non-aeronautical revenues

Inintal, at 31 December 2009, the Group had committed equity and
subordinated debt of £524m atrass 50 PPP concessions, including two
at preferred budder status

Operational performance

UK

Balfour Baatty s existing concessions performed well im 2009

In the education sector, Balfour Beatty reached financial close on the
Southwark Schools for the Future secondary prograsnme in May

The project nvalves the delivery of a major capital nvestment
programme over three phases covering 12 scheols across the borough

Dunng 2009, Balfour Beatty Education was formed to draw together
the Group's invesiment, construction and facikities managemesit
capabilites to help ntzgrate Batfour Beatty s expertise n ths
mportant area

Financial close for the £450m Blackbum wath Darwen and Botion
Councis Building Schools for the Future {BSF) programme was achieved
in January 2010 The project involves the delivery of a majar caprtal
nvestment programme aver a number of phases compnsing the
extensive bukling remedelling and operation of mine schools m
Blackburn wrth Darwen by 2015 and the building remodefiing and
operation of 15 schools two spexal educational needs schools and
seven pup referral unrts in Bolton

In healthcare Balfour Beatty reached financial close on the Fife General
Hospetal and Matermity Serwces PPP project for NHS Fife & May

Under the 30-year concession, Baifour Beatty will provide 2 new

wing 1o Victona Hospital m Kirkealdy dus far completion n 2014

and maintenance and faciltes management
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Southwark Schools for the Future
Ths programme involves the delivery of a major
nvestment project over three phiases covenng
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13 sites (Artist s mpressions)
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Goed progress was made on the £550m Birmingham New Hospitals
scheme, the largest community heatthcare development outside
London and construction work was completed on Pontefract Hospral

Inthe roads sector, Balfour Beatty reached financial close n May as
pari of the Connect Plus consortium, an the design, buid, finance and
operate {DBFD) comract to provide additional capacity and maintain the
M25 motorway for the Highways Agency The M25 motorway DBFO
corviract 15 a 30-year concession Duning this tme Connect Plus wall

be responsible for widening key secaons of the M25 and providing
operating and maintenance services and ffecycle replacements on the
whole project, which includes strategic road hinks in and out of London,
totaling 250 miles Balfour Beatty will svesi £80m of equity n the
project over the inriial three years

In July financial close was achieved on the £176m Carlisle Northem
Development Routa PPP concession contract for Cumbna County
Council Under the 30-year concession Connect CNDR will be
responsible for the design and construction of an 8 25km two-way
single carrageway road from the MB Junction 44 to the AR5
souttwest of Carfisle and the management, operation and angomg
mvestment in appraximately 150km of other existing roads in Cumbria

Financial close on these projects has triggered significant construction
work and whale Iife operation and maintenance senvices for
Baifour Beatty

In February 2010 we were appainted preferred bidder for the £250m
PPP Coventry street bghtng contract.

us

Balfour Beatty ts respansible for the development, construction,
renovation, aperation and management of milrtary accommodaton

for the US Departments of the Army, Navy and Arr Force Undertying
performance at the existing concessions covering famuly housing at 44
rrulitary bases and one unaccompanied personnel progect, was good

Alack of kgudity in financial markets resulted @ a reduction in new
transactions dunng the year However earty in 2010, the Fort Bliss
military housing prvatisation paoject recerved an additonal US$48m

i furding from the Ammy for an expansion phase covenng the
deveioprent and new construcnon of an additional 202 town homes
Balfour Beatty wil oversee the design, construction, and overall
management, maintenance and operational responsibilrues for the new
housing units, which are expected to be completed in 2012 Expansion
at Fort Bhiss, and potentially other Ammy bases 1s being drven both by
the base realignment and closure {BRAC) legislation and the Grow The
Amwy {GTA] nmatve

Balfour Beatty 15 preferred budder for the Flonda Atlantc University
student accommodation PPP project

Balfour Beatty Capital Group Inc established naw ventures dunng the
year ta capiakise on addibonat areas of apportunity for the Group

Balfour Beatty Energy Solutions 15 focused on renewable energy
energy efficiency utiliies management and sustainability iInitiatives
The new company will manage energy consumption and spanding at
the communities currently aperated within the xisting miitary housing
portfohio as wel as targeting other sectors

Singapore

Good progress was made on the new Coflege West campus being
constructed for the Instrute of Techmical Education in Singapare and
which 1s due for compietion in 2010 The new facility 1s being built and
managad through the first PP of its kind m South-East Asia

Non-PPP infrastructure investments

Barking Power, which owns and operates a 1,000MW gas-fired power
station i east London, periormed strongly m 2009

There wes a reduction in passenger numbers a1 Exeter intemiational
Arrport and Blackpool Intemational Asport, with an improvement in
passenger yields and increases in non-aeronautical evenues

Directors’ valuation of PPP concessions

Using a single discount rate of 8% nominal post-shareholder tax,
the Drectors valuaton of the Group s PPP portfolio was £610m as
a: 31 December 2009({2008 £556m)

A full explanation of the PPP valuabon s on pages 67 to 63

Outlook

The long-term nature of our infrastructure investments provides strong
wisibility of eamngs

‘There s a healthy mpeline of UK projects, particularty in the education
sector tobe bidin 2010

Thesz are further business development opportunibies wathin the US
mdary accommodation PPP market, pnenarity with the US A Force
and management s also focusing on taking that core PPP expertise
into new markats in the US such as renewable energy educauon and
social mfrastructure (hospals courthouses and student housing)
Given the uncertainty from the renewal of Barking Power's contracts
a modest deciine in Balfour Beatty Communries’ comtracted fees in
2010 and increased bud costs we anucipate 2010 being signeficanty
behing 2009 in reported profits
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Sustainability

Mlaking our success

SUSTAINA

Many businesses are successtul for a time.
But making success sustainable over time is
harder. It's not enough to meet financial and
operational criteria; you also need to meet the
expectations of many different stakeholders
across a range of issues from safety and
environmental management to ethical conduct.
To ensure our success for years to come,

in 2009 we defined a sustainability vision and
agreed a plan to achieve it; redefined our core
values and set out a new Code of Conduct.
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Our sustamability vision
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Overview

At Balfour Beatty we beheve that nvestment in the nghit kinds of
sustanabiity mrtiatives can aod value to both our business and our
stakeholders

It gives us an opportunity to demonstrate leadership and t create real
compeutve advartage

Balfour Beatty has the scale and breadth of activities 1o make a very
positve social environmental and economic impact.

We have always aimed to meet stakeholdsr expectations by fulfilling
our responsiilities to wider socigty However, ncreasingly we are
seeing that fong-term growth requires us to engage with the challenges
and opportunites presented o us by issues such as safety waste
management ar ethical conduc?, for example

Changes in the business, and a focus on creating 2 more unified Balfour
Beatty culture also makes this the nghit time ta burid on the work done
o date and to thoroughly embed considerations about sustainability at
every level of the Group

A renewed focus on sustainability facitated by the vision, better
positions Batfour Beatty 1o manage non-financial nsk, to explort
oppertunities to increase effioency, and to mprove the Group s
reputation as & leader in infrastructure development and management.
Balfour Beatty ams to be aleader i this field, and to play 2 significant
role in helping customers make sustanable choices

Leadership and govemance for
sustainability

The Balfour Beatty Board sets policy and takes responsibility for

the Groups non-financial performance (including 1ssuss relating to
sustainability) The Business Practices Committee which compnses

non-executive Directors chared by Mike Danovan, reviews these
actmvbes and prowides guidance on future actvity

A sustanabiiity vision and a plan to achieve it was Jaunched in October
2008 and Group-wnde targets set. Central 1o the vision is playing our
part to ahgn the interests of profitable markets ana the needs of
communities wathun environmental fmits

Thes wiston manglates our operating companies 1o achieve murmum
standards on & range of 1ssues by 2020, with a checkpaint at 2012

The vision was the cuimination of extensive deliberation which included
wide consultazion with customers, ivestors and non-govemmental
organisations The detais of the vision were shared publcly at an
extemal conference organised by the UK Green Building Councl,

and are avaiiable to downloag from our corparate website

Intamally the vision 1s owned by the sustanabifity working group,
consistng of senior managers with responsibility for Group pohey and
strategy on key issues In2010 the Group also started todefine those
areas considered most material to the busiress

Qur 2009 Sustamability report (which will be published in May 2010
and nchude externally audited data) will reflect bath the pragress made
on our sustanability vision, and the matenality process

In November 2009, over 250 senior managers attended our regular
Management Confarence, including representatrves from Parsons
Bonckerhoff where key sustainability 1ssues people management

and leadership were discussed

Pohicies
Balfour Beatty has clearly stated pohoies and panciples {available in
fultat www balfourbeatty com| for key 1ssues such as

risk management

safetyand health

environment

human nghis

equal opportuniies

sustanabiity

ethics and competrtve behaviour

Within thes framework, operating companues are required to develop
specific pohcies and practices, relevant to therr particular business

Risk management

While nsk management is a key driver for our sustamabifity vision,
nan-financial nisk ts atso reflected n our Group-evel sk management
process Mare detail on tis 1s available on page 70

SSAISN InQ)
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Sustainability

Group ethics and values

Baiifour Beatty has enjoyed considerable growth over the past decade
We believe that having a common set of values that represent the
Group will offer clear business benefits and will suppart the Group
through the challenges of future growth.

Dunng 2008, we refined ows ethical principles and redefined the Group's
core values We wantt our shared values of imegnity, teamwork,
excellence and respett to drive behaviour and ponisation across our
business These values will be embedded throughout the Group in 2010
as part of an extensive roll out programme

Adirect product of the values 15 the new Code of Conduct. This sets out
the prnciples by which employees are expected to transiate the vatues
into everyday actions and decisions A new ethics helphne to aliow
employees ta raise any concems they mught have has alse been setup
Batfour Beatty was one of a number of companies subject toan
Industry-wide investigavon by the Office of Farr Trading (OFTHinto
tender actvities across the construction sector As a result, one of our
subsidianes, Manselt, was fined £5 2m in respect of such instances
which took place befare its acquistion by Balfour Beatty

Aswe reported lastyear, in October 2008 we reached a settlement
with the Serious Fraud Office (SFO} of a long-runing investigation
in connaction with a project in Egypt. As part of the settlement,

we appointed an extamal monitor {0 review and report on our
ant-corruption policies and processes The results of the monitoring
waork will be summansed in our Sustatnability report.

Engaging with our stakeholders
We have ideniified our key stakeholoers and describe in the later
paragraphs of this section how we engage with key groups, including

employees

CUsSIOmers

supphers

Govemment and regulators

local communiies

We also engage with shamholders and potential investors We encourage
two-way dialogue with these stakeholdars to give them a better
understanding of our business and to build relationships wath them

(n 2008, this inctuded an Investor Day and visit 1o the London Aquatcs
Centre which we are bullding for the 2012 Otympics Dunng the year
we had over 140 meetings with investars

Our sustainability vision in action

The foliowing three sectons of the report show how we are delivenng
on the key commitments of our sustanaixiity wsion and ilfustrate how
we believe sustainable decsions will help us to grow our business in
the future

1 Profitable markets

In orler to win new work and retain exishng CUSteMers we recognise
the need io create and develop deep relsbonships with our custorners
and supphers Through our leadership of this agenda we believe

we can help create markets where sustanability 1s consistently the
best option. We will begin measunng and tracking key performance
indicators for profitable markets in 2010

Engaging with customers

We regularly conduct atttude and opinion surveys to ensure we
continue 1o meet the expectations of our customers In our mvestments
business customers te us that our work in healtheare and education
has improved We are pleased that response rates have also increased
from 45% in 2008 to 60% n 2009 in healthcare and from 44% to 70%
Ineducation Inthe US, our Mission Alignment Pracess gves customers
a pro-active mechanism to feed back on performance In 2009 the
average sausfaction score was 4 Sona 5 pont scale

As the business has evolved anincreasing number of these customers
take advantage of the integrated nature of Balfour Beatty s services
waorking with several operating companies acress one project In dong
this, customers get a mare stream|ined and efficient service for
example on the M25 project {see case study on page 26}, onwhich

we are combining our expertise in Professional services, Construction
sepvices, Suppart senaces and Infrastructure mvestments

Much of our work ts carmed out for govemments and regutated
businesses We have regular contact weth navenal and local
government representatives and engage with them as appropriate

in 2010 and beyond, we will continue to focus on shanng best practce
customer approaches in our busmesses across the Group
Sustamabhiiity as a differentiator

Customer demands are changing With an increased awareness

of glebal challenges such as climate change and the secunty of
energy supply we are mare frequently asked for our views on

how the design, build and management of an asset can be more
emranmentally sustainable

We work with customers to achieve ther sustainabulity asprrations
{see Tamar Complex case study on page 24)

And, we are mora frequently asked to demonstrate that we runour
business n a way that considers long-term impacts

We will continue to nvest in the appropriate management progesseas
and skilis to ensure that we retain a leadership posiuon n dus field
Supplier engagement

We work in partnership wath those suppliers who adopt our values
as therr own and seek to algn thesr objectives with these of

Batfour Beatty

We undertake ngorous checks on the financial strength, health and
safety and sustanabiity record of our supply base to ensure that we
do not become over-reliant on any partcular business

Thought leadership

Parsons Brinckerhoff 1s involved n modelling ckmate change scenarios
and undertaking research to dentify how the UK can deliver its
aminuous B0% reduction in carbon envssions by 2050
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Gning our people opportuntes

Batfour Beatty aims to recrurt intemalfy wherever possible and provide all its
employees with vaned and intaresting careers, SOmetimes across memationat
boundanes For example Sam Bennettjoned Balfowr Beatty n 2000 and as wellas
working i the UK, he has undertaken peoects in indonesia Dubat and 1s currenty i
Singapore He acknowledges that this has given him a better appresiation of cultures
around the world and an appreciation of different ways of working winch in tum
makes humn a more rounded project manager

Building on thes expenience, Balfour Beatty has established a talent management
programme to offer ather employees similar opportunities throughout the business
and aims to offer more Group-wide assgiments in future

Providing the nght trainmg

Bakfour Beatty WorkPlace expenenced a significant nse in the number of atcacks an
security personnel in 2008

Tocombat this nsing trend, a rabust and well-structured approech to tratming wes
devaioped Ths resuited in @ 56% reduction i physical interventions and no maor

acodents or injunes beng reported in 2008

The programme has now been recognised by the industry and Balfour Beatty
WorkPlace was a finalist in the industry annual awards for “best in class traiming”
In healthcare emaronments

2 Healthy communities

By protecting and strengthening the commurnities in which we work
we believe we deliver bester projects and services and improve
engagement with our businesses We also value the vital contnbution
ous people make in this area of our sustanability vision

2009 woridwide highhghts/indicators

AFR reduced 0 017

number of {atalies 32008 8)

number of permanently disabling inyures 3 (2008 6}

number of whistieblowng cases 42{2008 28}

voluntary labour tumover 70% {2008 13% UK only)

total absence rate 2 0% {2008 2 3%)

equal opportunsties — 23% of employees are female (2008 20%)

UK graduate retention — 90% after one year {2008 B4%)67%
after three years (2008 60%)

Ensurmng safety and health

Significant attention s pard to safety and health and underpins our
fcence 10 operate and our reputation as an employer in local
commursties To reflect the importance of this issue, Batfour Beatty
faunched rts Zero Harm programme in 2008 This is designed to
elmmnats the nsk of harm by 2012, & achieve zero deaths zero inuries
to members of the public and zero parmanently disabling injuries
among all our people and al those who come into contact wath gur
business actrvities

Balfour Beatty has made significant inrpads to improving safety
throughout the business n recent years The Zeso Ham iniiative has
inited the magination of our people and the willingness of all our
pariners o endorse 15 ams [thas been adopied throughost all Group
operating companies Each operating company now has inplace a
Joumey to Zerg Harm' planand 1s working to embed thes fully across
its business

In 2008, the Actident Fraquancy Rate was reduced from 020t 017,
the seventh successive year of improvement. This actwevement 1s
particulary pleasing in 2 tme of significant growth

Regrettably there were three fatalites durng the year two fatal
acerdents on our work sies, and one fatal accident when driving on the
public highway Although this s fewer than in the previous year, any
loss of iife 15 one too many and we continue to Investigate ali incidants
and accidents to isam from them and prevent smilar Incidents in future
in 2010, a eview process enttled Zero-in will be established to assess
operating Company progress on their joumey to achieve Zero Harm by 2012

IMAGE
REMOVED

Govemance of safety and heslth

Safety and health 1ssues are rewiewed by the Board and its executive
committee Balfour Beatty requires all ts operating companies to
have forma! safety management systems These are subject to
extemnal audit.

ssauisng mQ
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Sustainability

Our people

Across the world we now empioy over 50 000 peaple and we recogrise
that thes brings an enormous responsibility to ensure that they are safe
We also know that our business’ success depends on the technical
capabilrues of our people Tothis end we recognise the impartance

of attracting and retaining our talented indwicuals, and nvesting

in traning

Over 12 000 peopis joned the Graup when we acquired PB n October
2003 It significantly increases the size of our business and enhances
our imemational presence

We want aur employees to have opportunities to grow and maximise
therr patential imespective of age gender ethic background, colour
disability, sexual onentation or relgion Given the depth of talent
alraady in the Group, and the increasing desire of ugh potental
indnduals to gain expanence n other parts of the organisation,

we have rolled-out an e-racruit system that aliows our staff to view
vacances across the UK. which we plan to extend worldwide n 2010

We want to be the employer of chawce across all our businesses
Inthe US Fortune magazine selected Baltour Beatty Construction as
ane of the 100 Best Places to Waork at the beginnung of 2010 and Balfour
Beatty Communrties LfeWorks Programme has also been recognesed

in 2010 our pronty 1s the further embedding of the values programme
and the launch of 2 Code of Conduet e-lgarning module

Community engagement

Wie regard good corporate otzenship 2s an integral part of our business
and seek 1o work with local communities to create the physical assets
which enhance local areas

Balfour Beatty seeks to engage fully with the communibes and
indmiduals directhy mpacted by our projectwork. We recogrise the
legiimate nterests that our stakeholdars have in the way we do
busmess and the need for us to play a positive role in all the socisties
and communities in which we operate

Engaging with local peaple 1s an important part of our projects

This cansuitation often mvolves leafiet Grops, project websites and
community discussions or exhibitions Most af our larger sites have
community relations officers based locally They ensure that we hlaise
with key staksholders on a regular basts and aim to create a sense of
community ownership between the projects and local authormies
sthools communsty organisations residents and locaf chanty partners

For example an extensive community relations programene 1s In place
on the MZ5 project {see page 26} and our construction businesses in
the UK and US actvely work with local residents when theyundertake
home refurbishment and replacement.

Community investment

In the UK, we are members of Business in the Community and have
supported therr activities throughout the year Simufarly our US
busingsses firmly believe that employees who are better connected
1o ther communities are intninsically more passionate about the work
they do and programenes are in place to offer them the opportunity to
gve something back.

Corporate community mvestment activity in 2009 has included

Creatng Budthng Better Futures Balfour Beatty s own chartable trust,
was established as part of the centenary celebvations in 2009 By the
end of the year, the total raised for disadvamaged young people
exceaded our £500k target, thanks to the enormous fundraising effort by
employees with monkes then matched and donated by the Company

Continuing suppert for Get into Construcion, a scheme that we
co-founded with The Pnnce s Trust in 2006 This seeks t encourage
disadvantaged young people to conswder construction as a career

To date a further 1,000 people have been supported through

82 courses

Continuing our tile sponsorship of the Balfour Beatty London Youth
Games The Games invotved 45,000 participants in 60 compettions
in 2009, with representation from all 33 London bosoughs The event
offers young people the opporiunity 1o compate with teams throughout
the capital on an annual basis We have committed a further £10m to
the Games up to 2013

The Groug s operating companies run their own charitable and
comMmunity INVestment pregrammes, in addition 1o being part
of the corporate actnty descrbed above

in the US, for nstance: the Balfour Beatty Spirt programme the Heery
Foundation launched in spring 2009 and Balfour Beatty Communities
Foundation established in 2008, gve employees the chance to give
something back to the community In 2009, Batfour Beatty Communities
donated the first $25,000 instalment of a three-year grant in support of
Project HOME a non-profit organisation dedicated to breaking the cycle
of homelessness.
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“We know that when our employees are engaged
and excited about what they do, they will in tum
serve our customers and partners in the best way
possible. With that in mind, we are extremely proud
that FORTUNE magazine selected us as one of the
“100 Best Places to Work in the US in 2010.”

Robert Van Cleave Chairman and CEQ,
Baifour Beatty Construction US
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Building energy-efficient homes
Mansell buitt the UK's first Level 6 {the highest possiblz

rating) homes undar the Code for Sustanable Homes

in 2009 m Northampton for Metropolitan Housing
Partnership These highly energy-efficient homes ncluded
solar panels wind turbines and wood pellet bollers plus
gttractive sunspaces to regulate temperatures

Ranwater harvesting, a composting system, LED highting
and a sustanable dranage systemn comribute to the homes
axcephonal green credentials
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Environmental limits

Cur core business 15 about creating and managing physical assets
for indnaduals and communities — but we need to do this within
emaronmental inits The ways m which we do this are explored below

2009 hghlights/indicators

carbon emissions reduced by 19% snce 2005

waste — 79% of waste recycled

number of emaronment fines — 7 in 2008 (2008 5)

Energy and carbon

In2003 our COz enmssions relatrve to revanug from our vehitles, plant
and buildings decreased by 19% compared to 2005 Data from our

US construction business is included for the first tme in 2009, but data
from Dutco Balfour Beatty in Dubai was unavalable when comping
the chart. We have made considerable progress in preparations for

the Carbon Reduction Commutment an energy efficiency requirement
being introduced in the UK in 2010 In addition to this, we see sgrificant
opportiundy in the iInfrastructure developments reguired to facitate the
transriion 10 @ lower carbon econarmy, given our capabiiy to construct
and manage renewahles and nutiear energy generation sites

Waste

Waste 15 increasingly considered a key issug for our business gven
nging costs of waste disposal to landfill and the growing nfrastructure
market in this area 1s predicted to reach £8bn by 2015 in the UK alone
We continue to raise awareness of the waste issue throughout our
business and we have been encouraged by the support from our
waste contractors n seeking to reduce the levet of waste produced

In2003 our global operations generated some 3 9m tonnes of waste
{3 2m 1n 2008 reflecung data being reparted by our US construction
business for the first ume and increased acivity in Hong Kong Data
from Dutco Balfour Beatty wes unavailable when compiling the chart.
Some 78% of the waste we generated n 2009 was recyded (49%
n2006) We have established a global target to reduce our waste to
fandfill by 50% per £m revenue by 2012 agamnst a 2010 baseline
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Matenals sourcing and usage

We aim to achieve a minimum of 25% of recycled content of major
matenal n new buildings by 2012 where we specify the matenal

We actrvely deploy our experiise to encourage cUSiomers i consider
recycled content where we are not responsible for the specification
of materals

Ecology
The built environment can have a significant impact on the ecology

of our natural emvirenmerit, Some of tur operations work alongside
sensitve ecological areas such as nature reserves conservation Sies
and srtes of special scientific Interest. Mantasning a nch dversity of
species and habrtats 18 ncreasingly mporiant t our customers and

the communities affecied by our work Through our operations we have
the opportunity to reduce our Impacts on ecological resources and
enhance them through better design, developrment and management
of our projects

Seven minor esvargnmental incidents across the Group resutied i fings
amouriang 0 £15 600 durng 2009 These included naise infingement
and ncorrect labelling of hazardous waste

Water consumption

While not curvently a significant 1ssue we believe water will become
increasingly important in future years in terms of scarcity and uttmately
cost togur business We continue to measure our consumption of
water and assess opportuties 0 reduce consumption and provide
water efficiency measures across aur snes. We aim 1o reduce our water
consumption by 10% by 2012

Emaronmental govemance

Strategic ervironmental issues are reviewed by the sustainability
working group charred by a Group Managing Director An emvironmental
managers forum reviews key topies and shares best practice between
operating companies Emaronmental performance ts audited regularly
and Group-wide staistics are collated to measure the Group's major
environmental mpacts.

In 2010 we am to set a global baseline for greenhouse gas emessions

waste, watsr, major matenals usage and contmue to work towards the
2012 goals defined in our sustainability vision
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Financial review

The Financsal review covers the topics shown below Additional
nformation can be tound elsewhere as indicated

Topee Adittora) wfonmaton

Group trating See pages 37 to 55 for more detailed comments on
performance performance by segment.

Group cash flow More detailed analysis on the movements innet cash are

performance shown in Nete 35

Group balance sheet A key partof the Group's balance sheet 1s the mvestment

and capital structure i PPP concessions, which ss dealt with in detarl on pages
671069

Treasury sk The Financial review |argety focusas on treasury related nsk

rmanagement matters A broader descnption of the Group s principal nsks
and nsk management is included on pages 70t 73

(Going concam To appreciate the prospects for the Group as a whole the

complete Annual report and accounts 2009 needs to be
read with parnicutar reference to Notes 20 and 23

The accountng pokeies used by the Groug are outiined in Note 1 to the financial
statements. The most significant changes to the accounts presentation have

been firstly, the change to the segments as a result of the acquisition of Parsons
Brinckerhofi which comaided wath the adopbion of IFRS B Operaung Segments and
secondly the earty adoption of IFRS 3 Business Combmations with the principal
effect being the expensing of acquismion costs which have been included in
exceptional tems

Group trading performance
Percentage

Resuits for the year 2009 2008 nerease
Revenue including jomt ventures
and associates £10338m  £9485m +3%
Group revenue £8,954m £8,261m +8%
Profit from operaticns
- before excepbonal tems and

AMOrisation £282m £230m +23%
—after exceptional tems and amortisation £297m £251m +18%
Pre-tax profit
—before exceptional tems and

amartisation £267m £249m +7%
—after exceptional tems and amortisation £267m £270m (1%
Earnings per share®
—adusted” U #p —
—bask 34p 374p -

Befoce exteptional ems and amortsation of wtangihie assets.
¥ Persharedata has beea restated for the bonus element of the 2008 nghts issue

Whilst some stability retuned to markets in 2009 iollowing the extraordinary events
of 2008, the year started wath further weakening of sterfing which hit a low in March
of US§1 38 almost exactly 12 morths aftar it had peaked at US$2.03, and raal
concems abourt the depth and length of the recession A steady mprovement from
the March low pomt in equity markets refiected growang confidence that the worst
wzs over, however the latter part of the year saw concems emerging regarding UK
governrment deficits and concems over the ability of the US Govemment to drve through
its spending plans

Whilst we have not been immune 10 the effects of the recession, and desprie
unfortunately heving to reduce headeount Ina number of areas to offset reductions in
actnity, we have continued to fare comparatively well Our increasingly diversified model
has provided a degree of resilence against the worst effects of the econormue turmoi

2003 was another year of good operational perfarmance acruss the Group Revenue in
2009 including the Group s share of the revenue of joint ventures and assoaates was
up 9% 0 £10,33%m (2008 £9.486m), or 3% at constant currency ncluding the benefit
of acqursibons. Profit from aperations before excepuional tems and amonsation of
imangible assets increased by 23% from £230m to £282m, or 14% at constant currency
Total pension charges before exceptionat tems of £86m (2008 £68m) have been
made 10 the income statement in accardance with 1AS 19 including the net
investrnent retun which declined from income of £5m in 2008 o anetcostof £15m in
2009 The reduction in ncome was due to a £25m fall n the expected retum on plan
assets following the fall in value of the assats n 2008, which was only partially offset
by a rediuction in the imerest cost

Imvestment income net of finance costs and before exceptional tems, reduced from
£18m n 2008 to a net nterest cost of £15mn 2009 principally due to the reduction in
the net retum an pension scheme assets and labilities noted above The Directors
expect a further increase in the net interest cost n 2010, as a result of an ncreased
pension net interest cost of appresamiataty £8m

Pre-tax profit befora exceptional items and amorisation increased from £249m to
£267m{7%)

Exceptional tems

Exceptiona) items of £46m (2008 £33m) after tax were credited to profit for the year
The most sigmificant rtems were a £100m gain from the reduction in past service
pension iabilities £16m of acquistion-related expenses manly due t the acgusiion
of Parsons Bninckerhoff, £12m of costs relating to post-acquistion integration and
£5m of costs associated with currency option contracts entered into to It the
cash downside from net investment hedging Further details are gven n Noie 8

Taxation

The Group's effectve tax rate in 2009 was 375% {2008 381%) of profit before
taxation, exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assets, excluding the
Group’s share of the results of joint ventures and associates. Elminating the finance
cost of the preference shares which does not attract tax relief the Group's effectve
tax rate would be 35 3% {2008 357%) The benefit of lower UK tax rates has been
offset by an increase in the propartion of profits from higher tax countnes notably
the US

Earmings per share

Adjusted earmuings per ordmary share after adjustment for the bonus element of the
nghts 1ssue are unchanged at 34 7p {2008 34 7p), due principally to the mpact of the
nghts rssue n October 2009

Cash flow performance

Cash flow performance n the year was agam sirong with cash generated from
aperations of £294m (2008 £297m) compared with profit from aperations of
£297m{2008 £251m)

Asanticipaied, the matunng of baance sheet hedges and the premium paid to
mitigaie downside nsk on these hedges for the extreme fluctuations i cumency
mentoned above resutted in a net cash outflow of £57m on settiement, or £53m
past-tex.

The acquisraon of Parsons Brinckerhofi was substantially funded through a nghts
1ssue whichraseda net £352m

Total

consxiaraton

Segment Acqusition fm
Construction services RTDooley 28
Professional services Parsans Brinckerhoff 375
Construction serces SpawMaxwell 15
Construction services Smata Construction 10
Total 428

The Company agreed in 2008 with the trustees of the Batfour Beatty Pension Fund
{"BBPF) to make defict payments of £24m per year ui Aprl 2013 In 2009 the Company
agreed 10 make addrional defict payments to the BBPF of £1m per month from Aprl
200 untl the results of the 31 March 2010 actuarial valuation have been agreed




“The Company contnues 1o look at ways of mitigating the impaci of the pension
scheme and launched in 2009 an exercise offening enhanced ransfer vahses along
with early retrement offers to deferred pensioners The final cast of these exercises
will depend on the ake-up rates, but In amicipation of acceptances from members
the Compary contnbutad an extra £10m into the BBPF in 2009

As aresult, and including other pension scheres deficrt payments iotalled £35m in
2009{2008 £38m)

Average cash in the second half of the year was £342m although the Group s net cash
at 31 December 2009 was significantly in excess of that at£572m (2008 £440m)
betfore taking into account the consolidation of £248m {2008 £143m) of non-recourse
net debt held inwhotty-owned PPP project companies
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Balance sheet and capital structure

Goodwll and intangibles

Asnoted above total consideration on acquisitions in the year amounted to £428m
Goodwall ansing on these acquisrions amauntad to £206m and a further £139m of
Intangible assets were recogresed in respect of £26m of customer contracts £73m
of customer relationships, £37m of brand names and £3m of software As a result,
and after exchange adjustments the goodwall on the Group's balance sheet at

31 December 2009 mnereased to £1131m (2008 £375m) and other intangible assets
0 £298m ({2008 £273m}

impainment reviews have been carmed out, and none of the goodwat] has been
impaired Details of the calculations and assumptions are shown in Note 12

Charges for the amartisation of other intangible assets increased to £48m (2008
£27m} due to the impact of acquisitions, with a related tax credit of £17m {2008 £7m)

Infrastructure investments
Dunng 2003 the Group invested £62m (2008 £35m) in a combinaton of equity and
shareholder loans to PPP project companies

At31 December 2009 the Group had rvested a total of £364m in equity and
subordmated loans to rts 50 continuing PPP preyect companies fincluding two projects
at preferred bicider status) and had committed to provide a further £150m from 2010
onwards. The Blackburn with Darwen and Bolton BSF project reached financiat close
in January 2010

At 31 December 2008, the Group s share of non-recourse net debt within Balfour
Beatty Capital's continuing PPP project companies amaunted to £1,775m {2008
£1,511m) compnising £1,527m {2008 £1,368m) in relation to joint ventures and
assomates as disclosed in Note 152 and £248m {2008 £143m)on the Group batance
sheet in relation to wholly-owned project companies as disclosed in Note 231

The Group's share of the results of the military housing PPP concesstons of Balfour
Beatty Communities 1s contractually Iimited to a maximum pre-agread level of rewm
on funds ivested which s shown under the equity method of accountng within jomt
veniures and associates The Group's ivestment in those concessions 1s recorded on
the balance sheet at the inrtal equity Investment plus the value of the Groups accrued
preferred retum. The fee income whuch s the bulk of the return eamed by the Group
from these concessions 1s inchuded within Group operating profit

The Directors have camed out a valuaton of the Group s PPP concessions, ingluding
the military hausing PPP concessions of Balfour Beatty Communimes and this 1s set
outon pages 67 to 63
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Pensions

The Group’s batance sheet inctudies aggregate deficrts of £586m (2008 £261m) for

the Group s pension funds based on the assumpaions setout in Note 25 The Group
recorded net actuarial losses for 2008 on those funds totalling £350m {2008 £62m}
with the effects of the lower discount rates apolied to the funds habiliues only partly
counterad by better than expected refums on the assets held by the funds Dunng the
year, the Group wrote to certain groups of in-service defined benefit members of the
Balfour Beatty Pension Fund informung them of measures to hmrt ther pensionable pay
so thai any salary mcrezse from 1 January 2001 will not increase: therr defined benefit
pensions. This resutted ina reduction in resrement benefit cbigations of £114m, of
which £100m was shown 25 3 pre-tax excepticnal credit, and £14mwas included as a
change 1n actuanal assumptions and therefore wes reflected through the statement of
comprehensive Income
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The last formal actuanat valuauen of the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund was carned out
at 31 March 2007 and showed a funding position of 96% A formal actuaria! valuation
of the Raways Pension Scheme was camed out at 31 December 2007 and showed
afunding postuon of 101% The kast actuanal valuation of the Parsons Brinckerhoff
scheme was carmied out at 31 March 2008 and showed a 71% funding level

Note 25 nclues a sensitwity analysis which identifies the mpact on the income
statement and the balance sheet from changes in the assumpbons The future
projected cash flows for benefit payments from the BBPF are shown below

IMAGE
REMOVED

Equity rarsing

In October 2009 the Company successiully completed a fully underwriiten three for
seven nghis 1ssue at a subscription price of 180p per share to substantialy fund the
acturstoon of Parsons Brnckerhoff 2055m shares were issued rarsing £352m after
1ssue costs and expenses of £18m This resulted in the total number of ordinary shares
inssug at the end of the year beng G85m and the average nurmber of shares in the
year being up 9% at 571m {2008 5Z5madiusted)

Dandend policy

Balfour Beatty aims over tme to grow the dnadend broadly in ling wath the growth
Ineamings $aking inio account the investment needs of the busness The Board has
recommended a fina! dividend of 7 2p m respect of 2009, gving a full-year dividend of
12 0p{2008 111padjusted) up 8% on lastyear Undertying dwvidend cover for 2009
152 9, slightly ower than the cover of 31 last year bu: the Board believes that this s
reasonable given the strength of the Group s cash reserves and future prospects
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Financial review

Treasury nsk management
The Group's financial instruments, other than denvatives comprise cash and hquid

imnvestments and borrowings The Group enters nto denvatives transactions

{principally forward foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps) th manage

the currency and interest rate nsks ansing from the Group's operations and Its

sources of finance

Dunng 2009 the Group entered into a number of commodity hedge contracts to

manage some of the Group's exposure to the price of fuel The value of fuel covered
by those hedges amountad o £3m

ft1s and has been throughout the period under review, the Group s policy that no

speculatve trading in financial instrements shall be urkderiaken Comphiance with
policy 1s monrtored through seguar reporting and internal audits The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managmng each of these nsks and they are summarised below

Detas of the Groups financial nisk factors and financial instruments are shawn in

Note 20

Finance and hquidrty nsk
The Group’s policy remaing 1o carry no significant net debt, other than the non-recourse
borrowangs of comparees engaged in PPP projects and infrastructurs mvesiments

Balfour Beatty's cash and liquid investments compnse cash, term deposits and the use
of money market hquidrty funds

Additonally, the Group has a series of bilateral faciites which total £561m the
majonty of which mature i 2012 and the first half of 2013 The purpese of these
famies s to prowide hquedity from a group of core refationship banks to support
Batfour Beatty in its currertt and future activities As a result of the acquisiaon a

number of facirues held by Parsons Brinckerhoft were cancelled and replaced by
new faciities at Group level

IMAGE
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Treasury counterparty nsk
Treasury counterparty nsk 1s monrored regutarly and miugated by inuting deposits n

value and duration to reflact the credit rating of the counterparty

Contractbonds

in the noma! course of its business the Group aranges for financial Institubions to

orovide customers with guarantees in connection with 1ts contracting actvites

{commenly referred to as “bonds™) Such bonds provide a customer with a level of
financial protection in the event that a contractor fails 1o meet its commitments under
the terms of a contract. In return for 1ssuing the bonds the financial Institutions receve

& fee and a counter-ndemnity from Balfour Beatty pic As at 31 December 2009,
contract bonds in 1ssue by financial Insttutions covered £3 1bn {2008 £3 7on) of

contract commitrments of the Group

Currency nsk

The followng exchange rates were applied in the preparation of the accounts:
Average rates

£1buys 2009 2008 Change
Uss 156 186 {(151%
EUR 112 126 {111%
Closing rates

£1buys 009 2008 Change
US$ 162 146 1%
EUR 113 105 8%

The Group's businesses manage their known farexgn currency transactional exposures
by taking out forward forergn exchange contracts through Group Treasury The Group
has decided not to adopt hedge accounting for its foreign currency transactional
exposures except where the exposure 1s in excess of pre-set matenahty fimts n
which case a decision 13 made as 1o whether 1o hedge account or not. As aresult,
there was a charge to profit of £1m {2008 £3m) which wouid otherwise have been
chargad direcily to equity

The Group also faces currency exposures on the transtation into sterling of the profits
of overseas subsidiaries and assocates pnmarily in the US, Europe and Australia,
and on its overseas trading transactions Balfour Beatty does not hedge these

profit ranslation exposures as these are an accounting rather than cash expasure
However, the effect of volatile short-term currency movernents on profits 1s reduced
hecause the Group accounts for currency peofits using average exchange rates

in addinon, the Group ts exposed to currency exposures from transtation of the net
assets of overseas subsidianes and associates Balance shest transiation exposure
can be managad by matching net assets denominated in currencies other than sterling
by way of forward foreign exchange contracts The hedging policy 1s reviewed
perodically to consider the potental cash effect of the hedging programme against the
notential effect that the movement in currencizs can have on the Group s net assets,
and the level of hedging 15 adjusted accordingly Gven the growth in the Group § net
assets and the addibonal focus on cash due to the economic climate the level of
hedging n 2008 was reduced As at 31 December 2008 approximately 45% of the US
dolfar denominated net assets were hedged and thes reduction was continued »n 2009
50 that by the end of 2009 the Group s net assets were unhedged This unhedged
posibon 1s kept under review beaning in mind the size of the Group s overseas assets
and the potential impact of exchange rates on the Groups net asset pason

Interestrate nisk

The Group has no sigruficans boriowings (excluding PPP non-recourse term loans)
(Group policy 15 for PPP concessions to use interest rate swaps to swap floating rate
harrowings 1o fixed rates to mitigaie the nisk of changing interest rates on the project
cash flows The Groups deposits {excluding PPP guaranteed investment contracts)
arn interest at vaniable rates and are short-term innature

Going concem

The Directors have acknowledged the guidance Going Concern and Liquedity Risk
Guidance for Directors of UX Companies 2003" published by the Financial Reporting
Council in Getober 2809 In reviewing the future prospects of the Group the following
factors are relevant

—the Group has a strong order backlog, and good forward wisibibity;

— there continues 1o be underying demand in nfrastructure markets in the countnes n
which the Group operates,

— the Group has an increasingly diversified business model that gives cesihence to the
business and

— the Group had £572m net cash at 31 December 2009, n addition io whech it had
undrawn committed facilities n excess of £550m, of which £360m continue until
the fourth quarter of 2012

Based on the above and having made appropnate enquings and reviewed medim-

term cash forecasts the Directors constder it reasonable o assume that the Group

and the Company have adequate resources to contnue for the foreseeable future

and, for this reason, have continued to adopt the gaing concem basis in prepanng

the accounts
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Dunc¢an Magrath
Finance Director
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Directors’ valuation of PPP concessions

Introduction

Batiour Beatty's PPP concassion partfofio has grown bath organically and through
acquisimion to become & very significant part of the Group s business and a majar drver
of shareholder value At 31 December 2009 Balfour Beatty had total committed equity
and subordinated debt of £524m across 50 projects (3t UK 18 US and 1 Singapare)
two af which were at preferred idder stage At that date, £364m had been invested
and £160m was due over the next six years

in order to provide an nd:catar of value Batfour Beatty publishes 1ts own valuation
benchmark for the Group s PPP mvestments based on discounting expectad futusre
cash fiows {"DCF valuation™) but without taking into account potential refinancing
gans The valuanons do not include Balfour Beatty s non-PPP infrastruciure
nvestments in Barking Power Exater Intemational Asport and Blackpool
intemational Airport.

Directors’ valuation

At 3t Dacember 2009 the Directors” valuation of Balfour Beatty s investment
portfolip stnod at £610m, at a post-tax nomnal discount rate of 8 0% (2008 £556m}
The movement in value anses through shareholder cash infiows and outflows during
the year, underlying growth in the portfolio ansing from the unwinding of the discount
rate from year to year, projest wins, acquisitions, operational performance gains and
foreign exchange translaion movements

The Drrectars’ valuation incorporates all anticipated future distributions to equrty and
repayment thereof interest and pnnepal payments on shareholder subordinated detn
and fees payable 1o shareholders from projects that hiave erther reached financial close
or are at the praferred bidder stage The DCF valuation does not take into account
profits made by Balfour Beatty Group companies that perform the conswruction,
maintenance or faciities management services associated with the projects other
than fees directly ansing from the Group’s investment in US melitary housing

Operational performance gams

Operational performance gains anse pancipally from operational improvements
wentified leading to & revision of the future cost and/or revenue forecasts, as well as
other inflows and cutflows of cash In 2009 operational performance gains arose
prncipally from changes between preferred bidder and financial close in forecast
project cash flows and tax assumption changes These changes relate to the timing of
equity mjections and distnbutions of the four preferred bidder projects Such changes
were reflected in the financial close models. Gperational performance gains also arose
as & result of changes to the treatment of tax by concessions foliowing agreement
with HMRC wath regard to the phasing out of industnal Buidings Aliowances in the
UK on Balfour Beatty Capital s road concessions In 2008 & conservative view of this
treatment was adapted, which reversed in 2009 For Balfour Beatty Communities
operational performance losses principally anse from the de-scoping of the Navy
South East prowect.

New project wins

New project wins dunng 2009 for the Balfour Beatty Capital portfofio of £1m
representad the preferred bidder appointment on the Blackburn with Darwen and
Botton BSE scheme in October 2009, wiich reached financial close in January 2010
For Balfour Beatty Cormmunibes new project wins dunng 2009 of £1m represented
the Fonda Atlantic University studant housing project.

Acquisthons

Acquisibons durng 2009 for the Balfour Beatty Caprtat portfolio of £3m compesed
the purchase of 2 20% imterest in the Newcastle BSF project {£2 Smlansing from the
acquisimon of Parsong Brinckerhof in October 2009, and the purchase of a further
5% migrest n the Aberdeen wastewater project {£0 Sm}

The valuation method

The valuation does nat set out o estimate the market value of the investments n

the portfolio, but rather through the appication of a consistent methodology lustrates
movements in underlying values between penods and highiights the impact of
Iervening transactions The valuation covers 48 concessions that have reached
financial close and a further two at preferred bidder stage

DCF

The method used to value the portfolio 5 discounted cash flew ["OCF"} This method
15 applied to the future forecast cash flows towhich Batfour Beatty as a shargholder
and a holder of subordinated debt and recipient of fees 1s entriled i order 10 create

a net present value DCF has been used on all the investments For projects which
have reached financial dose, forecast future cash flows are extracted from

detarled financial models updated i fine with operauonal expenience and lenders
requirements. For projects at preferred bidder stage, the current pre-close financial
model has been used

Discount rate

Asin2008 the Directors have adopted a single discount rate of 8 0% nominal
post shareholder tax to value the portfolio of closed and preferred bidder projects
The Directars’ valuaton of Batfour Beatty's nvestment portfolio 1s sensitive to the
discount rate adopted The valuation for a range of discount rates 1s shown on
page 69]

Shareholdertax

Balfour Beatty recerves a number of cash flow streams from its investments

Mast, but not all, of these cash fiows are subject to tax upon recerpt by the Balfour
Beatty Group The Directars’ valuation takes into account these cash flows after

the imposrbon of taxation upon the Group and thus uses a post-tax discount rate

The post-tax discount rate of 8 0% used in the Directors’ valuation equates o a
drscount rate of 101% {9 43 for Batfour Beatty Caprtal and 12 1% for Balfour Beatty
Communities] were the value of the cash flows 10 be reported befare the mposition
of Group taxatien, a methodology also currenty used in the marketplace The pre-tax
drscount rate of 10 1% at 31 December 2009 compares to a pre-tax discount rate of
10 4% i the Directors valuation at 31 December 2008, the reduction being due to
changes in the proportionate value of the Balfour Beatty Capitat and Balfour Beatty
Communities portiolio from vear to year The pre-tax discount rate of 12 1% for Balfour
Beatty Commuruties at 31 Degernber 2009 compares o a pre-tax discount rate of

12 5% n the Directors’ valuation at 31 December 2008 the reduction being due to
changes in the mix of forecast cash flows from year to year

Translation gain

The value of Balfour Beatty Communities 1s included in the Directors’ valuation as
at 31 December 2009 at the US$ exchange rate prevailing on that date of 162
{2008 146} This generated an unreafised loss on transiation relating to the Balfour
Beatty Cornmuniues portiolio valuation of £18m. Of the Balfour Beatty Capital
portfolio of 32 projects, one project, ITE West n Singapore, has non-stading
denominated cashflows The unrealised translation loss on the value of I TE West
1s immatenal and does not register in the movement analysis

The values shown as at 31 Decernber 2009 for equity committed of £524m and

equity mvested of £364m include the acquired Balfour Beatty Communities portfolo
of £123m (US$244m) at the exchange rate applicable at the acquisrbon date of 198
together with equity comtnbuted since acquisiion of £24m compnising £23m of equity
contributed dunng 2008 translated at an exchange rate of 198 and £ Imcontnbuted
during 2008 translated at an exchange rate of 146 A further £23m{US$37m) of
future equity commitmients for Balfour Beatty Communities have been tanslated imto
sterling at the 31 December 2009 exchange rate of 1 62 in addinon, the movement in
value analys:s for Balfour Beatty Communsties between years has been trangiated at
an exchange rate of 146, the movement between that rate and the vear-end exchange
rate of 162 1s shown sepasately as FX translation

Assurance

The calculations underpinaing the valuation have been ndependently checked to
ensure that the valuation has been accurately camied owt in accordance with the
specified methodology However, the detaled financial models have not been audited
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Principal risks and risk management

Risk management process
Bus:iness > Opportuntties > Benefitsandnsks 3>  Acuonplans > Rskmmigaton » Penodicreviews D>
chjectives and nsks are are assessed and are developed delvery is up to Board level
are defined dentsfied quantrhied to mbgate nsks reviewed onan
ongoing basis

The eftectve management of risks within the Group 1s essential to, and underpins the
deivery of the Group s objectives

The Board 15 responsible for ensuniag that nsks are dentrfied and approprately
managed across the Group and has delegated to the Audit Commitiee responsibility
for reviewang the effectiveness of the Group's intemal controls, nctuding the systems
estabiished i dentity assess, manage and monitor risks

Responsibiity for nsk identification analysis evaluation, mitigation, reporting and
monrtofng fests with operating company management The Group's nsk management
policy requires all aperating comparues t klemtfy and assess the nsks towiuch they

Pnincipal nsks and nsk management

As part of the mplementation of the Group's strategy to grow and protect the
business Group management wientified the need to respond to the changing busness
environment. [t has sought to do so by drersifying the markets and geographies in
which the Group operates

The success in achieving this to date has produced a business portfolio, led by an
estabhshed management team supported by robust sk management processes
which has enabled the Group to meet the challenges arising from the changing
economic and commercial emvironment.

in some of the Group s markets and termtanes, 2009 was a challenging year dueto
the ongoing effects of the economic downtum As a resutt, the Group has witnessed
changes in customer spending in both the public and private sector and experienced
anincreased nisk of insotvency/financial defautt Thus 1s not only within the supply
chain but within elements of the Graup's estabkshed customer base Inaddiion

the acqussibion of Parsons Brinckerhoff now mieans that the Group operates na
larger number of terntones and markets than before which patentially increases

the Group's nisk expasure in those areas

Desprte these changes withun the business emvironment, the Group's established nsk
management and ntamal control systems have helped identrfy the effects of these
ncreased nsks and implement actions nat only to mitigate their impact but offer
opportumity for further growth and development.

Set out befow 15 a descipuion of the key business nisks facing the Group ther potental
impact and the ribigation Steps taken to minmise/eimmate that impact.

are exposed Risk registers are used to document sk events idenufied, ther cause
and pessible conseguences Fisks are then analysed as to the likelihood of occurrence
and also therr potential impact on the business Actions are developed and put in place
to rmitigate or giminate unwanted expesure Indwiduals are allocated responsibility for
assessing and managing the nsks identified to an agreed tmescale

Risks and their corresponding mitigating actions are subject to review within the Group
and established business reporting Systems exist to ensure that significant nisks are
escalated through operating company management to senior Group management and
to the 8oard
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Risk

Extermal nsks

Eeonomic emmonment

The global economic downtum may cause the Group's
customers to cancel, postpone or reduce existing or
future projects In particular the Group 1s dependent
an UK and US Goverment policies and spending for

a significant part of 1ts revenues.

l Potential impact

Any sgnificant changes in customer spending or
investment plans could adversely impact the Group's
order book
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Mrtigation

The Group has a broad exposure to vanous
infrastructure markets across the world and this
mingates the nsk of changes in spending in any
one market

Commertial courtterparty sohency

The Graup s exposed to counterparty credit nsk of its
customers subcontractors, jint venture parners,
financial institutions and supphers This nisk is
nereased further by the current economic cimate

Failure of a customer couid result in non-collection of
amounts owed Failure of a subcontractor or supplier
would resuft i the Group undertaking the task tself
or having to find a replacement, which could result it
delays and additional costs

The financial solvency and strength of counterparies
are considered prior to the signing of contracts Dunng
the hfe of the contract such assessments are updated
and reviewed whenever possible The Group seeks ta
ensure it is not over-refiant on any one counterparty
Duning the Iifa of a project, retenbons, bonds and/or
letters of credit will be obtained, where appropiate
from subcorttractors to mitigate the impact of any
insolvency on therr part.

aoueLAeb g

Legal and regulatory

The Group ts subyect to a number of complex,
demanding and evolving legal, tax and regulatory
requirements These requirements will increase as
the Group continues to expand into a diverse number
of terrmiones

Acquisrion

The Group has made and continues to make
acqussiions in pursuit of Its strategic obyectves

A breach of laws and regulztions could lead to legal
proceedings investiganons ar disputes resuitng na
disruption of business ranging from addivonal costs
incurred on 3 project, to cvil and/or ciminal penattes,
debarment as well 2s reputational damage o the Group

Failure to identify acquired labihtes or to integrate
successfully the business acquired mto the Group's
processes could result in an adverse impact on

the Group s future prospects, financial condition
and profitabiliy

The Group monstors and responds to legal and
reguiatory developments applicabie to the termtores
in which toperates A terrtory s legal and regulatory
framework 1 considered as part of any decsion to
move Into a new territory for the Group

Detaded due dilgence ncluding preparatian of a
valuation model 1s performed on all potengal
acquisitions drawing upon both intemal and extermal
resources Such due diligence will also include an
assessmeant of the ability 10 integrate the acquired
business successfully inte the Group VWhen a business
15 acquired detalled integration plans are developed and
monitoved 1 ensure the successiul integraton of the
business o the Group and s ntemal contrl framework.

Investments

The Group invests in a nurber of PPP projects,
infrastructure projects across the world and
infrastructure asset mvestments The suceess of such
mwestments 5 dependent an a number of assumptons
on future revenues and costs

if any of the assumptions should prove to be incorrect
they could have an adverse impact on the profitability
of those investments The degree of leverage involved
o these nvestments means that small changes n
these assumptions could also negatvely impact the
Groug's equity nvestment.

All wwestment appraisals are conducted and managed
by expenenced personnel Revenue maximisation is
carefultymanaged The consequent delivery ask
ansing from an investment actvity 1s managed by the
careful selection of defivery and service partners
Inmany cases such partners are Group companies
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Principal risks and risk management

Risk

Orgamsation and management nsks

Peaple

The success of the Group depends on its abrdity 1
recruit and retam senior management and ather
key employees

| Potertial impact

Fanlure to recrunt and retan appropniztely skiled people
could adversely mpact the Groug's ahility to defiver
specific contracts and s future growth

| Mitigation

Orgarusation and People reviews are undertaken

by each operating company to review the role
competencies, performance and potential of
personnel In aodition, the Group has a well-developed
successian plannng process in place to dentify and
develop high potential/calibee personnel 1o fill key
roles These plans are reviewed and discussed at all
levals within the organisation and by the Soard ona
regular basis Appropriate remuneration and mcentive
packages are in place to assst in the attracton and
retention of key employees

fthes

The Group operates in vanous international markets
which may have inherent nsks relating to-ethical
business conduct ncluding but not tmited to fraud,
bnbery and other forms of corrupuion

Falure by employees to observe the highest standards
of ethics and integrity in dealing wath customers,
suppiiers and other stakehotders could result in el
and/or crmingl penalties, debarment, 2s well as
reputational damage to the Group

The Group has clearly set out ts expectations of
emplayees and operating companies in dealing with
its stakeholders o the recently revised Code of
Conduct This has been distnbuted 1o all employaes
and during 2010 e-learming will be used to raise
awareness of the Code wrihin the Group In addrion
there are a number of financial and commercial
controls in place to manage thesa fules A commitiee
of the Board, the Business Practices Committee
monitors compliance with the Code of Conduct

and the effectveness of the Group s ethics and
compliance programme

Informaton technology
The efficient operation of the Group 1s increasingly
dependenit or the proper operation performance and

Falure to manage or integrate IT systems or o
imptemant successfully changes in 1T systems could

Group IT manages centrally those systems which
affect a number of operating companies Other IT

development of its [T systems resutt n a koss of control over errical business systems are managed wathin operating companies
information and/or systems This in wm could mpact | locally by expenenced IT personnel. Significant
the Group's abirty to fulfil 1ts contractual obligatiens wwestments in [T systems are subject 1o Board
review and approval
Informanon secumty

The Group 15 exposed to patential information security
threats to rts own mformatien and also that which it
holds on behalf of customers (in parbcular, inrespect
of its faciies management customers}

Abreach of informatien securtty or an improper
disciosure of such information could expose the Group
to adverse publicty investigation and iegal claims

The Group hes devetoped and rofled out formal
information secunty standards which operatng
companies are expected to meet as a minimum
They are subject to penodic assurance by an
mdependent thurd party

The Financial review on page 66 together with Note 20 of the accounts, provide details of the Group s financal and weasury nsks

Pensions

The Group 15 exposed to funding nsks fansing from
changes i longevity, nflation and mvestment
assumptions})n relation to its defined benefit pension
schemes At prasent there are actuanal deficiis in
these schemes

The amount of the deficr can be affected by a number
of factors winch would resutt n an additonal funding
requirement.

Measures 1o mitigate Iiabiles are under continuous
review by the Group For example, steps have been
taken to resirict ceriain future ncreases n the
prmcapal defined benefit schemes' liabibites

The performance of the Group s pension schemes

are regularly monnored by the Group and the Trusiees
of the pension scheme who, as appropnate, take
adwice from extemal consuftants




Risk
Delwery
Bidding

The Group through its operating companies, seeks to
wirework thraugh a large number of bids each year

Potential impact

Failure 1o 1dentfy nsks esomate costs and timing and
how best to manage them could have an adverse
impact on the profitability of such contracts to

the Group
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Mrtigation

All bids are subject to ngoreus estimating and
tendening processes within a defired framework.
Defined delegated authonty levels exist for the
approval of all tenders with all major and significant
contracts being subject 1 Group review and approval

Joint ventures

in cartan instances where the Group may not possess
the necessary strengths/expertise it will engage n
Jont ventures with carefully selected pariners to
deliver certain contracts

inthe event of a disagreement with, fallure to
deliver by or poor performance of a joint venture
partner, the Greup could be exposed to financial
and reputational nsks

The Group has procedures in place o ensure that it
selects jint venture pariners with the relevant skills,
expenence, resources and values to complement
those of the Group The performance of joint
veniure partners 1s monstored throughout the life

of the project.

Project deivery

The Group 15 engaged in a number of complex design
engineenng construction, facilies management and
asset management projects

Fanlurs to manage or deliver a project to an appropriate
quality and on a tmely basis could result n a number
of 1ssues {ie contract disputes, unagreed claims, design
1ssues, cost overruns) which could adversely impact
the profitability and reputation of the Group

Each operating company has operating procedures
designed to address the nsks nherent In project
delivery Inaddibon the Group’s nsk managerment
framework faciitates the identrfication of specific
nisks on projects and the mitigating actions required
Projects are subiact to management review at all
levels to monitor progress and o review steps

put in place to address specific nsks identrfied on
those projects

Health, safety and envionmental

The Group's activities reguire the continuous
monitonng and management of health, safety and
ervironmenal nisks

Failure to manage these risks could result n senous
harm to employees, subcontracters, the public or the
emvironment and coufd expose the Group to significant
potantial habilwes and reputational damage

Cetalled HSE policies and procedures exst to mmimiss
such risks and are subject to review and monitonag by
both operating companies and Group and are also
subject to external audit. More details on the Group's
approach to health and safety management 1s shown
in the sustainability section on pages 56 10 61

Supply chain

The defivery of a large number of the Group's coniracts
15 dependent on the continued availability and
effective management of subcontractars and other
service providers

The fallure of a subcontractar to perform to an
appropniate Standard and quality could result indelays
to-a project and adversely impact the ability of the
Groupto meet its contractual and other commitmeants

The Group seeks to develop long-term relationships
with its key subcontractors whilst at the same time
noi becoming over-relant on any one for the delivery
of certam services As part of 1ts selection critenz, the
Group seeks to partner with subconiractors/suppliers
who share its values
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Directors’ report

Business and financial review

The Charman s statement on pages 8 and 9 the Chief Exgcutive s review on
pages 10ta 20 the Operating review on pages 37 to 55 the Sustanabriity
statement on pages 56 to 61 anc the Financial review on pages 64 o0 66

are ncorporated by reference into the Directors’ report

Results and dnidends

The results for the year are shown n the audned financial statements presanted
on pagss 92 t0 159 and are expla:ned more fully in the Chief Exacutive’s review
the Operating review and the Financial review An intenim dividend paysment of
4 8p [net) per ardinary share {restated for the bonus efement of the nights issue}
was approved by the Board on 11 August 2009 and a final dividend of 7 2p
{net} per ordinary share will be recommended at the Annual General Megting
Adjusting the dwidends prior to the Cetober 2009 Rights Issue for the bonus
element gives & total of 12 Op [net) per ordinary share, which compares

with a restated total dvidend per ardinary share of 11 1p {net) In 2008
Preference dvidends totalling 10 75p {gross} per preference share have

been paid for 2009 (2008 10 75p {gross) per preference share)

The Directors continued to offer the dwidend reivestrment plan {DRIP)

Research and development

The Group continues to be committed ta investment in research and development
in all s areas of activity This covers new produets and processas and mnovation
in areas such as information technology and asset management systems A range
of development inibatives 1s undertaken throughout the businesses which 1s
supported by links with selectad universities

The Group innovation forum 15 one of several fora through which the Company

15 enhancing the sharing of knowledge and the encouragement of joint working
between the vanous businesses The forum has representatives from each of
the Group s operating compames improving she abriity to tap mio the depth and
breadth of expertise and capability wiich exists within the Group, and sharning i,
1S 566N a8 a key enabler and catalyst for nnovation, as well as serving 1o identify
where the Group can respond better to the neads of 1ts various stakeholders

Detals of tha Group's 2009 research and development expenditure are given in
Note 4 1 on page 107

Share capital and shareholders

Details of the share capital of the Company as a1 31 December 2009, ncluding the
nghts attaching to sach class of share are set out in Note 27 on pages 14C and
141 Duning the year to 31 December 2008 na ordmary or preference shares were
repurchased for cancellation 1 337,199 ardinary shares were 1ssued following the
exercise of optans held under the Company s savings-related share aption scheme
and 433 694 ordinary shares were 1ssued following the exercise of optians held
under the Company’s executive share option schemes

On 17 September 2009, the Board anncunced that the Company had entered mto
an agreament 1o acquire Farsons Brinckerhoff Inc for & cash consideration of
USS626m {£382m) which would be substanuaily financed by a fully underwritan
Rights Issue of 205,472,530 new ordinary shares {"New Shares }at an i1ssue prce
of 180p per New Share and on the basis of three New Shares for every seven
extstng ordinary shares

At the general meeting held on 7 October 2009 helders of the Company’s ordinary
shares approved the acquisition of Parsons Brinckerhoff Inc and the nahts 1ssue
and they also approved an increase in the Company’s authonsed share capital
from £350m to £500m by the creation of an additional 308m ordmary shares of
S0p each

On 23 October 2009 the Company announced that it had receved vaiid
acceptances In respect of 199 469 067 New Shares, representing 97 06% of

the total number of New Shares offered to shareholders under the Rights [ssue
Subsequently an 23 October 2009 the Company then announced that JPMorgan
Cazenove Limited and RBS Hoare Govett Limited as joint baokrunners had
pracured actuirers for the remaining 6 033 170 New Shares for which valid
acceptances had not been receved &t a pnce of 287p per New Share bringing the
total 1ssued New Shares to 205 502,237 tha difference anising due to the 1ssue
of 69 176 ordinary shares on the exercise of share options under the Company s
employee share plans between 17 September and 2 Octaber 2009 {the record
date for the Rights issuel With the New Shares, the total ssued ordinary shares
at 23 October 2009 stood at 685 007 456

At 31 December 2009, the Directors had authonity under shareholders resolutions
approved at the AGM and at the separaie Class meeting held in May 2009

to purchase through the market 47,804,226 ordinary shares and 16 775 968
preference shares at prices set out in those resolutions This authonty expires at
the conclusien of the separate Ciass mesting which will follow the 2010 AGM or
on 1 July 2010 whichever 1s earlier

Throughout the year all the Company s issued share capral was publicly hsted
on the Landon Stock Exchange and it resnains so as at the date of this report
There are no specific restrictions on the size of a shareholding nor on the transfer
of shares, which are both governed by the Articles of Association and the
prevailing law The Directors are not aware of any agreements beiween holders
of the Company s shares that may result in restrictions on the transker of shares
or an voting nghts

Details of employee share schemes are set out i Note 30 on pages 146 to 143
Shares held by the Balfour Baatty Employee Share Ownership Trust are not voted

There 1s no person who has special nghts of control over the Company's share
capral and affissued shares are fully paid

As at 3 March 2010 the Company had been notified in accordance with the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial Services Autharty of the
following interests n its ardinary share caprtal

Number Percentage

of ordinary of ordinary

shares held shares hefd

Standard Life Investments Limitad 54 467 327 7%

Legal & General Group plc 41145213 600

Prudential ple 35 281,599 515

Blackrock Inc 33,965,367 496

Lloyds Banking Group plc 29,805,016 235

AXA SA 22003 406 N
Directors

The names of the Directors at the year-end are shown on pages 62 and 63 together
with bnef biographucal details Full details of Directors” service agreements,
emoluments and share interests can be found in the Remuneration reporton
pages B2 o 90

On 1 January 2009 Andrew McNaughton was appointed as an executwe Director
and Graham Roberts was appeinted as a non executrve Directar

Stephen Howard retired from the Board on 17 August 2009 and fan Ferguson was
appointed as a non-executive Diracior on 1 January 2010




At its Board meeting in March 2010 as part of its annual audit of corporate
gavernance compared with the Combined Code the Board considered the
independenca of the non-executive Directors against the cnteria specified in the
Combined Code and determined that each of them continues ta ba independent
In particular the Directors considered the pesition of Robert Wats, Senior
Independent Director who will have completed nine years of service on the Board
in September 2010 In view of MrWalws” significant contnbution 1o Board and
Board Committee discussions the judgement he exercises and the challenge he
provides the Board had no hesitation in concluding that he remains independent

Mike Conovan Gordon Sage and Robert Walvis are due to retire by rotation
as Directors at the forthcoming AGM and being eiigible offer themselvas far
re-election lain Ferguson who was appointed by the Board since the date of
the last AGM wali offer imself for elechian in accordance with the Company's
Arucles of Association

Non executive Directors are appainted for specific three-year terms and 1t 1s part of
the terms of reference of the Nomination Committes to review ali appointrents of
non-executive Directors at three year intervals, or 85 near to that as 1s praciicable
and make recommendations to the Board accordingly

2009 Board and Board Committee meetings

Details of the number of meetings of and attendances at the Board mestings
and meetings of the Audit, Business Practices, Nornination and Rernuneration
Committees dunng the year are set out In the following table

Busmass
Name of Directar Hoard Audrt Practices  Nomination  Remuneration
M J Donovan 11{12) 34 KN 2{2)
S Howard? 617 11 0{t 3{3
G EHKrossa 10(12) 34 303) 3{4)
b J Magrath 11(12)
S Marshal /@ 12(12) 4(4) 3 2(2) 414)
A J McNaughten 11112)
AP Rabin 10(12)
G CRoberts 11012 4(4) 343
G HSage 10012) 44 21 34
1P Tyler 12{12} 2{2
R JW Walwis 10{12} 44 2{2 414
P JL Zinkin 11{12}
Notes

11} The nurdser shemm n brackets 1s the total number of meetings the Cirectors sould attend either
following thaw appmntment during the year or &5 a result of changes to Commities membershios

(2) Ratired on 17 August 2009

{3) MrMarshall attends the Audit Cosmmitiee butis not a mesber

{4) Several Board Commities meetings also took place dunng the year specifically n relaton to the
rights 1ssue and soqurstion of Parsons Brinckerhoff Inc

Non-attendance at meetings was due o 1iness and prior business commitments

In each case where Directors have not been able to attend a Board or Commtiea

meeting they have rewewed the papers circulated for that meeting and

provided their comments directly to the Chanman or the Committee chairman,

as appropriate
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Board Commttee membership

Owing to the changes in the compasition of the Board the membership of each
of the Company's Board Commuttees has been reassessed As at 3 March 2010
the membership of the Commuttees 1s as follows

Audit Business Practcas Nomnaton Rernuneration

Graham Roberts"! Mike Donovan?  Steve Marshall Robert Walvis

{Chawrman) {Chaimman) {Chairman) {Chairman)

Mike Donovan fain Ferguson Mike Donovan fain Ferguson

Hubertus Krossa  Hubertus Krossa  GrahamReberts  Hubertus Krossa g

Gordon Sage Steve Marshall  Gordon Sage Steve Marshall g

Robert Walvis Graham Roberts  lan Tyler Gordon Sage g
Robert Watwis 2

Notes

11} Graham Robe-ts was apponted charman o the Auart Cammittee on 5 March 2009

121 Mike Donavan was appoimed chairman of the Business Pracuces Committee on 17 August 2009
followang the stiremant of Stephen Howard

Directors’ interests

No Director had ary matenal mterest in any contract of significance with the
Group duning the period under review The Directars have put in place procedures
1o ensure the Board collectvely and the Directors individually comply with the
disclosure requirements an candliets of interest introduced on 1 October 2008
under the Companies Act 2005 At its mesting each January a formal declaration
of interests 15 reviewed by the Board

The interests of Directors m the share caprtal of the Company and its subsidrary
undertakings and their interests under the long-term incentive scheme (the
Perfarmance Share Plan 2006) the deferred bonus plan and share options are
set out in the tables i the Remuneration report commencing on page 82

There have been no changes in therr respective interests since 31 Decembier 2009

Directors’ indemnities

The Company grants an ndemanity to all of 1ts Directars to the extent permitted by
law These indemnity amounts are uncapped in relation to losses and habiiites
which Directars may incur te third parties in the course of acting as a Diractor of
the Company, or in any office where such duties are performed at the request of
the Board, or as a result of therr appomtment as Directors

Directors’ training

Directars receive a significant induction programme and a range of information
about the Company when they join the Board This includes considerable
background information on Balfour Beatty 1ts codes of business conduct and
ethics processes for dealing in Balfour Beatty shares and Board procedures

In addition they also take part in & senes of ana-to-one meetings with other
members of the Board and senior executives which include briefings on the
Company s business strategy financial procedures business development and
ather key 1ssues

The training programme 1s supplemented throughout the year by a senes of
iniemal and external updates including wisits 10 operating companies o meet local
management and visits 1o Balfour Baanty projects bath in the UK and overseas
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Normally, day-long megtings take place for each non-executive Director four times
each year

Presentations on ad-hac topics are then amanged as appropnate, for example on
new matenal laws or regulations as they affect the Group or the Directors (n 2003
the Board recenved guidance notes on such topics as the final implementation of
the Companies Act 2006 the Financial Reporting Council’s review of the Combined
Code the Walker Review the Shareholders’ Rights Directive and the Brbery Bill

Each Director has also been enrolled in an extemal facility which provides a
wide-ranging programme of techmical bnefing education and traiming throughout
the year

Auditors
Delaitte ULP have indicated their wellingness to continue as auditors to the
Company and a resofution for their appointment wall be proposed at the AGM

Corporate governance and the Combined Code

Overiew

The Company 1s commitied to high standards of corporate govemance The UK
Listing Authonty requizes histed companees to disclose in relation to Section 1 of
the Cambined Code 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Couneil which 1$ appended
10 the UK Lssting Rules, how they have applied its principles and whether they
have complied with rts provisions through the accounting perrod The Company
has complied wath the requirements of the UK Listing Authorty relating 1o the
provisions of the Combined Code throughout the accounting penod other than

10 two respects

{1} Graham Roberts was appoinied chairman of the Audit Commitiee on 5 March
2005 having succeeded Steve Marshall as the Committee chairman Following
his appontment as Chairman of the Company in May 2008 Stave Marshall
hiad continued 1o chair the Commitiee on a temporary basis pending the
appontment of his suceessor He continued to attend Committee meetings
during 2009

{i) The effectiveness of the Group s procedures 1s kept under review by the
Business Practices Committee (BPC} and not by the Audit Committee The
principal reason for this 1s that the BPC in particutar focuses on the Company's
business conduct, its ethics and values and, ensuring that procedures exist for
employaes to raise concems in confidence, 13 an integral element within it
overall remit The Audit Committeg 1s kept informed of any allegations of fraud
or poor financial controts and intemal audit are involved in carmying out
investigations Into such claims

Honorary President
Viscount Weir 1s Honorary President of the Company, having been appotniad 1o
this position inMay 2003 followang his retirement as Chawman

Chainman

Steve Marshall became Chaiman in May 2008 having joined the Board in
November 2005 Steve Marshall spentds an average of two days per week on
the business of the Company He 1s also non-executive chaman of Delta pic
The Board considers that his other commitments are nat of such a nature as
tohinder his activities as Chairman of the Company or Committees

The Board

The Board cumently compnses 12 Directors of whom seven including the
Chairman are non-executive Detasls of the changes during the year can be found
under the heading "Directors™ on page 74 The Directors befieve that the Board
continues to include an appropnate balance of skills and retains the ability to
provide effective leadership to the Group

Throughout 2009 lan Tyler was Chief Executive and the Senior (ndependent
Directar was Robert Wabws

The Board 1s collectively responsible for the suceess of the Company and has a
formal schedule of matiers reserved for 1ts decision which includes the matiers
summansed below

— Deterrining the Group s strateqic direcsion

— Approving annua? budgets and financial reportmg, including the annual and
half-year results and interim management staiements

— Approving intenm and recommending final dwidends
— Approving major acquisitions and disposals and significant capital expenditure

— Ensuning the necessary financial and human resources are in place to achieve
objectives and reviewing management performanee

— Setting the Company s valugs and ethical standards
~ Approving policies and systems for nsk management and assurance

The Board reviewed 1ts st of reserved matters i 2009 and, most recently in March
200 The temms of reference of the Board and the Board Committees are available
on request from the Company Secretary and are also displayed on Batfour Beatty's
website www balfourbeatty com Descnptons of the specific responsibiities
which have been delegated ta the pnncipal Board committees are also prowded
onpages 77079

Board procedures

Procedures for Board mestings remain unchanged from previous years

Papers are generally sent out at least three business days in advance of the
meeting The papers include a witten report from each of the Chief Executive,

the Chief Operating Officer the Finance Director, and the director of Safety Health
and the Environment At the meetings oral deports are mage on 1SSues arising
from the written reports and both those and other matters of immediate interest or
concem are drscussed by the Board for example mergers and acquisiiions actvity

Apart fram the meetings that approve the interim and final results respectively a
separate presentation on a topic of interast or concem such as the operations of a
particular bustness 1s normalky made to the Board Each meeting lasts three to four
hours but can be langer

The Company Secretary ts responsible for adwsing the Board on appropriate
govemance matters, ensunng good information flow and for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed He 15 also available 10 indnndual Directors for athice on
these procedures




2009 meeting programme
Most meeungs of the Board dunng 2003 were held inLondon with three mestings
held elsewhere

On the evering preceding a Board mesting the Directors wall meet and will
generally focus therr discussion on a pre-gdetermined developmental theme led by
anie of the executive Directors other senior managament or a specialist external
speaker For example (n 2009, the themes included maovation reputation and
brand and strategy

At meetings dunng the year the Board discharged its responsibilities in accordance
with s remit In partcutar the follewing topics were some of thase which were
comprahensively reviewed

- Medwm-term plan and 2009 annual budget

— Investor relatiens

— [T strategy

~ Rights 1ssue and the acquistion and integration of Parsons Brinckerhaff Inc
~ Business reviews — Rail and Constructon sarvices

~ Values and ethics

In add:tion, the Board dedicates particular meetings (e certain key business
themes for example health and safety strategy and succession planning
These meetings are also attended by semor managers, as requized from
time to time

Evaluabon

Formal evaluation of the performance of the Board and of the principal Board
Cammittees, as well as indvicdual assessments of the Directors themselves,
are normally carred out by an extemal eonsultant tnennially, with internal
assessments carned aut in the itervening wo years

The most recent evaluation was completed in February 2010 using an extemal
consultant, who was appointed followang a detailed assessment of the services
nrovided by a number of providers and a senies of interviews

The evatuation process comprised a senes of one-on-one interviews with each
member of the Board and other members of the senior management team and the
repart has been reviewed by the Board at a meeting dedicated for thus purpose

The comprehensive nature of the review followed regulatory guidance on the
evaluation of the Board its delegated commitiess and indivdual members

The Board has discussed the outcomes of the report and will make any apgropriate
changes in due course

In the intervening years, an evaluation process 1s carned out by the Company
Secretary, at the request of the Chairman This compnses an assessment
questionnarre covering the effectiveness of the Board and its Commitiees including
compostuon, arrangements for and content of mestings, access to snformation and
administrative procedures

Board Committees
The Board has established several Committees each with defined terms of
reference procedures, responsibiiiies and powers

In accordance with the requirements of the Combined Code, the Committees”
terms of reference are reviewed penodically to ensure they remain comprehensive
and relevant The principal Committees” terms of reference are displayed on the
website www balfourbeatty com

Procedures for Board Cammittees miror those adopied for Board meetings with
papers generally distnbuted to members at least three business days before the
meeting The minutes of the Committee meetings are sent 1o all Directors and
oral updates are given at Board meetings
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Committee membership 1s shown on page 63

Board Committees
Aandit L stion | N B Group Tender | Finance
G € C Pr and Investment | and General
[+ Ci F ]
Commutise
aFinancial #Remunerztion | *Stuctyre and | = Ethucs and +Magor contract | *Borrowings
statemeants stratagy and COMPOSION Codes of appeovais *Banking
«Financial palicies of Board Condeet slovestments | arrangements
controls «Renwneration | *Apposntment of | sheahh & Safety | and «Share options
packages non-e g .,
-:‘:;E?I elcentve plans | Drecars ) ! o *Share
»Whistetiowng | *Gap-al
sintemal audit expendivre
»Hisk
management
gnd assurance
— Audit Committee

The terms of reference for the Committeg are based an the Guidance on Audst
Committees 1ssued by the Financial Reperting Council {formerly  Smith Guidance )
The terms of reference weare approved by the Board in October 2003 and updated
most recently n July 2009 The man responsibilinies of the Audit Commities

are summansed below

{1} 1o monttar the integniy of the financial statements of the Group and any formal
announcements relating 1o the Group's financial performance

{2} to review the Group s intemal controls established to identify, assess, manage
and monrtor nisks, and recewe reports from management on the efieciventss
of the systems they have established and the conclusions of any testing carned
out by the intemal and external audrtors

{3 to manitor and review the effectivenzss of the intemal audit function mcluding
1S wark programme

(4) to make recommendations to tha Board in relatian to the appointment of the
external auditor and to approve the remuneration and tarms of engagement of
the external auditor; and

(5) to assess the independence, abyectivity and effectiveness of the external
audrtor and 1o develop and implement policy on the engagement of the
extemnal audizor 1o supply non-audit services

The Committee has been chaired by Graham Roberts since 5 March 2009
Members' attendance at Commitiee meetings 1s shown on page 75

The Committee 15 supported by the Company Secretariat All members of the
Committee have extensive experience of management in farge intemational
organisations Graham Roberts 15 a chartered accountant and s finance director
of The British Land Company PLC and has been identified by the Board as having
recent and relevant financial experience

Apporiments to the Committee are made by the Board for a penod of up to
three years extendable by no more than two additional three year panods

50 long asmembers contnue to be mdependent At the Board meeting foliowing
each meetng of the Commitiee, the Commetiee chaiman prowdes an oral report
an the work of the Committee and any significant sssues that may bave ansen
The minutes of Committee meetings are circulated to all members of the Board

Four meetings of the Commutiee were held in 2009 At the invitation of the
Committee, partners from the external auditor the Head of Group Risk
Management and Assurance, the Deputy Chef Executive and the Finance Director
regularly attend each meeting In additson, any independent non-executive Director
who 1s not a Commrttee member has an open invitation to attend meetings

aouewaaofi ngy
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In 2009, as in previous years the main purpose of the February and August
meetings of the Committze was to consider the final and intenim results
respectively a process which 15 well established At each of these meetings the
Committee reviewed significant accounting polcies financial reporting 1ssues and
Judgements and reports from management and internal and externat auditors

Throughout 2009, the Committee has continued ta review the Group s risk
management processes As aresult the Committee felt able to recommend to the
Board that it might properly canclude that the Company continued to maintain a
sound system of ntemal control and that a prapar review of the effectveness of
the Company's systems of intamal controls had been completed

~ Extemal auditor independence and effectiveness — 10 assess the independence
and effectivenass of the exiemal audrtor Delaitte LLP the Committee cames
out a formal review annually comgnsing the following elements

— Non-audit work— compliance with the Group policy 1s tested each year
At each meetng, the Committee also reviews the non-audit work which has
been carried out by the extemal auditor and that planned together with the
associated fees The objective set out in the Company s policy 1$ to ensure that
the external auditor 1s not placed in a position where their ndependence 1s,
armight be seen to be comprormsed  Under no circumstances waill any
assignment be given to the external auditor when the result s that.

- as part of the statutory audt, they are required to report directly on their own
non audit work,

- they make management decisions an behalf of the Group
— amutuality of interest 1s created,
— they act as advocates for the Group, or

— the tevel of non-audit fees 1s such, relative to audit fees, as 1o raise concems
about therr motivation in forming objective judgements

Under the poficy ovthned above all raquests to engage the extemnal auditor for
non audit wark are subject to the approval of the Finance Directar under certain
critenia, of otherwise, the Committee The external auditor also comples with the
Ascounang Practices Board {APB) Ethicat Standards applying to non-audit services
There 1s na incansistency between these APB standards and the Company s policy

In2009 the extzmal auditor carned out a significant amount of non-audit related
work principally in connectian with the acguisition of Parsons Brinckerhoff Inc
and 1ts post-acquisition fiscal restructunng Other non-audit work carmed out
during 2009 related, in the mam, to tax advice,/compliance In Europe and the US
The Commitiee considers that the Company raceives particular benafit from the
advice provided by 1ts external auditar given their wide and detailad knowledge
of the Group and 1ts intematanal nature

— Annual nternaf assessment— a detailed internally prepared assessment of the
previous year's external audit process together with any dentfied improvement
recommendatons In carying out this assessment, each operating company
within the Group 1s required to evaluate the performance of the assigned
external audit team and to compare that performance against the previous year

— External auditor s assessment — an assessmant is also camed out by the
extemal auditor In consultation with the operating companies using a structured
questionnare In addition, the Audit Committee also pariicipates in responding
to the questionnaire

Having completed its review and having recerved therr formal statement of
independence, the Committee 15 satisfied that the extemal auditor remains
independent of the Company

The Committee has camead out a review of the proposal made by the extemal
audnor in respect of the audit fees and terms of engagement for the 2010 audit
and has recommended that the Board proposes 1o shareholders that Deloitte LLP
continue as the Company's external auditor

External auditor rotation — Audr: partners are rotated every five years The advisory
parmar will be changing 1n 2010 and the audit engagemeant pariner will be
changing «n the 2011 financral year

Consideration woukl be given o carrying out an audit tengdes process In
circumstances where the extemal auditor's performance has been calied into
guesnon or where through the audrt partner rotation pracess no suitable
replacement was identrfied

- Nominathion Commitiee

The Cammittes 15 chaired by Steve Marshall and members attendance at the
megtings of the Committee is given on page 75 The Committee ts supported

by the Company Secretanat. The Commutiee, which meets as and when required
{2009 two meetings), keeps under review the compasition and balance of the
Board and makes recommendations to the Board on all new appointments and
re-appaintments of non-executive Directars Duning the 2009 financial year an
extemnal search consultancy was engaged to seek candidates to join the Board as
non-executive Directors who had current or recent expenence as a chref executive
of a public company and who had operating busmess experience in Europe and
elsewhere The Committee reviewed candidates as presented by the consultancy
and Committes members were volved in the nterview process before making
their recommendations to the Board All members of the Board were given the
apportunity to meet lain Ferguson prior to his appontment.

— Remuneration Committee

The Committes 1s chaired by the Senior Independent Director Robert Watwis and
members attendance at the meetings of the Committee 15 given on page 75

The Committee met four times during 2009 The Committes 15 supported by the
Company Secretanat {nfermation about the workings of this Committee during
the financial year 1 set out in the Remuneration report commencing on page 82

— Business Practices Commiites

The Committee was chaired by Staphen Howard up to his ratirerment in August
2009 and, since then, by Mike Donovan Members attendance at the meetings of
the Committee 1s given on page 75 The Committee 1s supported by the Company
Secretanat

The Commitiee met three ames in 2008 The mam topics considered by the
Committes dunng the year related to healih safety and sustainahility, and ethics
values and business canduct [n light of the settiement with the Serious Fraud
Office 1n October 2008 this Committee focuses significant attention on values

the Group s Code of Conduct {which was rewised and launched across the Group in
November 2009} and on the raining which will ensure that the Group’s business
principles are properly embeddad throughout the business

The Commitiee discussed the delivery of heafth and safety in the long term and
focused on the Group s Zero Harm campaign A particular challenge had been
to ensure that the Zero Harm inriative would be adopted and implemented in
muluple junsdictions and cultures around the worid The Committes noted that
Zero Harm had been enthusiastically embraced by businesses both inside and
outside the UK

Regular reports were receved by the Commitiee on the Group’s chantable
actmiies on its procedures in relation to staff being able o raise concerns,
in confidence, and on spacific ngdlents

- Graup Tender and investment Committee

This Cemmittee compnses the executive Directors and the Group managing
directors and s chaired by the Chief Executive, or in his absence, one of the other
executtve Directors |ts mam purpose 1s to review all major proposed contracts with
projected contract values above a specified level delegated to it. The Committee
also has authonity 1o approve capital expenditure apphcations and any proposed
investments or divestments up to cartain specified hmits determined by the Board
The Commuittee met on numeraus occasions throughout the year and minutes of

Its meetings are circulated to all the Directors The Committee 1s supported by the
Company Secretanat.




— Finance and General Purposes Cominittee

The Committee comprises the executive Drectors and the deputy finance director
and is chaired by the Chief Executive or in his absence one of the executive
Directors and 1s supporizd by the Company Secretanat. lts main purpose 1s to
approve vanous routine banking and treasury matters, share option grants undar
the Company's Incentive schemes and other mattars refating to share capital

(eg allotments} The Committee met several imes throughout the year and a
summary of the business conducted at the meeatings I1s provided to all the Diractors

Relations with shareholders

The Board attaches great importance t¢ maintaining gaod relationships with ali
shareholders and ensures that sharehoiders are kept nformed of significant
Company developments

The Company has therefore continued its long-established programme of
communication with institutional investors and brokers throughout 2009
Presentations of the half-year and full year results were matie in accordance
with the practice of prewious years Approximately 140 meetings have been held
at regular intarvals through the year wath institutional shareholders, brokers and
analysts including an investars event in June 2009, which included a wisit to
the Agquatics Centre at the Olympic Park This communications programme

will continue and be expanded where appropriate, subject to the canstrants

af regulation and practice

Senior executives, led by the Chief Executve and Finance Director, hold meetings
with the Company s principal institutiana! shareholdars to discuss the Company s
strategy, financial performance and specific major nvestments The Chairman

has also met with a number of these inshtutional sharenolders and the other
non-executive Directors are invited t do so whenever they wish Care 1s exercised
to ensure thet any price sensitive Information 1s released to ail shareholders at the
same time 0 accordance with UK Listing Authority requirements

Reports to the Board on meetings or other contact with shareholders or thair
representatives are made by executive Directors on a regular basis The non-
executive Directors continue to beheve that through their direct and ready access
to, and cantact with the Chaimman and Robert Walvis {the Senior Independent
Directar) and through the regular reports to the Board, they are kept fully aware
of the views of the larger sharehaldars in the Company and the investment
community generally

The Board also has access to the services of an independent external carporate
and investor relations consulzant who provides advice on the relationship between
the Company and its instituiona! investors

The Board regards the Company’s general meetings as an opporiunity to
communicate directly wath private investors and actively encourages participative
dialogue with all the Company s shareholders The charmean of the Board
Committees atiend the AGM each year as well as the other Directors and

are available to answer quesuons from shareholders

The website www baffourbeatty com 15 an smpertant source of nformation on
the Group including financial press releases shareholder documentation, annual
and interim results presentatrons and the iems of reference of the princpal
Board Committees

Risk management and assurance

The Board takes ultimate responsibility for the Group s systems of nisk
management and interal control and reviews therr effectiveness The Group's
principal nisks and how they are miigated are summansed on pages 70to 73

The Board cantinued to assess the effectiveness of the nisk management processes
and intemal conirols dursng 2009 and to the date of this report. Such assessment

15 based on reports made to the Board, the Audit Committee and the Busmness
Practices Committee including

— the results of intemal audit s reviews of interal financtal controls
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-~ aGroup-wide certification that effective mitemal contrais had been maintained
ar where any significant nan-compliance or breakdown had occurred wath or
without loss, the status of corrective action, and

— @ paper prepared by management on the nature extent and mitigation of
significant risks and on the systems of internal contiols

The Group s systems and controls are designed to ensure that the Group s
exposure to significant risk s properly managed, but the Board recogmises that any
system of intemnal control 15 dasignied to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absoluts assurance against matenal misstatement o Ioss Inaddition not ali

the matenal joint ventures in which the Group 1s nvalved are treated for these
purposes as part of the Group Where they are nat systems of intemal control

are applied as agread between the paries to the venture

Central to the Group s systemns of intemal control are its processes and framework
far nsk management. These accord with the Tembuli Guidance on intemal controls
and were n place throughout the year and up to the date of sigrung this report

The Group s systems of internal control operate through a number of different
processes, some of which are interlinked These include

— tha annual review of the strategy and plans of each operating company and
of the Group as a wholg in order to dentify inter alia the nsks to the Group
achievement of rts overall abjectives and, where appropnate, any relevant
mitigating actions,

— monthly financial reporting against budgets and the review of results and
forecasts by exacutive Directors and line managsment, inctuding paricular
areas of business or project nsk This 1 used to update management's
understanding of the envirgnment in which the Group operates and the methods
used to mitigate and contrel the nsks identfied

— individual tender and project review procedures commencing at operating
company level ang progressing to Board Committee level if valug, or perceved
exposure, breaches certain thresholds,

— regular reporting mronitoring and review of health satety and environmental
matters

— the review and authorsation of proposed investmenit divestment and capnial
expenditure through the Board s Commitises and the Board itself,

— the raview of spacific material areas of Group-wade nsk and the formulation
and momitoning of risk mitigating actions,

— the fermulation and review of properly documenied pohicies and pracedures
updated to address the changing nsks of the business

— specific policias set outin the Group Finance Manual covenng the financtal
management of the Group mctuding arangements with the Group s bankers
and bond providers, cantrois on foreign exchange dealings and management of
currency and nterest rate exposures, Insurance, capital expenditure procedures
application of accounting policies and financial contsols

- aGroup-wide nsk managemerv framework which 18 applied to all functiens
In the Group, whether operationa! financiat or support. Under it, the key nisks
facing each pari of the Group are reguiarly reviewed and assessed, together
with the steps taken to avoid or mitigate those nisks The results of thase
reviews are placed on nisk reqisters and, where necessary, specific acson
plans are developed,

— reviews and tests by the intemal audrt team of entical business financial
processes and controls and specific reviews 1n areas of percarved high business
nigk, and

— the Group s policy in relation to staff beny able to raise concems, in confidence
about possibie imprognieties on matiers of financial reporting and other 1ssues

These systems are extended, as soon as possible and as appropriate, 10 all
companies joining the Group

L]
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The Head of Group Risk Management and Assurance 1s respansible for ensunng
a comprehensive framework of assurance {including intemal audit) exists within

aperating companies and for co-ordinating the sk management actmities across
the Group

No significant fa:lings or weaknesses have been identified by the Board in
carmyng out its review of the effectveness of the nisk management and mtemal
control systems

Polical donations

At the AGM held on 14 May 2009 shareholders gave authanty for the Company
and 1ts UK subsidianes to make donations to polrical orgarusations up to a
maximum aggregate amount of £25,000 in the European Union This approval

1$ & precautionary measure in view of the broad definion of these terms in the
Companies Act. No such expenditure or donations were made dunng the year
and sharehaldes authomty wall be sought again at the 2010 AGM

Inthe US and Australia donations totaliing £51,000 were made by operating
companies during 2009 Most of these donations were made by Parsons
Banckerhoff Inc: a company acquired by Balfowr Beatty in October 2009

These donations are small and permitted by law In the mawn, they relate to
support given for local campargns Any poliical contributions or donatons are
ughtly controlled and must be approved in advance In accardance with the
Company s intemal procedures and must also strictly adhere to the Company's
pohicies on probity set out in 1ts Code of Conduct. A review will be conducted in
2010 nta the existing practices of operating companies and the merits of any
conunuing contnbutions of donations of this type

Carporate responsibility
Afull descnption of our approach to sustanability appears on pages 56 to 61
This includes more infarmation about the Group $ chartable actwities, which
are descbed brefly below

Whitten report

For the minth year, the Company (s publishing a separate Sustainability report
including values, ethics, safety, social and envionmental issues A copy will be
available to shareholders attending the AGM and to preference sharehalders
attending the separaie Class meetng The report will also be displayed on the
Company s website www balfourbeatty com

Group policies

‘the Group s published policies on health and safety the emaronment
busmess conduct and ethucs remain n place and are subject to regular reviews
Most recently the business conduct and ethics policy has been reviewed and
updated mncluding the iroduction of an extemal Ethics Helpling which 1s
avarlable to all esnployees and other parties with whom the Group works

Further informatron on each of these policies and the progress which has heen
made dunng the year 15 prowded in ihe separate Sustanability report which will
be published n May 2019

Employment

As the Group operates acrass a number of business sectors in dfierent
emvirgnments. 1t has evolved a decentralised management structure with
employment policies designed to st the needs of mdmdual businesses
However, each employing company 1s expected to comply with certain key
principles in its design and practice of employment policy

These are
— to prowide an open, challenging and participative environment,

— tenable all employees to utilise their talents and skills to the full,
through apgropriate encouragement iraining and development,

— to communcate a full understanding of the objectives and performance of the
Group and the opportunities and challenges facing it

— o provde pay and other benefits which reflect good local practices and reward
indnadual and collective performance,

— 1o ensure that all applicants recetve equal reatment regardiess of age angin,
gender disability sexual orentation menial status religion or belief, and

— 1o ensure that all employees simlarly receve equal treatment and specifically in
relauign 1o training, development, and career progression

Indwicual businesses use a vanety of metheds to communicate key business goals
and issues 10 employees and also consult and involve their employees through
local publications brefing groups consultative meetings training programmes
and working groups to assist the process of continuous improvement in the way
they operate and do business Regufar publications infanm employees of major
business and technical achievements Most of the UK-based businesses have
either attained or have committed to attain the UK Investors in People standard

Regular communication ts maintained with the m-safvice and penstoner members
of the Group's pension funds

Charrtable activities

In the Group s centenary year atotal of £2 5m has been donated o chantable
causes oy the Company, either directly, orvia the Balfour Beatty Chantable Trust
and £210 000 through the generous contributions of its employees

Asin pravious years the Group § main efforts have bean directed to a small
number of chanties For the Company $ centenary year, it funded the establishment
of the Balfour Beatty Charitable Trust. Through this fund, branded Bulding Batter
Futures the Company has worked principally in partnership with Acuon far
Chitdren, Balfour Beatty s chanty for the fast two years and The Pince’s Trust to
detwer a series of programmes aimed at helping drsadvantaged young people

Durmg the year, through a wide vanety of fundraising events and efiorts,
employees raised around £210 000 for Building Better Futures, 8 sum which

was matched by the Company £25 000 was donated through the Balfour Beatty
Charrtable Trust to Project HOME in Phitadelphia which supports the Balfour
Beatty Math Program for young siudents and to the education/children programme
wathin the Heery Ilternational Foundation

Building Bester Futures will continue 1 be the main focus for the Group's UK
charitable fungraising effarts in 2010

The Company has also been working wath The Pince s Trust as a founder of the
Trust's Constructon and Building Services Leadership Group and has been &
dedicated supporter of the Get into Construction programme This programme
received a donaton of £15,000 dunng the year The Company has also sponsored
The Pnnce s Trust “Celebrate Success” awards with a further donation of £25,000
Intozal, dunng 2009 The Prince’s Trust received donations from the Company,

the Balfour Beatty Charitable Trust and employess of around £245 000 whilst
Action for Children recenved donations of aporoximately £107 000

Suppart for other charsties including Engineers Against Poverty RedR which
provides emergency engineenng help particularly n remote focations, City of
Stoke Football Action Programme and Marie Cune Cancer Care hias continued
The Company 1s alse a patron of CRASH, the constructon charity and has
continued 1ts membership of the charities Business in the Community and the
Institute of Business Ethics

In addition, the Group s UK subsidianies have pasd a further £543,000 to a very wade
vanety of other UK chantable causes n 2009

Inthe US Balfour Beaity Construction contnibuted mose than £875 000 in 2009
to support charties such as United Way, March of Dimes and national cancer
research facilies




As in previous years, the Group continues to enable UK employees to donate ta
charives of thew choice through the Give As You Eam scheme

The Company continuas to sponsor the London Youth Games Eurape s largest
yauth sports programme [a 2009 the Company donated £269 000 for the 2009
Games and supported the development of the voluntzering and commurications
systems |£288 000} As title sponsor the Company has commtted just over a
further £1m to the Games in the penod up to 2013

Further informatian on the Group s activities wall be given in the separate
Sustanability report which wall be published in May 2010 and 15 summansed
in the Community investment section on page 60

Post balance sheet events
Datails of post balance shest events are set out in Notz 34 on page 150

Contractual arrangements

The Group has contractual arrangements with numerous thied parties in suppert
of its busingss actvities The disclasure in this report of information about any
of thase third partigs 1s not considered necessary for the understanding of the
development, performance or position of the Group s businesses

Chanpe of control provisians

The Group's bank facihity agreements contain provisons that, upon 30 days

notice beng given to the Group the lender may exercise its discretion ta require
prepayment of the ivans on a thange of contro! and cancel all comsmitments under
the agreement concemed There are no agreements providing far compensation for
the Directars or employees on a change of control

A number of significant joint venture and contract bond agreements inctude
prowisions which become exercisable by a counterparty upon a change of control
of the Company These include the nght of a counterparty to request addiional
security and 10 temminate an agreement,

Payment of creditors

In the UK, the Company s palicy 1 to settle the terms of payment with suppliers
when agreeing the temms for each transaction or senes of transactions to seek to
ensura that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment and to abide by these
terms of payment as and when satisfied that the supplier has provided the goods
or services In accordance with the agreed terms At 31 December 2009 the year
end creditors’ days of the Company were 25 (2008 24)

Financial instruments

The Group's financial sk management objectives and policies and Its exposure
to the fallowing nsks — foreign exchange, interest rate price and ¢redit— are
described in the Financial review on page 66 and detaded in Note 20 on pages
12010127

Statement of Directors’ responsibiliies
The Directors are respenstble for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial
Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulanons

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial staternents for each
financial year Under that law, the Directors are required to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) 2s adopted by the Eurapean Umion {EU) and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and they have also chosen w prepare the parent company frmancial
stataments under IFRSs as adopted by the EU Under company law, the Directors
must not approve the accounts unless they are sauisfied thet they give a true and
faw view of the state of &ffarrs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period In prepanng these financial statements, Intemational
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Direttors
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{+} property select and apply accounting pohicies

(2) presentinformation, incluging accounting polcies it a manner that provides
relevant rehable comparable and understandable information

(3) pravide additianal disclasures when compliance with the spesific requirements
in IFRSs are nsufficient to enable users to understand the impact of parucular
ransactions othar events and conditions on the Company s and the Group 5
financial position and financial performance, and

[4) make an assessment of the Company s abiliy 1o continue as a going concem

The Directors are responsible tor keeping adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Company s transactions and disclose with
reasonabla accuracy, at any ime, the financial position of the Company and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
taking reasonable steps for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularnties

The Drectors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the comporate
and financial information included on the Company § website Legislaton in

the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

The Directors confimm that 1o the best of therr knowdedge

{1 the financial statements, prepared in accordance with (FRSs as adopted by
the EUand Article 4 of the 1AS Reguiation qive a true and fair view of the
assats, liabihues financial posiuon and profit or loss of the Company and
the undertakings included i the consolidztion taken as a whole, and

{n} the Operaung and Financial reviews, which are wncorporated into the Directors
report wclude a farr review of the developmant and performance of the
busingss and the positien of the Campany and the undartakings included in
the consotdation taken as a wholg, together with a descripudn of the principal
risks and uncertainties they face

Statements of Directors as to disclosure of information 1o auditors
Each of the Directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that

— so far as the Director 1s aware there 1s no relevant audit information of which
the Company's auditors are unaware and

— the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director o
rmake himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation is gven and should be mterpreted n accordance with the
provisions of Secuon 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Directors’ report
By arder of the Boar

€ 0 Vaughan
Genera! Counsel and Com)

3 March 2010

Registered Office
130 Wilton Road
tondon SW1V 1LQ

Registered in England Number 395826

ecretary
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Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with Section 420 of the Companies
Act 2006 and schedules 5 and 8 of the Large and Medium-szed Companies and
Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regutations 2008 The report also mests the
relevam requirements of the Listing Rulzs of the Financial Services Authority
and describes how the Board has apphed the principles relating to Directors’
remuneration i the Combined Code As required by the Act, a rasolution to
approve the report will be proposed at the AGM of the Company at which the
financial statements will be approved

Remuneration Commitiee

The Remuneration Comnuttee of the Board {“RemCo”)1s primanly responsible

for determining the remuneration policy and conditions of service for exectiive
Directors and the Chairman of the Company It also reviews and monitars the lavel
and structure of remuneration for certam senior managers immeadiately below the
level of the Board The terms of reference of the RemCo which were raviewed in
(October 2008 can be found on the Company's wehsite www balfourbeatty com

The RemCo has been chaired by Robert Walwis since November 2003 Its other
members duning the year were Hubertus Krossa Steve Marshall Gordon Sage
and Stephen Howard until August 2009 No member of the RemCo has conflicts
of interest ansing from cross-directorships and no member 15 mvolved in the
day-to-day executive management of the Group lain Ferguson was appanted
as a non executive Director on 1 January 2010 and has joned the RemCo

During 2009 the Chief Executive, lan Tyler, and Paul Raby, the human rasources
director, were invited to join meetings of the RemCo when appropriate The role
of secretary of the RemCo s fulfilled by the Company Secretanat. No Director has
any involvement 1n any decisions relating ta his own remuneration

The RemCo 15 responsible for appointing externat ndependent consultants to
advise on executive remuneration matters Thes advice and assistance has been
provided throughout the year by Hewatt New Bndge Street LLP {"HNBS ™} and
PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP{" PwC™} The human resources diragtor has also
provided adwvice to the RemCa Duning the year PwC also pravided other tax and
consultancy services to the Company The RemCo 15 sausfied that no conflict of
nterest anses from the provision of this adwice

Executive Directors’ remuneration

General policy

{t15 the policy of the RemCo to establish an overall remuneratian package that 1s
competrtve and which facilitates the recruitment and retention of hegh calibre
management The annual and [ong-temn incentive plans make Up an important part
of each executive Director's remuneration and are structured so as to motivate
senior managers io deliver high standards of performance, without encouraging
excessive nisk taking it 1s intended that the share-based elements of the package
will rot only drive performance aver the leng terrn but will also assist in aligning
the nterests of senior management with these of shareholders

The struciure of executive Dsrectors’ remuneration was simelar in 2009 to that in
2008 and no significant changas 1o the existing policy are curently ervisaged for
2010 Under the cument arrangements If target performance 1s achieved, basic
salary wll represent around one-half of total eamings If maximum is achieved
which would invalve a supenor level of performance substantially in excess of
business plan basic salary will represent around one-third of total eamings

When setting the pay of the executive Directors the RemCo takes into account
general pay trends in other panis of the Group By way of example, the executve
Directors did not receive a general pay award in 2009 in common with the majonty
of the operaung companies in the Group

[n 2010 the HemCo will be undertaking a comprehensive review of remuneratron
amangements for executive Directors and other senior managers across the Group
Subject to the outcome of this review 1n the event that thers are changes

the remuneration policy these will be discussed with the Company's mayor
shareholders and thesr representative bodies Following those discussions
proposals requinng shareholder approval will be submitted for approval at the
2011 AGM

The executive Directors are elgible to be members of the Balfour Beatty Pension
Fund and the general pensions palicy Is described below

Remuneration and risk

The RemCo has reviewed the relationship between remuneration and nsk and 15
sausfied that the pohicies operated are appropriate and do not encourage undue
nsk taking as

— basic salary levels are targeted at arounc m:d-market levels and are
reviewed annually

— annual bonuses are capped and targeted to ensure that performance incentives
and rewards are set at an appropriate level

— one-thurd of any annual bonus 15 deferred in shares for three years

— Performance Share Plan | PSP ) awards are granted annually with three-year
shding scale performance targets and

~ ahgnment with shareholders 1s prowded through the use of benus deferral
Total Shareholder Retum { TSR ) for PSP awards and the operation of sharg
ownership guidehines

Basic salanes

It:s the policy of the RemCo to set basic salanes at levels which it beleves are
competiive given the size and complexity of the Company, as well as the iwoad
business sectors in which itoperates To assist in this, HNBS and PwC provide
data and independent advice on remuneration levels in companies considered to
be comparable in terms of annual sales market capialisation and industry sector
The RemCo sets basic satares around mid-market levels but also takes into
account its own Judgement of the performance of the Group s businesses and the
perfarmance of individual Directors The RemCa intends to continue to use this
appraach in the foreseeable future

The basic salanes for the executive Directors are reviewed annually on 1 July

At the review in 2009, the salary for Duncan Magrath was increased to £360,000
{5 9%) and for Andrew McNaughton to £385,000 (4 1%} Foltowing therr recert
appantments to the Board these increases are designed to progressively align
therr salanes over tme with the other executive Directars and the extemal market.
The basic salanes of the other three executive Diractors were not increased

1n 2009 The current salanies for all the executive Diregtors are shown in the

table below

Salary al
Narme of Orrector 1 Juty 2009
D J Magrath £360 000
A JMcNaughton £385000
ALPRabin £425,000
1P Tylar £630 000
PJLZinkin £405 000




Annual incentive plan

Each executve Director participates i an annual incentve plan under which
pre-determined financial @rgets must be achieved before any payment 1s eamed
The maximum potential bonus which could have been eamed by executive
Directors for 2009 was 80% of basic salary and the performance indicator

chosen was profit before tax exceptional iterns and amortisation of intangibla
assets { profit’) A bonus of 40% of basic salary would have been eamed for the
achievement of performance in line with targat Two-thirds of any bonys achievad
15 payaile 1n cash, whilst the remaining one-third 1s deferred in the form of ordinary
shares in the Company urder the Deferred Bonus Plan {the ' D8P} These shares
along with shares awarded 1n iieu ot dividends paid dunng the deferral period wall
be released to the Directars after three years providing they are still employed by
the Company at that time {unless specified leaver condrtions are met, in which
case early vesung may be permitted under the rules of the DBP) Bonuses are
non-pensionable The actual profit for the year ended 31 December 2008 resulted
in & bonus of 48 3% of basic satary for each executive Director Details are shown
in the table on page 85

It 15 currently ntended that the annual incentive plan for 2010 wiil operate in the
same way and at the same leve! as for 2008

Long-term mcentive scheme

The RemCa beleves that performance related long-tarn ncentives which align
executives with both business strategy and shareholders interests are an
impartant component of overall executive remuneration arrangements

The Company operates a Performance Shara Plan (the “PSP ) under which
conditionat awards of shares i the Company are made to executive Directors
and other selected operational and functional senior managers The rules parrmit
a maximum market value of ary award of 150% of basic salary, other than in
exceplional circumstances where the limitis 200% of basic salary For 2009 an
award of 135% of salary {reduced from 150% of salary n the previous year) was
made 1o the Chief Executive, with the other executive Directors and selected
senior managers receiving conditianal awards over shases with a market

value of 112 5% of salary {reduced from 125% of salary in the previous year)
Consistent with institutional shareholder guidance and foliowing consultation
withmajor sharehalders and their representative bodies award tevels were
reduced from 2008 levels to reflact the reducton in the earmings per share

("EPS ] growth targets

The awards vest subject to the achievernent of performance conditions threa
years after the date of grant, together with shares in iev of dividends payable
There 15 no provision for the re-testing of these performance conditions For the
2008 award, there are two performance conditions each applying to separate
parts of the award

50% of an award 1s linked to an adjusted EPS growth target and will vest as
shown in the table below

EPS growth over thee years Proportion of award vesting

Less than APl + 9% Zero

RPI+8% 25%

RPI +39% 100%

Between RPI + 9% and RPI +39% Between 25% and 100% pro-fata

Thus represents a reduction in the EPS targets used in previous awards where
threshold performance was RPI+ 15% and maximum was at BP| + 45%

The target reduction reflects expected economic conditions over the next few
years Growth in EPS will be determined following independent venfication of
the calculations made intemally
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The performance condition attached to the other 50% of an award 15 linked to
TSR perfarmance measured against a group of UK Iisted companies operating
i comparable markets to the Company The comparies usad for the 2009 award
were as follows Aggreko Atkins (WS) Babcock International Bunzl Capita
Canihion Costain, G4S Interserve Keller Kier MITIE Morgan Sindali Mouchel
Serco, SIG Trawis Perkins, YT Group and Wolseley

The TSR performanee of all companies will be measurad over the three year
performance period with the TSR of Balfour Beatty compared to the TSR of the
other compamas This part of an award will vest in part if Balfour Beatty's TSR 1s
equivalent to the company whose TSR performance ts at the median with full
vesting If Balfour Beatty's TSR 1s equivalent to, ar above, that of the company
whose TSR performance 1s at the upper quaride The precise scale of vesting 1s
shown in the table below

Tota! sharehokder retum Proportion of award vesting
Below median Zero

Median 25%

Upper quartile 100%

Batwaen median and upper quartile Between 25% and 100% pro-rata

TSR waill be ndependently calculated and approved by the RemCo

The RemCo considers that the EPS and TSR performance conditions provide a
good biend of performance metrics, with EPS growth rewarding strong financial
performance and TSR rewarding stock market performance, which aligns with
Investors’ interests

It 18 the intention of the RemCo to make awards under the PSP in 2010 For the
TSR element of the award a similar peer group of companies will be used Inview
of the contnuing chalienging economic canditicns, and following consultation
with the Company s major shareholders and representative bodhes, the RemCo
plans to reduce the EPS growth targets for the 2010 award to RPi + 6% for
threshald performance (25% vesting) and RPI + 36% for maximuem (100%}
vesting, with the same pro-rating arrangements as before The reduced

indwidual award levels agreed for the 2009 award would then continue in

2010 The RemCo believes that these targets and awards remain stretcinng

and appropnate given cuent market conditions and business outlook

The PSP and other share schemes contain provisions relating o a change of
contral Outsianding awards and opuions would normally vest and become
exercisable on a change of control subject to the satisfaction of any performance
condibions at that time

Share ownership guidelines

To further align the interests of senior management with thase of shareholders,
executive Directors and certain other senior managers are subject to share
ownership guideiines Executive Directors are required to accumulate a holding
of orcinary shares 1n the Company 1o the value of 100% of their basic saiary at
a reference date, with other senior managers at 50% of basic salary In order to
achieve this thase subject to the share ownership guidelines will be expected
to retain at least half of the shares {after payment of any taxes due) which vest
from awards made under the PSP and the DBP

Share options

No grants of opttons have been made under the Executive Share Option Scheme
2001 since 31 Decembear 2004 and it remains the intention of the RemCo that
no further grants wall be made under this scheme to any level of management,
other than in exceptional circumstances

Executive Directors are eligible to participate m a HMRC approved savings-related
share apuion scheme
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Pensions

The Company provides pension benefits to UK employees principally through the

Balfour Beatty Pension Fund {the “Fund”) whieh has both defined benefit {“DB")
and defined contnbution ( DC ) sections The DB secuion provides for the build u

of pension benefrts based on different accrual rates (as determmed by job position)

and has life cover, disability and spouse/dependants pensson arrangements

p

A Fund-specific eamings cap has been maintaned for those members who were

previously subject to the HMRBC eamings cap This cap also applies to members
of the DC section of the Fund A discretionary cash supplerent s paid in heu of

pension provisian abave the eamings cap The Coempany 15 not compensating any
member of the Fund {or any cther pension scheme aperated by the Company) for

any addrional tax which 1s payable

The specific pension arrangemenits for executive Directors are outlinad n more
detatl in the Directers’ pensions section on page 90

In 2008 the Company announced measures to mit the growth in hiabilities in the

main DB section of the Fund Further measures were announced n 2009 that
the basic salary used for ealculating DB benefits will be frozen with effect from
January 2011

Service contracts

[t remains the Company § policy and practice to include in executive Directors
contracts a 12 manths’ ralling natice penad from the Company and six rmonths
notice on the part of the Directar This policy will continue

Details of the service contracts of the executive Directors are shown in the

table below
Naote
period from
Company
Namg of Director Date of contract {months)
D JMagrath 11 Apnl 2008 12
A J MeNaughton 15 December 2008 12
AL P Rabin 28 August 2002 12
| P Tyler 72 December 2004 12
PJLZinkin 16 January 2004 12

Service contracts of exacutive Directors do notinclude provision for specific

payment in the event of early termination, nor do they provide for extanded notice

perods or compensation in the event of a change of control It1s not the RemCo’

intention to introduce such prowisions if any existing contract of employment 1s
breached by the Company in the event of termination the Company would ba

s

liable to pay, as damages an amount approximating to the net loss of salary and

contractual benefits for the unexpired notice period The RemCe would seek to
ensure that the Director fuifils hus obligation to mitigate his losses and wouid
also give consideraton to phased payments where appropriate Al exetutve
Directors are elected for a term of three years and must retire and if eligible,
seek re-election at the AGM in the third calendar year following the year in
which they were elected (or last re-elected)

External appointments

The RemCo recogmises that benefits can anse from aliowing executive Diractors
10 take a non-executive directorship elsewhere With approval of the Board in
each case, executive Directors may therefore accept one extamal appointment and
retain any related fees lan Tyler was appointed as a non-exegutive director of VT
Group plc on 12 May 2008 The fees recewved for this role are set out in the notes
to the Directors remuneration table on page 86

Non-executive Directors

Nan-executive Directors are appointed by the full Board follawing
recommencations from the Nomination Commitize The Chaiman's
remuneration falls within the remit of the RemCo and 1s appraved by the Board
The Board detemmines the terms on which the sarvices of other non-executve
Directars are provided All non-executive Directors are elected for a term of three
years and must retire and 1f eligible seek re-election at the AGM in the third
calendar year following the year in which they were elected (or last re elegted)
They are not eligible to join any pension scheme operated by the Company and
cannat participate in any of the Company s share option, annual incentive or
leng term incentive schemes None of the appointment letters for non-executive
Directors contan pravision for specific payment in the event of tenmination for
whatever cause

The dates of the letters of appointment or last election {or last re-election} of the
non-executiva Directors serving duning the year are shown in the table below

Unexpirad
penod at
31 December
Dtz of appomtmant 2009
Name of Director or last elaction {monthsi
M J Donovan 10 May 2007 5
S L Howard® 10 May 2007 -
G EHKrossa 14 May 2003 29
S Marshall 14 May 20038 29
G C Reberts' 14 May 2008 29
G H Sage 10 May 2007 5
R JW Walvis 10 May 2007 5
Nates
Il retired on 17 August 2009
it} apoonted on 1 January 2008

The fees of the non-executive Directors are reviewed from time to time with the
last review having taken effect from 1 July 2008 The annual feg level for the
non-executive Directors {excluding the Chamman) 1s set at £48 000 and £240 000
for Steve Marshall as Chairman The annuz! fee for chainng Board Committees

15 £8,000 During the vear the RemCo was chared by Robert Waiws, the Audit
Committee by Steve Marshalt up to 4 March 2009, and Graham Roberts for the
remander of the year, and the Business Practices Committee by Stephen Howard
up to 17 August 2003 and Mike Donovan for the remainder of the year

An annual fee of £30,000 1s payable to Hubertus Krossa for his charmanship of the
supevisory board of Balfour Beatty Rail GmbH




Annual report and accounts 2009 85

Performance graph

The graph below shows Balfour Beatty s TSR performance compared to the FTSE 250 Index {excluding investment tusts} TSR over the five financial years ended
31 December 2003

IMAGE
REMOVED

As in previous reports, the RemCo has elected to compare the TSR on the Company s ordinary shares against the FTSE 250 Index (excluding investment trusts) pancipally
because s 1s a broad index of which the Company 15 2 constitugnt member

The valugs indicated in the graph show the share price growth plus remvested dividends from a £100 hypothetical holding of ardinary shares in Balfour Beatty plc and in
the index at the start of the period and have been calculated using 30 trading day average values

The detailed information abeut the Directors remuneration set out balow and on pages 86 1o 90 has been audited by the Company’s independent auditors Celortte LLP

Directors’ remuneration eamed i 2009

Total Total

Basic Penston Benefits Amual remumeration  TEMURSAUON

salary Fees  supplement mkind  cashbonus 2009 2008

Narme of Dirsctor 4 £ £ £ £ £ £
M J Bonovan - 51,015 - - - 51.015 45,000
S L Howard - 3738 - - - 33 49,000
G EH Krossa - 74,786 - - - 74,786 16,540
D JMagrath 350,000 - 45,580 15504 115820 527,004 483180
S Marshall - 240,000 - - - 240,000 162,273
A JMeNaughton 372,500 - 31.750 15504 123910 554,724 -
At PRabin 425,000 - 74,162 21267 136,850 657279 720255
G € Roberts - 56,000 - - - 56,000 -
G HSagz - 48,000 - - - 43,000 45000
| P Tyler 630,000 - 74,907 26129 202 860 933896 1040121
8 JWWalvis - 56,000 - - - 56,000 52500
£JLZinkm 405,000 - - 18,156 130,410 553,566 626390
Former Directors - - - - - - 125464

Total 2107500 563134 232,398 96,560 70010 3789603 3360723
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Notes

{i

{n)
{un)

Y,

v
[\

Basic satary and fees were these paid in respect of the penod of the year during which mdnviduals were Directors I practice: the salary pad to Mr McNaughton has peen reduced with sfiect from 1 Novermber 2009 due
ta the Director s partcipation in the Company’s “SMART Pensions™ salary sacrfice amangement The amount of reduction comesponds to the Director 5 contnbutions to the Batfour Beatty Pension Fund which are now
met drectly Dy the Company as part of this amangament. Salary sacrifice contnbunons wiaflec £1.018 m 2008

lan Tyler Duncan Magrath Andrew McNaughton and Anthony Alabin recenved taxable cash supplements in lieu of pension provision on thesr salary aove the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund specific eamings cap

The perfonmance taret for annual honus was prafit before tax, exceptionat tems and amortisation of mtangible assets ( profit™) The profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 resulted in  bonus of 48 3% of pasic
salary for each executve Director Two-thirds of this ponus ts payaale in cash and these are the amounts shown in the table above The remainmyg one-therd s deferred n the form of ordinary shares n the Comparry
which wall be released to the Director on 31 March 2013 providing he 15 st employed oy the Company at that tme The number of shares compnsing the deferred elermem will be detenmined besed on the share price
8t the award date of 31 March 2010

Hubertus Krossa recenved 2 fee of £30 000 {included anove) for his chawmanshup of the supenvisory board of Salfour Beatty Ranl GmbH
Inadonon lan Tyler recewven 8 fee of £45 000 for his serites a5 & non-exeutve director of VT Group pic

Berefits in kind are calculated in terms of UK 12xanie vatues All executvs Directors recenve private medical insurance fos the Director and his immediata family lan Tyle Anthony Rabin and Pater Zmkin recere a fully
expensed car and & fuel card Duncan Magrath and Anigdrew McNaughton recewve a car aliowance of £14 000 p a

(v} No Diector receves any exense allowance
{w) Awards mate under the Performance Skare Plan n 2006 10 lan Tyler Duncan Magrath Andrew McNaughtan Anthony Sabin and Peter Zmkin vested during the year Al the dats of vesting on 28 Octaber 2008 the

()

x
[xl

closing market price was 265 Bp and the tota! values of the awards which vested were £528 652 £149 964 £110 969 £304 633 and £316 820 respectnely

Awards made under the Deferred Bonys Plan m 2005 tolan Tyler Andrew McNaughten Anthony Rabin and Peter Zinkwn vested dunng the year Al the date of vesting o1 31 March 2008 the closing market price was
326p ard the Lotal values of the shares which vested were £69 385 £77 352 £47 960 and £49 835 respectively

Andrew. McNaughton exercised execulive share aptions on 3 Apnl 2009 The clesing market pnce on the date of exercise was 371 75p and the value realisable on exercise was £29 275

Anthony Babin and Peter Zinkin exertised savings felatad share oplions during the yea  The closing market prices on the dates of exercise were 253 5p ana 311 25prespectvely and the values realisable on exercise
were £935 and £725 respectvely

The interests of the Directors and their immediate families in the ordinary share capital of Balfour Beatty plc and its subsidiary undartakings during the year are set
out below

Directors interests

Number of ordinary shares
At At
1January 31 December
Name of Girector 2009 209
M J Donovan 5,000 1142
GE HKrossa 5000 7142
D J Magrath 16,000 62,446
S Marshall 5,000 1142
A J McNaughton - 45315
ALPRabin 142,172 257,468
G C Roberts - 7,142
G HSage 5,000 7,142
|P Tyler 154,051 315,720
R JW Walvis 10000 14,285
P JL Zinkin 148686 262,596
Notes

U]
{}
(i}

All nterests at the dates shown are beneficial and are o respect of S0p ordmary shares in Batfour Seatty pke There were no changes between 31 Decernber 2009 ane 3March 2010
Peter Zinkin was also Interested &t 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2008 m 325 cumulative convertibla radesmable preference shares of 1p each n Balfour Bestty pic
Robert Wahas wes a'se imarested at 31 December 2009 m 938 ordmary shares in Balfour Beatty held by the Graven Ams Ivestment Club of which he 15 a member
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Directors’ long-term incentives the Peformance Share Plan

Maximum number of shares subject to award

At Awarded Lapsed Vestad At
i January duning durng  Adjustment for durng 31 December
Narne of Director Date awarisd 2008 the year the year rights 1ssue the year 2008 Exercisabts mom
0 J Magrath 13 June 20086 64 847 - 19714 6693 51 826 - June 2009
17 April 2007 43,125 - - 6393 - 49518  March 2010
15 Apnl 2008 94613 - - 14028 - 108646 Apnl 2011
15 Apnl 2008 - 1080%0 - 1608 - 124,069 Apnl 2012
A J McNaughton 13 June 2006 47,986 - 14583 4953 38,351 - June2009
17 Apnl 2007 67,384 - - 9990 - 71314 March2010
15 April 2008 79,312 - - 11758 - 91,070 Apnl 201t
15 April 2009 - 117584 - 17433 - 135077 Apnl 2012
ALPRabin 13dune 2006 131721 - 40043 13595 106273 - June 2009
17 Apnt 2007 90 269 - - 13383 - 183652  March 2010
15Ap 2008 105750 - - 15678 - 12142 Apnl 2011
15 Apni 2009 - 135083 - 20024 — 155087 Apnl 2012
| P Tyler 13June 2006 278586 - 5949 23591 182,685 - June 2009
17 Apnl 2007 157755 - - 23388 - 181,143 March 2010
15Apnl 2008 183690 - - 28716 - 222406 Apnl 2011
15 Apnl 2009 - 240.2%4 - 35620 - 215874 Apnt2012
P JL Zinkin 13June 2006 136,989 - 41,645 14137 109431 - June 2009
17 Apnl 2007 30,269 - - 13,383 - 103652  March2010
15 Apnil 2008 105,750 - - 15678 - 121428 Apnt 2011
15 Apnl 2009 - 128707 - 19082 - 142,788 Apnt 2012

Notes

fi
{n)

(nl

15}

(o}

All awrards are granted for il consideration and are i respect of 5dp ordinary sha es in Batiour Beatty prc. It 15 the Campany's cument intertion that awa ds will be satisfied by shares ourchased in the market

For the awartis made in Apnl 2007 Aprit 2008 and Apn| 2009 the performance penads are the thres yeas encing 31 December 2008 31 Dacernber 2010 and 31 December 2011 respectively 50% of each award 1s
subject to an EFS growth target The maxmum numye of shares subjact to this performance canditicn will only vest if EPS growth excesds the retail prces ndex [“API”) by 45% aver the performance period for the Apat
2007 snd Apn| 2008 awaras and 23% for the Apn) 2008 award If 25 growth exceads P! by 15% for the Aonl 2007 and Apnl 2008 awards and 9% for the Apn) 2009 award then 25% of this part of the award vl

vest For growth n EPS between these ponts vesting wall be on 8 pro-rata basis Mo shares will vest from this part of the award if EPS growth exceeds RPY by |ess than 15% ar 9% as appropriate The other 50% of each
awart 1s subject to @ total shareholdsr return (TSR™}target under which the TSR of the Company s compared 10 that of s camparator groun of sendar compames | sted in $he UK at the start of the performance period
The maxmum number of shares subject 1o this serfomanee condition will oaly vest if the Company s TSR is at the upper quartile of the comparator group # the Company's TSR s equal o that of the median of the
comparator group then 75% of this part of the ward will vest No shares from this part of the award will vest if the Compan, s TSR 15 below that of the median of the comparatar group For TSR performance between
meduan ang uppar quarble vesting will e on a pro-rata basis There 1 no provesion for re-testing of edher of the performance conditons

The average middle market prce of oreinary shaves in the Company for the threa deating dates before the award dates which was used for cakulaing the number of awards granted was 308 417p for the 2008
award 481 5330 for the 2007 award 443 17p for the 2008 award ano 3540 for the 2009 award The closing riddla market price of ordmary shares on the dale of the awards was 301 75z 490 75p 450p ard
352 250 respectively

The parformance period for the awards made in April 2007 was completed on 31 December 2009 The growth in EPS tor this period (with adjusmmants in relation to the nghts 1ssue and the acousiion of Parsons
Brinckerhoff for EPS n 2006 and 2009) exceeded RP by more then 45% the level required for maximum vesting The Company s TSR for this penod ranked Just below the med:an of the comparator group The combined
gffect of these perfarmance maasures 1s that 50% of each participant s condrlional award wall vest on 26 March 2012 This date was brought forward from the onginal vestmg date of 17 Aprl 2010 Each paricipant will
also racewve shares equal n value 10 the dwdends which would have been payable on the shares winth vest

The performance penod for the awards madz in June 2006 was completed o 31 Decernber 2008 The growth n £PS for this peniod exceeded AM by more than 45% the level required for maximurn vestng

The Company's T5A for this penod ranked between sixth and seventh of the 14 rmainng companizs i the comparator group Tha combined effect of thes performance measures was that 69 5% of each participant s
condiienal award vested on 28 Octobrer 2008 lan Tyler Duncan Magrath Andrew McNaughton Anthony Ratun and Peter Zinkn alsa recenved 11 458 3,245 2401 5509 .and 6 865 shares resoectwaly regarding
diadends which would heve been payable on the shares which vested and payments of £13619 £3 583 £2.733 £7 502 and £7 802 raspectvely regarding the divctend Tor July 2009 which wes settled in cash

Tha clasing middfe market prce of orainaty shares on the vesting date was 265 8p The monetary values of the PS® award which vested i 2009 are disclosad i Nots {il) to the Drectors remuneration &ble

PSP awares hed al the bme of the Z008 rghts 1ssue werz adyustad by a factor of 1 14826 1o recognisa the ponus element of the rights ssue
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Directors’ Deferred Bonus Plan awards

Nurnber of shares awarded
Awarded dunng the year

A Awarded i respect of ddends Lepsed Vestad At

1 January dunng BJuly 10 Decernber durng  Adjustment for during 31 December
Name of Director Date of mitial award 2008 the vesr 2008 2009 the vear nghts 1s5ue the year 209 Vesting date
D JMagrath 30 March 2007 8054 - 207 174 - §223 - 9,668 30 March 2010
31 March 2008 12 245 - 314 265 - 1860 - 14684 31 March 2011
31 March 2009 - 24785 536 536 - 3763 - 29,725 31 March 2012
A J McNaughton 31 March 2006 8 342 - - - - - §342 ~ 31 March 2009
30 March 2007 8646 - 222 187 - 1312 - 10367 30 March 2010
31 March 2008 15685 - 402 339 - 2383 - 18809 31 March 2011
31 March 2009 - 22234 571 431 - 3380 - 26,666 31 March 2012
ALPRabin 31 March 2006 14,622 - — - - - 14622 = 31 March 2009
30 March 2007 17313 - 444 374 - 2629 - 20,760 30 March 2010
31 March 2008 21,950 - 563 475 - 3,336 - 26320 31 March 2011
3t March 2009 - 30982 795 670 - 4710 - 32157 31 Maich 2012
| P Tyler 3% March 2006 21148 - - - - - 21148 — 31 March 2009
30 March 2007 25214 - 647 546 - 3830 - 30,237 30 March 2010
31 March 2008 33504 - B60 75 — 5082 - 40,181 31 March 2011
31 March 2003 - 45926 1179 994 - 6982 - 55,08 31 March 2012
PJLZnkin 31 March 2006 15,209 - - - - 15,209 - 31 March 2009
30 March 20067 17.314 - 444 374 - 2627 - 20,799 30March 2010
31 March 2008 21,950 - 563 475 - 3,336 - 26324 31 March 2011
31 March 2009 - 29524 758 639 - 4,489 - 3B.M0 31 March 2012

Notes

7(|) Ali gwards are granted for il consideration and a & in respect of 50p ordAmaw shares n Balfour Beatty pic It 1s the Company s current intention that awards will be satisfied by shares purchased in the market

ll - The awards made m 2007 2008 and 2008 wal | vest on 30 March 2010 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 respectively providing the Director 1s stil employed by the Company at the vestmg date {unless spacified
leaver cond hons are met inwhich case early vesting may be permitted)

{u} The awartds mads in 2006 vested on 31 March 2009 The closing middle market pnee of ordinary shares an the vesting date was 328p

{v} Tha shares awarded on 31 March 2006 30 March 2007 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2009 were purchasad at average onces of 374 541p 474 9390 476 454p and 365 801p respectively
i Tha shares awardad on 6 July 2009 and 10 December 2008 i 2w of diadends payadie were aliocated 2t average prces of 298 75p and 750 492p respectively

{vit D3P awands held at the time of the 2009 nghits 1ssue were adusted by a factor of 1 14876 1o recognise the ponus elament of the nghts issug
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Directors’ Savings-Related Share Option Scheme grants

Number ot opt ors
A Granted Exercised Lapsed [
i Januany durag durmg dorng  Adyesiment o 31 Decembes Expross

Name of Direttor Date granted 2008 tha year the year the year nghts ssue 2009 pece Exeroisable from Exarcisable to
D JMagrath 2 May 2007 1136 - - - 168 1,304 3387p July 2010 December 2010
7 May 2008 935 - - - 138 10713 3152p Juty 2013 December 2013

18 May 2009 - 547 - - 81 28 2490p July 2014 Dacember 2014

ALPRabin 5May 2004 963 - 1036 - 133 - 182 8p July 2009 December 2009
4 May 2005 1,031 - - - 152 1,183 2177p July 2010 Oacember 2010

3 May 2006 n - - - 143 1,113 2656p July 2011 December 2011

2 May 2007 993 - - - 147 1,140 3387p Juky 2012 December 2012

7 May 2008 3N - - - 47 368 3152p Juty 2011 December 2011

18 May 2009 - - - - - - 2450p - -

| P Tvier 2 May 2007 825 - - - 122 947 3387p July 2010 December 2010
7 May 2008 664 - - - 98 762 3152p July 2011 December 2011

18 May 2009 - 383 - - 56 439 2430p July 2012 Degember 2012

PJLZinkin 5 May 2004 Fal - 716 - - - 182 8p July 2009 December 2009
4 May 2005 687 - - - 101 788 27 7p Juty 2030 December 2010

3 May 2006 77 - - - 106 2656p July 2031 December 2011

2 May 2007 1178 - - - 174 1,352 3387 July 2032 December 2012

7 May 2008 it} - - - 13 B4 3152 July 2013 December2013

18 May 2009 - 319 - - 47 366 2490p July 2012 December 2012

Neiss
{} - All eouons are granted under the savings-re'ated share option stheme for il constderation on grant and are in respect of S0p ordimary shares 1a Satfour Beatty pk

fuh The closing market price of the Company s orminary shaes on 31 Dacember 2009 was 258 50 Duning the year the highest and lowest clesing manet prices were 342 590 and 244 2p respectvely adustad for the
o stoan Ehment of the nghts issue

{t Both the number af ano exercise onice of savings-=iated share opuons held a1 e tme of the 2009 nghts issuB were ad,usted by a factor of 114825 to recognise the bonus element of the nghts tssue I accordance
with th2 HMRC approved standard formuta

Directors Executive Share Option Scheme grants

Number af oions
Al Grarted Exercised Lapsed At
1 Jamuary during dunng dunng  Adjustment for - 31 December Exercise

Name of Director Date graned 2008 the year the year the year nghts wsue 209 pree Exarcisable fiom Exercisabla to
A J McNaughton 13 Apnl 2000 10,000 - 10,008 - - - 68 8p April 2003 Apnl 2010
7 June 2001 10,000 - - - 1,482 1.482 1741p June 2004 June 2011
17 Apm 2002 20,000 - - - 2,964 22,964 2072p Apnil 2005 Aprit 2012
16 Apni 2003 15,000 - - - 2223 17223 1506p Apnl 2006 Aprl 2013
19 Apri 2004 15,000 - - - 2223 12223 227 3p Apni 2007 Aprl 2014

Nates
Wy Alopuons 2 granted unger the exeniive share opbion scheme for nitconsitderation on grant and are n respect of S0p ominary shates v Baifour Seatty pic

[} The closing market pace of the Company s ordnary shaes on 31 December 2009 was 258 50 Dunng the ysar the highest and lowes! closmg market prices were 342 BSp and 244 2p respectvely fas adjusted for the
1Ights 1s5uE)

fi0) Both the number of and exertise prce of executve share options held at the tame of the 2008 r:ghts 1ssue were atjusted by a factor of 1 14526 t recognise the bonus element of the nghis (ssue In accomance with the
HAMC aoproved standad fomula

aauewanof iy



90 Annuzl report and accounts 2008

Remuneration report

Directors’ pensions

Executive Directors particigate in the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund (the “Fund™) The Fund prowides for a pension at a normal retirement age of 62 for pension purposes
and each Director pays an annual conmbution equal to 5% of contributory satary except where, in the case of Andrew McNaughton the Director partcipates in SMART
Pensions as outlined in nats {in) o the second table below The pension for a Director wha can complete 20 or more years penssonable service at nomal retirement age
15 1argeted at two-thirds of final pensionable salary subject to HMRC hrits With effect fram 8 Apnl 2006 HMRC limits wera changed wath one of the changes being to
no longer use the earnings cap when determining the maximum permissible benefits However the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund has retamed a Fund specific samings
tap for pension purpeses The salanes of Duncan Magrath Andrew McNaughton, Anthony Rabin and fan Tyler were subject to the Fund specific eamings cap for pensian
purpases and details of the Company s contributions to additional arrangements for them are shown in the Dirsctors remuneration table on page 85

The table below sets out the accrued deferred pension which would be paid annuatty from the Fund at normal retrement age based on each executsve Director's service
10 31 December 2009 as well as the additional pension benefit secured in respect of service guning the year

Transfes value
ctaresponding
1o Incrasse
of mfiznon at

Increase n accred defermed I
Accrusd Accrued 31 December
Pensionsbls deferred persondgME Ve dterred 209
Age at service at pension at Increase n penswon gt less Director s
31December 31 December 37 December extess 31December contmbutions
209 2009 2008 Inflaticn of nflation 200 {Note ¢}
Name of Director Years Years fpa tpa £pa £pa £
D J Magrath 45 3 1073 553 3978 15,609 39,703
A J McNaughton 46 12 25018 1451 3099 33,569 30,997
AL P Rabin (see note 1) 54 16 58599 2980 3793 66372 55,836
| P Tyler 49 13 376N 1884 3060 42615 34,853
PJL Zinkin b6 28 203611 10181 4199 217,991 56,157

Notss

fiy The ransfer value of the increase n accrued deferred pension 15 the present valus of the ncrease n exess of wfiauon n the defermed pension and assocatad benefits curng the penod, n accordance with tha transfer
valve regulations lass the Crrector § contniutions

i)  Anthany Ratwn s pensionan’e sevice includes nne years of transfermed-in senace from previous pension grangements
The table below sets out the transfer value at 31 December 2009 of each executive Director's accrued deferred pension at that date as well as the mavement in that

transfer value over the penod The transfer values represent the cash equivalent values that would have been payable from the Fund had the Directors left service on the
dates shown and reflect the age of the Director tus period of membership of the Fund and his pensionable salary

Transfer  Coninbutions tratl‘.rs?:'avsaﬁu"e Transfar

Pensionable valveal madely  gunog the year value at

2 semceat 31 December Director o Dyectors 31 December

31 Dpcember 31 Dacember 2008 duangtheysar  opaoimons 2009

2009 2009 Nate } [hate i {Note 1) {Note )

Narme of ector Years Years £ £ £ £

D J Magrath 45 3 90,263 5333 81,831 178,427

A J McNaughton 45 12 244 306 5333 133 163 383,802

AL P Rabn(note ) L) 16 792,460 6,333 261628 1,060,421

1P Tyler 49 13 383,860 6,333 169 308 564,301

PJL Zinkin 56 2 3025580 21,005 743912 3,790,597
Notes

fi}  The transfer value 15 the present value of the accrued daferred pension and associated benafns a1 the refevant date calculared using the trensfer value basis then n force

i} Andrew MeNaughton hes partcioated n the Company s “SMAAT Persions”™ salary sacnfice arrangarment since 1 Novemper 2008 And-ew MchNaughton s contnbutiors figure ncludes £1,0M6 pad oy the Comparny
wa this anrangement.

{ii} The figure 1§ the differancs hetween the wansfer value of the aceried benedits at the start and end of the penod less the Dirtor § contnou o dunng the penad
in) Anthany Rabns

ON2ME SaNve | e years of transferredn senace from previows pension arangesnants

Remuneration repa
By order of the Board

RJW Walwis
Senior Independent Directofland chat

3 March 2010

of the Remuneration Commitiee




We have auditad the financsal statements of Balfour Beatty plc for the year
ended 31 Decernber 2008 which comprise the Group and Company stataments
of financial performance the Group and Company statements of comprehensve
income the Group and Company statements of changes in equity the Group and
Company statemenis of financial position the Group and Company statements of
cash flows and the related Notes 110 36 The financial reparting framework that
has been applied in their preparation 5 applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely ta the Company s members asa body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Pant 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters

we are required o state to them in an auditors repost and for no other purposa
To the fullest extent penmittad by law we do not accept or assume responsibility
1 anyane other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body for
our audrt work for this repori or for the apinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and audrtors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the Directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibifity 15 10 audi the
financial statements in accordance wath applicable law and Intermational
Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board s [APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditars

Scope of the audit of the financtal statements

An audit Involves ohtaiming evidence about the amounts and distlosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whather the accounting policres are appropnate to
the Group s and the Company s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adeguately d:sclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the Directors and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opimon on financial statements
In our opinion

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s and
of the Company’s affarrs as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group's and the
Company s profit for the year then ended,

— the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs
as adopted by the European Unien and

— the financial statements have been preparad in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group fimancial
statements Article 4 of the (AS Regulavon

M
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Balfour Beatty plc

Opmmon on ather matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimion

— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and

- the information grven in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 15 cons:stent with the finangial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If in our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company o retums
adequate for our audn have not heen received from branches not wisited
byus or

— the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration
repart 1o be audited zre not in agreement with the accounting records and
retums, or

- certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are not made, or

— we have not received all the informanan and explanations we require for
our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

— the Directors statement contained within the Directors report in relation to
going concerm, and

— the part of the Corporate Govemanke Statement relating to the Company s

compliance wath the nine provisions of the June 2008 Combined Code specified

for our review

Mark Beddy {Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalt of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London United Kingdom

3 March 2010
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Group statement of financial performance
For the year ended 31 December 2009

209 2008
Before  Exceptional Betoe  Extemonal
exceptional ttems® exceptional iterms”
nems* {Note 8 Total items” {Note B Total
Notes fm £m £m £m £m m
Revenue including share of joint ventures and associates 10339 - 10,338 9486 - 9 486
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates 15 (1,385) - {1,385) {1,225) - {1 225)
Group revenue 2 8954 - 8,95 8261 - 8261
Cost of sales 8173) - {8.173) {7 628} - (7 628)
Gross profit 781 - 781 633 - 633
Net gperating expenses
- amortisation of intangiblz assets - (48} {48) - (27) (27
—other {582} 63 (519) {478} 51 {427}
Group operating profit 199 15 214 185 24 179
Share of ragults of joirt veniures and associates 15 ] - <] 75 3 72
Profit from operations 4 282 15 297 230 2i 251
Investrent ncome 6 n - K7 43 - 43
Finance costs 7 {47 {15) {62} {24) - (24)
Profit before taxation %7 - 267 249 21 270
Taxation 9 {89) 15 (54} {66) {8t {74)
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 198 15 213 183 13 196
* and amorbisaton of stangdie assets (Note 13}
2009 2008
Notes pence pence
Basic earmings per ordinary share 10 374 374
Diluted earmings per ordinary share 10 373 372
Dividends per ordinary share proposed for the year 11 120 1M1
* Per share numbers have been restated for the bonus elernent of the 2008 nghts sssue {Note 28 2}
Group statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2009
200 208
Nates £m £m
Profit for the year 213 1%
Other comprehensive (expenselfincome for the year
Actuanal losses on retirement benefit obligations (350} (76}
Fair value revaluations — PPP financial assets (80) 102
— PPP cash flow hedges 5 {107
— other cash flow hedges {2) {l
Changes in faw value of net investment hedges 18 {105
Currency translation differences ) 217
Tax relating to compaonents of ather comprehensive income 120 25
Total other comprehensive {expensel/income for the year (366) 55

Total comprehensive (expenselfincome for the year attributable to equrty shareholders 281 {153) 251
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Group statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Equty Stareof (Acturrutated
Called-up Share  component of ot venres Other fossesy/
shame pramum prefarence Special  and associates reserves rstamed  Non-controfing
caprtal account shaes reseve TESErVES {Note 781) prafns miEfests Total

Notes £m £m fm £m £m Em Em £m £m
At 1 January 2008 216 52 16 154 178 9 {152 - 483
Total comprehensive
income for the year 281 - - - - 105 86 79 1 51
Ordinary dwidends - - - - - - {94} - {54)
Joint ventures' and
associates’ dividends - - - - (53) - 83 - -
Issue of ordinary shares 23 2 - - - 161 - - 186
Movements relating to
share-based payments - - - - - 4 8} - {4
Non-controlling
interests asquired - - - - - - - 3 3
Transfers - - - {25} - {161} 186 - -
At 31 December 2008 239 54 16 139 230 79 104 4 B 2
Total comprehensive é
income/texpense) for the year 281 - - - - 9 i81) {121} - 153 2
Ordinary dmdends - - - - - - {63) - 6 &
Jont ventures” and
associates dvidends - - - - {7l - [£) - -
Issue of ordinary shares 104 3 - - - =2 - - 39
Rights 1ssue expenses - - - - - - {3 - {3}
Movemenis relating to
share-based payments - - - - - 1 - - 1
Transfers - - - {107} - (3} 110 - -

At 31 December 2009 281 343 8 16 32 164 288 102 4 1.006
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Company statement of financial performance
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Before  Exceptional Before Exceptional
exteptional ttems exceptional Items
items {Nate 2} Total items [Note 8) Total
Notes tm £m £m fm fm £m
Revenue 2 189 - 189 28 - 28
Net operating expenses (9) 2 N {14) 1 {13}
Profit from operations 180 2 182 14 1 15
Investment income 3] ] - 4 24 24
Finance costs 7 {36 - {36) (83) - (83}
Profit/{Loss} before taxatton 148 150 (45) 1 {44)
Taxatian 9q 18 (1} 17 17 1 16
Profit/{Loss} for the year attributable to equity shareholders 166 1 167 (28) - (28)
Company statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2009
2008 2008
Notes Em fm
Profit/(Loss) for the year 167 {28)
Other comprehensive income/{expense) for the year
Actuarizl losses on retirernent benefit obligations {16} {1)
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive ingome 5 {1
Total other comprehenswe expense for the year (1) {2}
Total comprehensive iIncome/lexpense) for the year attributable to equity shareholders 282 156 {30)
Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2009
Equrty
Called-up Share of Dther
share premium preference Special 1ESEIVES Aetained
capital account shares resene (Note 26 2) profits Total
Notes m fm fm fm £m Em fm
At 1 January 2008 216 52 16 164 18 185 681
Total comprehensive expense for the year 282 - - - - - (30} {30}
Ordinary dwidends - - - - - (54} {54)
Issue of ordinary shares 23 2 - - 161 - 188
Movements relating to share-based payments - - - - i6 {11} 5
Transters - - - {25) (161} 186 -
At 31 December 2008 239 54 16 139 64 276 788
Total comprehensive income for the year 82 - - - - - 156 156
Ordinary dividends - - - - - {63) (63)
Issue of ordinary shares 104 3 - - 252 - 358
Rights 1ssue expenses - - - - - {3 {3}
Movements relating to share-based payments - - - - 4 {3} 1
Transfers - - - (107} (3) 110 -
At 31 December 2009 282 a3 57 16 2 m 1713 1238
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Statements of financial position
At 31 December 2003

Group Company
2009 008 2067 2008 2008
Notes £m fm £m £m £m
Non-current assets
inangible assets - goodwall 12 11 ar” 694 - -
— other 13 298 3 59 - -
Property, plant and equipment 4 315 2% 215 1 1
Investments n joint ventures and associates 15 458 469 381 - -
Investments 16 83 55 57 2,095 1738
PPP financial assets 17 0 151 62 - -
Deferred tax assels 24 183 132 125 4 -
Dervative financial instruments 20 1 K] 3 1 3
Trade and other receivables 21 8 74 77 k1| 31
2818 2378 1,673 2132 1,773
Current assets
Inventonies 18 100 129 72 - -
Due from customers for contract work 19 524 313 338 - -
Dervatve financial msiruments 20 - Vi 1 1 B8 29
Trade and other recenvables v 1,329 118 881 1,057 587 @
Current tax assets 5 - - - 3 §
Cash and cash equivalents — PPP subsidianes 23 10 2 3 - - 7
—other 23 608 461 331 143 5)
2,576 2,166 1,686 1201 728
Total assets 5394 4 544 33k8 3313 2501
Current hiabifroes
Trade and other payables 22 (2.812) {2 168) {1718} {1,898) {1 460)
Due to customers for congract work 19 {581} {540) {415} - -
Derwative financial Instruments 20 {1} {66} {6} n {68)
Current tax liabilities {8} 23 {7} 2 -
Borrowings — PPP nan-recoursea loans 3 {19} - {3 - -
— other 23 {23) 12 {16} {53) (51
{3,044} {2 809) {2,165} (1,854) {1,579)
Non-current kabilties
Trade and other payables 22 {163} {152 {135} {25) {25)
Derwvative financial Instruments 20 (24) (40) {6} {1} (3
Bormowangs - PPP non-recaurse Ipans 23 (238} {145} {61} - -
- other 23 {13} {9 {1} - -
Deferred 1ax liabilties 24 9} {10) ] - m
Liability component of preference shares 27 {88) {87) {67} (88) (87)
Retirement bengfit obligations 25 {586) (261) {286} (18 7
Provisions 26 (222) (166) {128} {9} (11)
{1344) (870) 711) {141} {134}
Total hablibes {4,388) {3679) {2 876} {2.095) 11713)
Net assets 1,006 B85 483 1238 788
Equity
Called-up share capital 27 3 239 216 m 239
Share premium accounit 28 L7 54 52 57 54
Equrty component of preferente shares 28 16 1B 16 1% 16
Special reserve 28 R 139 164 2 138
Share of joint ventures and associates’ reserves 28 164 230 178 - -
Other reserves 78 288 79 9 an 64
Retained profits/faccumulated losses} 28 102 104 {152} m 276
Equity atmbutable to equity holders of the parent 1,002 861 483 1.238 788
Non-controfling mterests 28 4 4 - - -
Total equity 1,006 868 483 1238 788
On behalf of the Board

e
Steve Mars Duncan Magrath
Director A Director

3 March 2010
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Statements of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Group Campany
2009 2008 200 2008
Notes Em fm Em Em

Cash flows from operating activibes
Cashi generated from/{used in) aperations 351 294 237 1 {9)
Incame taxes paid {31) {18) {19 m
Net cash from/lused in} operating activibies 263 279 - (10}

Cash flows from investing actviies
Dmidends recerved from joint ventures and associates 75 53 3 28
Omdends recenved from subsidianes - - 150 -
Interest received 17 27 5 24
Acquisition of businesses net of cash and cash equivalents acquired 23 (300) (302} - -
Purchasa of intangible assats 3} - - -
Purchase of praperty plant and equipment N} (93} m )]
Investment in and loans made to joint venitures and associatas {50} 9 1 -
frvasmmant in subsidianes - = {355) (64
irvastmant in PPP financial assets {95} {81 - -
Settlement of financial denvatives 51 {48) - -
Dispasal of progerty, plant and equipment 19 17 - -
Dispasal of investments 16 2 - -
Net cash used in investing activibes {349) i434) (161) 113)

Cash flows from financing actwites
Proceeds from issue of ordmary shares 356 186 356 185
Purchase of ordinary shares {6 (3 {6) 13)
Proceeds from new loans 121 81 - -
Repaymant of loans @) (18) - =
Repaymant of finance leases K] {2 - -
Ordinary ddends paid {63) {54) (63) {54)
interest paxd {19) 12} {24) {71
Preference dividends paid {n {11} {11} 1
Net cash from financing activibes 3N 157 25 37
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 185 2 L] 14
Effects of exchange rate changes {30) 72 - -
Cash and cash equrvalents at beginning of year 453 319 {n (15}

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 352 608 453 90 {1




Notes to the accounts

1 Pnncipal accounting policies

11 Basts of accounting

The annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as
discussed on page 65 and in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) adopted for use in the European Union and therefore comply with
Artclz 4 of the EU JAS Regulation and with those parts of the Companies Act 26
that are applicable to companies reporung under (FRS The Group has applied all
accounting standards and interpretatians 1ssued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board and Intemanonal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
and adopted by the European Union relevamt to 1ts operations and effective for
accounting penods beginning on 1 January 2009

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except as described under Note 119 The functional and presentasonal currency of
the Company and the presentationat currency of the Group 1s stering The Group
did not have any discontinued aparatians in the current or preceding year

Changes in accounting policies

The adopiion of the following standards hias resulted erther in changas to the
prasentation of the financial statements or to the Group 5 accounting policies in
the current perod

— 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {revised 2007)

— A5 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised 2008}

— (FRS 3 Business Combinations {revised 2008}

— JFRS B Operating Segments and

— Amendments to IFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial Insruments

IAS 1 {revised 2007} requires the presentation of a statement of changes in equity
in the pnmary statements This information was previously disclosed in the notes
1o the financial staternents n addition the Group has elected to present a separate
statement of financial performance and statement of comprehensive Income

The revised standard atso suggests certain changes n tenminology which have
been adopted in these financial statements The mecome statement has been
renamed statament of financial performance, the balance sheet has been

renamed statement of financial pasrtion and the statement of recognised

incemne and expense has been renamed statement of comprehensive ncome

The revisions to IAS 27 (2008) and IFRS 3 {2008} are refated The Group has
decided to adopt this set of revised standards early The main change n accounting
palicy resutting from the revised standards 15 0 expense acquisition costs in the
statenant of financial performance when incurred As aresult the Group has
expensad £16m of acquismon costs in the vear that previously would have been
capitalised within goodwill Non-controlling shareholder interests pravicusly
referred to as minority interests are now referred to as non-controlling inierests

IFRS 8 has replaced 1AS 14 Segment Reparting in the year IFRS B requires that
the Graup s operating segments are identified on the basis of ntemnal reports

that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating dectsion-maker to assess

the performange of the Group s components and to allocate resources to them
IFRS 8 further requires that geographical disclosure for revenues from external
customers focus on the Group's country of domicile and any other matenal country”
as aresult the geographical tables presenited in Note 3 have been re-presented
The new standard also requires certain disclosures about major customers which
have been ncluded in Note 3 Refer to Note 1 5 and Note 3 for further details

The amendments to (FRS 7 have had no effect on the accoenting policies or results
of the Group, however they have resulted n addtuional disclosures in Nete 20 for
the method and valuation techrngue used i determiming the far value of each
class of financial assets and financial labiliues
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1AS 23 Bomowang Costs (revised 2007) Improvements to IFRSs 1ssusd May 2008
IFRIC 11 1FRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions {FRIC 13 Customer
Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 14 IAS 19 The Limnt of a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and thesr Interaction and amendments to IFRS 2
Share-based Payment Vesting Condrions and Canceliations 1AS 37 and 1AS 1
Puttable Anancial Instruments and Obligatans Ansing on Liguidation, 1FRS 1
and IAS 27 Cost of an lnvestment ina Subsidiary Joindy Controlled Entity or
Assoriate 1AS 39 and IFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets Effective Date
and Transiwen, and IFRIC 9 and IAS 33 Embedded Denvaiives also came into
effect and were adopted in the cusrent peniod but had no matenal effect on the
accounuing pokcies or disclosures In these financial statements

Following the acquisition of Parsons Brinckerhoff inc the Group s segments have
been changed as desershed in Note 15 The statement of financsal position
includes comparatve disclosures for 2007 These are required by [AS 1 {revised
2007} when there has been a restatement of items in the financial statements
The changes i the Group s segmentation fal! within this requiremant None of
the information contained n the 2007 statement of financial position has baen
restated Reference should be made to the Directors report and accounts 2008
for 2007 comparative infarmation not presented n these financial statements

Accounting standards not yet adopted by the Group

The following accounting standards interpretations and amendments have been
released by the 1ASB but have erther not been adopted by the European Unionor
are not yet effective in the Eurcpean Union IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, 1AS 24
Related Party Disclosures {revised 2009F IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Interauonal
Financial Reporting Standards (revised 2008), Improvements to IFRSs 1ssued Apnil
2009, IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investmant in & Foreign
Operanon IFRIC 17 Distnbutions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners IFRIC 18 Transfers
of Assets from Customers, IFRIC 19 Extingushing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Insiruments Amendments to 1AS 39 Financial instruments Recogniion: and
Measurement Eligible Hedged ltems, Amendments to IFRS 2 Graup Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions Amendments to IFRS 1 Addinonal Exemptions
for First-tme Adopters Amendments to IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minmum
Funding Requirerment, Amendments to [AS 32 Financial Instruments Presentauon
Classiication of Rights Issues and Amendment to IFRS 1 Linuted Exemption from
Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosuras for First tme Adopters Excapt for IFRS 9 and IFRIC
12 none of these standards, interpretatons or amendments are expected to have
an effect on the accounting policies or distlosures within the financial statements
of the Group

IFRIC 1215 not expecied to have a matenel effect on the Group's financial
statemnants It relates to the accounting for the Group s PPP concessions and
wauld require certain assets constructad by concessions cusrently accounted for
as “available-for-sale” financial assets to be accounted for as intangible assets
IFRIC 12 has been endorsed but was notyet required to be adopted for use 1n the
Eurgpean Union in 2009 The Group wiil adopt IFRIC 12 10 2010

IFRS & Financial Instruments 15 expected to replace |AS 39 Finangial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement effective from 2013 subject 1o EU endorsement.
IFRS 91n 1ssue as at 3 March 2010 only covers the classification and measurement
of financral assets New requirements for the clzssification and measurement of
financial iabilities derecogniuion of financial instruments, impaiment and hedge
accounting are expected 10 be added to IFRS 910 2010 The requirements of IFRS 9
missue as at 3 March 2010 would result in the Group s PPP financial assets being
ieclassified from “available-for-sale” wiuch 1s a category that will no longer

be available under the new standard to a debt instrument measured either at
amortised cost or at fair value through profit or 1oss As a result, movements in

the faur value of PPP financial assets would no longer be recognised i other
comprehensive icome Retrospectve application of this requirement would result
in the clesing balance of fair value movements recogised in PPP financial asset
reserves and share of jont ventures’ and associates reserves of £71m selating

to fair value movements of PPP financial assets currently classified as available
for-sale being transferred from PPP financial asset raserves and share of joint
ventures and associates reseives to retained eamings
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Notes to the accounts

1 Pnneipal accounting pohicies continued

1.2 Bass of consolidation

The Group accounts ingluds the accounts of the Company and its subsidianes
together with the Group's share of the results of joint ventures and associates
drawn up to 31 December each year

a) Subsidiares
Subsidiaries are entoes over which the Group has control being the power 10
govem the financial and eperating palicies of the mvestee entity so as to obtain

henefits from s actvibies The resuits of subsidianes acquired or sold in the year

are consolidated from the sffective date of acquisition o to the effective dase
of disposal

The acquisition method of accourting 1s used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiarias by the Group On acquisition the assets habiliues and contingent

Iiabilities of a subsidiary are measured at therr fair values at the date of acquisition

Any excess of the fair value of the cost of acquisrtion over the farr values of the
identifiable net assets acquired s recogrised as goodwill Any deficiency of the
cost of acquisition below the far values of the identifiable net assets acquired
(discount on acguisitien} 1s eredited to the statement of financial performance in
the penod of acquistuon The interest of non-controlling shareholders 1s stated

at the non-controlling shareholders proporiion of the fair value of the assets and

Iiahilities recognised
Accounting policies of subsidianes are adjusted where necessary to ensure

consistancy with those used by the Group All intra-group transactions balances

income and expenses are eliminated on censolidation

b Joint ventures and assaciates
Joint vemyees are those entities over which the Group exercises joint contrel

through a contractual arrangement. Associates are entities over which the Group

1S 1n a positean to exercise sigruficant influence, but does not control or exercise
joint control through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investes

The results, assets and liabilties of joint ventures and associates are (ncorporated

i the financial statements using the equity method of accounting except when

classified as held for sale The equity retum from the miditary housing jeint ventures
of Balfour Beatty Communities 1s contractually temited to @ maximum pre-agreed

level of retum beyond which Ballour Beatty Communities does not share n any
further retumn

Any excess of the fair value of the cost of acquisition aver the Group's share of the
fair values of the identifiable net assets of the associate or joint venture entity at
the date of acquisition 1s recognised as gaodwill Any deficiency of the far value of
the cost of acquisition below the Group's share of the fair values of the identifiable
net assets of the Joint vanture or associate at the date of acquision {discount an

acqusition) 1s credied to the staement of fingncial performance in the penod
of acguisinon

Investments in joint ventures and associates are mitrally camed in the statement
of financial position at cost {including goodwall arsing on acqrsitont and adjusted

by posi-acquisiaon changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the jont
venture o associate less any impairment in the value of individual investments

Lasses of joint ventures and associates in excess of the Group’s interest in those
Jont ventures and associates are only recogrused 1o the extent that the Group 1
contractually habfe for or has a constructive obligation to meet, the obligations of

the joint ventures and associates

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions with joint ventures and associates
are elmunated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant joint venture
Or associate

¢} Jountly controlled operations

The Group s share of the results, assets and liabities of contracts camed out
in conyunction wath anather party are included under each relevant heading in
the staterent of financial performance and statement of financial position

1.3 Foreign currencies

Transacuons in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the
date of the transaction Monatary assets and abilties denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange at the reporting date
Signsficant exchange rates used in the preparation of these financial statements
are shown in Not2 128

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements the results of
foreign subsidianes associates and joint venture entities are translated at average
rates of exchange for the year unless the exchange rates fluctuate significantly
dunng that penod inwhich case the exchange rates at the date of transactons
are used Assets and liabiies are ranslated at the rates of exchange prevaifing at
the reporting date Goodwall and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and fiabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the rates of exchange at the reporting date Currency translation
differences ansing are transferred 1o the Group s foreign currency transtation
reserve These currency translation differences are recognised n the statement

of financial performance an disposal of the underlying Investment.

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange nsks, the Group enters
o forward exchange contracts See Note 1 19{b} for details of the Group s
accounting palicies i respect of such dervative financial instiuments Changes in
the fair value of derwvatmves that are designated as hedges of net investments in
foreign operations are recogmised i the statement of comprehensive income to
the extent that they are effactive, with the ineffectrve perbion being recognised in
the statement of financial performance

14 Revenue recognrtion

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the conswderation recenved or recervable
for goods and services provided, net of trade discounts, valug added and similar
sales-based taxes after elimunating revenue within the Group Revenue 1S
recognised as {ollows

— revenue from construction and service activities reprasents the value of work
carned out dunng the year, including amounts not invoiced

— revenue from manufacturing activities 1s recognised when title has passed, and

— intarest income 1s accrued on a ume basis by reference to the pnncipal
outstanding and the effectve interest rate applicable which s the rate that
exactty discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expectad hife of
the financial asset i that asset’s net carmying amount. Dividend income 1s
recognised when the shareholder's nght to recesve payment 1s established

15 Segmental reporting

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 Operaung Segments in the year The standard
introduces the sequirement to disclose reported segments in accardance with the
nternal reports rowided to the Group’s chief operating deeiston-maker The Group
considers its Board of Directors to be the cheef operating decision-maker and
therefore has aligned the segmental distlosures prowided 1n Note 3 with the
monthty reports provided to the Board of Directors The Group’s segmentation

and 1ts internal reporis have been revised following the acguisition of Parsons
Brnckerhoff Inc in October 2009 The segmentation was changed from the Group's
previous segments whech were Buitding bulding management and services

Cwal and specralist engineenng and services Rail enginegning and services and
Investments The new reporing segments reflect the increased prominence of
professional services, the core capabiities of the enlarged Group and the strateqic
obsectives of the Group The Group § rewised segments have been based on

the types of senices provided Operating segments with simitar economic
charactenstics have been aggregated into four reportable segments The new
segments are Professional sennces, Construction services, Support services,
Infrestructure investmants and Corporate actmvities The definitson of gach
teportable operating segment has been provided i Note 3 Further information

on the business actvities of each reportable operating segment are set out on
pages 37 to 55




1 Principal accounting policies continued

1.5 Segmental reporting continted

Warking capital 15 the statement of financial posrion measure reported to the
chuef operating decision-maker The profitability measure used to assess the
performance of the Group 1s profit from operations before exceptional tems
and amortisatton of intangible assets

Seqment results represent the comnbistion of the different segments afiar
attributable corporate overheads Transachons between segments ave conducted
at am's length market prices Segment assets and habilies compnise those assets
and hiabiltras dwectly stinbuiable to the segments Corporate assats and hiabilties
inchude cash balances bank borrowings tax batances and dvidends payable

Mayor customers are defined as customers contnbuting more than tan parcent
of the Group's extemal revenue

1.6 Construction and service contracts

When the gutcome of iIndidual contracts can be estmated relably contract
revenue and contract costs are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively
by reference to the stage of complation at the reporting date The stage of
completian 1s measured by the proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date to the estimated total contract costs or the propartion of the
value of work done to the total value of work under the contract. Full prevsion is
rade for atl known or expected losses on indmdual contracts once sech losses
are foreseen Revenua in respect of variatons to contracts, claims and incentive
payments are recognised when it 1s probabie it will be agreed by the client
Profit for the year includes the benefit of claims settled on contracts completed
IN Previous years

Pre-contract costs are expensed as ncurred until it1s virtually certain that a
contract will be awarded, from which time further pre-contract costs are
recogn:sed as an asset and charged as an expense over the penod of the
contract Amounts recovered in respect of pre-contract costs that have been
written-off are deferred and amortised over the Iife of the contract

17 Profit from operations

Profit fram operanons 15 stated after the Group s share of the post-tax results of
equity acceunted sint venture entiies and associatas, but before investment
income and finance costs

1.8 Finance costs

Finance costs of debt including premiums payeble on setdement and direct Issue
casts are charged to the statement of financial performance on an accruals basis
aver the term of the instrument, using the effective interest method

1.9 Research and development
Research expenditure 15 wntien-ofi in the period in wiuch it 1$ incurred

Intemally-generated intangible assets developed by the Group are recognised only
if alt the following condiions are met:

- anassetis created that can be denirfied
— 1uis probable that the asset created will generate future econonuc benefits, and
— the development cost of the asset can be measured rehably

110 Exceptional items

Maiterial and non-recsming rtems of ncome and expense are disclosed in the
statement of financral performance as “Excepbonal items™ Examples of items
which mdy give nise ta disclosure as “Exceptional items™ include gans or losses on
ihe disposal of businesses, investments and property, plant and equipment costs
of restructuring and regrganisation of exX1sUNgG busiNesses, acquISILoN expenses

of newly acquired businesses costs of integrating newdy acquired businasses,
premium pad on the repuichase of preference shares, igation and regulatory
settlements assetimpaiments and pension scheme settlements and curtariments
and other matenial non-recurring pansin movements
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111 Taxation

The tax charge compnses current tax and deferred tax calculated wsing tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date Curent tax
and deferred tax are changed of credited to the statement of financial performance
except when they relate to tems charged or credited directly to equity 1n which
case the refevant tax is also daalt with n equity Curent tax 1s based on the profic
for the year

Defemed tax 1s provided in full using the hiability method on temporary differences
anising batween the tax bases of assets and liabilries and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements Defered t@ax on such assets and habilres 1§ not
recognised 1§ the temporary difference anses from the initial recognition of
goodwall or from the intial recognition {othes than in a business combination) of
other assets and hiabiliues in a ransaction that affects naither the taxable profic
nor the accounting prefit

Defermed tax assets are recognised to the extent that st 1s probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be uithised The carrying ameunt of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at gach
reporung date

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences ansing an investments in
subsidianes, joint ventures and associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can he controlied by the Group and itis
prabable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresesable future

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when they relate to income taxes
levied by the sama taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilies on a net basis

112 Intangble assets

al Goodwill

Goodwalt represents the excess of the fair value of consideration over the faur

value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, ansing on the acquisiton

of subsidiaries and other businesses joint ventures and associates Goodwaill on
acquisstions of subsidianes and other businesses 15 included in non-current assets
Goodwill on acquissions of joint ventures and associates 1s inciuded in Investments
in joint ventures and associates

Goodwall 1s reviewed annuglly for tmpairment and s carmed at cost lass
accumutated impaiment losses Goodwill 1s included when determining the
profit or loss on subsequent dispasal of the business to which it relates

Goodwall ansing on acquisiions before the date of ransiion 1o IFRS (1 January
2004) has been retaned at the previous UK GAAP amounis subject to being tested
for impaiment. Goodwill written-off or negative goodwill credited to reserves
under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and 1s not included in
detesruring any subseguent profit or loss on dispasal

b) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
imparment losses The cost of other inangible assets 1s amorused over therr
expected useful ives which range from one to ten years except for Intangible
assets i respect of military housing contracts, which are amoriised on a basts
matchung the retum eamed over the ife of the underlying contracts which have
a duration of up to 50 years

113 Property, plant and equipment

Praperty plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumutated depreciation
and any recogmised impairment loss Cost includes expenditure associated with
bringing the asset to 11s operating location and condition Certain tand and
buildings were revalued under UK GAAP On transition to IFRS, the Group has
elected to use the revalued amount as deemed cost.

Except foriand and assets in the course of consiruction, the costs of property,
plant and equipment are depreciated over their expected useful Ives, on a
straight-line basts at rates of 2 5% for buildings or aver the term of the lease
and on a straight-fine bas:s at rates of 4% to 33% for plant and equipment

SJUNO2E INQ
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114 Leasing

Leases which transfer substantally all of the nsks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee are classified as finance laases All other leases are classified as
operaung lzases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their
farr value or if lower at the present value of the mimmum lease payments
determined at the inception of the lease and depreciation 1s provided accordingly
The liability to the lessor 1s included in the statement of financial posttion as a
finance iease obiiganon Lease payments are apporuoned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease abhigation so as to achieve a constant effective
rate of interest an the remaining balance of the hability

Rentals payable under operating |eases are charged to income on a sraight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease Benefits receved and recevable as an
Incentive to enter Into an operating lease are also spread on a straight line basis
over the lease term

115 Impaimment of assets

Goodwill arising on acquisitions and other assets that have an mdefnite useful life
and are not subject to amortisation are reviewed at least annually for mpainment,
(Other intangible assets and property plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever there 1$ any indication that the carmying amount of the asset
may not be recoverable If the recoverable amount of an asset 1s less than its
carrying amount, an impainment loss 1s recogmsad

Recoverable amount 15 the lugher of far value less costs te sell and valug in use
Value in use 1s assessed by discaunting the estimated future cash flows that
the asset is expected to generate For this purpose assets, mcluding goodwall,
are grouped into cash generating units representing the level at which they

are monutored by the Board of Directors for intemal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment lossas are not reversed i subsequent perods

Reversals of other impairment losses are recognised in income when they anse

116 Investments

Investments are recogmised and derecognised on the trade date where a purchase
or sale of an Investment 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the tmeframe established by the market concerned, and are
initially measured at cost, including transaction costs

From 1 January 2005, investments are classified as either available-for sale or
held to maturity Available-for-sale investments are measured at subsequent
reporting dates at fair vaflue Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair
value of avallable-for sale nvestments are recognised directly in equity, until
the investment 1s disposed of or 1s detemmined to be imparrad at which time
the cumulative gain ar loss 1s included in the net prafit or lass for the penod
Held to maturity invesiments are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
amortised cost

t 17 Non-cumrent assets held for sale

Non-current assets and groups of assets 10 be disposed of are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use Held for sale assets are measured at the lower of
carrying amount and farr value less costs to sell

118 Inventories
Inventones are vatued at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Where appropriate cost includes a propertion of manufacturing averheads incurred
In bringing inventaries to thes present location and condition and 15 determined
using the first-in first-out method Net realisable value represents the estimated
seliing price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred Ir
marketng selling and distnbution

1 1% Financial instruments

Financral assets and financial habilties are recogrised in the Group's statement
of financial pasiton when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument

a) Cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares

The Company s cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares are

a compeound instrument, consisting of a tiabilty companent and an equity
companent The fair value of the kability campanent was esumated using the
pravailing market interest rate at the date of 1ssue for @ similar non-convertible
instrument The difference between the proceeds of issue of the preference shares
and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing the embedded
aption 1o convert the hability mto the Company s ordinary shares, 1s included in
equity The interest expense on the liability component 1§ calculated by &pplying
the markat tnterest rate for similar non-convertible debt prevailing at the date of
issue to the hability companent of the instrument. The difference between this
amount and the diwidend paid 1s added to the carrying amount of the hability
component and 1s included in finance charges, together with the dividend pavable

b Denvatwve financial mstruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses dernvative financial instruments to manage interest rate nsk and
1o hedge exposures to fluctuations in fareign currencies and commadity prices in
accordance with its nisk management pelicy The Group does nat use dervauve
financial instrimants for speculative purposes A description of the Group s
abyactives, policies and strategies with regard to derivatives and other financial
instrumants 1s set out i Note 20 and in the Financial review on page 66

Denvatives are inmally recognised in the statement of financial position at fair
value on the date the denvative transaction is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at therr fair values

Changes n the fair vaiue of dervatives that are designated and qualify as far
value hedges are recognised in the statement of financial parformance together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedgad tem that are attnbutable to the
hedged nsk

Changes I the fair value of the effective porvon of denvatives that are designated
and gua!ify as cash fiow hedgas are recognised in equity Changes in the fair value
of the ineffective partion of cash flow hedges are recogmsed m the statement

of financial performance Amounts accumulated in equity are transferred to the
statement of finanial perfomance when the underlying transaction accurs of,

if the transacnion iesults in a non-financial asset or liability, are included in the
initial cost of thet asset or liability

Changes in the fair value of the effective portion of denvatives that are designated
and qualify as hedges of net Investments in foreign operations are recognised n
equity Changes in the fair value of the ineffective portion of net investment hedaes
are recogrised in the statement of financial performance Amounts accumulated in
equity are transferred 1o the statement of financial performance upon drsposal of
the foreign operation
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1 19 Financial instruments continued

bj Denvatwve financial snstruments and hedge accounting continued

Changes in the farr value of dervative financial instruments that do nat qualify
for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of finantial performance
as they arise

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s soid
terminated or exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that time,
any cumulatrve gam or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity s
retained in equity until the forecasted transaction eccurs | a hedged sansaction
15 no longer expectad to occur, the net cumulatrve gawn or loss recogrused in egquity
1s transferred ta net prafit or loss for the penod

Denvatives embeddad in other financial mstruments or other host contracts are
treated as separate denvatves and recorded on the siatement of financial positian
at fair value when their nsks and characienstics are not closely related to those

of the host contract Changes in the fair value of those embedded dervatves
recogised in the statement of finaneial posttion are recogrused i the statement
of financial performance as they anse

¢} PPP concession comparies
Assets construcied by PPP concession companies are classsfied as available-for-
salfe financial assets

In the construction phase, income 1s recogmised by applying an attmbutable profit
margin on the construction costs representing the fair value of construction
services In the operational phase, income 15 recogrused by allocating a proportion
af total cash recewed aver the life of the project to serice costs by means of a
deemed constant rate of retum on those costs The residual element of projected
cashis allocated to the financial asset, using the effective interest rate method
gving nse 10 interest income Due 10 the nature of the coatractual arangements
the projected cashftows can be estmated withi a high degree of cerainty

In the construction phase the fair value of the Group s PPP financial assets 1s
determined by applying an attributable profit margin that represents the fair
value of construction services performed In the operational phase fair valug 1s
deterrined by discounting the future cashflows allocated to the financial asset
using assumptions in respeci of the discount rates which are based on long-temn
gilt rates adjusted for the nsk levels associated with the assets The subsequant
moverments in the farr value are taken to equity

1.20 Trade receivables
Trade recevables are inially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured
atamortised cost as reduced by allowances for estimated irecoverable amounts

121 Trade payables
Trade payahles are not interesi-beanng and are stated at their nominal valie

122 Bank borrowings

Interest-heanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds receved
net of dwect 1ssue costs Finance charges ncluding premiums payable on
settlement ar redernption and direct 1ssue costs are charged to ncome onan
accruals basis using the effective Interest method and are added to the carmying
amount of the nstrument to the extent that they are not seitled in the penod In
which they anse
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123 Retirement henefit costs

The Group, through trustees operates a number of defined benefit and defined
contnbutien pension schemes the majanty of which are of the defined benefit type
and are funded Defined benefit contrbitions are determnined in consultation with
the trustees after taking actuarial advice

For defined benefit retrement benefit schemes the cost of providing benefits
recogmsed in the statement of financial performance and the defined benefit
obhgations are determined at the reparting date by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method The liability recogrised in the statement of
finangial posiion compnises the present valie of the defined benefit pension
obligation determined by discousting the estmated future cash flows using

the market yield on a high quakity corporate bond lass the fair value of the plan
assets Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in full in the penod in which
they occur outside the statement of financial performance in the statement of
comprehensive (ncome

Contributians to defined contrbution pension schemes are charged to the
statement of inancial performance as they fall dua

1.24 Provisions

Prowisions for emvironmental restoration, legal claims, onerous leases and ather
onerous commitments are recognised at the best estmate of the expenditure
required to setile the Group s hability Provisions are recogrised when the Group
hes a present iegal or constructive ohligatson as a resull of a past event, it1s
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount of the obligation can be estirmated rehably

1.25 Financial abiltes and equity mstruments

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the
substance of the contractual amangements An equity Istrument 1S any contract
thai evidencas a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its hahiiies. Fryurty instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
praceeds recetved, net of direct 1ssue costs

siunoxe InQ

1.26 Share-hased payments

Employee services receved in exchange for the grant of share optians
performance share plan awards and daferred bonus plan awards since

7 November 2002 are charged in the statement of financial performance on a
straight-line basis ever the vesting penod, based on the fair values of the options
or awards at the date of grant and the numbers expected 0 become exercisable
The credits in respect of the amounts charged are included within separate
reserves In equity until such time as the opoions or awards are exercised, when
the proceeds received in respect of share options are credited to share capital
and share premuum or the shares held by the employee trust are transferred to
employees In respect of performance share plan awards and deferred bonus
plan awards

1.27 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consohdated financial statements under IFRS requires
management to rmake estmates and assumptions thai affect amounts recognised
for assets and liabihiues at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and
expense (ncurred duning the reporung period Actual outcomes may therefore
differ from these estimates and assumptons The estimates and assumptions
that have the most significant impact on the carrying value of assets and kabiliues
of the Group within the next financial year are discussed below and in the
Financral review
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127 Key sources of estrmation uncertainty continued

2} Revenue and margin recognition

The Group s revenue recognition and margin recognition pokicies, which are set
out in Notes 14 and 16 are central to the way the Group values the work 1t has
carried out in each financial year These policies require forecasts to be made of
the outcomes of long-term professional service construction service and suppart
service contracts which require assessments and judgements to be made on
recovery of pre-contract costs changes in work sCopes contract programmes,
maintenance habiliies and changes tn costs

bl Recoverable value of recognised recenvables

The Group has recognised trade recenvables with a carrying value of £972m

The recaverability of trade recewvables 1s regularty reviewed and specific prowisions
are recogmised for balances consadered to be ivecoverable The rirecoverable
amouins are esumated based on reviewang the avarlable economic information
specific to each recenvable

¢} Impairment of goodwil

Determining whether goodwall 1 impaired requires an estmation of the value
inuse of the cash generating units to which the goodwill has been aliocated

The valug in use calculation requires an estimate to be made of the timing and
amount of future cash flows expected to anse from the cash generating unit and
the application of a suitable discount rate m order to calculate the present value
The discount rates used are basad on the Group's weighted average cost of
capital adjusted to reflect the specific economic environment of the relevant cash
generating uni. The carrying value of goodwill at 31 December 2009 was £1,131m

d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Assets constructed by the Group s PPP subsidiary, joint veniture and associate
companies are classified as “available-for sale financial assets” and at

31 December 2009 had a value of £2175m The farr value of these financial assets
1s measured at each reporting date by discounting the future value of the cash
flows allocated to the financial asset A range of discount rates varying from
645% 0 945%, 1s used which reflects the prevailing nsk-free interest rates and
the different nisk profiles of the vanous concessions An £80m loss was taken to
equity 1n 2009 as a result of movements n the fair value of these financial assets

€} PPP dervative financial instruments

The Group's PPP subsidiary joint venture and associate companies use denvative
financial Instruments principally swags to manage the interest sate and mflation
rate neks 10 winch the concessions are exposed by thewr long-temm conactual
agreements These tenvauves are initially recogmisad as assets and liabilities at
therr farr vatue and subsequentty remeasured at each reporting date at their faw
value The fair value of dervatives constantly changes in response to prevariing
market conditions At 31 December 2008, a curnulative fair value loss of £154m
had ansen on these financial nstiuments and a gam of £5mwas taken to equity
n 2009

f Impasmient of mvestments in joint ventures and associates

Investments In joint ventures and associates are reviewed for impaiment at the
reporing date Determining whether an investment balance 1s impaired requies an
esumation of the value in use of the joint veniure or associate The value n use
calculauon requires an estimate to be made of the tming and amount of future
cash flows expected 10 anse from the joint venture or associate and the application
of a suiiable discount rate in order to calculate the present value The discount
rates used are based on the Groug s weighted average cost of capital adjusted to
reflect the specific economic environment of the relevant joint venture or associate

g) Retirement benefit obligations

Detadls of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes are set out n Note 25
including a table showng the seasitivity of the pension scheme obligations

and the prospective 2010 charge to the statement of financial performance o
different actuanial assumptions At 31 December 2008 the defined benefit liability
recogmised on the Group's statement of financeal position was £585m {2008
£261m} Effects of changes in the actuarial assumptions underlying the benefis
obligation, discount rates and the differences between expected and actual returns
on the schemes” assets are classified as actuarial gains and losses Dunng 2009
the Group recogrised net actuanal losses of £350m in equity (2008 £76m)
mcluding its share of the actuenal gains and losses ansing 1n joINt ventures

and associatas

h) Taxation
The Group 1s subject 1o tax ina number of junsdictions and judgement 1s reguired
n detemining the woridwide provision for Income taxes

The Group provides for future ialities i respect of uncertain tax positions where
addional tax may become payable in future periods and such provisions are based
on management's assessment of expasures

As set out in Note 111 above, deferred tax 1s accounted for on temparary
differences using the hability method, with deferred tax habilities generally being
prowded for m full and defered tax assets being recogrised to the extent that itis
prohable that future taxable profits will be available aganst which the temporary
differences can be utihsed Nota 24 2 datails the unused tax losses for which
deferred tax assets have not heen recognised and the undistnbuted reserves of
subsidianes, joint venture entibes and associates for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been provided together with the judgements which the Group has made
at 31 December 2009 n respect of these matters These judgements may change
in the future and they will be reviewed at each reporung date

1.28 Exchange rates
The followang key exchange rates were applied in the preparation of these
financial statements

Average raies
£1buys 2008 206 Change
USs 156 186  (16/%
EUR 112 126 (1%
Closing rates
£ibuys 2009 2008 Change
uss 162 146 1%
EUR 113 105 8%
2 Revenue
Group Goup Compamy  Company
208 2008 2009 2008
£m £m Em £m
Revenue from the prowision of services 8,797 g8 - -
Revenue from manufactunng activities 139 143 - -
Proceeds from salz of development land 18 - - -
Brwdands from subsidianes - - 150 -
Brwdends from joint ventures
and assoriates - - 29 28
8954 8,261 189 28
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3 Segment analysis
The reportabfe segments of the Group are

— Professional services the prowision of project management, architectural, design or other technical services performed by the Group as consultants
— Construchion sennces. activities resuting in the physical construction of an asset

— Supportservices activiiies which support existing assets or functions such as faciliies management, asset mainienance and standard renewal works
— Infrastructure investments acquisition, aperation and disposal of infrastruciure assets such as PPP concessions airports and power stations

3 1Total Group

Professional  Construction Support  Int Corp
sevices senaces SEVICES (nvestments attnties Toeal
209 209 2 29 a8 2000
£m fm Em £m tm £m
Performance by actnaty
Revenue tncluding share of jont ventures and associates before
inter-segment elimnations 567 1818 1,509 830 18 19,742
Inter-segrent revenye {9) {327) {66) {1) - (403}
Revenue icluding share of jomnt ventures and associates £58 7491 1,443 829 18 10,339
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates {5) {673) (140) {567) - 38y 2
Group revenug 553 6818 1303 262 18 8,954 g
Graup operating profrifloss) 13 L:<] 50 (12) (35} 1 £
Share of results of jomt ventures and associates - 2 5 54 - T
ProfitAloss} from operations before exceptional items and amortisation 13 207 55 12 {35} 282
Exceptional items Z3) (16} 3 n 100
Amortisation of intangible assets {8 {20} {2 {18} - {48)
Profit/(less) from operations (18) 1 56 3 65 297
Investment income 32
Finance costs (62)
Profit before taxation X7
Assets and labiliies
Due trom customers for contract work 13 9 L] - - 524
Due to customers for coniract work {108) {as7) {16) - - (581)
Invenitones 10 42 4 - - 100
Trade and other recewvables — curmrent 281 860 127 47 14 1329
Trade and other payables — current (325) {1.,748) (238) (42) {59) 24912)
Provisions {22) {143) (38) - 19) {222)
Working capial 3M (1,107} (65) 5 {64) {1.262)
Total assets 812 2493 380 862 842 5394
Total iabifities (563) (2.765) (48) {1y (549) {4,388)
Net assets 248 {2%7) (&) ™ 293 1,006
Other information
Caprtal expendrture 2 55 10 3 1 n
Impaimment of inventory, property, plant and equipment - 4 - - - 4
Depreciation 2 50 13 2 2
United United Rest of
Kingdom States waortd Total
2009 2009 2 ]
Performance by geographic destination £m £m £m £m
Group revenue 57364 283 753 8954
Non-current assets excluding financiat mstruments and deferred tax assets 1,014 824 365 243
Mayor customers

Included i Group revenue are reverues of £2 832m {2008 £2,515m} from the UK Government and £1,605m {2008 £1,122m) from the US Government, which are
considered te be the Group s two largest customers These balances are included in the resulis across all four reported segments
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31Total Group continued
Professional Const.ucton Suppot  Infrastructure Comorate
SeNVICES SeNICES SBIVICES mvestments actniies Totel
2008* 2008” 2008 2008* 2008° 2008°
fm £m £m fm £m fm
Performance by activity
Revenue including share of joint ventures and associates before
Inter-segment eliminations 298 7368 1812 953 - I8N
Inter-segment revenue (B) (273 {64) - - (345)
Revenue including share of jont ventures and associates 250 7,095 1548 553 - 9436
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates - {702 (1300 {393} - {1225)
Group revenue 290 6393 1418 160 - 8 261
Group operating prafitfloss) 14 146 48 9 (34} 155
Share of results of ot ventures and 2ssoniaies - Al 4 50 - IE
Profit/tloss) from operations before exceptional items and amortisation 14 167 52 K] {34} 230
Exceptional tems - {6} - {5 59 48
Amortisation of intangible assets {1} (15) (2) {9) - {27}
Profit from operations 13 148 50 17 25 251
Investment ncome 43
Finance costs {24)
Profit before taxation 2N
Assets and labilibes
Due from customers for contract work 1 307 75 - - 383
Due to customers for contract wark 123} {493} (24} - - {540
inventories - - 52 60 - 13 125
Trade and other recevables — current 1 932 129 49 22 1,193
Trade and other payables —current {75} (1,756) {254} {36) {47) {2,168)
Provisions () {109) {31} - (25) {166)
Waorking capiial 37} {1,067) {45) 13 {37 {1,173}
Total assets 6 2,598 129 801 630 4544
Total labihties {108) 12,604) {364} {hn {486) 13,8751
Net assets (22) {6) 65 684 144 865
Other infermaton
Caprtal expenditure 1 79 1" 1 1 93
Depreciation 1 43 13 1 2 65
Linted United Rest of
Performance by geographic destination £m £m fm £m
Group revenug 5,509 2211 541 8,261

Non-current assats excluding financial mstruments and deferred tax assets 1,015 663 28 1963
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3 Segment analysis continued
31 Total Group continued
Professional ~ Construction Support  Infrastructure Corporate
SENICES Services SENVICES IMESIMENTS Amtes Towal
007 2007 207 2007* 2007 2007
fm £m fm Em £m fm
Assets and habifves
Due from customers for coniract work 1" 249 78 - - 338
Due to customers for coniract work {30} (364} (21} - - {415}
inventorigs - H ki) - - 72
Trade and other receivables - current N 695 116 17 22 881
Trade and other payablas — current (374 (1,354} {255} (22} (50 (178}
Provisions - {48} 13 - {67) {128
Waorking capital {25) {787} {58) {5} {95) {970)
* Ae-presemed refer Note 15
3.2 Infrastructure investments (Batfour Beatty Caprtal and Balfour Beatty Communites) -
Share of joint Share of jont =
ventures and ventures and @
Group  essociates Toml Group B5S0CIA1ES T B
2009 2009 008 2008 2008 2008 £
£m Em £m tm fm fm =
Revenue
PPP
— jeint ventures and associates (Note 152} - 472 472 - 93 293
—subsidianes {Note 3 3) 125 - 125 a5 - 35
Miliary housing kL - 131 63 - 63
256 an 728 158 293 451
Infrastructure
— joint ventures and associates {Note 152} - s 85 - 100 100
— subsiharies b - ] 2 - 2
262 567 124 160 393 553
Shars of ot Shar of som
ventures and vertures and
G% associates Total Group associates ol
2008 20 2008 2008
£m £m [ Em Em £m
Profit from operations — before excepuonal tems and amortisaton
of ntangible assets*
PPP
— jaunt ventures and associates {Nate 152) - n n - 3 31
- subsidiaries (Note 3 3} 1 - 1 i - 1
~ bidding costs and overheads {30 - {30) {271 - {27
Miliiary housing
— Joint ventures and assocrates (Note 152) - [ 4 - 2 2
— subsidiaries 20 - 2 10 - 10
{9) 3B % {16} 3 17
Infrasiructure
— joint ventures and associates {Note 15 2 - 19 19 - 17 17
— subsidiaries (3) - {3 {3) - {3}
(12) 54 a2 {19) 50 k]|

* Profit from operabons before excepuonal ftems and amorisation of umangible assets nchudes the Group s shae of profit afier axauan of joni vantres and assocenes (exchud-ng exceptional nems and amorisaton of
ntangble assets)
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Share of josnt Share of jont
ventures and ventures and
Group associates Total Gmup assocates Total
2009 2009 2008 2008
£m £m £m Em Em fm
Net assets
PPP
— Joint ventures and associates (Note 152 and 15 3} - 242 22 - 253 253
— subsidiaries {Note 3 3) 38 - 238 118 - 118
Milnary housing
— joint ventures and associates {Note 15 2) -~ 36 46 - 48 48
— subsidianes 163 - 163 199 - 199
am 288 N7 m 618
Infrastructure
~ Jont ventures and associates (Note 15 2) - 87 87 - B4 84
—subsidianes 9 - 8 10 - i0
10 315 785 327 385 72
Infrastructure investments central functions (39 - (34) {28 - {28}
Total infrastructure investmeants net assets 376 k7L ™ 299 385 684
et borrgwings in retation 1o PP subsidianes {288} - (248) 143 - {143)
128 3% 503 156 385 541

33 PPP concession subsidianes

The Group has a 100% interest in five PPP concessions through its shareholdings in Connect Roads Sunderland Holdings Ltd Connect Acads South Tyneside Holdings
Ltd, Connect Roads Derby Holdings Ltd Transform Schools {Knowslay} Holdings Ltd and Connect CNDR Haldings Ltd The performance of the whally-owned PPP
concessions and therr statements of financial posiuon are summansed below:

2009 2008
£m fm
Statement of financial performance
Group revenue 15 35
Profit from aperations 1 1
[nvestment income 13 7
Finance costs {13) (8)
Profit before taxation 2 2
Taxation ] (1)
Profit for the year 1 1
Cash flow
Profit from operations 1 1
Oecrease in working caprtal 2 3
Income taxes paid - -
Net cash inflow from operating actmties 3 4
Net cash outflow from investing actvities {94) {80)
Net cash outflow from financing actvities {14 (5}
Net cash outflow {105) {82)
Net borrowings at beginning of year {143) {61}
Net barrowangs at end of year (248) {143}
Statement of financial positton
PPP financial assets {Nota 17) 260 151
Demvative financial instruments 29) {39)
(Other netcurrent assets 2 ]
38 118
Cash and cash equivalents 10 2
Non-recourse term loans {258) (145)

Net habilities 10) {25)
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4 Profit from operations
4 1 Profit from operations 15 stated after chargingficrediting)
2009 208
£m £m
Research and development costs 4 4
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 69 85
Amortisation of other intangible assets 43 27
Impaiment of trade recewvables 3 5
Impairment af inventory 2 -
Impaiment of property plant and equipment 2 -
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment {4 4
Cost of inventory recognised as an expense 161 99
Exchange losses/{gans) 1 1
Auditars” remuneration 10 5
Hire charges for plant and equipment 8 120
Other operating lease rentals 75 8 e
42 Analyss of auditors’ remuneration g
2009 i ¢ I
£m £m 4
Services as auditors 07 07
Other services — audiuing fmancial statements of subsidianes 34 29
41 36
Amounts for statutory and regulatory filings 15 02
Audit and other assurance fees 56 38
Other tees
Taxation 18 02
Due thlrgence and acquisinon refated services 26 20
Other 03 01
Totat fees in relation to audit and other services 103 61
Acquisttion due diligence fees capitalised - i1
Fees in refation to audn and other services recognised within expenses 103 50
5 Employee costs
51 Group
Employes costs dunng the year amountad to
09 208
£m fm
Woages and salanes 1.616 1416
Redundancy 16 8
Social securtty costs 160 133
Pension costs {Note 25 1) n 73
Share-based paymenss (Note 30 1} 7 g

1870 1,639
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5 Employee costs conttnued

5.1 Group continued
The average number of Group emplovees (including executive Directors) was

b.iic] 2008

Number Number

Professional services 3,644 1454
Construction services 2211 21,964
Support services 14,945 15,081
Infrastructure invesiments 1327 913
Corporate 140 113
42,297 39525

At 31 December 2009 the total number of Group employees was 51,543 {2008 41 030}
5.2 Company

The average number of employees of Balfour Beatty ple was 131 (2008 104} Total employee costs of Baifour Beatty plc were £26m (2008 £23m) Total employes costs
comprise wages and salares £19m {2008 £16ml social securty costs £2m {2008 £1m) pension costs £2m (2008 £2m) and share based payments £3m {2008 £4m)

6 Investment income
S I R
£m fm Em fm
PPP subordinated debt interest recevable L} 12 2 4
PPP interest on financiai assets 14 7 - -
Income ansing from dervatives designated as hedges of net invesiments in forergn operations (Note 20 1} 1 6 - -
Net investment ingome an pension scheme assets and lizbilities (Note 25 1) - 5 - -
Ingerest recevable from subsidianes - - 1 i8
Other interest receivable and similar income 8 13 1 2
- 3z 43 4 24

7 Fnance costs

Group Grtwp Comp Compary
200 2008 2008
£m £m £m £m
Preference shares — finance cost 12 2 12 12
PPP non-recourse —bank loans and overdrafts 13 6 - -
Net finance cost on pension scheme assets and liabilities {Note 25 1) 15 - - -
Interest payable to subsidiaries - - 2 g5
(Other interest payable - bank loans and overdrafts 5 5 2 6
~other loans 2 1 - -
a7 24 36 83
Exceptional iems — foreign exchange options 15 - - -
62 24 3% 83

A preference dividend of 5 375p gross (4 8375p net} per cumulauve converuble redeemable preference share of 1p was paid in respect of the six months ended

30 June 2003 on 1 July 2009 to holders of these shares on the register on 28 May 2008 A preference dwvidend of 5 375p gross (4 8375p net} per cumulative convertible

redeemable preference share was paid 1n respect of the six months ended 31 December 2009 on 1 January 2010 to preference shareholders on the register on

27 November 2009
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B Exceptional terns and amortssation of intangible assets

Group Grouo Company Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em Em £m fm
81 Credted tof{charged against) profit from operations
Nat operating expenses - reduction In pension past service liabiities 100 60 4 2
— acguisition related expensas {16} - - -
- Office of Fair Trading {"OFT "} fine {5} - - -
~ post-acquisiion mtegration reorgantsation and other costs (12 (5) (2} (1}
~ impawment charges in respect of raitways facilities and inventory (4 - - -
— adjustment t Brrse Group goodwill - (3 - -
Share of jownt ventres and associates — tax adjustments - (3) - -
63 48 2 1
82 Charged against finance costs
— foreign exchange options {15} - - -
8 3 Credited to/(charged aganst} profit before taxatian 43 48 2 1
— tax on sems above 18} {15) {1 (1)
—selease of deferred tax on unremittad foreign earnings 16 - - -
— tax credit on recognition of Birse Group losses - 3 - -
— ndustrial buildings allowances - (3) - -
Exceptional items credited to profit for the year % 33 1 -
Amartisaton of intangsble assets i48) (27) - -
Tax theregn 1 7 - -
Credited to profit for the year 15 13 1 -

B11In2009 and 2008 the Group smplemented measures to himit the increase in pension benefiss of certain groups of in-sevice members of the Balfour Beatty Pension
Fund giving nise to & reduction in past service liabilities of £100m in 2009(2008 £60m), of which £4m (2008 £2m}was racognised within the 2008 Company accounts

in 2008, costs directly attnbutable 1o acquisrtions have been incurred in respect of Doolay Construction Lirmted Parnership {"RT Dootey ) £1m and Parsons Brinckerboff
Inc £15m

in 2004 the OFT inibiated an investigation inte tender activities across the UK construction sector The OFT concluded its ivestigation n 2009 and determined that these
activities amounted to breaches of competition law in the UK. As a result of the decision Mansell was fined £5m m respect of such nstances, all of which ok place
before 1ts acquistuion by the Group The Companty and s operating businesses co-operatad with the OFT throughout the invesigation

Reorganusation and intagration costs of £12m (2008 £6m) have been incurrad, £8m {2008 £nil) setating to Parsons Brinckerhaff, £2m {2008 £nil} of whnch was borne
by the Company, £1m (2008 £3m) relating to Balfour Beatty Communities (formerly GMH Military Housing} £l {2008 £1m) of which was bome by the Company,
£2m {2008 £2m}relating to Dean & Dyball, £3m (2008 £nil) relating to Schreck-Miaves £1m {2008 £l) relating t Douglas E Barnhart and a gamn of £3m (2008 £nif)
recagnised in relation to the relocation of certan Rail UK businesses In 2008 costs of £1m were incurred in the US an the reorganisation of the central division of
Balfour Beatty Infrastructure In {formerly Balfour Beatty Constructron Inc}

An mpairment charge of £4m (2008 £nil) has been incurred 1n respect of wnting down buildings and inventory of railway facilues i Germany to their fair value less
costs 1o sell due 0 a decision by a man customer to consolidate pragurement aver fewer production facilities

On the acquisimon of Birse Group, tax losses were acquired which did not satisfy the critena far recognitzon in the siatement of financial pesition at the date of
acquisibon In 2008 & portion of these losses was recogniseble and the benefit was recorded as part of the Group s 1ax charge in exceptonal tems 1AS 12 applicable
to the 2008 results stipulates that in addston to recognising the tax benefit the camyng amount of goodwill recognised on the acquisinon 15 reduced, wath the reduction
treated as an expense

As aresult of the UK Finance Act 2008, tax depreciation aliowances on industrial buildings are being reducad to il on a phasad basrs In 2008 jomt ventures and
associates of the Group recogmised a £4m deferred tax charge which was required under IAS 12 to establish a deferred tax liability This hiabirlty will be released to the
statement of financial performance as the relevant assets are depreciated for accountng purposes Inaddinon a £1m deferred tax credit was recogrused following
agreement with HMAC on the basis of 1axing certain PPP concessions

8.2 Due to the volatite currency markets, the Group entared into a number of foreign exchange aption cantracts in 2009 at a cost of £15m to lmit the cash outflow for
the planned settlement of the Group's foreign exchange coniracts in respect of net ivestment hedging

In 2008 a premium of £0 1m arose on the repurchase for cancellation of 0 3m preference shares at a cost of £0 4m which was charged to exceptional finance costs
No preference shares were repurchasad in 2009

8.3 The exceptiona! rtems credited to/{charged agawnst} profit from aperations have gven nse to 2 net tax charge of £18m {2008 £12m charge) As a result of the Finance
Act 2008 future dwidend income from outside the UK will be exempt from UK corporation tax which has ted to the release of £10m of deferred tax n the UK. (n addition,
there has been a release of £6m of US defered tax in relation to unremitted earmings where future addivonal US tax will no longer be incurmed Subsidranes of the
Group recogmised a £3m deferred tax charge in 2008 to establsh a deferred tax liability in relation to ndustrial building allowances which was required under [AS 12
This hability 1s being released to the statement of financial performance as the relevant buikdings are depreciated for acoounting purposes

109
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9Taxathon
91 Taxation charge
Group
Before  Exceptional
excepcnal tems® Totl Group Company Company
rems” {Note 8) 208 2008 2009
£m [ Em fm £m fm
UK current tax
— corporation tax for the year at 28% (2008 28 5%) 12 {5} 7 20 N i
—double tax reliet - - -~ {2) - -
- ACT wnite-off - - - 4 - -
— adyustments in respect of previous penods {8) - {8) - {10 -
4 {5) 1 22 17 17
Fereign current tax
—foreign tax on profits for the year k1| {15) 16 12 - -
— adjustments In respect of pravious penods (2} - (2) - - -
2 {15) 14 12 - -
Total cumrent tax 3 (20 13 k! an {17
Deferred tax
~UK 13 15 28 24 - 1
- fereign tax 18 (10} 8 16 - -
—adjustments in respect of previous periods 5 - 5 - - -
Total deferred tax 36 5 LY A0 - 1
Total tax charge/{credr) 69 {15) 54 74 (17) (16

* and amortisation of mangthle assets

The Group tax charge above does nat mctude any amaunts for joint ventures and associates (see Note 15 2), whose results are disclosed in the statement of financial

perfarmance net of tax

In addition to the Group tax charge above 15 £120m of tax credited {2008 £25m credited) dwectly to equity compnising a current tax credit of £ril {2008 £6m credit),

a deferred tax credit of £94m {2008 £23m credit), and a credit in respect of jont ventures and associates of £26m {2008 £4m charge)

In addrtion to the Company tax credit ts £5m of deferred tax crednted directly to equity {2008 £1m charged)
The weighted average applicable tax rate 1s 33% (2008 32%} based on profit before taxation excephional items and amorbsation of Intangible assets, excluding the

results of joint ventures and associates
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9 Taxation continued
9.2 Taxation reconcihiation
Group Group Campany Company
28 2008 p.) 2008
[ fm £m [
ProfitfLass) before taxation x7 270 150 (a%)
Less share of results of joint ventures and associates {83) {72) - -
Profit/AfLoss) before taxation 181 198 150 (44}
Less exceguonal iems* credited excluding share of joint vantures and associates - {24) (2) {1
Profit/iLoss) before taxation, exceptional items and amorusation of intangible assets excluding the results
of joint ventures and associates 1684 174 148 (45}
Tax on profit/fioss) before taxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 28% {2008 28 5%) 52 56 4 12)
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purpases ncluding amartisation of goodwall 8 B 2 1
Dridend income taxable/{not taxable) - 5 (53} {8}
Preference shares finance costs not deductible 3 3 3 3
Losses not avarlable for ofiset - 2 - -
Higher tax rates on foretgn eamings 13 4 - -
Adjustments in respect of other penods {s) 113] (10 -
Recognition of losses not previously recognised ) {4 - -
Release of deferred tax on unsermitted eamings {16} - - -
Withdrawal of industnal buildings altowances - 3 - -
Advance corporation tax write off - 4 - -
Toial tax charge/{creditt on profitAloss} 54 74 17 {16)
{Lessl/Add tax {chargel/credit on excepuonal items and amortisation of intangible assets 15 {8) U] {1}
Tax on profit/lloss) before exceptronal tems and amortisation of intangible assets 69 665 (18} {17)
* and amoetisation of imanqibla assats -
10 Earnings per ordinary share
Basic Dihuted Basic Dibued
2009 2008 08
£m [ fm Em
Earnings m 213 196 1%
Exceptional ttems - net of tax charge of £2m {2008 £15m) (46) (46) (33) {33}
Amortisation of intangible assets — net of tax creds of £17m (2008 £7m} 3 K1) 20 20
Adjusted eamings 198 198 183 18
Basic Diluted Bask Oihuted
2009 2008 2008° 0T
m m m m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5N 512 525 578
Basic Dihaed Basic Ditad
03 2009 2008 0
Pence Pence Pence Pence
Eamings per ordinary share 374 373 374 32
Exceptional tams (8.0) (18 {63} (62}
Amprtisation of intangible assets 53 53 36 36
Ad)usted eamings per ortinary share U7 a7 M7 M6

" Per share iumbers have been restated for the bonus edement of the 2008 ngits sssue {Note 7823

The calculatson of basic earnings 15 based on profit for the penod attnbuzable to equity shareholders The calcutanon of the weighted average number of ordinary shares
was affected by the 1ssue of 205 502 237 ordinary shares on 22 October 2009 and the tssue of 43 320 411 ordinary shares on 20 May 2008 It has been adjusted for

the converston of share options i the calculation of diluted eamings per ordinary share No adjustment has been made in respect of the potential conversion of the
cumulatve convertible redeemable preference shares, the effect of which would have been amiditutive throughout each period Adyusted eamings per ordinary

shate before post tax exceptiona! items and post tax amortisation of intangibla assats, has been disclosed to grve a clearer understanding of the Group's undertying
trading performance

The per share information has been restated for the bonus glement of the 2009 nghts 1ssue descnbed in Note 28 2 The adjustment facior has been calculated by dwviding
the share price Immediately bafore the shares were quoted ex-nghts {316 Op) with the theoretical ex-nghts pnice (275 2p} gnving an adjustment factor of 1 14826

SIUNOE NG
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11 Dividends on ordinary shares
Per share Per share
2009 Ampumt 2008 Amount
pence 208 pence 20
{ndjusted} £m ladjusted) tm
Proposed dividends for the year
inwerm - current year 48 26 44 24
Final —current year 12 L) 67 ki)
120 b 111 61
Retognised dividends for the year
Final — prior year 3 30
Interim — current year 26 24
63 i

The current year interim and 2008 comparative dedend per share informatign in the above table has been restateg for the bonus element of the 2009 nghts sssue

{Note 28 2} The intenm 2009 dnvdend was patd on 4 Decembar 2009 Subject to approval at the Annual General Meetng on 12 May 2010 the final 2009 dwvidend
will be paid on 5 July 2010 t¢ holders of ardinary shares on the register on 23 Aprit 2010 by direct credit or where no mandgte has been given, by chegue posted on
2 July 2010 payable on 5 July 2010 These shares will be quoted ex-dvidend on 21 Apnl 2010

12 Intangible assets - goodwill

Accurmuisted
G
£m Em frn
A1 January 2008 730 (36 694
fxehange and other adjustments 150 03 137
Businesses acquired i44 - 144
At 31 Degember 2008 1024 (49) 975
Exchange and other adjustments (55} 5 {50)
Businesses acquired (Note 29) 206 .- 206
—— At31 December 2009 -~ - -0 7T T 1,175 (44} 1131
The carrying amounts of goodwall by segment are as follows
Unsted Untted of Unitod United Jest of
£m £m £m £m fm Em £m fm
Professional services 14 128 46 189 1 15 - 16
Construction seivices 319 3 169 &m 314 37 180 8N
Support services 9% - - 9% 96 - - 9%
Infrastruciure mvestments q kil - 45 & 46 - 22
Group 433 483 215 1.1 M7 378 180 975

The recoverable amaunt of goodwill 1s based on valug inuse Cash flow forecasts have been based on the expected workload of each cash generating unst {CGU) gving
consideration to the current level of comfimied orders and anticipated orders Cash flow forecasts for the next three years are based on the Group's 2010 budget and
medium-term plan The other key nputs in assessing each CGU are its revenue growth rate and ciscount rate The growth rate has been applied to cash flows after three
years into perpeturty and reflacts published GDP growth rates for the economic environment of each CGU The cash flows assume a residual value based on a muttiple of

earmings before interest and tax

The cash flows have been discounted using a pre-tax discount rate in the range of 10 6%—12 8% {2008 10 6%—12 2%} The discaum rates are revised annually applying

updated market nputs to the capital asset pricing model

09 2008

Unated United Rest of Uraed Uited Jest of

Kingdom Siates warld Kmegam States workd

Inflation rate 19% 18% 10% 22% 23% 19%
GDP growth rate 08% 15% 03% 11% 19% 10%
Nominal long-tem growth rate apphed 271% 3% 1.3% 33% 42% 29%
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12 Intangible assets ~ goodwnll continued

Sensttivities

The Growg's iImpaimment rewiew 15 sensitive 1o changes i the key assumptions used The major assurnptions that result i significant sensivities are the revenue growth
rate and the discount rate

Areasonably pessihle change in a single assumaion will not cause imgairment in any of the Group's CGUs However a significant adverse change in the key
assumptions coutd result in an mpairment in the Balfour Beatty Communities CGU as 1ts fair value cumently exceeds 11s camying value by approximatety 7% and in the
Balfour Beatty Rail Inc CGU as its farr value curently exceads s carrying value by approximately 30% The carying valua of the gaodwill of Balfour Beatty Communities
1s £41m and of Balfour Beatty Railinc £15m

13 Intangible assets - other
Cusramer Customer

contags  relstonsips  Brand names Saftware Total
fm fm fm fm £m

Cast
At 1 January 2008 kil 30 8 - 69
Currency transtation differences 52 7 1 - 60
Businesses acquired 127 7 3 - 137 S
At 31 December 2008 210 4 12 - 266 =
Currency translation differences (20) 3 - - (23} g
Additions - - - 3 3 2
Businesses acquired {Note 29) 25 n k1 3 139
At 31 December 2009 216 14 19 [ 380
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2008 7 2 (1 - (10}
Cumency translation differences {5} ) - - 16}
Charge far the year 20) {4 {3) - {27}
At 31 December 2008 {32) 0] (#) - 143}
Cumency translation differences _ __ - — —_ - -- - -3 -- 1~ - ~-= T =7 4
Charge for the year (32) (t1) 4 {n {48)
At 31 Oecember 2009 (61) (17) {8} {1 {87)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2009 155 97 )] 5 pa: -
At 31 December 2008 178 k74 8 - 223

Intangible assets are amortised on a strarght-line basis over therr expected useful lives, which are one ta four years for customer contracts, three to ten years for
cusiomer relationships and up to five years for brand names except for customer contracts and relationships relating to Parsons Brinckerhoff Barnhart and Balfour
Beatty Communities which are amortised on a basis matching the retums eamed over the life of the underlying contracts and relationstips These contracts have a
duration of up to ight years for customer contracts and relationships relating to Parsons Brinckerhatf and Barnhart and up to 50 years for customer contracts relating
to Baliour Beatty Communities
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14 Property, plant and equipment
141 Movements
Group Company
Assats in
Lang and Plant and course of Plant and
buiidings equipment construction Total equpment
im £m £m £ fm
Cost or valuation
At January 2008 59 4726 1 186 2
Cumrency translation differences B 44 - 5 _
Addrions 1 82 - 93 1
Disposals (5) {48) - {53) -
Businesses acquired 28 21 - 49 -
Transfers - ] {1} - -
At 31 December 2008 99 526 - 625 3
Currency transtation differences {3) {15} - {18} -
Additions b 62 3 n 1
Dispesals (n {s%) - {52} -
Businesses acquired 2 19 - a0 -
At 31 December 2009 122 541 3 666 4
Accumulated depreciaton
At 1 January 2008 {15) {256) - {271} {2}
Currency translation differences (2} {31 - {33) -
Charge for the year {3) (62) - {65} -
Disposals - 40 - a0 -
At 31 Gecember 2008 {20) {309) - (329) {2
Cumeney transtation differences 1 n - w -
- == Charge for the year~ - T ” ® " - (9 !
Impairment 2) - - 2 -
Disposals - 37 - 37 -
At 31 December 2009 {27} {329) - {351} (3)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2009 95 217 3 s 1
At 31 December 2008 79 217 - 2% 1

The carnying amount of the Group's property, plant and equipment held under finance leases was £7m (2008 £6m] The Company has no land and buildings and no
property plant and equipment held under finance leases

14.2 Analysis of carrying amount of land and butldings
BGrown

Frechold
Long leasehold — over 50 years unexpired
Short leasehold

65

12
79

8|8 » @|chE
1
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15 Investments 0 joint vertures and associates
15 1 Movements

Net assets Loars Provisions Total
tm fm fm £m
At 1 January 2008 323 173 {i15) 381
Income recogrised n - - 72
Actuanial losses on retirement benefit obligations {14) - - (14}
Fair value revaluation of other cash flow hedges {3) - - (3}
Farr value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges {73) - - (73}
Farr value revaiuation of PPP financial assets 100 - - 100
Currency translation differences 27 - - 27
Tax on items taken drrectly to equity {4) - - 4
Drvidends {53) - - (53}
Additions " - - 1"
Loans advanced - 9 - 9
Loans repaid - 1 - M g
Businesses acquired 27 - - 27 g
At 31 December 2008 413 171 {115) 469 g
Income recogrised ] - - m
Faw value revaluanion of PPP cash flow hedges {1 - - (11}
Fair value revaluation of PPP finaneiat assets (79) - - (29}
Curency translation differences {10} - - ]
Tax on items taken directly to equity % - - 26
Dividends 75 - - (75)
Additions ] - - 4
Loans advanced . e e e = - - -89—- --=- -5 -
Toansrepad - (13) - (13)
Prowisions utilised - (15) 15 -
Businesses acquired 5 - - 5
At 31 December 2009 356 202 {100) 458

Principal joint ventures and associates are shown in Note 36 The onginal cost of the Group’s investments in joint ventures and associates was £174m (2008 £165m}

The Group's share of borrowings of joint veniures and associates 1s shown in Note 15 2 below The amaunt of these which was supponted by the Group and the Company
was £10m (2008 £13m) relating to the Group's share of guaranteed barrowings The borrowings of Barking Power Ltd, Regional & City Airports (Exeter) Ltd and the PPP
joint venture and associate entities are repayable over penods extending up to 2040 As disclesed in Nate 31 the Group has committed to provide its share of further
equity funding of jomnt ventures and associates i PPP projects and military housing concessions Further, in respect of a number of these mvestments the Group has
committed nat to dispose of its equity interest until construction has been completed As 1s customary n such projects, dividend payments and other distributiens are
restricted until cestain banking covenants are met.
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15 Investments i joint ventures and associates continued
152 Share of results and net assets of joint ventures and associates

Professional  Construction Support Muiary
PPP housing  Infrestructre Total Total
2009 2009 2009 209 2009* 2009 209 209
) £m Em Em £m £m Em £m £m
Revenue 5 673 140 472 - 95 567 1,385
Operating profit - . 7 9 4 28 a1 n
Investment income - - - 139 - - 13 139
Finance costs - - - (103) - 3 {106} {106}
Profit before taxation - i3 7 45 4 5 4 106
Taxation - 1) (2) (18) - 6 (20} (23
Profit after taxason - 24 5 k]| 4 19 5] 8
Non-current assets
Intangible assets ~ goodwll - .. - - - 2 A 53
~other - - - 3 - - 3 3
Property plant and equipment - ) 1 - - 104 104 138
PP? financial assets - - - 1915 - - 1915 1915
Miiitary housing projects - - - - 45 - 45 a5
(ther non-current assets - 9 - 52 - 2 54 63
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 137 7 141 - 15 156 308
Other current assets 13 3 .t o8 1 17 116 477
Total assets 2 53 3 2,209 46 162 247 300
Currenthabilihes
Borrawings - (22 - {a1) - n (48) (10)
Other current ligbriies {15) {275} (23) {94) - (19 m3 (426)
Non-current habilties
Borrowings - 3 - {1,627) - (23} {1,650) {1,653
Other noncurent liabiliies {6) {158) - {205) - {26} (231} (3%5)
Total habilmes (21} {458) (23) {1,967) - {15) {2.042) {2,544)
Net assets - 73 10 242 46 87 in 458

~ The Group s investment m rmadiary housing projects ts recogrised al the mil equity investment plus the value of the Group s acerued preferred retum for the undetyna projects

Capital expenditure authonised and contracted which has not been provided for in the accounts of the joint venitures and associates amounted to £2m {2008 £7m)
The military housing joint ventures and associates have total non-recourse net borrowings of £1,330m (2008 £1 114m} Note 36le) details the Group's milrtary
housing projects
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Infrastrctre imvestments

Professional Construcion Suppan Mnary
SETVICES SEIVICES ServEes PP hasig niEsinctue Total Total
200 2008 M08 208 2008 2008 08 2008
£m £m £m £m m £m £m £m
Revenue - 702 130 29 - 100 393 1225
Operating profit before exceptional tems - 23 5 7 2 26 K] 63
Investment income - 1 - 125 - - 125 126
Finance costs - - - (87} - (3} (30} (90)
Profit before taxaton and exceptional dems - 24 5 45 2 23 70 9
Taxation - {3 1) {14) - &) (20} {24)
Exceptional nems - - - (1) - {2 £ 3
Profit after taxanon - 21 4 30 2 15 a7 72
Non-current assets
Intangible assets - goodwill - 32 - - - 24 24 56
- other - - - - - 2 2
Property, plart and equepment - 35 1 - - 109 109 145
PPP financial assets - - - 1,663 - - 1,663 1,663
Military houstng projects - - - - 48 - 48 48
Other non-current assets - 1 - 72 - 1 73 74
Cumrent assets
Cashand cash equivalents - 157 4 13 - 16 129 290
Other current assets - 398 20 145 - i 166 584
Total assets - 623 5 1,995 48 N 2214 2.862
Curment habiives
Borrewings - 22 - {41) - H| (48} {70}
Other current ligilites - {383} (18) {88} - {19) (107} (488}
Nen-current habilities
Bormowings - {3) {2) {1,440} - {29) {1,459 {1,474}
Other non-current habilities - {156) - (173} - {32) {205} (361}
Total habiles - {544} {201 {1742) - {87} {1829) {2393}
Net assets - 79 5 253 48 84 385 469
* The Group s wwestment in miliary hausing pro,ects 1S recogr:sed al the intial equity imvestment plus the valua of the Groun s acorued prefared rstum for the underying prajects
! 2008 comparative nformiation has been re-presantad to reflect te revision of the Broup s segmentation, refer Note 15
153 PPP investments
The Group s investment in PPP and mifitary housing ot ventures and assocrates comprises
Net mvestment Reserves Total Nat mvestment Aesorves Total
200 2009 209 208 2008 2008
£m £m tm fm fm £m
Roads @2 110 43 g4 137
Hospitals el 12 ] 60 21 81
Schools n (3) k1] 2% {7 18
Other concessions 3 8 n 3 14 17
hii¢) 5 02 13 122 263
Military housing 43 2 4 47 1 48
1 6% 283 178 123 301
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15 Investmentts in joint ventures and associates continued
15 4 Cash flow from/{to) jo:mt ventures and associates

Military Miidary
PPP howming  Infrastrucwrs Orther Total PP housng  Infrastructure Other Total
2009 209 2009 2009 2009 2008 200 2008 2008 2008
£m Em £m £m £m £m fm £m £ m
Cash flows from
investing activites
Ondends from jomnt
ventures and associates 23 3 19 5 75 17 2 13 A 53
Subordinated detn
Interest recened 10 - - - 10 12 - - - 12
Imvestment in and loans
made to joint ventures
and associates {50) m - 1 (50) {7 {8} - 5 ()
Acquisitions of joint
ventures and assotiatas {3) - - 2 {5) - {27} - - (27)
Total investments in joint
ventures and associates {s3) n - {1} (55) {7 {35} - 5 {37}
Net cash fiow from/{ta)
Joint ventures and
associates {15) 2 19 24 30 72 {33} 13 26 28
Investrnents in joint ventures and associates comprise
Milstary Miitary
PPP housng  nfrastructure Qther Total Pop housng  Infrastruciurg Orher Total
2009 2008 2009 2009 2009 008 2008 208 2008 2008
£m Em £m Em £m fm £m fm fm £m
Investmeants n
—equity {2) (1) - 2) {5) - (351 - {3 {38)
- subordinated debt (62) - - - {62) 7 - - - {7
— subordinated dedt repaid n - - - 1 - - - .- -
—other loans - - - 1 1 - - - a g
Total nvestments in joint
ventures and associates {53) W] - ) {55) {7 {35 - 3 137)
155 Share of jont ventures” and associates’ reserves
Acumelated Hedging PPR financial tr;usn!:nntcxv'l
prafiloss) reseve assels resave Total
Em tm Em £m £m

Balance at 1 January 2008 152 {25) 54 {3) 178
Income recogmised 7 - - - 72
Actuarial gans on rearement benefit chligations {14) - - - {14)
Farr value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges - 3 - - {3
Farr value revaluation of PPP financial assets - (73) - - {73
Reclassrfied and reporied in net profit - - 100 - 100
Tax on 1tems taken directly to equity k! 2 {28} - {4)
Drvdends paid {53} - - - {531
Transters - - - 77 z
Balance at 31 December 2008 160 (80) 126 24 230
Income recogrused 83 - - - 83
Fair value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges - {nj - - 1]
Faur value revaluation of PPP financial assets - - {m9) - ]
Tax on items taken directly to equity - 4 2 - ]
Drdends paid {75) - - - {75)
Currency translation thiferences - - - (10) {10}

Balance at 31 Becember 2009 168 (87 & 14 164
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16 Investments

161 Group
Gsoup investmants comprise £42m (2008 £55m} held to maturity bonds held by Defahian insurance Company Li, the Group's captive insurance company and £41m
(2008 £nil) available-for-sale investments in mutual funds relating 1o the Group's deferred compensation schemes

The heid to matunty bonds heié by Delphian Insurance Company Ltd compnse fixed rate bonds or treasury stock with an average yield to maturity of 2 46% (2008 515%}
and weighted average iife of 2 4 years (2008 357 years) The farr value of the bonds 1s £41m {2008 £54m) determined by the market price of the bonds at the reparting
date The maximum exposure to eredit nsk at 31 December 2009 1s the carrying amount. These bonds have been pledged as secunty for letters of credit issued n respect
of Delphian insurance Cempany Lid

The available-for-sale vestments in mustual funds comprise holdings in a number of funds in respect of the deferred compensanon obligations of the Group as disclosed
nNote 25 investments are made based on the Investmenit elections made by employees The fair value of the available-for-sale investments 1s £41m (2008 £}
determined by the market price of each fund at the reporung date

162 Company
009 20m
£m fm
investment in subsidianes 2,224 1,882
fnvestment in joint ventures and associates 14 14 o
Provisions (143) {158) &
2,095 1,738 §
=
17 PPP financial assets °
Schoels Foads Total
fm fm fm
Balance at 1 January 2008 26 36 62
income recognrsed in the statement of financial performance
— Interest :ncome 4 3 7
Gains recogrised in the statement of comprehensive iIncome
- Fair value movements - 2z 2
Other movements
— Cash expenditure 12 19 31
— Cashreceved - {1 mi
Balance at 31 December 2008 102 49 151
Income recognised In the statement of financial performance
— Construction contract margin 1 - 1
~ Interest income 9 5 14
Gains/{tosses] recognised in the statement of comprehensive Incoms
- Fan value movements 1 2) ]
Other movemeants
~ Cash expenditure 62 42 104
— Cash raceved - 9 (%)
Balance &t 31 Dacember 2009 175 a5 260

Assets constructed by PPP subsidiary concession companies are classified as available-for-sale financial assets The maamum exposure 1o credit nsk at the reporting
date 1s the fair value of the PPP financial assets PPP financial assets are denomiated in sterling There were no disposals or impairment provisions in 2009 or 2008

18 Inventones

Unbilled work in progress

Raw matenals and consumables

Manufactunng work In progress

Fimished goods and goods for resale

Development and housing land and work in progress

8la o wsglsl
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19 Construction contracts
09 2008
£m £
Contracts in progress at reporting date
Due from customers for contract work 524 383
Due to custamers for contract work (581) {540)
{57) (157)

The aggregaie amount of costs incured plus recognised profits {less recogrised losses) for all contracts in progress that had not reached practical completion at the
reporting date was £314,105m {2008 £13,061m)

20 Financial instruments

Accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting poticies and methods adopted including the cnitena for recogrition, the basts of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are reeogmsed in respect of each class of financial asset and financial liability are set out in Note 1

Capital nsk management

The Groug and Company manage their capital to ensure their ability to continue as a gasng concern and o maintain an optimat capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital The capral structure of the Group and Company compnses equity attnbutable to equity holders of Balfour Beatty plc consisting of 1ssued ardinary share capital
reservas and retained eamings as disclosed in Notes 27 and 28 preference shares as drsclosed 1n Note 27 and cash and cash equwvalents and borrowings as disclosed
in Note 23

The Group and Company maintain or adjust therr capital structure through the payment of dividends to sharsholders, issue of new shares and buy-back of existing
shares and issuing new borrowings or repaying existing borrowings The Group s and Company s policy 1s to carry no significant net debt, other than the non-recourse
borrowings of companies engaged in PPP projects and infrastructure investments

The Group s and Company s overall capital sk management strategy remains unchanged from 2008

201 Group
Categones of financial instruments
Loans and Loans and
recsrvables recevables
at amortised Finang:al Avalable- Heldto atamontised Firancial Avallable- Held o
costcash  lrabiliies at for-sale maturty cost, cash labiltigs at for sale matirity
and cash amortsed financial financial Dervatves and cash amostsed financial financia) Dervatves
eturvalems cast assets Bssets Note {1} equnalents cost asses assats Note (i}
i) 2009 08 2009 s i) 2008 2008 2008 2008
Group £m [2% em Em £m £m tm fm £ fm
Financial assets
Fixed rate corporate bonds
and gilts - - - 42 - - - - 55 -
Mutual funds ~ - L] - - - - - - -
PPP financial assets - - 260 - - - - 151 - -
Cash and cash equrvalents 618 - - - - 483 - - - -
Trade and other recevables 1332 - - - - 1186 - - - -
Demvatives - - - - 1 - - - -
Total 1,950 - 3m 42 1 1649 - 15 55 §

Financial habilhes
Liability component of

preference shares - (88) - - - - {87} - - -
Trade and other payables - (2.299) - - - - {2107) - - -
Unsecured bomreawings - {3 - - - - (12} - - -
Secured borowings - (13) - - - - {9} - - -
PPP non-recourse

tem foans - (258) - - - - {145) - - -
Derwvatives - - - - (25) - - - - {106)
Tatal - {2.681) - - (25) - {2,360} - - {106)

Net 1,950 (2681} 3 42 (24) 1649 {2.360} 151 55 {101
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20 Financat instruments continued

Dervatives
Financial assets Financeal habiities Financial assets Financial habilies
Non- Non- Norr- Non-
Current cirent Tota! Current currem Touw! Curent cument Total Cumenit cument Total
208 209 2009 200 o) 2009 .t} 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
Em £m tm £m £m fm fm £m £m £m £m £m
Foreign currency
confracts
Aq fair valug through prafit
and loss — held for Tading - - - 4} - n 2 - 2 {5} - (=)
Designated as net
investment hedging
Instruments - - - - - - - - - {61) - {61}
Designated as
cash flow hedges - 1 1 - - - - 3 3 - 1) (1)
Interest rate swaps
Deswnated as g
cash flow hedges - - - - {24) {24) - - - - (39) 33 g
- 1 1 {1] {28) {25) 2 3 5 {66) {40 (08 =

Non-denvative financial habthhes gross maturity
The follawing table details the Group § rema:ming contractua! matunity for 118 non-tenvatve firancial liabilities The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual matunties of the financial liabiliies ncluding interest that will accrue ta those abilities except where the Group s entrtled to and intends to repay the

liability betore its matunty The discount column represents the passible future cash flows included in the matunty anatysts, such as future interest, that have not been
ncluded inthe carmying value of the financial habiiry

The mawnity profile of the Group s non-dervatve financial liabilives at 31 December was as follows

PPP Total
non-recoursa Other non-denvative
project Other financial financial Total Camnying
finance homewings liab:iies habilihes discount value
2009 2009 2009 20 2009 2008
£m £m fm £m fm £m
Due an demand or within one year {20) (Z3) {2,170) {2213} 12 {220)
Due within one to two years 1 {n (65) (m 15 (62)
Dug within two to five years 54 {6) (53) (113 5% {57)
Due after more than five years (424) (6) (246) (676) 315 {361)
(509) {36 2534) 3079) 398 (2681)
Discount 251 - 147 398
Camrying value (258) (36} {2,387} {2.681)
PR Total
NON-ECoWse Other  nondenvaive
oarcs i L B
% o mm o 08
fm Em fm fm fm fm
Due on dermang or withen one year (4) 12} {1,996} {2012} 15 (1,997)
Due within 6ne 16 two years {18} i {52) {71} 20 (51}
Due within two to five years {39) {8) {46} {93} 58 (35}
Dug after more than five years {320) - {263} {583) 308 {277)
(381} 24 {2357} {2759 1 {23604
Discount 236 - 163 399

Carrying value {145) {21 {2,194) {2,360
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20 Financial tnstruments continued

Denvatve financial habilmies gross matunty

The following table details the Group s expected maturity for its denvative financial habiliies The table has bean drawn up based on the undiscounited net cash
flows/loutflows) an the dervative instruments that setile on a net basis {intarest rate swaps} and undiscounted gross nflows/outflows) for those denvauves that
require gross settlement {foreign exchange contracts) When the amount payable or recervable 1s nat fixed, the amaunt disclosed has been detenmined by reference
to the projected interest rates using the yield curves existing at the reporting date

The matunity profile of the Group’s darwative financial kabilues a1 31 December was as follows

Poyable Recetvable  Net payable Payanle Azcewvahie Net payable

209 2009 200 2008 2008 708

Em £m £m £m £m £m

Due on demand or within ong year {61) 54 ¥} {288) 221 (67)
Due within one to two years 13} 5 {8} (12) 9 (7
Due within two to five years (18) 1 {17} (20) 2 (18}
Due after more than five years (24) - (24} (29) - {29;
Total {116} 50 (56) {349) 228 {121)

Financial nsk factors

The Group's actvities expose 1t to a vanety of financial nisks market nsk, credit sk and hquidity nsk The Group's financial nsk management strategy seeks to minimise
the potential adverse impact of these nsks on the Group's financial performance

Financial nsk management 1s carmed out centrally by Group Treasury under policies appraved by ihe Board Group Treasury liaises with the Group’s operating companies
1o identify, evaluate and hedge financial nsks The Board provides witten principles for overall financial sk management as well as writien policies covenng specific
areas, such as forexgn exchange nisk, interest rate nsk, credit sk use of dervative financial nstruments and non-dervative financial instruments, and the investment

of excess iquidity Compliance with policies and exposure limits 1 monitored through the Group's ntamal audit and sk management procedures The Group uses
dervative fnancial instruments to hedge certain nsk exposures The Group does not trade in financial mstruments ncluding dervative financial instruments, for
speculative puposes

{atMarket nsk
The Group $ actvities expose 1t gnimanly to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, nterest rates and commodity prces The Group enters into
4 variety of dervative financial snstruments to manage its exposure o interest rate, foreign currency and commodity price nisk ncluding

— forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate nsk ansing on trading activities transacted 1 a currency that is not the functional currency of the
operating company

— forward foreign exchange coniracts 1o manage the foreign currency nsk associatad with the Group § investments in foreign subsihanes associates and joint ventures,

- foreign exchange option contracts to manage the foreign currency nsk associated with the settlement of net investment hedge contracts and the acquisition of
forergn subsidianies

~ commodity forward contracts to manage the commodity price nsk associated with the Group § operational requirements for certam commodities, such as fued, and
- Interest rate swaps to mibgate the cash flow vanability associated with variable interest rates on borrowings in PPP concessions

There has been ro matenal change to the Group s expasure to market nsks and with the excepuan of the change in the net investment hedging palicy outiined below
there: has been no change in how the Group manages those risks from 2008

{1} Foresgn curency nsk management
The Group operates intemationally and 15 exposed to foreign exchange nisk ansing from exposure to vanous currencies pamarly ta US dolfars Australian dollars
Hong Kong doliars and the Euro Foreign exchange nisk anses from fuwre irading transactons assets and liabiiiues and net invesimants in foreign operations

Group policy requires operating companies to manage therr transactional foreign exchange nisk aganst their functional currency Group Treasury enters mta forward
contracts on behalf of eperating companies to cover 100% of foreign exchange nisk above pre-set materiality levels determined by the Finance Director whenever a
cuiment or future foreign cumrency exposure 1s dentified Hedge accounting 1 apphed to these tansactions above a pradetesmined matenialivy leval

Details of forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the reporting date in respect of foraign curmency wransactional exposures are set out on page 121

As at 31 December 2009 the notional principal amounts of foreign exchange contracts in respect of foreign currency transactions where hedge accounting 18 nat appled
was £72m {2008 £74m} The peniod during which the cash flows are expected 10 oocur 15 up to three years This wall affect the statement of financial performance
throughout the same panods
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{1} Forergn curency nsk management continued

The Group has designated forward exchange coniracts against highly probable capital expendrture and inventary sales which are expected to occur In up to three years
with a notional principal amourtt of £23m (2008 £24m) as cash flow hedges Fairvalue fosses of £2m (2008 £2m gains) have been taken to hedging reserves within
equrty in relawon to these contracts The cumulztive amounts deferred In the hedging reserves relating to cash flow hadges at year end 15 £l {2008 £2m gam}

The Group's Investments n foreign operations are exposed to forergn curmency transtation nsk which has previousty been managed by matching significant net assets
denomimated i currencies other than sterfing principally using forward foreign exchange contracts

The hedging palicy 1s reviewed penodically Dunng 2008 and 2009 management have amendad the poicy to reduce the level of nat assets hedged taking account of
the potential cash efiect of the hedging programme against the potartiat effect of movernents in currencies on the Group s net assats At 31 December 2009 no foreign
currency denominated net assets were hedged At 31 December 2008 approximaiely 45% of the US dollar denominatad et assats were hedged

As dervauve financial instruments are no longer held for US doliar denominated assets only 2008 comparate figures are provided in respect of US dollar movernents
In2008 the effect of a 35% strengthening/weakening in US dollar exchange rates against sterling would have resulted in a £87m reduction/increase in the fair valuz of
the financial nstruments used to hedge the Group's net assats in US dollars Thase movements would have been taken directly to eguity and would have partially offsat
opposing gains/losses in the net assets denominated in forasgn currencies The percentage change apphed to US dollars in 2008 has been based on the greater of the
average movement In the previous five reporting penods or the actual movement in the last 12 months The notional principal amounts of forward foreign exchange
contracts designated as hedges of net invesaments in foreign operations at 31 December 2008 was £188m The gains and losses i equity on hedges of net nvestrments
in foreign aperations will be released to the statement of financial performance on the disposal of the underlying net investment.

No amounts in relztion to hedge neffactiveness have been charged to the statement of financial parformance n refation to any foreign exchange cash flow or
net nvestment hedges A gain of £1m {2008 £Bm)was recognised in :nvestment income 1n refation to the forward point fai value movements an net nvestment
hadge contracts

{tt} Interest rate nsk management
Interest rate sk anses in the Group s PPP concessions which borrow funds 2t both floating and fixed interest rates and hold available-for-sale financial assets

Floating rate borrowings expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk. Group pohicy 15 to swap floating rate nterest 1o fixed rate, using nterest rate swaps, to hedge
the cash flow vaniability of the interest.

Under interest rate swap contracts the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal
amounts The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date 1s deterrnined by discounting the future cash flows using the applicable penod-end yield curve
The net impact of a movement in intesest rates on ingome would therefore be immateral

During 2009 and 2008 the Group’s PPP barrowangs at vaniable rates of interest were denorminated i sterling

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding PPP subsidianies interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2008 were £268m (2008 £142m) with matunties
that match the maturity of the underlying borrawings ranging from one year to 23 years At 31 December 2009 the fixed interest rates ranga from 4 5% 05 1%
(2008 4 6% 105 1%} and the pnncipal fleating rates are LIBOR

A 50 basis point increase/dacrease in the interest rate of each currency In which financial instruments are held would lead to a £12m {2008 £14m) increase/decrease
1 amounts taken directly by the Group to equity This 1s attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on the available-for-sale fiiancial assets and cash flow
hedges of its PP subsidianies

Interest rate nsk also anses on the Group's cash and cash equivalents, term deposits and non-PPP borrowangs A 50 basis post increase/decrease in the mterest rate
of each currency in which financial instruments are held would lead t0 a £2m (2008 £2m} increase/decrease in the Group $ net nvestment income

fi) Commodity price nsk management

The Group 15 expesad to commodity price risk 1 its normal operations Dunng 2008 the Group entesed imto a number of commodsty hedge contracts to manage some

of the Group s exposure to the pnce of fuel The value of fug! covered by those hadges amountad o £3m (2008 £rl) These commodity hedge contracts hiave been
desgnated as cash flow hedges against hughly probable future fuel purchases forecast to occur over the next two years At 31 December 2003 the fue! hedge contracts
had a farr value of £ {2008 £rul) and no gains or losses have been recognised in respect of these contracts in the current or pnar pengds either in the statement of
comprehensive income In respect of the effective portion of the hedge or the statement of financial performance in respect of ineffectiveness

{wvi Price nsk management .
The Group's principal prce nsk exposure anses in ris PPP concessions At the commencement of the concession an element of the unstary payment by the chent ts
indexed to offset the effect of inflanon on the concession's costs To the extent that infizuon dffers from the index used the Group 15 exposed 10 a price nsk

123
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20 Financial instruments continued

{b) Credit nsk

Creds risk 1s the nsk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resutting in financial loss Credi risk anses fram cash and cash equivalants
darrvative financial mstruments and credit exposures to oustomers including outstanding recenvables and committed transactions The Group has a policy of assessing
the creddworthingss of potential customers before entering into transactions

For cash and cash equivalents and derwative financial instruments the Group has a policy of depostung funds only with independently rated counterparties wath a
mirnimurm long term credit rating of A At 31 December 2009 £77m (2008 £2m) did not meet this critenon due to the unprecedented decling in cred:t rabngs generally and
operational and relationshrp difficulties in transferring certain balances Nao losses are anticipated from non-performance of these counterparties The credic raung of a
financial institution wall determing the amount and duration for which funds may be deposited under mdwidual nisk Iimits set by the Board for the Group and subsidiary

companies Management monviors the utilisation of these credit Imits reqularly At 31 December 2009 £27m (2008 £30m} did not meat this palicy due to operational
reasons

For trade and other recevables credit evaluation is parformed on the financial condition of accounts recevable using Independent ratings where avartable or by
assessment of the customer s credit quality based on its financial position past experience and other factors The Group's most significant customers are public or
quasi public sector entities which generally have tugh credrt ratings or are of a high credit quality dug to the natura of the customer

The maximum expasure to credit nisk in respect of the above at 31 December 1s the carrying value of financial assets recorded in the financial statements netaf any
allowance for losses

[c}Liquidity nisk

The Group manages liquidity nsk by maintaining adequate cash balances and banking facilities, continuously monitonng forecast and astual cash flows and matchung the
matunty profites of financial assets and labiliues Details of undrawn committed barrowing facilibes are set out in Note 23 1 The maturity profile of the Group's financial
liabilries is set out above

Fair value esttmation
The Group holds a number of financial instruments on the statement of financial position at thesr farr values The followang hierarchy classifies each class of financial
assetor liabilty depending on the valuation technique applied In determining 1ts fair value

Levet 1 The fair value 1s calculated based on quoted prices traded in active markets for identical assets or habilities The Group holds available-for-sale investments in
mutual funds wiach are traded (n active markets and valued based on the closing per unit masket price at 31 Decemnber

Level 2 The fair value 1s based on inputs othes than quoted prices included within Level 1 ihat are ohservable for the asset or liability, erther directly or mdirectly
The fair value of interest rate swaps 15 calculated as the prasem value of the estmated future cash flows utihising apphcable year end yield curves The fair value of
forward foresgn exchange contracts 15 determined using quated forward exchange rates at the reporting date and yield curves denved from quoted inerest rates
matshing the maturities of the foreign exchange contracts

Level 3 The farr value 1s based on unabservable nputs The fair value of the Group's PPP financial assets 1s deterrined in the construction phase by applying an
attributable profit margin that represents the fair value of construction services performed in the operational phase 1t 1s determined by discounting the future cash fiows
allocated to the financial asset at a discount raie which s based on long-tarm gilt ratas adjustad for the nsk levels assocated with the assets The subsaguent mavement
in the far value 1s taken to eguity

There have been no transfers betwean these categonies in the current os preceding year
Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fasr value measwement 2009 Far valus measuremen 2008

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£m £m £m £m fm £m £rn Em

Available-for-sate mutual fund financial assets 41 - - 4 - - - -
Financial assets — foreign cumrency contracts - 1 - 1 - 5 - 5
Avallable-for-sate PPP financial assets - - 260 260 - - 151 151
Total assets measured at farr value 1 1 e - 5 151 156

Financial liabilities — foreign curency contracts - m - (1
Financial habilibies — interest rate swaps - {24) - {24} - {106} - (106}
Total labilities measured at fair vaiue - {25) - {25) ~ {106} - {106}

In respect of the Leval 3 PPP financial assats a changs in the discount rate would have a significant effect on the value of the asset and a 50 basis points
ncrease/decrease winch represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible change wn the nsk adjusted discount rate would lead to a £8m (2008 £1m)
change inthe fair value of the assets The movernent would be taken through aquity Refer to Note 17 for a reconciliation of the movement of the opening balance to the
closing balance

The carrying values less impairment prowision of trade and other recevables and payables approximates therr {air values due to their shori-term nature The fai value of
financial liatnimes for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that 1s available to the Group
for similar financial instruments
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202 Company
Categones of financial instruments
Loans and Loars and
recenables recevanies
at amortrsed Financsal Availahle- Hetdto at amortised Financial Avalable- Held
cost, cash Latilbes at for-sale maturity cost, cash liahiliues at for sele malurty
and cash amortised financial finencial Derivatives and cash amortisad financal fnancial Dervatves
equivalents cost assety assets Note (i} equialents eost assets assets Nate i}
2009 20 208 ] 209 08 208 2008 2008 2008
Company £m £m fm [ fm m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 143 - - - - 50 - - - -
Trade and other recevables 1,084 - - - - 617 - - - -
Denvatives - - - - 2 - - - - Al
Total 127 ~ - - 2 667 - - - Al
Ftnancial hiabiities
Ligbility component of
preference shares - {88) - - - - (87) - - -
Trade ang other payables - {1,906) - - - - 1471 - - -
Unsecured borrowings - (53) - - - - {51) - - -
Dervatives - - - - {2) - - - - {71)
Total - {2047} - - 2) - {1,609} - - {m
Net 1227 {2.047) - - - 667 {1,609) - - -
Dervatives
Financial assets Financal iabilibes Financal assets financial fiabii e5
Non- Non- Nor- Nor-
Currant citrrent Total Current current Total Cumrent cunent Total Cument cument Total
200 209 209 2009 2009 2009 208 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
£m Em £m £m £m £m fm £m fm fm £m fm
At farr value through
proiit and loss — forward
contracts in respect of
CUMency transactions
~ held tor trading 1 1 2 i) n 2) 7 3 10 7 (3} 1o}
At fair value through
profit and loss — forward
contracts retaung to net
investment hedging
- held for trading - - - - - - 81 - 61 (61 - (61}
1 1 2 {n (1 {2) 68 3 T 168) (3} 71

The Campany 1s responsible for executing all of the Group s external dervative nstrument contracts except for those in relation to PPP concessions The Company s
extemal contracts are perfectly maiched with denvatve contracts sssued by the Company to the Group s opsrating companies the Company's financial assets and
firancial hiabilities measured at fair valug are the foreign currency contracts shown in the table above The fair value of these foseign currency coniracts 1s determined
using quoted forward exchange rates at the reporiing date and yeld curves denved from quoted interest rates matching the matuniies of the foreign exchange contracts
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20 Financial instruments costinued

Non-denvative financial habiities gross maturity
The matunty profile of the Company s nen-dervative financial liabilies at 31 December was as follows

Tozal
Other non-derivative
financial financial Total Carrymg
Bomowings liahilities liatnlres discount vahue
209 20 2009 20 09
Em tm fm fm £m
Due on demand or within one year {53) 11,893) 11,947} 13 {1.533)
Jue within one to two years - (1 (1) L] -
Due withia two to five years - () (32) k) -
Due after more than five years - (197) {197} <] {114)
(53} (2134) (2187} 139 {2,047)
Drscount - 140 140
Cammying value {53) (1,994) (2,047}
Toal
Other  non<denvatve
firanciz! financial Total Camying
Bomowings labilbes liatnlities discount value
2008 08 2008 2008
- fm fm fm im £m
Due on demand ar within one year {51 {1.472) {1,523} 7 {1.4%)
Due within 0@ (o two years - m (1 1 -
Due within two to five years - (32) {32} 32 -
Due after more than five years - {208) (208} 95 13
{51} (1723) {1,774} 165 (1,609)
Miscount - 165 165
Carrying value {51} {1,558) {1,609)
Denvative financial iabiliies gross matunty
The matunty profite of the Company s denvative financial iabilities, which comprise foreign exchange contracts, a1 31 December was as follows
Payable  Receneble Payable FRecenanle
208 209 208 P
£m Em £m tm
Due on demand or wathin one year (81} 80 (312} 245
Due within one to two years {17} 16 (28) 26
Due within two to five years - - - -
Due after more than five years - - - -
Total (38} 96 {340) N
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A Anancial Instruments continued

Financial nsk factors

{a} Market nisk

{1 Foregn currency nsk management

For the Company, there would be no matenal impatt of any strengthening/wezkening in US dollar exchange rates Euro exchange rates or Hong Kong dollar rates
against sterling becauss the Company enters into forward foreign exchange contacts wiih the Group s aperabing companes that offset its extemnal forward foregn
exchange contracts

{n} Interost rata nsk mariagement

A 5) basis point increase/decrease in the nterest rate of each currency in which financial mstrumeants are held would lead 1o a £4m (2008 F4m) decrease/increase in the
Company's iInvestment income  This ts mainly attnbutable to the Company s exposure to interest raes on its cash and cash equivalents and term deposits and amounts
due 1o and from its subsidianes There would be no effect on amounts taken directly by the Company to equity

{6} Crednt nsk

The addstional credit sk that tha Company bears 15 in respect of amounts due from subsidianes There were no amounts past due at the reporting date The maximum
axposure 15 the carrying value of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements

21 Trade and other receivables

Grop Group Company Compary o
209 2008 2008 70068 s
[ £ [ fn 2
Current g
Trade recervables 997 815 6 g @
Less Prowision for mpairment of trade recevables {a1) {17} - -
956 798 6 6
Due from subsidiaries - - 1048 580
Due from joint ventures and associates 19 20 -
Due from jontly controlled aperations 1 5 - -
Contract retentions 208 224 - -
Accrued mcome 60 55 - -
Prepayments ) 81 3 1
Due on acquisitions - W0 - -
138 1193 1,057 587
Non-current
Trade recevables 16 19 - -
Due from joint ventures and associates 1 - 30 K]l
Contract retentions 64 55 - -
Prepayments 1 - 1 -
Due on apquistions 7 - - -
8 74 k1| 3t
1418 1267 1,088 618
Compnsing
Financial assats 1332 1186 1,084 617
Non-financial assets — prepayments B85 g 4 i
1418 1267 1083 618

Based on prior experience and an assassment of the curmant ecanomic emvironment, management believes there 1s no further credri nsk prowision required in excess
of the normal prowision for impairmens of rade recenvables

The Directors consider that the carrymg values of cuent trade and other receivables appraximate thew fair values The farr value of non-current trads and other
receivables amounts fo £83m {2008 £69m) and has been determined by discounting future cash fiows using yield curves and exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date

it 15 Group policy that forward forergn exchange contracts are entered mito as soon as  foreign currency trade receivable 1s identified
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21 Trade and other receivables continued
The mavement in the provisian for impasment of trade recewables s as follows

Growp Groep
208 2003
Em £m
Balance at 1 January 7 L)
Creditedficharged} to the statement of financial performance
— addrtional provisions {8) {6}
— unused amounts reversed 5 1
Acguisitions of husinesses (23} {2)
Used during the year 2 1
Balance at 31 Decembar &) {17
The prowsion for impaimmant of trade fecevables 18 based on a review of the financial circumstances of indvidual customers The ageing of the imparred recewables 1s
as follows
Group Grovo
209 2008
Em fm
Up ta three months 1 Z
Three to six manths 1 1
Six to nune months 2 !
Nine to 12 months 10 ?
More than 12 months 27 "
] 17

At 31 Dacember 2009 trade receivables of £155m (2008 £127m) were past due but not :mpaired These relate to a number of indwdual customers for whom there 1
na teason to believe that the debt 1s not recoverable The ageing analysis of these Tade receivables 1s as follows

Group Groug

203 2008

m m

Up to three months n 84
Three 1o six moriths B 21
Six to nine months 2 12
Nine to 12 monshs 15 7
Moie than 12 months 10 3
155 127

The Company had no provision for impairment of trade recevables and no trate receivables that were past due but not impaired in erther year
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22 Trade and other payables
O - I B
£m fm £m Em
Cument
Trade and other payables 113 1112 9 3]
Accruals 1013 839 13 14
Deferred income B 20 1 1
Advance payments on contracts 103 47 - -
VAT payroll taxes and social secunty % 72 16 13
Due to substdiaries - - 1854 1421
Due to jomnt ventures and assaciates 16 6 - -
Due to jomntly controlled operations - 3 - -
Dwidends on preference shares 5 5 5 5
Due an acquisitions b 4 - -

Non-current E
Trade and other payables ] 70 - - §
Dug on acquisitions n 25 - - 5
Accsuals . 2 - -7
Deterred income 10 n - -
Due to jont ventures and associates 5 25 25 5
163 152 25 5

2515 2320 1923 1,485
Compnsing
Financial liabilines 2,295 2107 1.906 141
Non-financial iabilities
—accruals not at amortised cost 134 110 - -
— deferred income L] K1 1
— VAT, payrall taxes and social secunity ' 9 72 16 13

2505 2320 1923 1,485

The matunity profile of the Group s non-curent trade and other payables at 31 December was

Duse to jomt Due i jont

Trade ventures Trade ventures

and other Due on Defemed and and other Dugon Defemed and
payables acuismions A I Tatal payables acqusiions  Accnals ACOMme  assciales Total
2008 2008 2009 209 2009 209 2008 2008 2008 008 2008 2008
£m Em fm fm £m £m Erm fm £m 211] Jis] £m
Duge within one to two years a2 k| 19 3 - 67 3 6 13 4 - 57
Due within two to five years 10 6 5 5 - 26 B 7 8 5 - 28
Due after more than five years i 12 4 2 5 10 28 12 - 2 25 67
9 21 28 10 ] 163 0 25 A 11 5 152
Fai values 62 20 27 8 13 130 57 25 20 i0 13 125

The tarr value of non-cumment rade and other payables has been deterrmned by using yield curves and exchange rates prevailing at the reparting date and discounting
future cash flows at interest rates prevailing at the reporting date

Ii ts Group pohcy that forward foreign exchange contracts are taken out as soon as a foreign cumency trade or other payable 15 kentified Amaunts due to jomt ventures
and associates and aceruals and defered income are denominated in sterling
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23 Cash and cash equivatents and borrowings

231 Group
Curert  Nop-current Total Curem Non-current Total
2m 200 209 2008 2008 2008
£m fm Em m £m £m
Unsecured borrowings at amorused cost
— bank overdraits {10) - (10) iy - {104
— other short-iarm loans {10) 3 13) m {1 2
Secured borrowings at amorused cost
— {inance leases (3) (10 13 (1 {8) i3l
{23) {13) (36} 1) {9 (21}
Cash and deposits at amartised cost 164 - 464 319 - 379
Term deposits at amortssed cost 124 - 144 82 - 82
Non-PPP cash and cash equivalents 608 - 608 461 - 461
585 (13) 572 449 9 440
PPP non-retourse term oans at amortised cost.
~sterling floaung rate term loan (2006-2027) {n (23) {24) - (27 {27)
~ sterling floating rate term loan (2011—-2030) - (19 {19) - {13) {13)
—sterling floatng rate tem doan {2012-2031) - {13 (13} - {6} 3]
—sterling floating rate term loan (2010-2034) (18} {156) (174) - (991 (99)
— sterling floating rate term joan {2012-2037) - (28) (28) - - =
(19} {39} (758} - {145} {145)
PPP cash and cash equivalents 10 - 10 2 - 2
(9) (239} {248) 2 {145) {143)
et cashy/lborrowings) 516 {252) 324 451 {154} 297

The PPP project finance sterling debt obligations anse undar non-recourse facilibes in the concession companies Connect Roads Sunderland Ltd, Gonnect Roads South
Tyneside Ltd, Connect Roads Dery Lid Transform Schools (Knowsley) Ltd and Connect CNDR Ltd The barowangs are secured by fxed and floatng charges over each
concession company s night, tite and interest i certain assets and/or revenues and over each concession company’s shares held by thew iImmediate parent comparnies,

Connect Roads Sunderland Holdings Ltd, Connect Roads South Tyneside Hoidings Ltd, Connect Roads Derby Holdings Ltd, Transform Schools (Knowsley) Holdings Ltd
and Connect CNDR Holdings Ltd !

A significant part of the PPP non-recourse project finance floating rate team loans has been swapped nto fixed rate debt by the use of interest rate swaps
Cash deposits and term deposits nclude the Group s share of amounts held by jointly controlled operations of £212m{2008 £164m)
The Group s undrawn committed borrowaing facilities n respeci of which all conditions precedent were satisfied at 31 Decemnber were

PP pre
non-recourse NOTHECOUrse
E:'.ﬁ bmuelw : Total s b e Total
n nance Q
m% 2009 009 % 2003
m Em Em Em £m Em
Expiring in one year or less - 145 15 1 - 1
Expinng n more than one year but not more than two years g 35 M - i 70
Expinng in more than two years 78 381 450 121 334 455
8 561 649 122 404 526
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23 Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings continued
The matunity profile of the Group s borrowmgs at 31 December 1s as follows

FPP pop
RON<SECOUrse nor-recourse
ect Finance Other Firence Ciher
gm teases  borrowings Total firanca leases borwangs Total
2 28 o] 208 2008 2008 2008 2008
Em £m £m £m £m fm tm £m
Due on demand or within one year {19) (3) {20) (42) - {1 (i} {12)
Due within one to two years (8) {1} - 9 (17 (1 - {18)
Due within two to five years {31) (6) - (3n {14) (7} m {22)
Dus after more than five years (200) (3) {3) {206) (114) - - {114}
(258) (13} {23) {234) (145) {9} {12} {166
The table below compares the book values and the fair values of the Group's borrowings at 31 December
Bogk valve Far valve Book value Far value
20 28 2008 P
Em £m fm £m
Unsecurad borrowings at amartised cost.
~ bank overdratts (10} {10) @ 2]
— other short-term loans {13) (13) 2 2}
Secured barrowings at amertised cost
— finance ieases {13} (13) (10) {10)
{36) (36) (21) (21)
PPP non-recourse term loan at amortised cost.
— sterling floatng rate tarm loan {2008-2027) (24) (2q) @27 27
— sterhing floating rate term loan {281 1-2030) {19) (19 (13 113}
— sterling fioaing rate term loan {2012-2031) {13) 13 {6} {8}
- sterling floating rate tam loan (2010-2034) (178) {179) (@9 {99}
— sterhing floating rate term loan {2012-2037) {28) (28) - -
|258) (258) {145) {145)
Barrowings (2949) {294) {166) (166}
The farr values have been determined by using yield curves and exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date and discounting future cash fiows &t interest rates
prevailing at the reporung date
232 Company
Currem  Non-cument Tutal Current Nor-curment Total
i b 20 2 20m 2008 n6a
£ £m £m fm fm fm
Unsecured borrowings at amortisad cost
- bank overdrafts {53) - {53) {51) - 51)
{53) - {53) {51) - (51}
Term deposrts 143 - 143 50 - 50
Nen cash/inet borrowings) %0 - 90 {1) - Wl

The unsecured bargwangs and term deposits are stesling denominated and vanable rate instruments  The bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and the term

deposits matured on 4 January 2010

3

S3UN0308 Ing
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24 Deferred tax

241 Defemad tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate 10 income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle its cument tax

assets and diabilities on anet basis The net deferred tax position at 31 Oecember was

Group Group Company Company
2009 2008 2 2008
[ £m £m m
Deferved tax assets 183 132 ] -
Deferred tax liabilites 9 {10) - {1
174 122 ] ]
The movement for the year in the net deferred tax posiuon was as §ollows
Group Compary
fm £m
At 1 January 2008 118 1
Charged to statement of financial performance {40) ]
Credited/{charged) to equity 23 {1}
Businesses acquired 4 -
Transfer to curent tax 17 -
At 31 December 2008 122 )]
Charged to staternent of financial performance . a1 -
Credrted to equity L §
Businesses acquired 2 -
Currercy trensiation differences {3 -
At 31 December 2009 174 4
242 Group
The faliowing are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised and the movements therean dunng the year
Accalerated Revrement Share-
1 benefit Unirelieved based Farr valua
depreciation mhgations  tredng losses paymEnts Prowsions atjustments Dervatves otal
in fm m £m fm £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets
At 1 January 2008 1 73 a8 7 15 - - 144
(Charged)/credied to statement
of financial performance - {23) {21 1 {2} - - {45
Credited/icharged} to equity - 17 - (4) - - - 13
Businessas acquired i - - - - - - 1
Currency translation differences - - 19 - - - - 19
Transfer from deferred tax liabilities - - - - — 19 — 19
At 31 December 2008 - 67 45 4 13 18 - 148
Reclassifications/zansfers 5 8 Zn - . ] (10) 10 14
Credited/icharged) to statament
af financial performanca 5 {36) {13) {2) {1 {9 - (57}
Credited/icharged) to aquity - 98 - 1 - - (5} 9
Businesses acquired 4 ;) - - 1 - - H
Curency translation differences - - {2} - (1 - - {3
At 31 December 2009 14 166 3 3 40 - 5 3




Annual report and accounts 2009 133

29 Deferred tax continued
Undistrbuted
eamungs of jortt
evakiation vertures and Preference Far valuz
of propesties Goxwll assoctes shaes adustments Loss of IBAS Total
m £m £m £m [ £ m
Deferred tax habilibes
At 1 January 2008 () {7) {8} {n (3 - (26}
{Chargad}/credited 1o the statement of financial perfomance - - {2} - 8 - 6
Businesses acquired - - - - 5 - 5
Creditad 1o equity - - - - 9 - 3
Cumency translation differences - 2} - - - - 2
Transferred to deferred tax assets - - - - 19 - 9
At 31 December 2008 {1) 9% {10) 7 - - (z7)
Reclassifications/ransfers - - - - n 3 (14}
Credited 1o the siatement of financial performanca - - 10 - 6 - 16
Busingssas acquired - - - - {32} - @@
At 3t December 2009 0l] 9 - m 37 3) BN =
8
[=}
Total net deferred tax asset 74 §.

At the reporting date, the Group had unused tax losses that arose over a number of vears of approwmately £260m (2008 £180m) which are available for offset aganst
future profits £90m (2008 £19m) wll expire 20 years after the year i which they arose, using lasses incurred n earlier years before those ncurred in (ater years with
the first expiry m 2021 The remaining losses may be carned forward indefinitely

At the reporting date the undistnbuted reserves of subsidianes for which deferred tax liabirties have not been recognised was £500m {2008 £350m) and for joint
ventures and associates was £50m {2008 £rul) No hatulty has been recogrused in respact of these differences because no temporary difference anses

243 Company
The following represents the major deferred tax assets and liabiliies recognised by the Company and the mavernents thereon

Deferred tax Deferred tax
liabulity assets
Share-  Retrament Accelerated Net deferred
Yeference based benefn tax tax assets/
shaes payments  oblgations Provsiopns  deprecat on Total (1 ayfry}
Em tm fm £m fm Em fm
AL 1 January 2008 {7 4 2 2 - 8 1
Charged 1o statement of financial performance - {1) - - - (1 {n
Charged to equity - m - - - {1} {1
At 31 December 2008 " ) 2 2 - 6 W
(Charged}/credited to siatement of financial perfarmance - - (2 1 1 - -
Credited to equity - - 5 - - 5 5

At 31 December 2009 7 2 5 3

1" 4
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25 Retirement benefit obligabons

a} Group

The Group theough trustees operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes Defined benefit schemes pravide benefits based on
employees pensionable service and their penstanable salary Defined contnbution schemes are those where the Graup's obligatien (s hmited to the amount that it
contributes ta the scheme and the scheme members bear the Investmentt and actuanal nisks

The majory of the Group s defined benefit schemes are funded Defined benefit contnibutions are determined in consultation with the trustees after taking
actuanal advice

The Group’s main scheme 1s the Balfour Beatty Pensson Fund {"BBPF"} which includes defined benefit and defined contnbution sections The definad benefit section 1s
closed to new members with the exception of certain employess transfernng under TUPE During 2008 and 2009 the Group implemented measures to fimit the increase
In pensianable pay of certain groups of m-service defined benefit members gming nse to a reduction in past service hiabilres of £100m {2008 £60m) which has been
classified as an exceptional item in the statement of financial performance Gn 31 May 2009 the Mansall plc Pension Scheme and the Hall & Tawse Retirement Benefit
Plan ("Mansell schemes”) merged with the BBPF

The investment sirategy of the BBPF scheme 1s to hold assets of appropriate iquidity and marketabwlity to generate income and capiiat growth to meet together with any
contnbutions from the Group the cost of current and future benefits The BBPF nvests i equities in anticipation that over the langer term they will grow i value faster
than the liabilies The majanity of the BBPF equities are in the form of pooled funds The BBPF invests in fixed and index-linked bonds and inftation swaps in order to
match the duration and nflatien exposure of a portion of the abiliies The BBPF invests in corporate fixed-interest bonds in anticipation that, over the longer term, they
will outperform equivalent government bonds A partion of the corperate bonds ts overlaid with inflation swaps in order 1o create a better match between the assets

and the inflation-linked charactenistics of the habiliies The performance of equities and bonds 1s measured against market indices VWhere the BBFF invests in funds of
hedge funds this 1s in order to improve dersification There are three funds of hedge funds to further improve diversification The performance of the fund of hedge fund
managers Is measured against three manth LIBOR

Certain Group employees are members of the Balfour Beatty Shared Cost section of the Railways Pension Scheme { 'Railways Pension Scheme }, which 15 clased to new
members with the exception of certain employaes transfermng under TUPE The economic interest of the Group in this shared cost scheme 15 approximately 50% of the
scheme s assets and habilities based on the relevant provisions of the trust deed and rules and trustee guidelnes regarding future surplus apportionments and deficit
financing Parsons Brinckerhoff Ltd operates a defined benefit scheme which s closed to new members (“Parsons Brinckerhoff Scherme | The Parsons Brnckerhoit
Scheme has a legal charge over a Group leasehold property with a book value of £6m (2008 £ail} With the exception of the Parsons Brinckerhoff Scheme, active
members continue to accrue benefits for future service: Other schemes cempnse funded and unfunded post-retirement benefit abhigations in Europe and North America,
the majonity of which arrengements are closed to new entrants and deferred compensation schemeas in the USA, whare an element of employees compensation s
deferred and invested in avallable-for-sale assets as disclosed in Note 16 1 for the ultimate benefit of the emplovees in a trust, the assets of which are available to Group
creditors in the event of insotvency

The membership of the principal schemes s as follows
Railways Parsons Raiiways

Batfour Beatty Pension Brmnckerhaff Ba'four Baatty Pension Marsell
Pens:on Fumd Schema Scheme Pension Fund Scheme schemes
20059 20m 20m 008 208 2008
Defined Defmed Defined Defired Defined Defined
beneftt benefit benefit benefit benefit benefit
Number of nbligatims  MNunberof cobimgations MNumberaf obligatons Numberf  od'gations Numberof  obigations Numberof  obligauons
members ] awxanbers Em members £m members £m mesmbers fm mesmbers Em
Oefined benefit
— active members 4,958 147 m 47 - - 5338 514 425 39 453 %4
—deferred pensioners 14589 637 1561 52 1.115 87 13363 406 1,594 36 1513 53
— pensIoners
widowferls and
dependants 1861 ot 1318 78 1,108 79 17063 813 125 63 1,298 B1
Oefined cantribution 1,429 - - - 1502 - £ 870 - - - - -
Total 45,667 232% 3276 77 415 166 472634 1733 375 138 3264 188

|AS 19 governs the accountsng for defined benefit schemes in the Group's financial statements Obligations are calculated using the projected unit credit method and
d:scountad to a net present value using the market yield on a hugh quality corporate band Pension expense relating 1o current senvice cost 1s charged to contracts or
overheads based on the functien of scheme members and s included in cost of sales and net operating expenses The net interest sncome ansing from the expected
return on plan assets and the interest on scheme obligations 15 credited to nvestment income or finance charges as appropriate Actuanial gains and lossas are reported
i full in the statement of comprehensive income The LAS 19 accounting valuation is set outin 25 1 below

Adifferent caicutation 1s used for the regutar valuations undertaken by the scheme trustees to detemming the future company contributtan level necessary so that over
time the scheme assets will meet the scheme liabilities The prncipal difference batween the two methods 1s that under the funding basis the liabilies are discounted
using a rate of retum reflecting the composition of the assets n the scheme, rather than the rate of retum on a high quality corporate bond as required by LAS 18 for the
accounting basis Details of the previous formal funding basis valuations are set out in 25 2 below

The assets of the schemes do not include any direct holdings of the Group s financial insiruments nor any praperty occupied by, or other assets of the Group The Parsans
Brinckerhoff Scheme has an mterest i a property under an operating lease that 1s occupied under an operating sublease by a Group company whuch pays an annual
rental of £0 2m (2008 £nil)
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25 Retirement benefit obligabons continued

25.11AS 19 accounting valuation
The principal actuanal assumptions for the IAS 19 accounting valuations of the Group's principal schemes are as follows

Raihways Parsons Ratways

Batfour Bestly Pension Brmckehoff  Sa'four Beatty Ponsion Mansell

Pension Fund Scheme Scheme  Pension Fund Scheme schernes

i) 209 208 08 2008 2008

% % [ % % %

Descount rate on obhigations 565 5.65 5.65 645 645 645

Expected return on plan assats 593 130 675 627 745 640

Inflatron rate 350 350 350 280 280 280
Future increasas in pensionable salary

- certain members of the Balfour Beatty Pension fund - - - 280 - -

—other members 500 500 - 430 430 430

Rate of increase in pensions in payment {or such other rate as is guaranteed} 350 350 50 280 280 280

The BBPF actuary undertzkes regular mortality nvesugations based on the expenence exhibited by pensioners of the SBPF and due to the size of the membership of the
BBPF {45 667 members at 31 December 2009) 1s able to make compansons of this expenence with the mortality ;ates set outin the various pubhished mortality tables
The actuary 1s also able to monitor changes in the exhibited mortality over time This research 1s taken into account in the Group's mortality assurmptions across Its
vanous defined benefit schemes

The mortalty tables adapted for the 2009 and 2008 1AS 19 valuauons are the 1992 senies calendar year 2007 tables, with fuwre improvements apphicable to each
member s year of birth under the medium eohort effect from 2007

209 2008
Average Iite expectancy Average [{2 expertancy
8165 years of age al 5 years of age
Members i receipt of a pension

—Male 20 4 years 20 3 years
—Female 23 dyears 23 4 years

Members not yet in receipt of a pensien {current age 50}
—Male 21 4 years 213 years
—Female 243 years 24 3 years

The composition of the members of the Parsons Bnnckerhoff Scheme 15 different to the other schemes and allowance has been made for approximaely three further
vears of life expectancy for membars of dus scheme compared to members of the ather schemes

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows

Raihways Parsons Raiways
Baltour Beaty Pension  Brinckerhoff Other Batfour Saatty Pension Mansell Other
Pension Fund Scheme Schema schemes® Jotal  Penson Fund Scheme schemes schemes Toual
2009 2009 2009 209 2009 7008 2008 2008 2008 008
£m m tm £m £m fm fm £m £m Em
Present value of obligations (2,325) 7 {166) {89) {2,757) {1,733) (138} (188) {43) {2102}
Fair value of plan assets 1.1 134 13 13 21N 1540 120 170 11 1841
Liability i the statement
of financial positipn (414) {43) {53) {76) {586) {193) (18} (18} {32) {261}
Avallable-for-sale mutual
funds™ {Note 16 1) - - - | 4 - - - - -

The defined benefit abligation compnises £76m (2008 £29m) anising from whelly unfunded plans and £2 681m (2008 £2,073m} ansing from plans that are wholly or
partly funded

* Avalable-for sale imvestments in mutual funds of £41m (2008 £nill are held by the Grouo to satsty the G roup s deferred compensation obfgations

SWAOIE Ing)
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25 Retirement benefit cbligations continued

The amounts recognised m the statement of financial performance are as follows

Balfour Ratlways Parsgns Hatfour Rakways
Beatty Pension  Brinckerhoff Mansell Other Beany Pension Marssll {ther
Pens:on Fund Scheme Scheme schemes schemes Total  Pension Fund Scheme schemes schemes Total
2009 20 2m 2009 2009 208 2008 208 2008 2008 m
£m £m £m Em Em £m fm fm fm fm fm
Current senvice cost {zn 2 - {1) 2) x2) {38} (3 {3) (1) {45)
Jefined contribution charge {22) - i2) - (15) {39) {16} - - (12) {28)
Inclucled in employes costs
{Note 5} {a9) {2) 2) {1 (1m pal] {54} 13} {3} {13) {73)
Expected retum on plan
assets m 8 1 5 1 116 n7z " i3 - 141
Interest cost (114) {8} 2) {5) (2) ) (113} &)} 12) (2} {136)
Net investment
(expensel/income
{Notes Band 7} {13) - 1 - 1) {15) 4 2 1 (2] 5
Total charged to profit
before exceptional itams {62} {2) {3) {1 {18) {86) {50} {1 2) {15} (68)
Exteptional reduttion n
pension past service
labilines {Note 8) 100 - - - - 100 80 - - - 60
Total credited/fcharged) to
statement of financial
perfarmance 38 2 {3) {1 {18) 1 0 () {2) {15} {8}
The amounts recogrised in the siatement of comprehensive income are as follows
Balfour Railways Parsons Batfour Raibways
Bestty  Pension Bonckerhofi  Mansell Other Beauy Pension Mansell Other
Pension Fund Scheme Sch tr Total  Pension Fund Schere schermes schernes Total
208 209 2009 2008 20 2009 208 2008 208 2008 2008
£m £m tm Em £m im fm fm £mn fm fin
Actuanial (losses)/gamns on
pension scheme obligations (449) {35) 5 {5} 3 (a87) 34 30 26 - 370
Actuarial gains/{losses} on
pension scheme assets 135 9 1 (9} 1 137 {350 (a7 {35} - (432)
Total actuanat
{lossesl/gains recogrised m
the statement of
comprehensive Income
(Note 28 1} (314) (26} 6 (14 {2) (350} (36) (17) @ - {62}
Cumulatrve gains/flosses)
recogmised in reserves (390} (33) 6 - ] (418} (76} {7 14 1 {69)

BBPF definad contribution emplayer contnbutions paid and charged to the statament of financiat performance have baen separately dentified in the table above and

the defined contribution section assats and liailities amounting to £87m {2008 £52m| have been excluded from the 1ables on pages 135 to 139 Defined coninbution

charges for other schemes include contributions to mutti-employer pension schemes

The actual retum on plan assets was a gain of £253m {2008 1oss of £291m)




25 Retirement benefit obhgations continued
The movement in the present value of obligations 15 as follows

Batfour Railways Parsons
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Beatty Pension  Brnckerhoff Mansell Cthes Beatty Pension Mansal Other
Pens:on Fund Scheme Scheme schemes schemes Total  Pension Fund Scherne schemes schemes Total
2000 2009 200 2009 2008 2009 2008 e 208 208 2008
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m fm £m £m
At 1 January {1,733) {138) - (188) 43 (212 (2036} (164} {207) @37 [2.444)
Currency transfation - - - - 1 1 - - - {6} &
Mansell scherne transfer {196) - - 19% - - - - - - -
Oher transfers - - - - {20 {20) - - - - -
Service cost {z1) 2 - {1 2 (32) (38} {3 3 {1 (45)
Exceptional past
$ervice gain 100 - - - - 100 60 - - - 60
Interest cost {114) {8) {2) (5 {2) {131) {113} ] (12} {2} {138)
Acwanal {losses)/gans (449) (35) 5 {5) {3} {487 314 30 26 - 370
Contributions
from members 9 - - n - (10} 1 - ) - (12)
Benefits paid 108 6 2 4 6 121 g1 8 9 4 112
Businesses acguired - - {1, - {26) (197 - — - 1} {1l
A1 31 December (2.325) (177} {166) - 83}  (2757) {1,733) {138) (188) {43} (2,102)
The movement in the fair vlue of plan assets 1s as follows
Balfour Raviways Parsons Batfour Raiways
Beatty Pension  Brinckerhoft Manszel) Other Beaty Pension Manssll Cther
Penson Fund Schems Sch b h Total  Pension Fund Stheme schemes schemes Total
209 2009 209 2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
£m tm Em £m £m £m £m fm fm fm £m
ALl January 1540 120 - 170 n 1801 1,796 160 1 1 2,158
Currengy translation - - n - 1 - - - - 1 1
Mansell scheme transfer 167 - - {167 - - - - - - -
Expected return on
plan assets 101 8 1 5 1 116 17 " 13 - 141
Actuanal gams/(losses) 135 9 1 C)] 1 137 {350 (47} (35) - {432
Contributions from
employer — regular funding 1] 2 - 1 - k| 28 2 2 - 32
Contributions from
employer — deficrt funding K1l 1 - 3 - K} 29 2 7 - 38
Contributions
from members 9 - - 1 - 10 1 - 1 - 12
Benefits pard (103) (] (2} {9 (1} {116) {81) (8 {9 {1) {109}
Businesses acquired - - 1M - - 14 - - - - -
At 31 December tsn 134 13 - 13 21N 1540 120 170 1 1,841
The fair value and expected rates of retum on the assets held by the schemes at 31 December are as follows
Baliour Beatty Pansion Fund Railways Pension Scheme  Parsons Bnnckerhoff Scheme Other schemes
&pﬁfﬁmﬁ"ﬁ Valua Expu:}ndmﬁ Valus Emﬁ'lﬁmﬁnl# Value m?fdrmﬂ Value
008 2009 209 2009 200 2009 208 2009
% tm % fm % £m % £m
Equities 8.30 658 830 90 830 5 - -
Bonds
— Index hinked gitts 450 430 13 4.30 19 - -
—fixed rate gilts 430 1 - - 4.30 4 - -
- comarate and other bonds 460 84 530 18 530 18 400 13
Funds of hedge funds 660 78 - - - - - -
Property - - 640 13 - - - -
Cash and other net assets 4430 n - - LY 7 - -
Rate of retum/total 593 191 730 1 675 113 400 13

SWINOE N
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25 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Battour Beatty Pension Fund Ralways Pension Scheme Mansell schemes Other schemes
Expected rate Expected ate Expected rate Expected rata

of et Value of retum of etum Vahe of rewm Value

208 2008 7008 7008 2068 208 2008

% im % % £m % fm

Equities 835 445 835 §35 B4 - -
Bonds

—indax linked giits 380 351 - 380 15 - -

—fixed rate gilts 400 10 - 380 K - -

—corporate and other bonds 670 542 570 570 32 417 il

Furdds of hedge funds 630 70 - - - - -

Property - - 610 - - - -

Cash and other net assets 360 22 - 360 5 - -

Rate of retum/total 627 1,540 745 640 170 417 1

The axpected rates of retum on scheme assets ware determined as the average of the expacted returns on the assets held by the scheme on 31 December

The rates of retum for each class were datermined as follows

- equtes, the long-tenm rates of retum on equities, funds of hedge funds and property are denved from current qisk free rates of retum with the addiien of an

appropriate future nisk prermum from an analysis of histonc retums. current market condimons and forward locking views from market articipants
— bonds the rate has been sat to reflect the yields available on the gilts and corporate bond holdings held at 31 December

— cash and other net assets this class principally comprises inflation rate swaps and cash holdings and the rate adopted reflacts current short-term retums on

cash deposits
The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the prncipal defined benafit schemes durng 2010 are as follows

Balfour Beatty Ratways Parsons

Penmon Pension Brnckerhott
Fund Scherme Scheme Total
2010 6 2000 2010
fm £m fm fm
Regular funding 37 - 39
Deficit funding 23 6 30
Total 80 6 89

The estimated deficit funding of £23m in the BBPF above 1s benefiting from a prepayment of £10m in 2009 Addiuonal payments esimated at up to £20m may be paid

1n 2010 to fund an enhanced transfer value exercise

The sensitwity of the Group's pension obligations and of the prospective 2010 charge to the Group's statement of financial performance to diffarent actuanal

assumptions 1s as follows

Increasef tncrease/

Incraase/ Incraase) {deccease} n [decreaset n

{decreasehin {decreasetin mesgnent 1otal pension

Perentage SeIvKe Cost finance cost retum ost

poirtsAvears £m £m £m Em

tnerease n discount rate 05% - 4
Increase in inflation rate 05% - 10
Increase in salary above mflation 05% - 2
[ncrease in retum on assets 05% i1 (1)
Increase in Iife expectancy one year - 7

The sensimvites relatng to the discount rate nflation rate and expected retim on assets in respect of the pension cost elsments in the statement of financial

performance are shown for infermation only The amaunts that will be included in the 2010 statement of financial performance are dernved from the market cond:tions
at 1 January 2010 and subsaquent changes in market condrions wall have no effect on the 2010 statement of financial performance and will be reflectad as actuana

adjustments in the statement of comprehensive Income
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Z5 Retirement benefit chligations continued
Year end historic information for the Group s post-retirement benefit schemes 1s as follows

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Em fm £m £m Em
Defined benefit obhigauon ai end of year {2.757) {2.102) {2,444} (2375 2217}
Fair value of assets at and of year 21n 1,841 2,158 2087 1,937
Funded status at end of yoar (586) {261) {286} {288} (280}
Expenience adjustment for abiliigs (9) {17) {56} (52} 24
Expenence adjustment for assets 137 {432) {21} 2 138
252 Funding valuations
The [atest formal funding valuations are detailed helow
Marsall schemes
Baﬁmm Rgslanswm Hall & Tawse Mansell pk: Brrg(am
Fund Schame Plan scheme Scheme:
£m £m £m £m tm
Date of last farmal funding vatuaton 3032007 AT /032005 /072005 3170372008
Scheme surplus/(deficit) s
Market value of assets 1693 158 90 51 119 g
Present value of scheme liabiltses (177 (156} {113) (65) (169) 2
{Deficitl/surplus in defined benefit scheme (77} 2 {23} (14} (50}
Funding level % 6% 101 3% 790% 780% 706%

The Mansell schemes’ 2008 formal furding valuations were superseded by the merger of these schemes with the BBPE, the next fonmal valuation of wiuch will be at
31 March 2010

b} Company

Certain employees of the Company are members of the BBPF Assets, liabilities, income and expendiiure relating to this fund are allocated to Group companies
participating in the scheme n propartion to pensionable payroll for the year The Company’s share of the net IAS 19 deficit was £18m (2008 £7m}

6 Provisions
Grouzp Compamy
Employee Contract Other Dther
prowvisions provisions prowsicns Total provisions
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2009 A 62 70 166 11
Currency translation differences - (i (2) {3 -
Transfer to other Group companies - - - - {2)
Charged to the statement of financial performance
— addrtional provisions 9 65 34 108 3
~ unused amounts reversed (2} (8) (10 {20 2}
Utilised dunng the year (5} {13) (32) (50) {1}
Businesses acquired - 13 8 F4) -
At 31 December 2009 k 118 68 bz 9

Employee provisions compnse ohligations to employees ather than retrement benefit abligations Contract prowstans refate to provisions on contracts neluding fault
and warranty provisions and other provisiens principally comprnise environmental provisions legal claims and costs and anerous lease and other cammiiments

The majority of provisions other than employee pravisions are expected to be sthsed wathin five years Prowision 1s made for the Directors” best estimate of knowm legal
claims, mvestgations and legal actions n progress
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77 Share capital
77 1 Ordinary shares of S0p each
Authansed issued

Midkon fm M Fon {m
At 1 January 2008 696 348 433 216
Shares issued - - 45 23
At 31 December 2008 696 348 478 738
Shares authonsed/issued 300 150 207 1
At 31 Cecember 2009 996 498 33

Al issued ordmary shares are fully paid Ordinary shares carry no nght to fixed mncome  but each share cames the nght to one vote at general meetings of the Company
Ordinary shares tssued dunng the year credited as fully paid

Ordrary
shares Consideration dues  Consderaton
2009 28 2008 208
Numbet Em Nummber £m
Rights 1ssue (Note 28°2) 205502237 355 - -
Share placing (Note 28 2) - — 43320411 182
Savings-related share opbions exercised 1337199 3 1286053 3
Executive share options exercised 433,694 1 334977 1
27273130 359 4991391 186
At 31 December share options outstanding were as follows
Ordriaty
Ondmary sharss
Exermsa pnce shares 2008
Perce 2008 NJmber
Year ol s {adusted;  Nomally exeresatis i penocs 0 Mumnber {adusted}
Savings-related
2001 1158 December 2008 - 43475
2004 1828 December 2009 47,680 788232
2005 2177 December 2010 726,234 903997
2006 2656 December 2011 840033 1854534
2007 3387 December 2012 21470285 2489415
2008 3152 December 2013 2383.749 2770409
2009 2490 December 2014 2,756,731 -
8901502 8850122
Executrve
1999 K7 November 2009 - g7055
2000 688 Apnl 2010 43,059 214459
2001 1741 Jung 201 157,793 197 980
2002 2072 Apnl 2012 31,786 351 350
2003 1506 Apai 2013 461,652 519062
2004 2773 Apnl 2014 53,268 861439

1751558 27251345

Following the nghts ssu descnibed in Note 28 2 adjustments were made to the aumber of shares under optron and the exercise prices in accordance with the HMRC
approved standard formula In the tables above the share options outstanding at 31 December 2008 have been adjusted onto a comparable basis

(On 18 May 2009 options were grantad over 2 883 634 (adjusted) ordwmary shares under the Batfour Beatty savings-related share eption scheme at 249p (adjusted}
per share and these are normally exereisable in the peniods from July 2012 to December 2012 and from July 2014 to December 2014 depending upon the length of
Savings coniract chasen by the particepant.
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21 Share caprtal continued
272 Cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of 1p each

' Authonsed tssued

MilFon fm Millon £m |

At 1 January 2008 177 2 112 -
Shares repurchased - - - -
At 31 December 2008 17 2 12 -
Shares rapurchased - Z - —
At 31 December 2009 177 2 112 -

Allissued preference shares are fully paid During the year, no preference shares were repurchased for cancellation by the Company in 2008 300017 preference shares
ware repurchased for cancellauon by the Company for a total consideration of £407 337 at an average price of 135 8p

Holders of preference shares are entitled to a preferential dvidend equrvalent to a gross payment of 10 75p per preference share per annum payable half-vearly
Any greference shares stll outstanding are redeemable an 1 July 2020 at £1 each, together with any arrears or aceruals of dwvdend unless the holder exercises any
option granted by the Company i extend the redemption date The maximur redemption value of all of the 1ssued and outstanding preference shares, excluding any
amears or accruals of dwvidend, was £112mat 31 December 2009 (2008 £112m)

At the option of the holder preference shares are convertible on the first day of 1he next calendar month foflowing receipt of the conversion natice inta new Balfeur
Beatty pic ordinary shares effectively on the basis of 24 63136 ordary shares for every 100 preference shares subject to adjustment in certain circumstances

The Company 1s entitled to convert all outstanding preference shares into ordinary shares If there are fewer than 44,281,239 praference shares m ssue or 1f the
average of the closing mid-market pce for a Batfour Beatty pic ordinary share dunng a 30 day penod exceeds 810p subject to adjustment in cartain crcumstances

$1Un0aIe InQ

The preference shares carry no voting nights at a genaral meeting of the Company, axcept where the didend 1s stx months or more (n arrears, or where the business of
the mesting includes & resolution which directly affects the nghts and privileges attached to the preference shares or a resolubon for the winding-up of the Company
Ona winding-up of the Company, holders are entitled to recerve the sum of £1 per preference share together with any arrears or aceruals of dwdend, in prionty to any
payment on any other class of shares

The preference shares are regarded as a compound instrument comprising an equiiy and a Iability component The fair value of the kiability component at the date of

issue, ncluded under non-current habiliies was estimated using the prevailing market interest rate of 13 5% for a similas non-converuble instrument. The difference '

between the proceads of issue of the preference shares and the fair value assigned to the hiability component, represanting the value of the equrty conversion |

component, 1s included in shareholders’ equity, net of deferred tax ‘
|

The habity component recogrused in the statement of financial postion 15 calcufated as follows

2009 208

£m £m

Redemption value of shares in1ssue at 1 January 112 nz
Equity component {16) {16)
Defarred tax and interest gtement (9) {9
Liabnlity component at 1 January at amortisad cost 87 87
Interest accretion 1 -
Repurchase of preference shares - -
Liability component at 31 December at amortised cost 88 87

The fawr value of the liability component of the preference shares at 31 December 2008 amounted to £153m {2008 £134m) The farr value 1s determined by using the
market price of the preference shares at the reporiing date

Interest expense an the preference shares 1s caleulated uging the effectve interest method
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28 Movements in equity

281 Group
Share of
Equity jont Other reserves. ACCUTE
component ulzed
Lated-up Share of and PPP Cumency lassesy Nor+
share  pemum  pefererce Specal associaies Medgng  fmancal tansiation Merger Retaned contro’ing
captal  actount shams  rosenve MESErVES rESENVES BSSEls  fesEnVE TESBNVE Other profits  mterests Total
£m fm £m fm fm fm £m fm fm £m £m tm
At 1 January 2008 216 52 16 164 178 4] - (2} - 15 (152} - 483
et profit for the year - - - - 72 - - - - - 124 - 19
Actuaral losses on retiremen
benefit obligations - - - - (14) - - - - - {62) - (76}
Farr value revaluations
— PP financial assets - - - - 100 - 2 - - - - - 102
— PPP cash flow hedges - - - - (73) (34} - - - - - - {7
~ other cash flow hadges - - - - (3 2 - - - - - - {1)
Changes in far value of net
investent hedges - - - - - - - (105) - - - - (105
Currency translation differences - - - - 27 - - 189 - - - 1 217
Tax on tems taken directly to equity - - - ] 10 {1} 3 - - 17 - 25
Total comprehensive income/
{expensel for the year - - - - 105 (22} 1 ar - 79 1 251
Ordinary dnadends - - - - - - - - = - {54) - (54}
Joint ventures and associates”
dvidends - - - - {53 - - - - - 53 - -
Issue of ordinary shares 23 2z - - - - - - 161 - - - 186
Movements relating to
share-based payments - - - - - - - - - 4 (8 - {4)
Non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 3 3
Tsansfers - - - (25} - - - - (86 - 186 - -
At 31 December 2008 239 54 16 139 230 {26} i 85 - 19 104 4 865
Net prafit for the year - - - - 83 - - - -~ - 130 - 23
Actuarial losses on retirement
benefit obligauons - - - - - - - - - - {350} - (3s0)
Faw value revaluations
— PPP financial assets - - - - {79) - n - - - - - (80)
— PPP cash fiaw hedges - - - - m 16 - - - - - - 5
—other cash flow hadges - - - - - 2) - - - - - - {2
Changes in fair value of net
nvestment hedges - - - - - - - 18 - - - - 18
Currency translation differences - - - - (10} - - {67) - - - - {7
Tax on riems taken directly to equity - - - - 26 5) - - - - 99 - 120
Total comprehensive tncome/
{expense}or the year - - - - 9 9 v (a9 - - {121 - {153}
Ordinary dwidends - - - - - - - - - - (63) - {63)
Joint ventures” and associates’
drdends - - - - (75) - - - - - 75 - -
Issue of ordwary shares 104 3 - - - - - - v - - - k|
Rights 1ssue expenses - - - - - - - - - - (3) - (3}
Movements relating to
share-based payments - - - - - - - - - 1 - - 1
Transfers - - - {0 - - - - (3} - 110 - -

At 31 December 2009 3 57 16 32 164 () - 36 299 20 102 4 1006
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28 Movements in equity contmued
282 Company
Equity Other reserves Jetaned
Callscup Share  component of profits/
share premum preference Special Merger lacoumulated
captal accourt shares resenve reserve Orher osses) Tesal
fm fm fm £m £m £m fm fm
At 1 January 2008 216 52 . 16 164 - 48 185 681
Net loss for the year - - - - - - {28} {28)
Actuanal losses on retrement benefit obligations - - - - - - 1} {1}
Tax on items taken directly to aquity - - - - - - (1} )
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - - - - {30} (30}
Ordinary dividends - - - - - - (54} (54}
Issus of ordinary shares 23 2 - - 161 - - 186
Movements relating to share-based payments - - - - - 16 {11} 5
Transfers - - - (25} {161) - 186 -
At 31 December 2008 239 54 16 139 - 84 278 788
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 167 167
Artuanal losses on retirement benefit obfigations - - - - - - (16) (16}
Tax on itams taken directly to equity - - - - - - 5 5
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 158 156
Ordinary dmdends - - - - - - (63) {63}
Issue of ordinary shares 104 3 - - B2 - - 359
Rights 1ssue expenses - - - - - - 3 (3)
Movements relating ta share-based payments - - - - - 1 (3) 1
Transfers - - - {107) {3} - 110 -
At 21 December 2009 343 57 16 12 249 68 413 1238

The retained profits of Balfour Beatty plc are wholly distributable By special resolution on 13 May 2004 confirmed by the court on 16 June 2004, the share premium
account was reduced by £181m and the £Am capital redemption reserve was cancelled, effective on 25 Jung 2004 and a special reserve of £185m was created
Ths reserve becomes distributable to the extent of future ncreases n share capital and share pramium account, of which £107m occurred n 2009 (2009 £25m)

On 17 September 2009 the Company announced a fully underwritten 3 for 7 nghts 1ssu2 at a subscription pnce of 180p per new ordinary share to substantsally finance
the acquisitran of Parsons Brinckerhoff Inc The nghts 1ssue and acquisition were approved by the holders of the Company's ardinary shares at a general meeting on

7 October 2004 and the nghts 1ssue clesed on 22 October 2009 205,502,237 new ardinary shares were ssued raising £352m after 1ssue costs and expenses of £18m
The nights 1ssue utiksed a cash box structure and therefore gualified for merger refief under Section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 so that the premium ansing was not
required to be credited to the Company’s share premium account,

The cash box entity Bantwarth No 2 Ltd {Bentwarth 2) sssued redeemable praference shares in consideration for the recerpt of the cash procaeds net of 1ssue costs
ansing from the nghts issue The Company s new ordinary shares were 1ssued as consideration for the transfer to n of the shares in Bentworth 2 which 1t did not afready
own Asaresult the issue quakihed for merger relief under Section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 so that the £252m excess of the value of the acquived shares in
Bentworth 2 over the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company was credited to the Company’s merger reserve, which was subsequentty charged with
£3mof nghts 1ssue expenses The nghts 1ssue was directly assoctatad with the acquisiuon of Parsans Brnckemaff Inc and therefore the merger reserve 1s not available
for distriburtion to shareholders

On 20 May 2008 43,320,411 ordinary shares were 1ssued and placed with nstitutions at 8 prce of 430p per share The net proceeds afier issue costs were £182m
The plating utihsed 2 cash box structure The cash box entity Bentworth Lid, 1ssued redeemabla preference shares in consideration for the receipt of the cash proceeds
net of 1ssue costs antsing from the placing The Company's ordinary shares were ssued as considaration for the transfer to 1t of the shares in Bentworth Ltd which it dd
not already own As a result, the placing quahfied for merger relief under Section 131 of the Campamias Act 1985 5o that the £161m excess of the value of the acgurred
shares In Bentworih Ltd over the nominal value of the erdinary shares 1ssued by the Company was cradited to the Company s memger reserve The prefarence shares

1n Bemworth Ltd were subsequently redeemed and the Company transferred £161m from the merger reserve to the profit and loss reserve which 1s available for
distribution to sharehoiders

283 The retained profits in the Group and the retained profit of the Company are stated net of investments in Balfour Beatty pic ordinary shares of 50p each acguired
by the Group s employee discretionary trust, the Balfour Beatty Employee Share Ownership Trust, to satisfy awards under the Balfour Beatty performance share plan
and the Balfour Beatty deferred bonus plan in 2009, 08m (2008 3 Om} shares were purchased at a cost of £3 0m (2008 £12 8mland the Trust subscribed £2 7m

for 1 5m new shares under the nghts issue The market value of the 4 2m (2008 3 7m) shares held by the Trust at 31 December 2009 was £108m {2008 £12 2m)
Followsng confirmatron of the performance criteria &t the end of $he performance penod i the case of the perdormance share plan and at the end of the vesting period
in the case of the deferred bonus plan, the appropriate number of shares will be unconditionally transferred to participants In 2009, 1 4m shares were transferred @
participants in relation to the Apnl 2006 awards under the performance share plan {2008 1 1m shares for the April 2005 awards), and 0 4m shares were transferred
to partcipants in relation to the March 2006 awards under the deferred bonus plan The trustees have waived the nghts to dividends on shares held by the Trust.
Giher reserves In the Group and the Company include £6 4m relating to unvested performance share plan awards {2008 £7 6ml, £5 9m relating to unvested share
options {2008 £58m) and £3 Bm refating to unvested deferred bonus plan awards (2008 £3 0m)
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29 Acquisthions
The Group has made the following four acquisiions dunng the year
Geodwill
Faur values of ansing on
Percentage Cash  Contngert  netassets  acquistion Costs
Aoquisiucn date Subsichary scquired considesmtron  conssderation actjutred i} {m}
291 23February 2009 Dooley Construction Limited 100% £28m - £11m £17m £im
Partnership {“AT Dooley”} $40m
292 27 October 2009 Parsons Brinckerhoff Inc {1} 100% £332m £(7m £203m £172m £15m
$626m ${12lm
233 12 November 2009 Spawhlaxwell Company LLC {1) 100% £12m £3m fam £11m -
$20m $5m
294 73 December 2009 Strata Consiruction Ltd 1) 100% £10m £4m f£om -

£432m El4)m £22m £206m £i6m

{1} As at 31 Dacember 2009 the fair values of acquired assats, habilites and goodwall for these businesses have been determined on a prowsicnal Basis as these
husinesses were acquired in close proximity to the year end, pending finalisation of the post-acquisition review of the fair value of the acquired net asseis

{u} None of the goodw!l recognised for Parsons Brinckerhofi 1s expected to be deductible for mcome tax purposes Soodwaill of £25m 15 expecied to be deductible for
NICOME Lax purposes in relation to other acquisions

() Costs directly attnbutable to each acquisiion have been expensed within exceptional items refer Note 8

291RT Dooley 1s a leading Narth Caralina USA firm in the interars construction market. The goodwall arising 1s atinbutable to the acquisition strengthening and
expanding the Group s US intenor construction capabilities

29.2 Parsons Brnckerhoff 1s a leading global professional sernces firm headquartered in New York USA Parsons Brinckerhoff offers professional serices across
the entire project lifecycle from management consultancy and planning to design and engineenng, programme, project and construction management services
and operational mantenance and support services The goodwitl ansing 1s attbutable to the acquisition establishing a glebal professional services business and
strengthening the Group s position in the global snirastructure market, particularly providing futere epportunities inthe US UK, Australia, Hong Kong Singapore
the UAE and a number of other key markets

29.3 SpawMaxwell 15 the largest mterior constuction contractor n Texas, USA The goodwill ansing s atinibutable to the acquisiion enhancing the position of Balfour
Beatty Construction US as a single source of construction capabilities in the Texas building market.

29 4 Strata Canstruction 1s a Doncaster UK based company specialising in the construction of affordabie housing The goodwill ansing 1s attnbutable to the company
expanding the Group's capabifities in the affardable housing market particularty in the Yarkshire region
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23 Acquisitrons continued
The far value of the net assets acquired, consideration paid and goodwill ansing on these transactions were

Recognsed amounts of identifiable assets

acquired and liabilites assumed
Parsons
Brmckerhoff Other Total
£m £m £m
Net assets acquired
Imangible assets ~ customear contragis 25 1 2%
Intangible assets — customear relationships 10 n
intangible assets — brand names 32 5 31
intangible assets — software 3 - 3
Property plant and eguipment 34 2 40
Investments In joint venturas and associates 3 2 5
Investments 2 - £}
Working capital 4 (11) 7
Provisions {19 2) {21}
Deterred tax 2 - 2
Cuent tax 2 - 2
€Cash and cash equivalents 124 12 136
Borrowings 14 - {14)
Retvement benefit abligations {83) - (83)
Identifiable net assets 203 19 22
Goodwall 172 k) 206
Total consideration r 5 8
Satsfied by
Cash consideration 382 50 432
Contingant consideration n 3 (4
‘Total consideration transferred k¥ L] 428
Cash consideration m2 50 432
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (129) (12) (136)
Net cash oudlow on acqusitions completed i 2009 38 296
Deferred consideration paid during 2009 in respect of acquisitions completed 1n earlier years 4
Net cash outflow on acquisitions 300
Parsons Brinckerhoff

The fair value of working capital wncludes trade and other recevables with a farr vatue of £381m ($623ml and 2 gross contractual value of £404m ($662m} The value of
recewables against which there 1s a provision 1s £23m ($3%m)

The contingent consideration arangemants require the perdommance of specific contracts 10 excead predefined thresholds in order to become payable and are dapendent
on the otcome of setthing tertain histoncal insurance claims The potential undseounted amaunt of all future payments and receipts that the Group could be required

1o make or recenve under the contingent consideration amangaments 1s between £16m recevable and £11m payable The fair value of the contingent consideration
arrangements 1s £7m recenvable This was estimated by applying the provisians of the purchase agresment to tha current management assessment of possible ouicomes
and discounting the expected coniract costs and insurance claim proceeds to therr present value

Parsons Brinckerhoff eamed revenue of £248m including its share of revenue from jomt ventures and associates of £4m and incurred a loss from operations (excluding
exceptonal rtems and amoriisation) of £1man the penod since acqusison

Other acquisitions
The fair valug of working caprtal includes trade and other recervables wath a fair value of £64m and a gross contractual value of £685m The value of recervahles aganst
which there 15 a provision 1s £1m

The contingent constderation arrangements relating to the acquesition of SpawMaxwell require the acquired business to perform above a predefined performance levet
The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that the Group could be required to make under the contingent conskleration arrangements 1s £3m, which is
equal to the amount recognised as the fair vatue of contingent consideration

Since acguisivion the other acquired businesses eamead revenues of £117m and mads profits from operations (excluding exceptional items and amortisation) of £2m
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29 Acqusstions continued
The farr values of acquired assets and Irabitraes incfuding goodwall previousty disclosed as provisiona! for Leonard Wood Farmity Communines LLC Schreck-Migves

GmbH Branlow Ltd Colledge Trundle & Hall Ltd and Lackland Family Housing LLC have been finalised in the current year with no matenal changes to the farr values
disclosed in the Directors report and accounts 2008

The followang summary prasents the Group as f the businesses acquired had been acquirad on 1 January 2009 The amounts include the results of the acquired
businesses deprecigtion and amorusation of the acquired fixed assets and intangible assets racognised on acquisttion The amounts do not nclude any possible
synergies from the acquisiion The results of acquired companies for the penod before acquisition have not been adjusted to reflect Balfour Beatty accounting policies
nor 1o reflect the far value adjustments made on acquisibon The informatian 1s provided for illustrative purposes only and does not necessanty reflact the actual results
that would have occurred nor 15 1 necessanly indicatve of the future results of the combined companies

Total

£m

Group revenue 10.238
Profit for the year a0

30 Share-based payments
301 The Company operates four equity-settled share-based payment amangements namely the savings-related share option schema the executive share oplion

scheme the performance share plan and the deferred bonus plan The Group recogmsed total expenses related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions
since 7 November 2002 of £6 8m in 2009 {2008 £88m)

Following the nghts ssue described in Note 28 2 adjustments were made to the number of shares under optian and the exercise prices in accordance with the HMRC
approved standard fomula The same adjustment formula was used to adjust the awards under the performance share plan and the deferrad bonus plan Numbers and
prices onor to the nghts 1ssug have been adjusted onto a comparable basis

302 Savings-related share options

The Company operates an HMRC approved savings related share option scheme ["SAYE™) under which employees are granted an option to purchasa ordinary shares in
the Company in exther three of five years time, dependent upon therr entanng into a contract to make mondhly contnbutions to a savings account over the relevant panod
These savings are used to fund the option exercise This scheme 15 open to all employees based in the UK and performance conditions are not applied 1o the exercise

of SAYE options Employees nonmally have a penod of six months after completion of the savings contributions during which to exercise the SAYE options fading

which they lapse Details of SAYE options granted duning the year and outstanding at the end of the year are shown n Note 27 1 The informauon in refauon to SAYE
oplions was

Waighted Weighted

average average

SAYE exercise SAYE exercse

P o 008

Number Pence Number Porce

{adjusted) [adpusted) fadjusted) {adjustad)

Outstanding at 1 January 8,850,122 1 B 2579
Granted duning the year 2,883,694 2490 287035 352
Forferted dunng the year {1,254,662) 208 (797623 2805
Exercised during the year {1,523,234) 2242 {1464 588) 1733
Expired duning the year (54,418) 168.6 {35 149) 1828
Outstanding at 31 December 8,901,502 2870 8BN) 122 2887
Exarcisable at 31 December 106,695 2246 43 475 1158

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those SAYE options exarcised dunng the year was 272.3p(2008 adusted 349 4p) Those SAYE options
outstanding at 31 December 2009 had a weighted average remaming contractuat ife of 2 6 years {2008 2 7 years)

The principal assumptions used by the consultants in the stochastic model for the SAYE options granted in 2009 including expacted volatiity determined from the
fustoric weekly share price movements over the three year period immediately precading the invitation date were

Ummﬂm Calculated
Exercise pnce Expected Expected far vatue
poce imatation date dnndend volstity of Expected term Risk-free  of anrnpuon

Pence Pence yeid shares of options  interest rate Pence
bmvtatbion date ladpsted) {adpusted} *% % Years % {ndpested)
S April 2009 — three years savings coniract 2430 305.7 365 330 3.5 220 771

9 April 2008 — five years savings contract 2490 3057 365 330 5.25 273 856
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‘ihe Company has not granted any executive share aptions 1n 2009 but has continued to operate a scheme undsr wiich employees were last granted options in 2004
to purchase ordiary shares in the Company which are exercisable between three and 10 years after the date of grant. Performance condiuons have been met for all
executive options granted smee 7 November 2002 as eamings per share before goodwill amortisation and excepuional tems {“eps™) for the last year of the minimum
three year performance periad have grown from their respectve fixed base eps by a total of at least 3% per annum plus the increasa in RPY aver the relevant period

Details of executve share options outstanding at the end of the year are shown in Note 27 1
‘the informatian in relation to axecutrve aptans granted since 7 November 2002 was

Weghted Weighted

avarage

Executve EXETCISE Executve BREMCISE

apbons price oplions prcg

a8 2009 2008 2008

Number Pence Number Pencs

(edpsted)  (adjusted) {adpstad) {adhusted]

Outstanding at 1 January 1,400,501 1349 1,653,587 1998

Granted during the year - - - -
Forferted duning the year {17.223) 2273 (31,827 2189 o
Exercised during the year (138,358} 1955 {206,259) 2007 =
Expired during the year - - - - é
Outstanding at 31 December 1,244,520 1389 1400501 1989 =

Exercisable at 31 December 1240920 1989  1,400501 1989

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those executive options exercised dunng the year was 286 1p {2008 adjusted 370 4p) Those executive

options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3 9 years (2008 4 9 years)
304 Performance share plan awards

The Company operates a performance share plan under which executve Directors and key semor employees are grantad condiional awards of ordinary shares in the
Company, which are exercisable on the thied anniversary of the date of award These awards will only vest o the extent that performance targets are met over a three
year performance penod On 15 April 2009 a maximum of 2 899,265 condtional shares were awarded which are normally exercisable in April 2012

50% of the 2009 award 15 based on an eps growth target the maximum award of shares 15 made only where the Company s eps tncreases by at least APl +39% in the
retevant performance period, 25% of this element of the award 1s made where the Company s eps increases by RPl +3% over the pertod, If growth in eps 1s between
RPI+9% and RPI +39% the number of shares will be awarded pro-rata to the growth n eps and no shares from this element of the award can be awarded if growth

wn eps 1s less than RPI +9% over the penied

The other 50% of that 2009 award 1s based on total shareholder retum (TSR} performance measured against a group of UK listed companies aperating in comparable
markets to the Company the maximum award of shares ts made only where the Company s TSR 1s 1n the upper quartile, 25% of this element of the award 1s made
where the Company s TSR 1s at the medran if the Company’s TSR 15 between the median and the upper quartife the number of shares will be awarded pro-rata,

and no shares can be awarded f the Company’s TSR 1s below median
The information in relation to performance share awards was

Conditonal  Condional

awards awards

200 208

Number Numbar

|adpssted) ladusted}

Qutstanding at 1 Jfanuary 5997490 5318285
Granted during the year 2999265 2345776
Forferted during the year {m3n} (78559
Exercisad during the year {1.436,028) (1300321}
Expirad during the year {627.202) {287 195)
Outstanding at 31 Decembes 6863,9138 5997430

Exercisahle at 31 December

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those performance share awarts exercised dunng the year was 283 4p (2008 adjusted 390 2p}
Thase performance share awards outstanding at 31 December 2009 had a weighted average remainmg contractual hife of 15 years (2008 17 yaars)




148 Annual report and accounts 2009

Notes to the accounts

30 Share-based payments cormtinued

The awards are sausfied by the transfer of shares for no considerat:an For the 50% of the 2009 award which 1s subject to a performance test based on eps the farr
value of the award 18 the closing share pnce before the award date (395 2p} For the 50% of that 2008 award which is subjact to a market condition based on TSR the
consultants have used a stochastic model ncluding expected volatility detemuned from the histonc weekly share pnce movements over the three year period preceding
the award date with the following assumptions used

Closmyp share Calculated

prce before Expected taw value

award date volatility of Expected term Risk-free  of anaward

Pence shares of pwards  nterest rate Pence

Awzrd date |adjusted) % Years % {adnzsted)
15 Apnil 2009 309.2 330 30 214 2236

30 5 Deferred bonus plan awards

The Company operates a deferred bonus plan under which one-third of the annual bonus of executive Directors and key semior empioyees 15 deferred in the form of
ordary shares i the Company whichwill nomally be released after three years prowiding the indvidual s still i the Group's employment at that tme On 31 March
2009 a maximum of 887 240 condivonal sharas ware awarded which will normally be released on 31 March 2012 On 6 July 2009 a furthar 47 633 condrtional shares
were awarded 1n lieu of entitlements to the final 2008 dividend and on 4 December 2009 a further 34 727 conditional shares were awarded in hew of entitlements to
the intenm 2009 dmdend

The infarmation 1n relation to deferred bonus plan awards was

Condinonal Condrtional

awards awards

209 2008

Mumbss Nurmbar

{adjusted) {adjLsted}

Qutstanding at 1 January 1,488,052 847 076
Granted duning the year 887,240 607 264
Awards n{ieu of dwidends 82,360 46472
Farferted during the year (30,032) (v2,750
Exercised dunng the year (493,5748) -
Exprred dunng the year - -
Outstanding at 31 December 1933946 1,488,052

Exercisable at 31 December - -

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those deferred bonus plan awards exercised duning the year was 285 6p {2008 n/a) Those deferred bonus
plan awards outstanding at 31 December 2009 had a weighted average remamning contractual Ifie of 15 years {2008 14 years)

As the awards are satisfied by the transfer of shares for no consideration, the farr valugs of the awards are the clasing share price before award date, which was
281 95p, 261 48p and 263 5p for the awards made on 31 March 2008, 6 July 2009 and 4 Decambar 2009 respectively
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Capnta! expendsture author:sed and contracted for which has not been provided for in the accounts amaunted to £29m {2008 £34m)in the Group ang £l {2008 £ail) in

the Company

The Group has committed to prowide its shase of further equity funding and subordinated debt of jomt vertures and associates in PPP projects amounting to £104m {2008
£70m) £30m (2008 £19m}in respect of PPP subsidiaries and £23m (2008 £27m) n respect of Batfour Beatty Communities military housing concessions The furture cash

flow prafile of the Group s share of further equity funding and subordinated debt 1s shown in Note 36(g)

The Group leases land and buildings equipmant and ather vanous assets under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leasas have varying terms escalation

clauses and renewal nghts The tease expenditure charged to the statement of financial performance 1s distlosed in Note 4 1
Future operating lease expenditurs commitments comprise

Land and Land and
buildmgs Other butldings Other
209 2009 2008 2008
Em £m fm fm
Group
Due within ane year n 30 35 2
Due between one and five years 179 LY B2 3
Due after more than five years 55 1 41 -
306 78 158
Company
Due within one year 3 - 3 -
Due between one and five years 13 - 13 -
Due after more than five years 1 - q -
17 - 20 -
Future operating lease ncome commitments compnise
Land and Land and
hml% bu%
£m fm
Group
Due within one year 3 2
Due betwean one and five years 10 10
Due after more than five years 1 2
14 14
Company
Due within one year 3 2
Due between one and five years 10 9
Due after more than five years - 2
13 i3

Siunoxe Ing
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32 Contingent hiabilnies

The Company and certain subsidiary undertakings have in the normal course of business given guarantees and entered into counter-indemn ies in respact of bands
relating to the Group s own contracts and given guarantees in respect of the Group's share of certain contractual abligations of it ventures and associates and certan
retirement beneit obligations of the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund and the Parsons Bnckerhoff pension scheme Where the Company entars into such agreements 1t
considers them to be msurance amangements and accounts for them as such Guarantees are treated as contingent liabiliies until such tme as it becomes probable that
the Company will be required to make payment under the guarantee

An associate 1s @ member of a mulu-empioyer defined benefit pension plan where there 15 insufficient Information on which to base a reliable estimate of any potential
defined benefiz obligation and accordengly the associate 1s accounting for the plan as a defined contribution ptan Under certam circumstances it 15 possible that
addronal contributions may be made to fund the deficit attnbutable to the assocate however no reliable estmate can be made of whether and t what extent

a hability mey crystaliise

As stated n Note 26 provision has been made far the Directors” best estimate of known legal claims investigations and legal actions in progress The Group takes legal
advice as to the likelihood of success of claims and actions and no proviston 1s made where the Directors consider based on that advice that the acoon 15 unlikely to
succeed or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the potential obligatien cannat be made

33 Related party transachons

Jont ventures and associates

The Group has contracted with, provided sernces to and receved management fees from, certam joint ventures and associates amounting to £339m {2008 £6893m)
These transactions occurred In the normal course of business at market rates and terms In addition the Group procured equipment and labour on behalf of certain joint
ventures and associates which were recharged at cost with no mark-up The amounts due to or from jaint ventures and associates at 31 December are drsclosed within
trads and other receivables and trade and other payables in Notes 21 and 22 respectively

Penston schemes
The Group recharged the Balfour Beatty Pension fund with the costs of administration and adwisers' fees bome by the Group amounting to £5 Om in 200942008 £4 5m)
Key personnel
The remuneration of key persannel of Balfour Baatty ple was
2008 2008
&m £m
Short-term benefits 4586 71137
Post employment bengfits 0235 0mn
Share-based payments 1852 303
6673 10939

Key personnel comprise the executive directors and three Group managing directors (2008 saven} who are directly responsible for the Group s operating companies,
engineering and safety The remuneration mctuded above 1 that paid m respect of the penod of the year duning which the ndnaduals were Directors and Group
managing directars Further details of Directors emoluments post employment benefits and interests are set out in the Remuneration report on pages 82 1090

34 Post balance sheet events

On 29 January 2010 the Group acquired Mufubuild Hotels and Letsure Limited and Multbuild Interiors Limited for 2 cash consideration of £1 9m Multibuild Hotels
and Leisure Limited and Mutubuild interiors Limited based in Stockport UK, specialise in the construction and fit-out of hotel and ieisure fatilines As the compames
have been acquired recently, at the date of authonsation of these accounts it 1s impracticable to determine the fair value of the net assets and goodwill acquired
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o E o
tm £m Em £m
35 1 Cash generated from operations comprises
Profit from operations o7 5 182 15
Exceptional reduction in pension past service labirhities (100} {60) 4) (2}
Share of results of joint ventures and associates (83} {72 - -
Dmidends receved - - (189) {28}
Depreciation of propesty, plant and equepment €3 65 1 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets 48 7 - -
Pension deficit payments {35) {38} {1 {1
Movements relating to share-based payments 7 9 4 5
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment L] {4 - -
Impairment of mventory 2 - - -
Impaiment of property alant and equipment 2 - - -
Other non-cash items 1 5 - - ?
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital m i83 v 1 §
Decrease inworking capital % 14 21 2 5
Cash generated from/{used in} operations 294 297 1 @
Group Grouo Company Compamy
pa 7008 2009 08
Em Em Em fm
35.2 Cash and cash equivalents compnse
Cash and deposits 464 319 - -
Term deposits 14 82 143 50
PPP cash balances 11 2 - -
Bank overdrafts {10} {10) {53) (51)
608 453 S0 ()

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks ather short-temm highly hquid nvestments with onginal matunties of less than three
months and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings i current liabilities in the statement of financial position

Group Group Company Company
3] 2008 20 2008
£m £m £m £m

35.3 Analysis of movement 1n net cash
Opening net cash pail) 33 n {15
Net increase incash and cash equivalents 185 z 1] 14
Acquisiions — borrowings at date of acquisiten (14) {29) - -
Proceeds from new loans {121) {81) - -
Repayment of loans 4 18 - -
Repayment of finance leases 3 2 - -
Currency translstion differences {30) 12 - -
Closing net cash k. 297 %0 {n

354 Borrowings

During the year to 31 December 2009 the significant movements in borrowings were an increasa of £116m (2008 £81m increase) in non-recourse borrowings
tunding the developmen: of financial assets in PPP subsidiaries the inclusion of £14m (2008 £29m) of barrowings in acqared companies and repaymens of £4m

{2008 £18mj of loans
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36 Pnncipal subsidianes, joint ventures and associates
Coanry of

Coungry of

nCIMparation or ACCIOLON of nerest
fegIsialon registration %

{a) Princrpal subsidianes {b} Princapal joint ventures and associates
Professionat, Construction and Support services Professional, Construction and Support services
Balfour Beatty Civit Enginesring Ltd BK Gutf LLC Dubai 490
Balfour Beatty Construction Group Inc USA  Dutco Batfour Beatty LLC Dubai 490
Baffour Baatty Construction Northem Ltd Gamnon China Ltd Hong Kong 508
Balfour Beatty Construction Scottish & Southem Lid Scotland  Monteray Ltd 245
Baifour Beatty Engineering Services Limited Scotland  Romec Ltd 430
Baifour Beatty Ground Engineenng Limiied Refer to Nate 36 (d}, (e} and {f) for details of the Group's Infrastructure
Batfour Beatty Group Ltd Investments companies
Batfour Beatty Inftastructura log Usa {c) Principal jointly controlled operations
Balfour Beaity Management Lid The Group cames out a number of 1ts larger construction contracts in joint
Batfour Beatty Rail GmbH Gemany  arrangement with other contractors so as to share resources and nisk
Balfour Beatty Rail Inc USA  The prncipal joint construction projects in progress ase shown below
Balfour Baatty Rarl Ltd East London Line 500
Balfour Beatty Rail SpA Nely  Souh-East England Roads 600
Balfour Beatty Uabity Sotutions Ltd South-West England Roads 730
Balfour Beatty WorkPlace Ltd High speed line Bologna/Firenze Italy 260
Birse Group pic High speed line Milano/Batogna ltaly 250
Heery Intemational Ing USA  pposDBRD 500
Mansell plc M25 Maintenance 525
Parsons Brinckerhoff {Asia) Ltd HongKong  pa7a Motorway Seotland 750
Parsons Brinckerhaff ing USA  geotand Transerv Scotland 700
Parsons Brinckerhaff Intemational Pte Ltd SNGAPOre  ouhard Base Tunnel Switzertand 750
Parsons Brinckerhoff Lid Berhn Federal Prson UsA 800
PB Americas Inc USA " Dallas Convenuon Center Hote! USA 800
P8 Australia Pry Lt AusTalla |51 45 Highway Projects USA 300
Infrastructure investments Mount Rogers USA 900
PPP (refer Note 36 (d}) New Campus East at Fort Bebvorr usa 500
Balfour Beatey Capital Ld Walter Reed Army Medical Center USA 400
Balfour Beatty Capital Group ing USA Noes
Balfour Beatty Communizes LLC USA M Subsshanes ot venures and essociates whose results 6d net n the ooinion of the Thredlors
Balfour Beatiy nfrastructure invesiments Ltd* malena'ly affect the resufts ornet assets of the Group are nol shown.
Other N} * Incicates held directly by Balfour Besty ple
Balfour Beatiy LC USA [y Unless otherwise stated W00% of the equity camtal s owned ang companies are registared i England
Ralfour Beatty Group Inc USA and Wales. The pnncial operations of sach comgeny are condtictad In its country of scorporaion.
Balfour Beatty Investment Holdmgs Ltd
Oelphian Insurance Company Ld Isle of Man
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{d) PPP concessions

Roads

Summary: Balfour Beatty 15 a promater developer and awestor in nine road and street ighting projects under Balfour Beatty's Connect brand to construct new roads
1o upgrads and mantain existing foads, and 10 replace and maintai street ighting

Project descriphons The road projects compnse the design construction aperation, maintenance and associated financing of the foliowing roads the MiI-At link
road, A3G Homiton 1o Exster and A35 Tolpuddle to Puddletown bypass A0 Stoke-Derby M77 Fenwack to Malletsheugh and the Glasgow Southern Ortital the M25
Juncnion 16 to Junction 23 Junction 27 to Junction 30 and A1{M) Hatdieid Tunnel and maintenance of the entie M25 and the Carlisle Northem Development Route
{CNDR) The road concesstons typrcally run for 30 years and reached financial close at vanous dates betwaen March 1996 and July 2009 The sreet ighting projects
are for the replacement, maintenance and associated financing over a 26-year penod of the street ighting and highway signs in Sunderland, South Tyneside and Derby
All construction 15 new build rather than refurbishment except for the wark undertaken on the M25 and A1{M) Hatfield Tunnel

Contractual arrangements The pnncipal contract in the roads concessions ts the project agreement wath the governmental highway authorty seiting out the
obligations for the construction aperation and mantenance of the roads inctuding hfecycle replacement by Connect for the hife of the concession to specified standards
In the case of M1-A1, A30/A35 and AS] the nflation indered payment s related to traffic volumes In the case of M77/GS0 and CNOR, the wnflation indexed paymert
Is partty based on avatlability and partly on traffic volumes and 1s subject to any performance related deductions In the case of M25 the infiation indexed payment s
wholly based on availabrdity and 18 subjeci to any performance related deductions Construction of the roads was subcontracted to constsugtion joit ventures in which
Balfour Beatty had a 50% interest o n the case of the M77/GS0 and CNDR 100% to Balfour Beatty subsidiaries On the street lighting prajects, payment 1S by a
penadic nffation indexed availabifity payment subject to performance deductions and the replacement and maintenance obligations have been subcontracted to a
Balfour Beatty subsidrary There are no provisions ta repnce the contracts and zll assets transfer to the client at the end of the concessions

Equrty and subortinated debt

Committed

Investad 1o post

Total debt and Constructign 31 Docember 21 December

Concession compary (1) Project  equity fudmg Sharehokdng Franc@lcloss  Ourationyears compigtion 2009 2008

Conneet M1-A1 Lid M1-A1 30km road £290m 50% March 1996 30 1899 £14m -

Connect ASD Ltd [} A50 57km road f47m 85% May 1996 30 1998 £6m -

Connect A30/A35 Ltd {u} A30/A35 102km road £127m 85% July 189 30 2000 £21m -

Connect M77/GS0 plc (i) M77/GS0 Z5km road £167m 85% May 2003 32 2005 £15m -

Connect Roads Sunderand Ltd Street lighting apparatus £27m 100% August 2003 25 2008 £3m -
n Sunderlend

Connect Roads South Tyneside Ltd Street highting apparatus £28m 100% December 2005 5 2010 - £2m
i South Tyneside

Connect Roads Derby Ltd Street lighting apparatus £36m 100% Apni 2007 5 012 - £2m
in Derby

Connect Plus (M25) Lid M25J16-J23, J27-J30  £1,309m A0% May 2009 30 m2 £25m £55m
and A1{M} Hatfield Tunnel

Connect CNDR Lid Carlisle Northem £176m 00% July 2009 30 2012 - £11m
Development Route

£84m £70m

Noles

(it Registered n Engtand and Wales and tha principal operations of each company are conducted in Englend and Wales except Connect M77/G50 pic which conducts its pncipal operations n Scotland

() Due 10 the shareholder agreement benween Batiowr Beatly and the other shareholder raguinng unanamity of agreement i respent of significant matters related w the financial and operating policies of tus company
the Oirectors are of the opawon that, 25 at the reporting date the Group thd not control thes compxany and L has been accounted far 25 2 y0mt venture
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36 Pnncipal subsidianes, joint ventures and associates continued

{d) PPP concessions continued

Hosprtals

Summary Balfour Beatty 15 a promoter, developer and snvestor in nine hespaal projects eight of which are under Balfour Beatty s Consort Healthcare brand comprising
the building of hospital accommodation and the prowision of certain non-medical faciliies management services over the concession penod

Project descniptions. Tha prajects compnse Uneversity Hospital of North Durham Edinburgh Roval Infirmary Royat Blackbum Hespital University College London
Hospital Unwersity Hospital Bimingham Pinderfields and Pontefract Hospitals in mid-Yorkshire Hope Haspital Salford Tameside General Hospital, and Victona Hospitzl
Kirkcaldy in Fife Construcuon 1s new build rather than refurbishment,

Contractual amangements The pnncipal contract is the project agreement between the concession company anc the NHS Trust An inflation indexed payment 1s
onimanly based upon availability of the hosprial subject to any performance related deductions Construction of the hospitals has been subcontracted to construction
Joint ventures in which Balfous Beatty subsidianes paricipated 100% {University Hosortal of North Durham Roval Blackbumn Hospra!, University Hospital Bimingham
Pinderfields and Pontefract Hosprals Hope Hospital Salford Tameside General Hospital and Victona Hospital Kirkaldy) 85% (Edmburgh Royal Infirmaryt and 50%
(Unwversity College London Hospital} in the case of Edinburgh Royal Infirmary University Haspital of North Dusham Royel Blackbum Hospital Unwersity Hospital
Bimningham, Pinderfields and Pontefract Hospitals, Hope Hosprtal Salford, Tameside General Hospitzl and Victoria Hospital Kirkaldy, facilives management has been
subcontracted to & Balfour Beatty subsidiary The payments for the faciliues management senvices are repnced every five years All agsats transfer to the client at the
end of the concession wath the exception of Edmburgh Royal Infirmary whera the client has the opion to teminate the arrangement for the pravision of the hosprial
and services in 2028

Equrty and subordinated dabt
Commutted
Invested to post
Total debt and Constructen 31 December 31 December
Concession compary {1} Sroject equity fonding  Shareholdng Financizicloese  Duration years complation 2009 20
Consort Healthcare (Dusham) Lt Teaching hospital £90m 0% March 1998 30 2001 E£7m -
Consort Healthcare {Edinburgh Royal Teaching hospital~~ £220m 738% August 1998 30 2003 £48m -
Infirmary} Ltd {n} and medical school
Health Management {UCLK) Ltd University College London~ £282m B3I% July 2000 40 2008 £9m -
teaching hospital
Consont Healtheare (Blackbum) Ltd Distnict general hospital — £416m 50% July 2003 B 2006 £6m -
Consont Healthcare (Birmingham) Ltd Teaching hospital and ~ £553m 0% June 2006 40 201 £15m £4m
mental health hospital
Consort Healtheare (Mid Yorkshire} Ltd Pindedfields and ~ £311m 50% June 2007 35 2010 - £15m
Pontefract general
hospitals
Consort Heafthcare {Satford) Ltd Teaching hospital £136m 50% September 2007 35 2012 - £10m
and medrcal school
Consort Heatthcare (Tameside) Ltd General hospital £77m 50% September 2007 £l 20Mm £6m -
Consort Heafthcare (Fife) Lid Generalhosptal ~ £170m 50% Apnl 2009 30 2011 £2m £7m
£89m £36m
Motes

1} 3egistered n England and Waies and the pnneipal operations. of each company are congueted m England and Wales except Consort Healtheare (Edinourgh Royal inf rmary) Lid ang Consort Healthcare (Sife) Lid which
are regisiared n Scotland and conduct therr pancipal cperations n Scotland

[} Due to the sharehoider agreement herween Bakour Beatty and the other sharsholdar requining unansmity of agreement in respect of sign.ficart matiers related to the financial and operating po'ces of this company
tha Dsrectors are of the opm on that 25 at the reparing date the Group ded not control this company and 1t has been accounted for 25 a joim venture
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{d} PPP concessions continued
Schools
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Summary Balfour Beatty 1s a promoter developer and investor in nine schoa!s projects under Baifour Beatty s Transtorm Schools brand and one each under the Aura
and 4 Futures brands to design build or refurbysh schools and to provide certain non-educational services over the concession period

Project descnptions The projects compnse 98 schools in the ety of Stoke-on-Trant, 15 schools in Rotherham 21 schools in North Lanarkshirg, six new schools

two post-16 learming cantres and two kisure centres in Bassetlaw Nottinghamshire 12 schools 1n Birmingham 16 schools in the first two phases in Newcastle seven
Iearmng centres in Knowsley a first phase of three schools in Ishingtan and a first phase of two schools in Scuthwark Construction in North Lanarkshire Bassetlaw
Newcastla Knowsley and Southwark is all new build On Stoke construction compnses £16m of new build and £63m of refurbishment; on Rotherham £78m of

new build and £21m of refurbishment on Birmingham £69m of naw build and £5m of refurbishment, and on Islington's first phase £65m of new build and £10m

of refurishment

Contractisal arrangements The prncipal contract 1S the praject agreement batwaen the concession company and the local authority that provides for an inflation
indexed availability based payment subject 1o any performance related deductions For projects under the Transform Schools and 4 Futures brands construction 1
subcontracted to construction joint ventures af Batfour Beatty subsidiaries and the facilities management services are subcontracted to a Batfour Beatty subsidiary
Construction and facilies management services on the project under the Aura brand are carned out by subsidianes of ather sharehalders The payments for the
faciliies management services are repriced every five years All assets transfer to the chiant at the end of the concession

Equrty and subordmated dobt

Committed

Invested to past

Totaldebt and Comstruction 31 December 31 December

Concession company fil Propct  enutyfundmg  Sharehoiding Financialclose  Du guonyeas complaticn 2009 2009

Transtormn Schools {Stoke) Ltd Grouped schools project £84m 50%  October 2000 25 2005 £5m -
mn Stoke-on-Trent

Transtorm Schools (Rotherham) Ltd Grouped schools project £113m 50% June 2003 7 2006 £5m -
1n Rotherham

Transform Schools (North Groupad schools project £140m 50% June 2005 32 2008 9m -
Lanarkshire} Ltd m North Lanarkshire

Transform Schools {Bassetlaw) Lid Grouped schools project £127m 50% July 2005 i 2007 fim -
1n Bassetlaw, Notts

Transform Schools (BiminghamiLtd  Grouped schools project £89m 50% March 2006 K] 2009 £2m -
in Birmingham

Aura Newcastle Ltd BSF project f47m 20% July 2007 25 02 £4m -
1 Newcastie-upon-Tyne

Transform Schools (Knowsley) Lid BSF project n Knowsley £163m 100%  December 2007 2 2010 - £15m

Transtorm Ishngton Ltd (i) BSF argject m shington £47m 80% July 2008 26 2010 - £4m

4 Fytures Lid {n} BSF project in Southwark £23m 80% May 2009 26 2011 - f2m

£34m £21m

Notes

1} Regrstered wn England and Wates and the pnncigal operatons of each company are conucted w England and Wales except Transform Schools {North Lanarkshire) Ltd which conducts its pancipal cperations

1n Scotland

(3t Due to the sharsholoer agreemem between Baifour Baatty ana the oher shareholder requinng wanimity of agreement in respedt of signrfican matters refated to the finanesal and operatmy polieies of this company
the Bireciors are of the oom en that s a1 the reperting daie the Group dd not control thus company and it has besn accounted fox as 8 joint veniune

Sungdoe N
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36 Prnincipal subsidianes, jomnt ventures and associates continued

(d) PPP concessions contmued
Other concessions
Summary Balfour Beatty 1s a promoter, ceveloper and investor in a number of other concessions

Project descnptions The Powerlink project comprises two companies EDF Energy Powerlink Ltd [EDFEPL} which aperates the London Underground high voltage
power systerm under a 30-year contract and 1s responsible for procunng vanous new power assets and Power Asset Development Company Ltd (PADCO} which
constructed the new buitd power assets and 15 leasing them to EDFEPL Aberdeen Environmental Services Ltd {AES) has a contract 1o design build and finance
wastewater treatment faciities in North-East Scotland and operate them for the remamder of a 30-year pened The construction was principally new build
Pevensey Coastal Defence Ltd (PCOL) has a 25-year contact weth the Environment Agency which requires PCOL to maintain sea defences consisting of a shingle
bank that extends 8 km between Eastboume and Bexhill-an-Sea in East Sussex Gammon Capital {West) Pte Ltd has a contract todesign build and finance the New
instriute of Techrucal Educaton {"TE™) Collzge West in Singapare and provide long-temm facilities management senices for the remainder of the 27-year project

Contractual arrangements For the Powerlink project the princtpal project agresment 1s the power services contact between EDFEPL and London Underground Ltd that
provides for an inflation indexed availability payment subject to any performance deductions EDFEPL operates and maintains the power network using ts own stait and
15 leasing the new pawer assets from PADCO which subcontracted construction to  construction joimt venture 1n which a Balfour Beatty subsidiary had a 40% mterest
There are no provisions to reprice contracts and al! assets transfer to the chent at the end of the concession For AES the principal agreement 1s the project agreement
with Scottish Water under which AES recerves inflation indexed payments on the basis of flows and loads of influent to the treatment works less any performance
related deductions AES subcontracted construction to a construciion joint venture in which a Balfour Beatty subsidiary had a 50% interest and subcontracted operations
and maintanance to a subsidiary of one of the other sharehalders PCDL s principal cantract 1s the flood defence services agreement with the Environment Agency that
provides for an inflation indexed payment subject to any performance related deducttons For the Singapore project, the gnincipal agresment 1s the project agreement
wth the TTE of Singapore that provides for an inflation indexed avaifability based payment subject to any performance deductions Construction 1s subcontracted o
Gammon Pie Lid a wholly-owned subsidiary of Gammon China Ltd in which the Group has a 50% interest. The faciliuies management services under the [TE agreement
are provided by a third party

Equity and subordinated debt
Committed
Invested ta post
Total pebt an Constncton X1 December 31 Decembar
Concession company (i) Frogect  equiyfundmg  Shavehoidng financial close  Duration years compietion 200 2009
EDF Energy Powerlink Ltd (1) /Power tondon Underground £184m  10%/5% August 1998 30 2006 £4m -
Asset Development Company Ltd power system
Aberdeen Environmental Services bid - Wastewater reatment £92m 50% May 2000 30 2002 £5m -
iy North-East Scotland
Pevensey Coastal Defence Ltd Hood defences £3m 5% July 2000 5 n/a £im -
Gammon Capital {West) Pte Ltd Techmical education college £100m 50% August 2008 77 2010 — £2m
£10m £Im
Notes

() Registesed i England and Wa'es and the pancisat operations of each company are conducted s Englang and Wa'es excapt Gammon Capral {West) Pte Lid which 5 mgstered in Smgapore and conducts its pancipal
operations in Singapore

{n} The Group exercses signiicant mnfluence through s pancipaton 1 the management of EF Enenmy Powerlink and therafore accoums for 1ts iNtEfESt as an BssOCiate
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36 Principal subsidianes, jomnt ventures and essociates continued

(e} Military housing
Summary Balfour Beatty through its subsidiary Balfour Beaty Communities LLC 1s a manager, developer and investor in a number of US mubtary prvatisation prajests
assacrated with @ total of 44 mulitary bases that provide speciality housing to US military parsonnel and thenr farmilies

Project descnptions The projects compnse 11 muldary family housing privatsation projects with the United States Departmant of the Army [Army) covening 16 Army
basas four projects with the United States Department of the Awr Force (Air Farce) covering nine Awr Force bases and two projects with the United States Departmant

of the Navy (Navy} covering 19 Navy bases In addion there 15 one unaccompanied personne! housing {UPH) aroject at Fort Stewart located in Hingsville Georgia
These projects in operation cover 44 domestic hases located in 20 states and Washington DC and Balfour Beatty Commuruties expects them to contain over 33 000
end-state housing units ence full development, construction and renovation have been completed The first phase of the project known as the ninal development period
covers the penod of iniual construction or renovation of mibitary housing on a base, typically lasting three to exght years For each project, Balfour Beatty Camenuniugs
creaies a special purpose entity to serve s the owner of the project, which is typically erther a limited liability company or general partnerstup With respect to Asmy and
Navy prajects the govemment becomes a member or partner of the project entrty (Projact LLC) and whereas the Air Force 15 not a named partner or member in Balfour
Beatty Communities’ Project LLCs, it contnbutes a commitment to provide a govemment direct loan to the Project LLC and has simular nghts to share in distnbutions and
cash flows of the Project LLC

Contractual arrangements On each project the Project LLC enters into a ground lease wath the government, winch provides the Project LLC with a leasehold interest
n the land and wtle to the improvements on the land for a period of 50 years Each of thesa miitary housing privatisation projects includes agreements covening the
management and development of existing housing units as well as the development, construction, renavation and management of new units during the tem of the
progect, which, in the case of the Amy, potentially could extend for up to an additional 25 years The 50 year duration of each project calls for continuous renovation,
rehabilitation, demokition end recanstruction of housing umits through vanous predetermmed project phases At the end of the ground lease term the Project LLC s
leasehold interest terminates and all praject impravaments on the land generally transfer to the US Govemment

Preferred retums The projects will typically receive to the extent that adequate funds are available, an annual, rumimun preferred rate of return On most existing
projects, thus annual mimmum preferred rate of return ranges from 9% to 12% of Balfour Beatty Communities initial equity contnbution 1o the project, Bunng the

nitial development pertod, the praject 15 precluded from distibuting funds 1o pay the minumum prefered rate of retun The unpaid amounts generally will accrue and
accumulate, and can be used to fund renovation and construction costs If necessary If the accurmulated funds are not needed to fund renovation and construction costs,
at the end of the iniwial development peried they are distnbuted to pay accrued praferred retums to Balfour Beatty Cornmuriuas and the US Gavernment in accordance
with the terms of the project agreements

Spint of remaining operating cash flows Subsequent 10 the niial development parod any eperating cash fiow remaining after the annual minimum preferred
rate of return 1s paid 15 shared between Balfour Beatty Communities, the US Government and the reinvestment account held by the project for the benefit of the US
Government. On mast of the existing projects, the total amount that each party s entitled to receive {inclusive of the preferred retum) 1s generally capped at an annua)
modified rate of retum, or cash on-cash retum on its Initial equity contrebution 1o the project Histoncally these annual caps have ranged between approximately 11%
10 17% {depending on the parbicular project} However, in some of the maore recent projects there are enther no annual caps or lower projectad annual rates of retum
The total capial retumn generally wall nclude the annual minimum preferred retum discussed above The rainvestment accouni 15 an account astablished for the benefit
of the rmilitary, but funds may be withdrawn for construction, development and renovation cests durng the remaning life of a pvatsation project upon approval by the
apphcable military branch

Return of equity Generally at the end of a prgject term any monies remaining in the reinvestment account are distnbuted 1o Batfour Beatty Communities and the Army,
Navy or A Force, as applicable, in a predstermined order of priomty Typically these distnbutions wall have the effect of providing the parties with sufficient funds to
provide a minimum annual retum over the Iife of the project and a complete retum of tha inial capital cantnbution After payment of the mimimum annual return and

the return of a party’s intial contribuion, all remaining funds will typically be distnbuted to the Army, Navy or Air Force as applicable
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36 Pnincipal subsidianes, joim ventures and associates continued

(e} Military housing continued
Equity and scbordnated debt
Commmtted
Invested to post
Total project Constuction 31 December X1 Dacembes
Mifitary prvatrsauon proyect i) Project funding Financalciose Oumtionyeas  complation a8 200%
Fort Carson Amy bese located in Colorado Spnings, CO £145m  November 03 43 2004 EBm -
Fort Stewart/Hunier Airfieid Two amy bases located m Hinesville GA £22im November (3 50 20m - £6m
and Savannah GA
Fort Hamilton Anmy base focated in Brookhyn NY £34m June 04 50 2009 E1m -
Walter Reed Army Medical Center/ Two army hases iocated in Washington DC £55m July (4 50 2008 £4m -
Fort Detrick and Fredenck MD
Navy Northeast Region Eight navy bases located n Brunswack ME £307m  November 04 50 2010 £6m -
Ketery ME Newport Al Growon €7 Saratoga
Springs NY Long Island NY Colts Nack NJ
Lakehurst NJ
Fort Eustis/Fort Stary Two anmy bases kocated in Newport News  £107m March 05 50 201 - £2m
YA and Virginia Beach, VA
Fort Bliss/White Sands Missile Range Two amy bases located inEl Paso, TX  £264m July 05 50 2m - £4m
and Las Cruces, NM
Fort Gorden Army base located in Augusta GA £70m May 06 50 2012 - £3m
Carlisle/Picatinny Two army bases located in Carhisle, PA £5im July 06 50 am - £2m
and Dover, NJ
Fort Carson expansion Army base located n Colorado Springs, CO £80m  November 06 a6 2000 - -
AETC Group 1 Four Arr Force bases located m Altws, 0K, £184m  February 07 50 202 £5m -
Wichita Falts TX, Panama City FL,
Phoenix AZ
Navy Southeast Region Eleven Navy bases focated in Charleston, S€  £424m  November 07 50 2013 £am -
Kingsbay, GA, Jacksonwille, fL, Mayport, FL,
Panama City FL, Whiting Field, FL, Pensacala,
FL, Key West, FL, Gulfport MS, Meridan, MS
Fort Warth, TX
Vandenberg Aur Force base inLompoc, CA - £102m November 07 50 202 £Am -
Fort Stewart UPH Amay base located n Hineswille, GA £20m January 08 50 2010 £im -
Fort Leonard Wood Army base located in Pulaski MO £124m Acquired 47 2014 - £2m
June 2008
AMC West Three Awr Force bases locatedin -~ £253m July 08 50 2015 £9m -
Spakane WA, Fairfield CA,
Oklahoma City, OK
West Pount Army base located in Orange County NY  £129m August 08 50 2096 - f2m
Fort Jackson Amy base located in Columbia SC £104m Cctober 08 50 2003 - £2m
Lackland Aur Force base located in San Antomio TX E8im Acquired 50 03 - -
December 2008
Fost Bhss Expansion Army Sase located in T Paso TX £30m  Oecember 09 45 2014 - -
£37m £23m
Notes
(it Registered in the USA and the principat cperations of eack projacs are conducted in the USA
{€)  The share of resutts of the mrEtary housing ot ventures of Bafour Beatty Cammuniies 15 isnited o a pre-agreed prefermed retum on funds imvested
Equity and subardinated debt
Communed
Invested to post
31 December 31 Dacember
209 208
PPP concassions listed above £254m £157m
Preferred bidder - £3m
invesiment i Balfour Beatyy Commumities £110m -

£364m £160m
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36 Pnncipal subsidianes, joint ventures and associates continued

{f) Non-PPP infrastructure investments
Summary Balfour Beatty ts an mvestor in and a promater and developer of non-PPP infrastructure investments

Project descriptions Batfour Beatty 1s a 50% shareholder in Thames Power Lid whieh owns 51% of the equity in Barking Power Lid the company which buik
equipped owns and cperates Barking Power Stabon, a combinad cycle 1 D00MW capacity gas-fired facifty m East Londen 1n January 2007 Regionat & City Asrporis
{Exeter} Holdings Ltd purchased Exeter and Devon Airport Ltd which owns and operates Exster Intemational Airport. In May 2008 Regional & City Awrparts {Blackpaol)
Holdings Lid purchased Blackpool Airpert Ltd which awns and aperates Blackpoal Intemational Airport.

Egusty and subordimated debt
Commutisd
Invested post
Toial detd and 31 December 31 Docembear
Comgany (il Propet  equityfunding  Shareholding Financia! clase 2009 2009
Barking Power Ltd (n} Gas fired power station in East London £661m 255% March 1992 f24m -
Exeter and Deven Airport Lid Exeter internanonal Arrpart £60m 80%  January 2007 £18m -
Blackpoo! Airport Ltd {1) Blackpool International Airpart f14m 95% May 2008 £14m -
ESB6m -
Notes
1 Aegisterad n Eng'and ard Wales ana the principal operations of each company are conducted in Englard and Wales
{r]  Shareholdngs ouoted ave economic interests
(g) Total committed equity and debt funding
The future cash flow profile of committed equity and debt funding for the concession companies isted above is
at m 2012 2013 eowards Total
Concessinns Em Em Em £m £m
Roads 2 2% 24 - 70
Haspitals » 4 - - 36
Schools 19 2 - - 21
Other - 7 - 7
Mifitary housing 7 10 33

Total 18 45 26 4 157
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Group five-year summary

RS

2008 a0 007 2006 A5
£m fm fm £m fm

Income

Revenue {including share of joint veniures and associates)
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates

Group revenue from continuing operations

10,339 9486 7488 5506 4550
{1,385) {1 225) {1022) (1018} (753}

8,954 8,251 6,466 4,487 3837

Profit from continuing operatens before exceptional items and amortisation of Incangible assats 282 230 178 115 4
Net investmeant income/ifinance costs} before exceptional items (15) 19 23 21 23
Profit before taxation excepuonal items and amorisation of intangible assets %7 249 0 136 117
Excepuonal items 48 48 {35 (26} 7
Amorusation of intangibla assats (48) {27) (@ (1} -
Prafit from continuing operatians before taxation %7 210 157 109 124
Taxation on profit from continuing operations {54) {74) 12 {34} (35)
{Loss)/profit from discontinued operations afier taxation - - {18) 16 17
Profit for the vear attributable to equity shazeholders 213 196 151 9N 106
Capital employed
Equity shareholders funds 1,004 861 483 387 292
Lrabriity component of prefarence shares 88 87 87 90 98
Net cash {329) (297) (13 {284} (301)
768 651 257 193 89
2002 2008 2007 206 2005
Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence
Statistics
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share™ 3a7 347 305 238 20
Basic eamings per ardinary share 374 374 306 184 217
Diluted earmings per ordinary share 373 372 303 83 215
Proposed dividends per ordinary share 120 111 100 78 71
Profit from continuing operations before net investment incomey/{finance costs), excaptional tams
and amortisation as a parcentage of revenue (including share of joint ventures and associates) 21% 24% 24% 21% 20%

Notes

The comparative figures for eamengs per orinary shave and dedends per ordinary share have deen restated for the onus element af the October 2008 nghts rssue The adpustmant facior has been calculated by dwdng the
share price immied ately hefore the shares were quoted ex nghts (315 Dp) wath the theoretal ex nghts price 1275 2p) gwving an adjustment factar of 114826

The comparatve figures for the years 2005 o 2007 have been re-presentad frovn presnously pubishied accounts for the re-ciassHication of the net amoun of the expected retum on pension assets and pansion hatility mterest

costs out of nt operaling expenses 10 mvestment income as d sclosed n the Directors report and accounts 2008

* Adusted samags per oifinary share before exceptional Hems and amortisation of ntangdig assets and mehwdng the pre-exceplonal resuits of discontnued operatins, have been d sciosed o gve adlearer

understanding of the Group § underhang 1racing pe-formance
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Shareholder information

Financial catendar -
2000
21 Apnl Ex-dnidend date for final 2009
ordinary dmdend
Z3 Apnl Finat 2009 ardmnary dvidend record date
12 May Annual General Meeting
26 May Ex-dmdend date for July 2010
preference dividend
28 May July 2010 preference drndend record date
5June Fina! date for receipt of DRIP mandate
forms {see below)
1 duly Preference dwdend payable
5 Juty* Final 2009 prdmary dvidend payable
11 August” Announcement of 2010 hatf-year results
3 December® Interim 2010 ordinary dividend payable
*Provisional dates
Regrstrars

All admenestrative enguines relating 10 shareheldings and requests o recerve corporate
documents by email should in the firstinstance be directed to the Comeany s Registrars and
clearly state the sharehalder s registered address and, i available the full shareholder reference
number Please write to

Capria Registrars The Registry 34 BeckenhamRoad Beckenhamn, Kent BR3 4TU Telephone
0871 664 0300 from the UK (calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras) and +44 20 8639
3398 from outside the UK (Monday — Fnday 8 30 am— 5 30 pm, UK tme) Akematvelyyou can
emal at. ssd@caparegistrars.com

Theycan help you to

—check your shareholding

- regrster a change of address or name

—obtain a replacement dvdend chegue of tax voucher,

~racord the death of 2 sharehokder,

—amaigamate muluple accounts

~ resatve any other question about your shareholding

Dindends and drvwdend remvestment plan

tf you wish diadends to be paid directly into youe hank or buiding socety account, through the
Bankers Automated Cleaning System{BACS) you should comact the Registrars for a dividend
mandate form

Balfour Beatty has 2 dhadend remvestment plan{DRIP) whuch allows ordinary shaseholders 10
remvest therr casn divdends in the Company s shares bought in the market theaugh a specially
amanged share dealing service: Full details of the DRIP and s charges together with mandate
forms can be accessed at www balfourbeatty-shares com

Intematonal payment senice

Sharenolders outside the UK may now elect to recenve drdends pard direct mto ther
overseas bark acocount, or by currency draft, nstead of by way of acheque drawn in sterfing
For further information, plaase cuntact the Company s Registrars on +44 2086393405

{from outside the UK} or 0871 654 0385 from the UK [cafls cast 18p per minute pius netwirk
axtras} Lines are open between S 00 amand 5 30 pm, UK tme Altermatvely please log on
10 www tapitasharepartat com and click on the bink for internabional Payment Service
Sharehotder nformation on the mternet and electronic commumcatians

The Batiour Beatty website at www batfourbeatty com offers shareholders and prospective
Investors a range of information about the Company its peopie and businesses and its pobcies
oncorporate governance and corporate responsixlity

it shoutd be regarded as your first pont of reference for miormaton on any of these marters.
Inconuncton wath Capia Regrstrars you can orezte a Share Portal account, through wiech
youwill be able to access the full range of online shareholder services Including the atulity to
—wigw your hoidings and indicative share pree and valuaton,

—view movemnents oa your holdings and your divdend payment history

— tegster & dnadend mandate o have your deadends paxd directhy into your bank account,
—change yous registered address,

~ SIgN-up {0 feCeve e-communications or access the onling proxy voting tacility,

—download and print shareholder forms

The Share Portal 15 e2sy touse Please vist www balfourbeaity-shases com
Altematively you can email shareportal@capita co uk
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Gritmg shares to your family or to chamty

Totransfer shares to another member of your famly as a g, please ask the Registrars fora
Batfour Baatty gift transfer torm. Alternatvely f you only have a small rumber of shares whase
valua mekas it uneconomc to sefl them, you may wish 1o consider donating them to the share
donanon chanty ShareGift [regesterad chanty no  1052686) whose work Batfour Beatty supports.
Ay shares that you donate 10 Shareldtwill he aggregated, sold when possibke and the
proceads will be donated tt @ wide range of other UK chantes Smce ShareGits was launched
over £13m has been given to more than 1 600charmes The refevant share transfer form may
be phtaned from the Registrars For more infurmation on ShareGrix, vist www ShareGifLorg

Share dealing services

Caprta Share Dealing Servces (a trading name of Caprta iRG Trustees Limited) provide:
atelephone and online share deshng service for UK and EEA resident shareholders

Touse thus service shareholders should contact Capeta, Telephone D871 664 0364 from the
UK icalls cost 10p per menute plus network extras) and »44 203 367 2686 from outside the
UK — lines are open Monday ta Friday 8 00 am 104 30 pm, UK time Altematively logonto
www capitadeal com

For UK shareholders an executian-only share-dealing service for the purchase and szle of
Batfour Beatty shares 15 also avantabie from NatWest Stockbrokers Fordetarls please contact
NatWest Stockbeokers Limvted Prermier Place 2¥ Devonshure Square, London ECZM 4BA,
Telephone DB08 208 4433, Typetatk 18001 0808 208 4433 Email contactces@rbs.couk,
The services avallable Monday to Frday except UK Bank Holidays 800am104 30pm
NatWiest Stockbrokers Limited 1§ a joini venture between The Royal Bank of Seotland
Graup pic and Toronto-Dorminaon Bank

Capdta IRG Trustees bimited and NatWest Stockirokers Limited are each authonsed and
regulated by the Financial Services Authonity

Rights 1ssue

COn 17 September 2009 the Companty announced a fully underwriiten 3 for 7 nghts issue a1a
subscrpton pace of 180p per new ordinary share: representing a discoun of epproximalely
45 8% 1o the tosing rmiddée market pnce of 344p per ordinary share on 16 September 2009
after adjustment for the 2089 intenim dividend to substantially finance the acquisition of
Parsons Brinckerhotf Inc. The nghts ssue and acquisttion were appreved by the holders of the
Company s ordinary shares at a general meeting on 7 October 2009 and the nghts 1ssue closed
on 22 October 2009 The Company § ordnary shares were quoted ex-nghts by the Landon
Stock Exchange on B October 2008 and thex clesing middle market pnce that day was 279 6p
per share The closing riddie market pree of an ortinary share immediately before the ex nghts
date was 316p per share Dealngs in i paid new ordinary shares commenced on 8 Octaber
2003 and the closing middle market price of the nul pard new ordinary shares that day was

98 75p per share The theoretical ex-nghts prce was 275.2p per ordinary share

The Company received vald acceptances n respect of 199 469,067 ordinary shares
representing approximately 97 05% of the total number of new ordinary shares ofiered to
shareholders pursuant to the nghts 1ssue inaccordance with the amargements set out in the
nghts tssue prospectus, JPMorgan Carenove Liwted and ABS Hoare Govert Limited procured
acqurers for the remanng 6,032 170 ordinary shares for which vaiid acceptances were not
recerved at a prce of 287p per new ordinary share 205 502,237 new ordinary shares were
therefore ssued, ratsing £352m after ssue costs and expenses of £18m

Share pnce

The Baliour Beatty share pnce can be found at the Balfour Beatty wehsre at

www batfourbeatty com and in the apprepnate sections of national newspapers undes
the classification "Corstruction and Building Matenals™ It is alse available on g number
of personal finance websites on the Intemet and from television text services

‘The London Stock Exchange Daily Officsal List (SEDOU codes are
Ordinary shares 0096162
Preference shares Q087620

The London Stock Exchange “ucker ™ codes are
Ordinary shares 88Y
Preference shares BBYB

Caprtal gans tax

For captal gams tax purposes the market value on 31 March 1982 of Balfour Beatty pic s
ordinary shares of 50p each was 267 6pper share This has been adpusted for the 1 for 5 ngts
1ssue inJune 1992 the 2 for i1 nights sssue n Septerber 1296 and the 3 for 7 nghts issue in
October 2009 and assumes that all nghis have been taken up

Enquimnes

Enquines relating 10 Balfour Beatty s results business and financzal position should be made
nwriing to the Corporate Communications Departrent at the Company s Regestered Office
addkess or by emai to mfo@batfourbeatty com

Balfour Beatty plc

Registered Otfice 130 Wilton Road London SW1V LD

Registered in England Number 335826
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